
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Committee: Executive 
 

Date:  Monday 9 February 2009 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA 
 
Please note this meeting was originally scheduled for 2 February 2009 
which was abandoned due to severe weather. Members are requested to 
bring their agenda from that meeting as reports will not be re-issued. 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Barry Wood 
(Chairman) 

Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor Michael Gibbard 
Councillor James Macnamara 
 

Councillor Kieron Mallon 
Councillor Nigel Morris 
Councillor D M Pickford 
 

Councillor Nicholas 
Turner 
 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence      

 
2. Declarations of Interest      

 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest that they 
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the 
meeting. 
 

4. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 15)    
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 1st December 
2008 and 12th January 2009. 
 

Strategy and Policy 
 

6. Forward Plan  (Pages 16 - 28)   6.35pm 
 
Report of Leader of the Council 
 
Summary  
 
To review the Leader’s Forward Plan of the key decisions which will be taken by the 
Executive over the next four months.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To resolve to note the Leader’s Forward Plan for the next four months. 
 

7. Shenington and Alkerton Conservation Area  Appraisal  (Pages 29 - 70)  
 6.40pm 
 
Report of Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Policy 
 
Summary 
 
To report on the outcome of the public consultation on the draft conservation area 
appraisal and to recommend that a conservation area be designated at Shenington 
with Alkerton 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the outcome of the public consultation on the draft appraisal and 

proposed conservation area boundary  
 
(2) To approve the changes it is recommended be made to proposed boundary 

in response to comments received 
 
(3) To designate, under Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990, a conservation area as proposed in the 
revised appraisal and as at Fig 1 appended to this report with    immediate 
 effect. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8. Cherwell Rural Strategy  (Pages 71 - 114)   7.10pm 
 
Report of Head of Urban and Rural Services 
 
Summary 
 
To consider the final draft Rural Strategy and Delivery Plan, and to consider 
appointing a Rural Champion.  To commend the Rural Strategy and Delivery Plan to 
the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) To recommend to Council the approval of the final draft Cherwell Rural 

Strategy 2009-2014 and the Delivery Plan. 
(2) Approve the appointment of the Executive Member for Urban and Rural 

Services to lead the delivery of the Strategy as Cherwell District Council’s 
“Rural Champion”. 

(3) Commend the final draft Cherwell Rural Strategy 2009-2014 and the Delivery 
Plan to the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership. 

 
9. Oxfordshire 2030 - A Sustainable Community Strategy for Oxfordshire  (Pages 

115 - 225)   7.20pm 
 
Report of Chief Executive 
 
Summary 
 
To adopt Oxfordshire 2030, Oxfordshire’s Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) Recommend to Council for adoption Oxfordshire 2030, Oxfordshire’s 

Sustainable Community Strategy, as a key strategic document for Cherwell 
District Council. 

 
10. Consultation and Engagement Strategy and the Duty to Involve  (Pages 226 - 

253)   7.25pm 
 
Report of Chief Executive and Community and Corporate Planning Manager 
 
Summary 
 
This report presents a final version of a consultation and engagement strategy and 
action plan for Cherwell District Council and outlines the steps the council needs to 
take to meet the requirements of new legislation in this policy area.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 

(1) To undertake consultation on the draft strategy and make any amendments in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Policy and Community Planning. 



(2) Following consultation, to recommend to Council the adoption of the consultation 
and engagement strategy and action plan as council policy and the preferred 
approach to improving consultation and community engagement, to delivering our 
commitment to be an Accessible, Value for Money Council and to meeting the 
statutory requirements of the Duty to Involve in the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

(3) To request an annual progress review of the strategy and action plan to be 
received by the Executive. 
 
 

Value for Money and Performance 
 

11. Draft Budget 2009/10  (Pages 254 - 269)   7.35pm 
 
Report of Strategic Director Customer Service and Resources and Chief Accountant 
 
 
Summary 
 

The Council is required to produce a balanced budget for 2009/10 as the basis for 
calculating its level of Council Tax.  It has to base that budget on its plans for 
service delivery during the year, recognising any changes in service demand that 
may arise in future years.  The first draft was reported to the December 1st 2008 
Executive meeting and a second draft to the January 12 2009 Executive meeting.  
The information has now been updated to reflect changes since then and, subject to 
any further changes Members may wish to include tonight, this final draft will be 
presented to full Council on 23 February 2009. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 

1) to approve the changes to the draft budget since 12 January 2009 and 
consider the draft revenue budget (detailed in Appendix 1) in the context 
of the Council’s service objectives and strategic priorities;  

2) to agree the approach to the overall capital programme and 09/10 
expenditure profile (detailed in Appendix 2); 

3) to note the latest MTFS financial forecast (detailed in Appendix 3); 

4) request officers to produce the formal 09/10 budget booklet on the basis 
of Appendices 1-3: 

5) recommend ,subject to any further changes Members may wish to include 
tonight, the updated draft budget for adoption by the Council on 23 
February 2009 (as a key decision); 

6) recommend that the draft service plans be endorsed;  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12. Performance Management Framework Quarter 3 Report  (Pages 270 - 321)  
 8.05pm 
 
Report of Chief Executive and Head of Improvement 
 
Summary 
 
To report the Council’s performance against the Performance Management 
Framework for the period October – December 2008. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
1) To note the progress made on delivering against the Corporate Scorecard and 

the other performance frameworks appended to this report. 
 
2) To note the responses to the issues raised in the 2nd quarter report and to seek 

further information in the next quarterly Performance Management Framework 
report if required. 

 
3) To agree that in the next quarterly report there will be an update on the impact of 

the economic downturn on: 
 

a) The Council’s ability to deliver the 2008/09 corporate targets of 400 new 
homes and the creation of 200 gross new jobs and the impact on our targets 
in these areas for 2009/10. 
 

b) The income received through building control, planning applications and land 
charges during 2008/09, the projections for 2009/10 and the proposals for 
responding to a sustained drop in income as embodied in the 2009/10 
budget. . 
 

c) The progress of key development projects such as Banbury Canalside, 
Bicester Town Centre and South West Bicester. 

 
4) To agree that in the next quarterly report there will be an update on the 

following:   
 

a) The target for reducing acquisitive crime by 5% is unlikely to be met and 
current projections suggest a 2% reduction will be achieved.  (Note:  The 
Performance Scrutiny Working Group has identified this as an area of 
concern and are proposing it should be subject to review through the scrutiny 
process.  The progress of this work will be reported as part of this update).   

 
b)  The increase in recorded violent crime (although involving a small number of 

incidents this has risen by 25% over the last quarter).  
 

c) The amount of waste sent to landfill.  This is expected to be reduced by a 
minimum of 1400 tonnes but with the real possibility of further improvement 
to achieve the annual target of 1500 tonnes. 
 

d) The worsening performance on flytipping and prosecutions. 
 

e) The time taken to process minor and other planning applications.   These 
met 59% and 71% of the respective performance targets and are rated Red 



and there has been a slight deterioration in the performance of both since the 
last quarter.  (Note:  The Performance Scrutiny Working Group has identified 
this as an area of concern and are proposing it should be subject to review 
through the scrutiny process.  The progress of this will be reported as part of 
this update).   

 
f) The delay in introducing the Food Waste Recycling Service.  .  It is now likely 

to be Autumn 2009 before the delayed  local food waste processing facility is 
built by the County Council. 
 

g) The increase in the number of days lost through sickness from 3.58 per full 
time employee a year to 6.31. 

 

Other Matters 
 

13. Authorisation of Staff - Safer Communities and Community Development  
(Pages 322 - 324)   8.35pm 
 

Urgent Business 
 

14. Items of Urgent Business      
 
Any other items which the Chairman has decided is urgent. 
 

15. Exclusion of the Press and Public      
 
The following reports contain exempt information as defined in the following 
paragraph of Part 1, Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972.  
 
3– Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 
Members are reminded that whilst the following items have been marked as 
exempt, it is for the meeting to decide whether or not to consider each of them in 
private or in public. In making the decision, members should balance the interests of 
individuals or the Council itself in having access to the information. In considering 
their discretion members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers. 
 
Should Members decide not to make a decision in public, they are recommended to 
pass the following recommendation: 
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded form the meeting for the following item(s) of business, on 
the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Strategy and Policy 
 

16. Bicester Hospital  (Pages 325 - 330)   8.40pm 
 
Report of Strategic Director - Environment and Community  
 
Summary 
 
To consider the Council’s response to the Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust’s (PCT) 
request for expressions of interest to deliver proposals for replacement Bicester 
Hospital facilities and services. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) Prepare an Expression of Interest and Pre Qualification Questionnaire 

promoting the SW Bicester site as the best location for delivering current and 
future intermediate health care needs of the people of Bicester and 
surrounding areas;  

 
(2) Undertake further dialogue with Medical Centre Developments Ltd to explore 

collaboration and the merits of a joint submission; and 
 
(3) Authorise the Strategic Director Environment and Community in consultation 

with the Leader of the Council to submit the necessary documentation to 
Oxfordshire PCT by 20 February 2009; and  
 

(4) Receive further reports as necessary on the progress of the submission and 
greater detail on the implications which arise through the competitive 
dialogue procurement process. 

 
 
 
 

Value for Money and Performance 
 

17. Internal Audit Procurement  (Pages 331 - 334)   8.55pm 
 
Report of Strategic Director Customer Service and Resources 
 
Summary 
 
To consider the granting of delegated powers to award to the Strategic Director 
Customer Services and Resources, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and the Chairman of the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee, for a 
contract for the Supply of Internal Audit Services. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) To note the progress made to date in the appointment of an external provider 

for the Supply of Internal Audit Services. 
 



(2) Approve the granting of delegated powers to award to the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and the Chairman of the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee, in 
consultation with the Strategic Director Customer Services and Resources, 
for a contract for the Supply of Internal Audit Services, commencing on 1st 
April 2009 for a period of 3 years with the option, purely at the discretion of 
the Council, to extend the contract by up to 2 years. 

 

(Meeting scheduled to close at 9.00pm ) 
 

 
 

Information about this Agenda 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or 01295 
221587 prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. The definition of personal 
and prejudicial interests is set out in Part 5 Section A of the constitution. The Democratic 
Support Officer will have a copy available for inspection at all meetings. 
 
Personal Interest: Members must declare the interest but may stay in the room, debate 
and vote on the issue. 
 
Prejudicial Interest: Member must withdraw from the meeting room and should inform 
the Chairman accordingly. 
 
With the exception of the some very specific circumstances, a Member with a personal 
interest also has a prejudicial interest if it is one which a Member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.   
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
 
Please contact James Doble, Legal and Democratic Services james.doble@cherwell-
dc.gov.uk (01295) 221587  
 
 
Mary Harpley 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Monday 2 February 2009 
 

 
 



Cherwell District Council 
 

Executive 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held in at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, 
OX15 4AA, on 1 December 2008 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman) 

 
 Councillor G A Reynolds 

Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor Michael Gibbard 
Councillor James Macnamara 
Councillor Nigel Morris 
Councillor D M Pickford 
Councillor Nicholas Turner 
 

 
Also present:  Councillor Andrew Fulljames 

Councillor Mrs Catherine Fulljames 
 
Apologies for 
absence: 

Councillor Kieron Mallon 
 

 
Officers: Mary Harpley, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 

Ian Davies, Strategic Director - Environment and Community 
Julie Evans, Strategic Director - Customer Service & Resources 
John Hoad, Strategic Director - Planning, Housing and Economy 
Liz Howlett, Head of Legal & Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer 
Phil O'Dell, Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 
Jo Smith, Communications Manager 
James Doble, Democratic, Scrutiny and Elections Manager 

 
 

130 Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillors declared interest with regard to the following agenda items: 
 
7. Eco-Town: Update on Current Position and Next Steps. 
Councillor G A Reynolds, Personal, Due to being a County Councillor and the County 
Council holding a land interest at Gowells Farm, Bicester. 
 
7. Eco-Town: Update on Current Position and Next Steps. 
Councillor Nicholas Turner, Personal, Due to being a County Councillor and the 
County Council holding a land interest at Gowells Farm, Bicester. 
 
7. Eco-Town: Update on Current Position and Next Steps. 
Councillor Norman Bolster, Personal, Due to being a County Councillor and the 
County Council holding a land interest at Gowells Farm, Bicester. 
 

131 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
The Chairman announced Councillor Fulljames, Councillor Mrs Fulljames and John 
Kightley (on behalf of Bucknell Parish Council) had requested to speak on agenda 
item 7: Eco-Town: Update on Current Position and Next Steps and that he had 
agreed that they should be heard at the start of that item of business. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



The Executive - 1 December 2008 

  

132 Urgent Business  
 
The Chairman stated that he had agreed to admit one item of urgent business to the 
agenda on the impact of the economy on the Housing Benefit function of the Council, 
on the grounds that the Council needed to be able to deal with the increased volume 
of housing benefit claimants resulting from the economic crisis. 
 

133 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 3rd and 17th November were agreed as a true 
and accurate record and signed accordingly. 
 

134 Forward Plan  
 
The Chief Executive submitted the Leader’s Forward Plan of key Executive decisions 
to be taken over the next four months.   
 
Resolved, that the Forward Plan for the next four months be noted. 
 
Reasons – to create a Forward Plan for the Council as required by the Local 
Government Act 2000. 
 

135 Eco-Town: Update on Current Position and Next Steps  
 
The Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Policy submitted a report to consider 
the next steps on the concept of an alternative Eco Development at North West 
Bicester. It was noted that supplementary information had been published with 
regard to this agenda item, which contained revised recommendations. 
 
Councillor Fulljames, Councillor Mrs Fulljames and John Kightley (on behalf of 
Bucknell Parish Council) addressed the meeting on the issue of an alternative Eco 
Development at North West Bicester. The Leader of the Council responded to the 
issues which were raised. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That Officers be instructed to undertake an initial ‘Concept Study’ of the 

potential alternative eco-development at NW Bicester (in accordance with the 
Brief and Timetable as set out in the report attached as Annex 1 to the 
minutes (as set out in the minute book). 

 
(2) That it be agreed that consultancy support be commissioned for this work. 
 
Reasons – The Executive requested a further report on the next steps to be taken in 
preparing for a formal response to the Government’s consultation in February.  
 

136 Bullingdon Immigration Removal Centre at site A DSDC Bicester  
 
At the request of Members the Head of Development Control and Major 
Developments submitted a report to advise members of the proposed Bullingdon 
Immigration Removal Centre for the UK Border Agency.  A secure Category C (5.2m 
Continuous security fence) 800 bed secure facility based on prison designs where 
detainees (illegal immigrants and failed asylum seekers) are held awaiting 
deportation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



The Executive - 1 December 2008 

  

Resolved 
 
That the proposals for an Immigration Removal Centre (IRC) at Bullingdon near 
Bicester be noted, in particular the positive effect this could have on the local 
economy.   
 
Reasons - It is Planning Committee’s role to consider and determine the eventual 
planning application, but Executive can identify community issues that need to be 
considered more generally by the Council. 
 

137 Informal Development  Principles  Bryan House, Bicester  
 
The Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Policy submitted a report to seek 
approval for the publication, following public consultation, of Informal Development 
Principles to guide the redevelopment of the site at Bryan House, Bicester. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the publication of an Informal Development Principles document, which has 
been amended in response to public consultation, for the redevelopment of Bryan 
House, Chapel Street, Bicester be approved. 
 
Reasons - Bryan House, Chapel Street is owned and managed by Sanctuary 
Housing Association.  It falls short of current standards of accommodation and the 
Housing Association intends to redevelop it with affordable housing to meet local 
needs. The Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Policy accordingly prepared 
draft Informal Development Principles setting out how this could be achieved. 
 

138 Annual Review of Council Tax, Business Rates and Benefits Discretionary 
Powers  
 

The Head of Exchequer submitted a report to review the reliefs currently awarded 
under the discretionary powers the Council has in relation to council tax, business 
rates and housing and council tax benefits and decide whether any changes should 
be made to take effect from 1 April 2009. 

Resolved 
 
(1) That the Head of Exchequer’s decision to offer 4 dates for payment by direct 

debit to council tax and business rate payers; the dates being 1st, 9th, 18th and 
25th of each month from 1 April 2009 be noted. 

 
(2) That it be resolved to continue with the discretionary awards that it resolved to 

give on 3 December 2007, which are: 

a)  Not to offer any reduction for early lump sum payments, as provided for by 
Regulation 25 of the Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement) 
Regulations 1992. 

b)  Not to offer any reductions to encourage taxpayers to use particular 
methods of payment, as provided for by Regulation 26 of the Council Tax 
(Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992. 

c)  To continue the local scheme disregarding the whole of any War Widows 
Pension or War Disablement Pension when calculating entitlement to 
Housing Benefit or Council Tax Benefit. 

d) To continue with the practice established in 2004/05 of reducing the 
Council Tax discount for second homes from 50% to 10%, except for 
annexes that are not otherwise exempt and are occupied by families as 

Page 3



The Executive - 1 December 2008 

  

part of their main residence, which from 1 April 2008 have been excluded 
from this provision. 

e) To continue with the practice established in 2004/05 of reducing the 
Council Tax discount for long-term empty properties to nil. 

f)  To continue with the present practice of awarding 100% rate relief to 
charity shops; village halls; community centres and premises used for 
scouting and other youth groups. 

g)  To retain the existing levels of discretionary rural rate relief. 

 
Reasons - As a billing authority the Council has various discretionary powers that it 
is required to consider in relation to Council Tax, Council Tax and Housing Benefits 
and Business Rates.  It is good practice to review the effects of the previous 
decisions made in relation to the exercise of these discretionary powers on a regular 
basis.  This ensures that the discounts and reliefs previously approved are still 
effective and provides the opportunity for Members to consider any representations 
received for variations to the existing discretionary schemes. 
 

139 Draft Budget 1 and Service Plans 2009 - 2010  
 
The Strategic Director Customer Service and Resources submitted a report that 
advised the Executive regarding the first draft budget and service plans for 2009-
2010.  The report was the first of three opportunities for the Executive had to shape 
and refine the interaction between service plans and financial matters before the final 
budget is presented to the Council on the 23rd February 2009. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the draft budget  and service plans in the context of the Council’s service 

objectives and strategic priorities be noted;  
 
(2) That the proposed service priorities detailed in Annex 2, to these minutes (as 

set out in the minute book) be endorsed; 
 
(3) That the approach to the overall capital programme and 09/10 expenditure 

profile in Annex 3, to these minutes (as set out in the minute book) be agreed; 
 
(4) That there should be no growth in 2009/2010 budget unless funding had been 

agreed; 
 
(5) That the Medium Term Financial Strategy be made available for Executive in 

January;  
 
(6) That the draft budget and service plans as the basis for consultation be 

endorsed; 
 
(7) That the Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board be invited to consider 

the draft budgets and service plans, service priorities and service growth bids 
at their meeting on December 9th 2008 and submit their comments to the 
Executive meeting to be held on 12 January 2009. That all recommendations 
of the Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board as set out in Annex 1 to 
these minutes (as set out in the minute book) be adopted; 

 
(8) That the Council does not participate in the Government's free swimming 

programme due to the fact that the Government grant is insufficient to cover 
the cost arising; 

 

Page 4



The Executive - 1 December 2008 

  

(9) To approve a supplementary capital estimate of £250,000 for the provision of 
disabled facility grants in the financial year ended 31st March 2009. 

 
Reasons - The budget will form the financial expression of the Council’s service 
delivery plans for 2009/10; the allocation of resources against agreed service 
priorities is necessary in order to achieve its strategic priorities. 
 

140 Annual Monitoring Report  
 
The Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Policy submitted a report to consider 
the progress made on the Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) in terms of 
meeting milestones in the Local Development Scheme and to consider monitoring 
information on business development, housing, biodiversity, open space, transport, 
and local services for the monitoring year April 2007 to March 2008. 
 
Resolved 
 
 (1) That the report for submission to the Secretary of State by 31 December 2008 

be endorsed and the Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Policy be 
delegated to make any minor presentational changes in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing; 

 
(2) That the housing delivery position described in the report noted; 
 
(3) That it be agreed that the Council continues to bring forward proposals for the 

delivery of sites identified for residential development in the Non-Statutory 
Cherwell Local Plan 2011, which was approved as interim planning policy for 
development control purposes on 13  December 2004, and that officers 
continue to work with the development industry, local communities and other 
interested parties in order to do this in the interests of sustaining housing 
delivery (including the provision of affordable housing) to meet the 
requirements of the adopted Oxfordshire Structure Plan and, upon adoption, 
the South East Plan.  

 
Reasons - The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004 require the 
Council to produce an Annual Monitoring Report (AMR). Upon approval by the 
Executive, the AMR will form part of the District’s Local Development Framework 
(LDF). 
 

141 The Impact of the Economy on the Housing Benefits Function  
 
The Head of Exchequer submitted a report to advise the Executive on the impact of 
the current economic climate on the current and future delivery of the Housing and 
Council Tax benefit function. It was noted that this issue had not been included in the 
Forward Plan for January to May and had been considered in accordance with the 
Special Urgency provisions of the constitution and would be reported to Council 
accordingly. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the contents of the report and the increased workloads in processing 

housing and council tax benefit applications be noted.  
 
(2) That a supplementary estimate of £14,000 to ensure that the backlog in 

processing housing and council tax benefit applications is eliminated which 
will ensure a robust service to the public and residents of the district during 
this period of economic uncertainty be approved. 

Page 5



The Executive - 1 December 2008 

  

 
(3) That a further supplementary estimate of up to £16,000 to ensure that the 

increased workload of claims can be dealt with efficiently and ensure that 
claimants receive a timely response be approved. 

 
(4) That officers be asked to identify actions to secure up to £30,000 of savings 

to offset the supplementary estimates. 
 
(5) That an update be given on the number of additional claims relating to the 

economic climate at the January Executive and options for the future delivery 
of the service discussed.  

 
Reasons - The current economic climate has seen a sharp rise in the number 
residents  claiming benefit and the Government has predicted a 50% increase in the 
number of unemployed in the next 12 -18 months. The predicted rise would increase 
the benefits caseload by 2,387 (31%) to just over 10,000 claims. 
 

142 Exclusion of Public and Press  
 
Resolved, that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 Schedule 12A of that Act. 

Page 6



The Executive - 1 December 2008 

  

EXEMPT 
 

143 The Impact of the Economy on the Housing Benefits Function - Exempt 
Appendix  
 
Resolved, that the exempt appendix be noted. 
 

144 Dry Recyclables Collection and Disposal  
 
The Head of Environmental Services submitted a report on dry recyclables collection 
and disposal. It was noted that this issue had not been included in the Forward Plan 
for January to May and had been considered in accordance with the Special Urgency 
provisions of the constitution and would be reported to Council accordingly. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the recommendations as set out in the exempt minute be agreed. 
 
Reasons – With the recent changes to the world economy have resulted in recent 
market changes in the recycling sector and possible financial and operational 
implications to the collection services arising from the severe reduction in values of 
recycled materials. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.55pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Cherwell District Council 
 

Executive 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held in at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, 
OX15 4AA, on 12 January 2009 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman) 

 
 Councillor G A Reynolds 

Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor Michael Gibbard 
Councillor James Macnamara 
Councillor Kieron Mallon 
Councillor Nigel Morris 
Councillor D M Pickford 
Councillor Nicholas Turner 
 

 
Also present: Councillor George Parish 

Councillor Leslie F Sibley 
 

 
Officers: Mary Harpley, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 

Ian Davies, Strategic Director - Environment and Community 
Julie Evans, Strategic Director - Customer Service & Resources 
John Hoad, Strategic Director - Planning, Housing and Economy 
Mike Carroll, Head of Improvement 
Liz Howlett, Head of Legal & Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 
Phil O'Dell, Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 
Jo Smith, Communications Manager 
Karen Curtin, Chief Accountant 
Gillian Greaves, Head of Housing Services 
David Marriott, Head of Economic Developments & Estates 
Catherine Phythian, Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 
Ed Potter, Head of Environmental Services 
 

 
Resolutions 

 
145 Declarations of Interest  

 
There were none. 
 

146 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
The Chairman reported that he had received two requests to address the meeting: 
 
Councillor Parish for agenda item 7, GP Led Health Centre in Banbury.  The Leader 
indicated that he would also allow Councillor Parish to ask questions on this item. 
 
Councillor Sibley for agenda item 8, Sustainable Communities Act 2007. 
 

147 Urgent Business  
 
There was none. 

Page 9



The Executive - 12 January 2009 

  

 
148 Minutes  

 
The minutes of the previous meeting were not available for signature. 
 

149 Forward Plan  
 
The Chief Executive submitted the Leader’s Forward Plan of key Executive decisions 
to be taken over the next four months.  The Executive noted that there were a 
number of errors, duplications and some omissions in the document.  The Chief 
Executive explained that this was due to the migration of data to the committee 
management system and assured the Executive that before the Forward Plan was 
re-issued these problems would be corrected.  The Leader of the Council requested 
that the Chief Executive bring forward a report on the re-organisation of the Council 
at an appropriate date. 
 
Resolved, that the Forward Plan for the next four months be noted and that the 
items detailed above be added to the Forward Plan. 
 
Reasons – to create a Forward Plan for the Council as required by the Local 
Government Act 2000. 
 

150 GP Led Health Centre in Banbury  
 
The Strategic Director Environment and Community submitted a report which set out 
the Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust’s (PCT) proposals for a new GP led health centre 
in Banbury.  The Executive also received a presentation from representatives of the 
Oxfordshire PCT and in response to questioning the following points were made: 
 
The proposal related only to GP led primary care services and as such would not 
impact on diagnostic and other services provided by the Horton Hospital.  Where 
possible the PCT would seek to integrate this proposal with the recommendations of 
the Independent Reconfiguration Panel but ultimately they were two independent 
work streams.      
 
The PCT would let the contract for five years and it would be subject to regular 
monitoring with regard to value-for-money, patient satisfaction and statistical analysis 
of service delivery and patient numbers.  It was recognised that the recruitment and 
supply of medical staff would be a challenge to those tendering for the contract but 
the presence of a GP for 12 hours per day, 365 days per year was a key requirement 
of the contract. 
 
The contract would contain a “nil detriment” clause to ensure that the GP led health 
centre would not have a minimal impact on other GP practices in Banbury but that 
the ultimate measure of this will be the public’s satisfaction with the overall health 
services they receive.   
 
The catchment area for registered patients would be a five mile radius from Banbury 
Cross.  It was recognised that a proportion of “walk-in” patients were likely to be 
commuters from outside the district but this was an accepted part of the national 
model. The point was also made that Cherwell residents would be able to “walk-in” to 
clinics elsewhere in the country.     
 
The core range of services that would be available to “walk-in” patients would be 
tightly regulated and subject to strict protocols on prescriptions.   
 
 
 

Page 10



The Executive - 12 January 2009 

  

Resolved 
 
(1) That the Oxfordshire PCT’s proposals for the new GP led health centre in 

Banbury be noted and the PCT be thanked for their presentation; 
 
(2) That the Council welcomes the Oxfordshire PCT’s reassurance that the new 

GP led health centre in Banbury will not impact on the services at the Horton 
Hospital and the limited impact on the existing GP surgeries in Banbury will 
be minimised.  

 
Reasons – further investment in the healthcare services in Banbury is welcomed as 
this extends patient choice and access to primary healthcare services.  
 

151 Sustainable Communities Act 2007  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report to provide the Executive with information on 
this Act and the timetable for the submission of first round proposals. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the purpose of the Sustainable Communities Act and the timetable 

associated with the first bidding round be noted. 
 

(2) That officers be requested to continue to work on this issue and to come back 
with firm proposals. 

 
Reasons – the first proposal round is open and the deadline for submission is 31 
July 2009.  There is still uncertainty about some of the definitions and practical 
details of the Act and more detailed guidance on the proposal process is awaited.  It 
is timely to commission early work from officers to identify potential fruitful areas, 
either independently or in collaboration with others, and with the focus on the 
“economic well-being” element. 
 

152 Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment  
 
The Head of Economic Development and Estates submitted a report to update the 
Executive on progress made on the Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment scheme, 
and to consider the request that the Developer be granted a further Exclusivity 
Agreement.  The Executive noted that the work would start in 2009 and end in 2011 
and would provide a net increase of 760 jobs.    
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the changes being made to the ownership of Town Centre Retail 

(Bicester) Ltd,  the Council’s development partner be noted. 
 
(2) That the grant of an Exclusivity Agreement to Town Centre Retail (Bicester) 

Ltd, for a period expiring on 31 December 2009 be approved. 
 
Reasons – Town Centre Retail has already invested substantial sums in professional 
fees and in acquiring properties affected by the scheme, but currently no formal 
development agreement exists.  As further expenditure is required to take these 
proposals forward, it is appropriate to grant the developer a further period of 
Exclusivity.  The alternative would be to delay progress until a formal Development 
Agreement has been completed, and this is likely to take some months. 
 
 
 

Page 11



The Executive - 12 January 2009 

  

153 Affordable Housing Issues Paper  
 
The Head of Housing Services submitted a report to provide the Executive with 
information on the delivery of affordable housing within the context of a recession, 
and propose a way forward that maximises opportunities for increasing the number 
and range of affordable housing units available for our community.  The Executive 
noted that the Council was still on track to meet its affordable housing targets for 
2008/09.   
 
Resolved  
 
(1) That the current position on affordable housing policy, Corporate Plan targets 

and delivery be noted; 
 
(2) That, in the context of the 2009/10 budget process, options for extending local 

initiatives to maintain affordable housing delivery be noted. 
 
Reasons - there is a clear commitment by the Council to deliver affordable housing 
in the District.  Any significant increase in local homelessness will result in 
considerable financial consequences for the Council. Recession seriously threatens 
the methods of providing new affordable housing (planning system related) used over 
recent years.  This is beginning to impact on Cherwell in the planning and delivery of 
affordable housing.  To mitigate against this position and risk, requires flexibility to 
research and test new ways of working. 
 

154 Service Plans and Budget  
 
The Strategic Director for Customer Service and Resources and the Chief 
Accountant submitted a joint report setting out a second analysis of the Council’s 
draft 2009/2010 Revenue and Capital Budget and presenting two items from the 
work of scrutiny in relation to fees and charges and concessionary fares.   
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the draft revenue budget 2 in the context of the Council’s service 

objectives and strategic priorities be noted;  
 
(2) That the approach to the overall capital programme and 09/10 expenditure 

profile (as set out in Annex 1 to the minutes, as set out in the minute book) be 
agreed; 

 
(3) That the draft MTFS position be noted; 

 
(4) That Officers be requested to review the current Treasury Management 

Strategy in light of the current economic climate and present their 
recommendations at the 2 February Executive; 

 
(5) That the recommendations of the Resources and Performance Scrutiny 

Board from their meeting of 9 December 2008 (as set out below) be noted: 
 

To note the workshop conclusions from the meeting on 9 December 
2009 and to consider them as part of their final discussions on the 
draft budget; and  

 
To note the request that officers ensure that in 2009 the process for 
scrutiny of the budgets involves members at an earlier stage and 
provides additional detail. 

 

Page 12



The Executive - 12 January 2009 

  

 
 
(6) That the recommendations of the Resources and Performance Scrutiny 

Board in relation to concessionary fares (as set out below) be agreed: 
 

Not to change the current arrangements for the Concessionary Fares 
Travel Scheme at the present time but that the situation should be 
reviewed again in six months 

 
Reasons – the budget forms the financial expression of the Council’s service 
delivery plans for 2009/10, and the allocation of resources against agreed service 
priorities is necessary in order to achieve its strategic priorities.  There is also a 
statutory requirement that the Council sets a balanced budget by 11 March 2009, 
and the draft budget is part of that process. 
 

155 Council Tax Base for 2009/2010  
 
The Head of Exchequer submitted a report which referred to the statutory 
requirement to determine the Council Tax Base for 2009/2010, and which set out in 
detail the calculation as to how this should be achieved. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the report of the Head of Exchequer, made pursuant to the Local 

Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992, as amended, and the 
calculations referred to therein for the purposes of the Regulations be 
approved;  

 
(2) That, in accordance with the Regulations, as amended, the amount calculated 

by the Cherwell District Council as its council tax base for the year 2009/2010 
shall be 49,923; and 

 
(3) That the tax base for parts of the area be in accordance with the figures 

(shown in column 13 of Annex 2 to the minutes, as set out in the minute book) 
 
Reasons – in accordance with statutory requirements.  Failure to set a council tax 
base for 2009/2010 would result in the Council being unable to set its council tax for 
2009/2010. 
 

156 Meeting Dates 2009/10  
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services submitted a report requesting the 
Executive to consider a draft calendar of meetings for 2009/2010, and to recommend 
the Council accordingly. 

  
Recommended, that, subject to the inclusion of the issues as set out below, the 
Council approve the draft calendar of meetings for 2009/2010 as now submitted; 
 

a) Executive: confirm all meeting dates and remove “reserve” designation. 

b) Planning Committee: delete 12 March 2010; insert 11 March 2010. 

c)  Personnel & General Committee: delete 11 March 2010; insert 10 March 
2010. 

d)  Overview & Scrutiny Committee: delete 5 October 2010. 

Page 13



The Executive - 12 January 2009 

  

e)  Accounts, Audit & Risk: confirm meetings on 20 January and 14 April 
2010.  Insert additional meeting on 26 October 2009.  Note need for 
Annual Governance panel meetings in April/May 2010.   

 
Reasons – in order to transact business efficiently the Council needs to agree a 
calendar of meetings. 
 

157 Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
Resolved, that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act. 

Page 14



The Executive - 12 January 2009 

  

 

EXEMPT 
 

158 Town Centre Offices  
 
The Head of Economic Development and Estates submitted an exempt report that 
set out the progress being made towards the disposal of the Council’s Banbury Town 
Centre offices at 58 Bridge Street, Banbury. 
 
Resolved, in principle to proceed with the letting of 58 Bridge St, Banbury , on the 
terms to be approved by the Economic Development and Estates Portfolio Holder, 
and to amend the proposed refurbishment scheme to incorporate the specific fitting 
out requirements requested. 
 
Reasons - the opportunity to secure a letting of the property removes the risk of the 
building remaining vacant for a significant period, at substantial cost to the Council. 
 

159 Dry Recycling - Gate Fees  
 
The Head of Environmental Services submitted a report inviting the Executive to 
approve a change in gate fee and the increased cost in the processing of co-mingled 
dry recyclables following the severe reduction in values of recycled materials. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the contents of this report be noted; 
 
(2) That the revised gate fee be approved; 
 
(3) That officers continue to explore future recycling outlet opportunities and joint 

solutions with other waste collection authorities ahead of making any longer 
term procurement decisions. 

 
Reasons - There is a need to ensure that the Council can continue to dispose of 
collected recycled material appropriately. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.07 pm 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 15



 

   

Executive  
 
 

Forward Plan  
 

2 February 2009  
 

Report of Leader of the Council 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To review the Forward Plan of the key Executive decisions which will be taken over 
the next four months.  These are the key decisions of which the Council’s Executive 
is currently aware.  
 

 
This report is public 

 
 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To resolve to note the Forward Plan for the period referred to next four 

months. 
 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 The Forward Plan is updated and rolled forward on a monthly basis.  As this 
takes place, the programme is adjusted with further key decisions being 
added and others rescheduled or removed.  The covering introductory note 
identifies the Members of the Executive by name and title, as required by the 
Regulations. 

 
1.2 Appendix 1 is a schedule of changes to the Forward Plan since the last 

publication and the plan itself. 
  

Proposals 

1.3 The proposals is to note the Forward Plan as attached. 
 
 

Conclusion 
 
1.4 Acceptance of these recommendations creates a Forward Plan for the 

Council as required by the Local Government Act 2000. 

 
Agenda Item 6

Page 16



 

   

 
Background Information 

 
2.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2000 require that a forward plan be prepared by the 
Leader of the Council.  The Forward Plan sets out the planned key Executive 
decisions which will be taken on behalf of the Council over the next four 
months.  

 
2.2 The definition of what constitutes a key Executive decision can be found in 

Article 13 of the Council’s Constitution which has guided the compilation of 
the attached Forward Plan.  In particular, determination of whether a decision 
is “key” has been assessed with regard to its financial significance, the impact 
on local people and the degree of discretion that can be exercised.  The 
content of the Forward Plan is prescribed in the Regulations and reflected in 
the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution. 

 
2.3 The Forward Plan has to be updated and rolled forward on a monthly basis, 

and a new forward plan produced at least 14 days prior to the first day on 
which it comes into effect. Any outstanding matters from the previous plan will 
be rolled forward into latest plan. 

 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The Council must by law publish a Forward Plan. Acceptance of these 

recommendations creates a Forward Plan for the Council as required by the 
Local Government Act 2000. 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One To adopt the recommendation. The Council must by law 

publish a Forward Plan.  The only options concern its 
contents. 
 

Option Two To propose amendments to the Forward Plan. 
 

 
Consultations 

 

All Chief Officers The plan has been updated in light of responses received. 

 
Implications 

 

Financial: None arising directly from this report. 

 Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Chief Accountant 
01295 221564 

Legal: The Council must by law publish a Forward Plan. 

 Comments checked by James Doble, Democratic, 
Scrutiny and Elections Manager 01295 221587 

Risk Management: Risk assessment - No significant risk implications have 

Page 17



 

   

been identified in connection with this report other than 
the consequences of not complying with the legal 
requirement to publish a Forward Plan.  Each report to the 
Executive on the items in the Forward Plan will carry its 
own risk assessment. 

 

 Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Chief Accountant 
01295 221564 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
The Forward Plan provides a framework for consideration of Council policies over the 
next four months. 
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor Barry Wood   
Leader of the Council 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 Draft Forward Plan 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author James Doble, Democratic, Scrutiny and Elections Manager 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221587 

james.doble@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 18



 

Forward Plan 
Summary 

 
March 2009 to June 2009 

 
 

Page 19



 

Cherwell District Council 
 

Summary of the Forward Plan 
 
This summary of the Forward Plan, (produced by officers on behalf of the Leader of 
the Council) sets out the key Executive decisions which will be taken at Cherwell 
District Council over the next four months.  These are the key decisions of which the 
Council’s Executive is currently aware.  The Forward Plan will be updated and rolled 
forward on a monthly basis.  As this takes place, the programme will be adjusted: 
further key decisions may be added, or anticipated ones may be rescheduled or 
removed.  The summary shows the decisions programmed to be taken during each 
month.  A likely date of decision is shown, but it is possible that a decision may be 
rescheduled to a later month.  The full Forward Plan, including the latest position on 
prospective decisions is available on the council website at www.cherwell-dc.gov.uk, 
using the link to Council meetings. 
 
This summary sets out the key decisions by month and says whether they will be 
taken by the Full Executive or by one of its individual Members, or portfolio holders 
as they are known (see below for details of the membership of the Executive).  While 
key decisions may be taken by officers exercising authority delegated by the 
Executive, it is the Council’s intention that this will very much be the exception. 
 
Key decisions are those which are financially significant (in terms of spending or 
savings) for the service or function concerned or which will have a significant impact 
on communities, usually in two or more wards in the District.  For the purposes of 
compiling its Forward Plan the Council has decided that a decision will be financially 
significant  

� if it is equivalent in value to more than 10% of the annual gross budget for the 
unit concerned or £50,000 whichever is the lesser.  If the figure is below 
£50,000 regard will be had to the impact on communities in deciding whether 
the decision is key. 

� If it involves an individual capital projects with a value greater than £250,000. 
 
In assessing impact on local people (including businesses and organisations) the 
following factors will be borne in mind: 

� The number of users of the service in the wards affected 

� Whether the impact will be short term or will last for a number of years, or be 
permanent. 

� The nature of the impact on communities in terms of economic, social and 
environmental well-being. 

 
For a decision to be key there must be a significant degree of discretion to be 
exercised by the decision-maker.  
 
The Forward Plan lists documents which are currently available to decision makers.  
Generally these are also available to the public but some may have restrictions on 
the information given in them. Copies of public documents listed may be obtained on 
request from  
 
James Doble,  
Democratic, Scrutiny and Elections Manager 
Cherwell District Council,  
Bodicote House,  
Bodicote,  
Banbury, Oxfordshire  OX15 4AA (e-mail:  democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk).   
 
There will be a copying charge for each document.  Comments on the matters for 
decision may be made to the relevant contact officer up to the date of the meeting, 
unless otherwise specified in the consultation details. 

Page 20



 

 

Cherwell District Council – Executive Members 
 
 

 
Portfolio Member 

 
Communications and Public Relations (with 
Special Responsibility for Climate Change) 
 

Councillor Mallon 

Community, Health and Environment 
 

Councillor Reynolds 

Customer Service and ICT  
 

Councillor Turner 

Economic Development and Estates  
 

Councillor Bolster 

Organisational Development and Improvement   
 

Councillor Miss Pickford 

Planning and Housing  
 

Councillor Gibbard 

Policy and Community Planning   
 

Councillor Wood 

Resources  
 

Councillor Macnamara 

Urban and Rural Services Councillor Morris 
 

 

Page 21



 

 

Cherwell District Council Forward Plan 
Key decisions to be taken by the full Executive 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

 Likely date of decision: March 2009 

Parsons Street Pedestrianisation 
Scheme Traffic Regulation Order 
To consider a report to the 
Council from the Inspector 
appointed to hold a public inquiry 
into the Council’s proposed 
traffic regulation order, and 
recommended amendments to 
that order. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Economic Development 
and Estates 
 

David Marriott 
Tel: 01295 221603 
 

None. 
 

Revenues and Benefits Service 
Delivery Options Appraisal 
To consider the options for the 
delivery of revenues and 
benefits. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources 
 

Julie Evans 
Tel: 01295 221595 
 

None. 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
To consider the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources 
 

Karen Curtin 
Tel: 01295 221551 
 

None. 
 

Response to Department of 
Communities and Local 
Government Consultation on 
Eco-Towns: Weston Otmoor 
Response to draft Planning 
Policy Statement and proposal 
for an Eco-Town at Weston 
Otmoor 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Philip Clarke 
Tel: 01295 221840 
 

None. 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

2



 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

Response to Department of 
Communities and Local 
Government Consultation on 
Eco-Towns: North West Bicester 
Response to the proposal for an 
Eco-Town at North West 
Bicester 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Philip Clarke 
Tel: 01295 221840 
 

None. 
 

Choice Based Lettings Scheme - 
Allocations Policy 
To consider amendments to 
Cherwell's Allocations Policy to 
facilitate the implementation of a 
sub-regional Choice Based 
Lettings Scheme in partnership 
with Oxford City Council, South 
Oxfordshire District Council and 
Vale of White Horse District 
Council. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Gillian Greaves, 
Marianne North 
Tel: 01295 221654, 
Tel: 01295 227946 
 

None. 
 

Older Persons Housing Policy 

To consider and adopt and Older 
Persons Housing Strategy 

 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Gillian Greaves 
Tel: 01295 221654 
 

None. 
 

A sustainable community 
strategy for Cherwell 
To consider an update regarding 
the progress of the new 
sustainable community strategy 
for Cherwell. To endorse the 
next steps of the project. 
 

 
 
The strategy will be subject 
to extensive consultation 
with members, partners 
and the public. 

Leader of the Council and 
Portfolio Holder for Policy 
and Community Planning 
 

Claire Taylor 
Tel: 01295 221563 
 

None. 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

3



 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

Integrated Parking Strategy , 
Residents Parking and Parking 
Enforcement 

To consider proposals on the 
above issues 

 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for Urban 
and Rural Services 
 

Chris Rothwell 
Tel: 01295 221712 
 

None. 
 

Customer Services Strategy 
To consider a Customer 
Services Strategy for Cherwell 
District Council 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Customer Services and 
ICT 
 

Pat Simpson 
Tel: 01295 227069 
 

None. 
 

Service Delivery in Kidlington 

To consider options for delivering 
partners’ services with our own 
services in Kidlington. Options 
derived from discussions with 
potential service delivery 
partners including County and 
Parish Councils, voluntary 
groups, Police and Health. 

 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Customer Services and 
ICT 
 

Pat Simpson 
Tel: 01295 227069 
 

None. 
 

Partnership Working Framework 

To consider an update on the 
Partnership Working Framework 
since it was last reported to 
Executive on 3 March. 

 
 

 
 
 

Leader of the Council and 
Portfolio Holder for Policy 
and Community Planning 
 

Helen 
Couperthwaite 
Tel: 01295 221751 
 

None. 
 

Addressing Health Inequalities in 
Cherwell 
To consider the current position 
and progress. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Community, Health and 
Environment 
 

Ian Davies 
Tel: 01295 221698 
 

None. 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

4



 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

Pitt Review into Summer 2007 
Floods - Further Implications 
following the Government's 
Response to the Report 
Recommendations 
To consider further implications 
arising from the Government’s 
response to the Pitt Report. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Community, Health and 
Environment 
 

Tony Brummell 
Tel: 01295 221524 
 

None. 
 

Management Information 
Strategy 
The audit commission have 
highlighted the council’s need to 
improve its data quality 
arrangements. New national 
criteria for good data quality 
(under the Use of Resources 
Key Lines of Enquiry) set the 
standards we are required to 
reach 
 
The report includes a draft 
strategy for how the council 
plans to improve its management 
information over the next three 
years, taking into account the 
new criteria for data quality. 
 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Organisational 
Development and 
Improvement 
 

Neil Lawrence 
Tel: 01295 221801 
 

None. 
 

Land Charges Value for Money 
Review 
To consider the outcomes of the 
review and approve an 
improvement plan to achieve 
greater value for money in the 
service. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources 
 

Neil Lawrence 
Tel: 01295 221801 
 

None. 
 

  

P
a
g
e
 2

5



 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

Likely date of decision: April 2009 

Asset Management Plan 
To consider the 2009/10 Asset 
Management Plan 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Economic Development 
and Estates 
 

David Marriott 
Tel: 01295 221603 
 

None. 
 

Review of Organisational 
Restructure 
To consider a report on the 
results following the re-structure 
of the Council 
 

 
 
 

Leader of the Council and 
Portfolio Holder for Policy 
and Community Planning, 
Portfolio Holder for 
Organisational 
Development and 
Improvement 
 

Mary Harpley 
Tel: 01295 221573 
 

None. 
 

Support Costs Allocation Policies 
To consider revisions to the 
current policies. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources 
 

Phil O'Dell 
Tel: 01295 227098 
 

None. 
 

Information Management 
Strategy 
To consider an information 
management strategy for the 
Council. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Organisational 
Development and 
Improvement 
 

Neil Lawrence 
Tel: 01295 221801 
 

None. 
 

Kidlington Area Appraisal 
Programme 
To consider responses to the 
appraisal draft and approval of 
final appraisal. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Linda Rand 
Tel: 01295 221845 
 

None. 
 

Juniper Hill Conservation Area 
Appraisal 
To consider responses to the 
appraisal draft and approval of 
final appraisal. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Linda Rand 
Tel: 01295 221845 
 

None. 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

6



 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

Environmental Crime 
Enforcement 
To consider activity to date and 
proposals for improvement. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Community, Health and 
Environment 
 

Ed Potter 
Tel: 01295 221902 
 

None. 
 

Sports Centre Modernisation 
To consider progress to date and 
opening arrangements. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Community, Health and 
Environment 
 

Paul Marston-
Weston 
Tel: 01295 227095 
 

None. 
 

Annual Review of Corporate 
Equality and Diversity Policy 
To consider the Annual Review 
of Corporate Equality and 
Diversity Policy. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Community, Health and 
Environment 
 

Grahame Helm 
Tel: 01295 221615 
 

None. 
 

 Likely date of decision: May 2009 

Conservation Area Appraisal 
Programme 

Subject of further reports to be 
specified as programme 
progresses 

 

 

To consider responses to the 
consultation draft and approval 
of final appraisal. 

 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Linda Rand 
Tel: 01295 221845 
 

None. 
 

Banbury Residents Parking 
Scheme 
To consider proposals for the 
scheme. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for Urban 
and Rural Services 
 

Chris Rothwell 
Tel: 01295 221712 
 

None. 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



 

Subject for Decision External Consultees/ 
method of consultation 

Executive Portfolio Contact Officer(s) Documents 
submitted to 
decision-maker 

Banbury Cultural Quarter 
To consider proposals for the 
development of a cultural 
quarter. 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Community, Health and 
Environment 
 

Ian Davies 
Tel: 01295 221698 
 

None. 
 

 Likely date of decision: June 2009 

Conservation Area Appraisal 
Programme 

Subject of further reports to be 
specified as programme 
progresses 

 

 

To consider responses to the 
consultation draft and approval 
of final appraisal. 

 
 

 
 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Housing 
 

Linda Rand 
Tel: 01295 221845 
 

None. 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

8



 

    

Executive  
 
 

Shenington with Alkerton Conservation Area  
 

2 February 2009 
 

Report of  
Head of Planning and Affordable Housing Manager 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To report on the outcome of the public consultation on the draft conservation area 
appraisal and to recommend that a conservation area be designated at 
Shenington with Alkerton  
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
The conservation area appraisal has been circulated separately with the agenda 
for Executive members. 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the outcome of the public consultation on the draft appraisal and 

proposed conservation area boundary  
 
(2) To approve the changes it is recommended be made to proposed 

boundary in response to comments received 
 
(3)  To designate, under Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

 Conservation Areas) Act 1990, a conservation area as proposed in the 
 revised appraisal and as at Fig 1 appended to this report with immediate 
 effect. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 This report sets out the history with respect to proposals for conservation 
area designation in Shenington and Alkerton, the process followed to 
date, the consultation exercise and the comments received on the draft 
appraisal and proposed boundary.  It recommends the changes that 
should be made to the proposed booundary in response to consultation 
and that a conservation area is designated with immediate effect. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



 

    

Proposals 

1.1 To approve the Shenington with Alkerton Conservation Area Appraisal, 
amended in response to public consultation.  

 
1.2 To designate a Conservation Area with immediate effect, having regard to 

comments received in response to public consultation. 
 
Conclusion 

 
1.3 To approve Shenington with Alkerton Conservation Area appraisal and to 

designate a conservation area to cover both villages including their 
historic landscape backdrop, as indicated on Fig1. 

  
 

Page 30



 

    

 
Background Information 

 
The Council’s duty 
 
2.1 This report is in accordance with Paragraph 9.48 of the Adopted Cherwell 

Local Plan 2001 and paragraph 9.89 of the Non-Statutory Cherwell Local 
Plan 2011, which state that the Council will from time to time propose new 
or review existing Conservation Areas. 

 
2.2  Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

 1990, places a duty on Local Planning Authorities to determine which 
 parts of their area are areas of special architectural or historic interest, the 
 character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance, 
 and to  designate those areas as Conservation Areas. 

 
2.3  The Act does not require local planning authorities to undertake public 

 consultation prior to designation but paragraph 4.7 of PPG 15 states that it 
 will be will be highly desirable that there should be consultation with local 
 residents, businesses and other local interests over both the identification 
 of areas and the definition of their boundaries.  It also requires 
 Conservation  Areas to be reviewed from time to time and for proposals 
 for preservation and enhancement to be submitted to a public meeting. 

 
2.4  This Council considers consultation to be good practice and always holds 

 a public exhibition, a public meeting and publicises the draft appraisal 
 through the media.    

 
2.5  Prior to considering designating a new conservation area and undertaking  

 an appraisal the Planning and Affordable Housing Manager seeks the 
 views of the Parish Council on the principle of designation. In the past, 
 partly because of workload pressures, the Council has operated on the 
 basis of an informal approach, whereby it will prioritise conservation area 
 designations in locations where the Parish Council is supportive.  The 
 views of the Parish Council have been taken to be representative of 
 residents as a whole. 

 
The process followed at Shenington with Alkerton 
 
2.6  There is no doubt that the villages of Shenington and Alkerton exhibit a 

 special architectural or historic interest that justifies conservation area 
 designation and officers’ opinion has been endorsed by English Heritage.   

 
2.7  In 1995 officers were invited to attend a Parish Council meeting to explain 

 the implications of designation and received a hostile response.  
 
2.8  In September 2005 officers were invited to attend a Parish Council 

 meeting to outline the implications of designation and explained that the 
 first step towards conservation area designation was to seek an in 
 principle support from the Parish Council for the appraisal to be 
 undertaken.   In April 2006 the Parish Council organised a referendum on 
 the matter.  This resulted in 58 votes for designation and 141 against 
 designation.  Documentation circulated by members of the Parish Council 

Page 31



 

    

 with the ballot forms, later sent to the Council for information, contained 
 some factual errors regarding the implications of designation. 

 
2.9  Opinions continued to run high in the villages, with strongly held views 

 both for and against designation.  In November 2007 the Council received 
 a letter signed by 123 local residents asking the Council to  designate a 
 Conservation Area. 

 
2.10 On 20 March 2008 the Parish Council voted to ask the Council to 

 undertake an appraisal with a view to designation. 
 
2.11 On 7 April 2008 the Council invited the Parish Council to contribute to the 

 preparation of an appraisal and later informally shared early copies for 
 comment.   

 
2.12 On 25 September 2008 the Council published a Draft Conservation Area 

 Appraisal for consultation purposes.  Copies were sent to each Parish 
 Councillor and the Clerk, to the County Council and English Heritage. 

 
2.13 Copies were available to view at the Village Hall, the Primary School, the 

 Church of St Michael in Alkerton, Holy Trinity Church in Shenington, the 
 village pub, as well as Bodicote House, the North Area mobile library, 
 Banbury library in Marlborough House and The Oxfordshire Studies 
 Library. Twelve additional copies were made available to residents on 
 request.  The  document was also available to download from the 
 Councils web site and 149 people viewed it this way, although the number 
 of these who were local residents is not known. 

 
2.14 A press release was issued, resulting in a small article in the Banbury 

 Guardian and an item on Radio Oxford. 
 
2.15 A staffed public exhibition was held in Shenington Village Hall on the 

 afternoon of 2  October, which was very well attended, where residents 
 asked  questions of general interest.  This was followed by a Powerpoint 
 presentation and public meeting in the Primary School in the evening, 
 which  was attended by approximately 65 people, where opinions both for 
 and against designation were expressed. 

 
2.16 Informative leaflets and questionnaires (attached at Appendix A and B) 

 with reply-paid envelopes were distributed to all addresses within the 
 villages, totalling 187, irrespective of whether or not they were located 
 within the proposed boundary.   

 
The consultation responses 
 
2.17 Eighty four written responses were received.  Responses are reported 

 verbatim in full at Appendix C and, as many respondents also or  
 alternatively sent a fuller written response by attached letter or report, 
 a précis of this is also provided adjacent in italic.  Full copies of all 
 originals are filed in the Members’ Room for perusal. 

 
2.18 Fifty four responses (64.3%) were fully supportive of the proposal to 

 designate a conservation area. Eight (9.5%) were neutral or expressed 
 reservations and twenty two (26.2%) did not support designation in 
 principle. 

Page 32



 

    

 
2.19 Those who supported designation generally did so with enthusiasm.  

Several responses included lengthy letters requesting additional areas for 
inclusion. Of those who supported designation, a clear majority 
considered that a greater area should be covered, again citing multiple 
areas for inclusion.  31.5% sought the inclusion of more general 
landscape context; 25.9% sought the inclusion of all of both villages; and, 
of specific areas sought for inclusion Rattlecombe Road (22.2%), 
Anderton’s Barns (20.3%), The Lynchetts (16.6%) and Stocking Lane and 
Mill Lane (12.9% each) were the most frequently cited.  The location of 
these areas is illustrated at Appendix D. 

 
2.20 Those who did not support designation cited a variety of reasons (most 

 with multiple reasons) including: 

• There is no need / Already adequately protected by listing of buildings 
/ Village has looked after itself without designation (40.9%) 

• Waste of public money /More bureaucracy /Need to give notice of 
works to trees (40.9%) 

• Already voted in Parish Poll (32%). 

• Divisive in the community (18.2%) 

• Two felt it should be bigger, in an unspecified way and one that it 
should be smaller in an unspecified way and one that it should 
exclude specific land at Alkerton. 

 
2.21 Some of the stated reasons for objection appeared to be based upon a 

partial or a misunderstanding of the law relating to conservation areas 
and, in particular, in relation to the requirement for advance Notification to 
be given to the Council of the intention to fell, top or lop trees over a 
certain size within the designated area and the process and costs 
associated with this.  For clarification members' attention is also drawn to 
the following: 
• The legislation only covers trees with a trunk diameter of over 75mm 

measured at a height of 1.5m. 
• Certain trees, such as fruit trees in orchards are excluded. 
• The legislation allows for up to 2 years work to be catered for in a 

single Notification.  Where work to a small wooded area is required 
this procedure would allow for a single approval of a programme or 
scheme of works for a group of trees.  This would avoid the need for 
multiple applications.  

• The internal Council procedure has recently been streamlined, with 
the introduction of a simplified form and with the Street Scene and 
Landscape Service handling the notifications direct to speed up the 
response rate. 

• The vast majority of such applications are approved.  In 2008 only 4 
TPOs were served as result of 216 advance notices. 

• There are no exceptions or abbreviated procedures available in law to 
avoid the need to Notify the Council of intended works to such trees. 

• There are no areas of woodland within the proposed Conservation 
Area boundary that would qualify for woodland management under the 
Forestry Commission woodland management procedures, which, in 
any case, are quite onerous as they require a Woodland Management 
Plan to be drawn up and agreed by the Forestry Commission. 

 

Page 33



 

    

A further area of confusion is the extent of protection afforded by virtue of 
the number of statutorily listed buildings.  Whilst there are a total of  35 
listed buildings within the two villages, this only amounts to about one 
third of the total properties (excluding ancillary buildings) several of which 
are identified in the appraisal as making a positive contribution to the 
character or appearance of the area and yet neither these nor their 
boundary walls  are currently afforded any protection from demolition in 
the absence of conservation area designation. 

 

2.22 Officers have given careful consideration to all responses, both for 
 additional areas to be included in the proposed conservation area  and for 
 areas to be excluded.  
 
Response to additional areas suggested for inclusion 
 
2.23 A, Rattlecombe Road 
 Twelve requests were received to the effect that both sides of 
 Rattlecombe Road and all buildings except Hill Top and West End should 
 be included on the following grounds  

• They are Ironstone rubble workers cottages predating 1732 map 

• The strong building line creates a prominent feature at the entrance to 
the village 

• The former Post Office and shop/garage is an important part of the 
social history of the village.   The post office has a vaulted cellar 

• High-Fields has a magnificent porch and is possibly the site of the inn 
shown on early maps. 

• Rattlecombe House is shown on the 1875 map and, although brick, is 
believed to date from the early 1800s, with two early OS levelling 
benchmarks, making it contemporary with Tanner’s Cottage and 
Rattlecombe Hollow. 

• Rattlecombe Hollow stands on the site of the old quarry and the 
quarry face is still evident from the sunken garden 

• Cedar Wood is a local stone built bungalow. 

• Other modern bungalows on the western approach could be 
considered neutral but their walls and vegetation contribute positively. 

• These properties line the road creating a narrow outlook, 
characteristic of the village. 

• Ironstone walls are of historic interest: on the south side a well 
maintained wall has a Millennium plaque; on the north side boundary 
wall of High-Fields; retaining wall in front of Green Acre; lost retaining 
wall opposite The Level where a sympathetic replacement would be 
supported. 

• A water pillar identical to that noted on the Green is located on 
Rattlecombe Road. 

• Green Acre has a fine stone boundary wall. 

• The vegetation within gardens and the hedgerow along Top Farm field 
contribute to the rural character, including the trees in highway land at 
Long Acre. 

• The inclusion of the ugly substation would enable improvements to the 
fencing to be made. 

• Designation could lend support to on going discussions with Central 
Networks regarding removal of overhead cables. 

• The d’Arcy Dalton Way and Macmillan Way footpath would benefit 
from improvement. 

Page 34



 

    

 
Officers’ response is as follows:  
 
The bungalow at The Leys (A1) was originally excluded because, in itself, 
it is not of historic interest.  However, the plot is evident on early maps, 
first as an orchard or similar.  Although the plot is not shown on maps 
dating from the early 20th century, the existing boundaries appear to 
approximately respect the historic alignment.  The plot is bounded by an 
attractive ironstone wall and is prominently located.  Although the property 
is of mid 20th century construction, the plot in its entirety does make a 
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area.  
 
The terrace of properties comprising The Lynchetts, Middlecote and 
The Old Post Office (A2) are ironstone properties clearly of historic 
origin, probably squatters’ or labourers’ cottages, albeit their appearance 
is much altered.  They are visually related to the rest of the village in that 
the Green at the centre of the village is visible when standing in front of 
them.  There is a clear break of slope immediately west of the terrace, 
with the land falling away to the west.   
 
High Fields (A3), the first house when approaching the village from the 
west, also appears on the first OS maps, but others between here and the 
village, although pleasant, do not display sufficient special architectural or 
historic interest to justify designation.  There are some boundary walls of 
value and some incidental features, but these alone are not considered to 
justify designation.   
 
The remains of the boundary wall (A4) along the north west boundary of 
Top Farm field does make a valuable contribution in enclosing the street 
scene and this, together with the bank behind, effectively contains views 
along the street.   
 
It is therefore recommended that the proposed boundary of the 
conservation area be extended to include the terrace of properties on the 
south east side of Rattlecombe Road and the adjacent vacant plot, which 
has permission for a detached dwelling.  The proposed amendment to the 
boundary would run along the rear boundary of these properties, cross the 
road and run back into the village along the top of the bank just within the 
boundary of Top Farm field and include the plot of The Leys. 
 

2.24 B, Stocking Lane 
Seven requests were received to the effect that most or all of Stocking 
Lane should be included on the following grounds: 

• Formerly Stockin Way, this was the principal route through the village 
until it was stopped up to enable the development of RAF Edgehill.  
The whole road should be included as it has characteristics in 
common with other roads that are included within the boundary, such 
as stone walls, vegetation and an informal character. 

• The boundary walls to Orchard House and Oakworth (B1) contribute 
positively. 

• The boundary wall to The Garters (B2) is impressive and noted on the 
1875 and 1882 OS maps. 

Page 35



 

    

• The hedge between The Garters and the school marks the built edge 
of the village.  The open area is part of the setting of the village and 
makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance. 

• The school has a prominent stone rotunda. 

• The Jitty (B3) (a private lane running between Stocking Lane and The 
Green) is a delightful cutting worthy of preservation. 

• The former Council houses here and on Mill Lane are part of the 
historic development of the village; their gardens are prominent.  
Council houses in Drayton and Wroxton are included. 

• The five houses constructed recently within the garden of Long Acre 
make a neutral contribution and make the case for designation, but at 
least are in local stone and have a stone boundary wall and trees in 
the verge.  They are prominent in the wider landscape. 

• The Doctor’s Surgery site may face future changes.  It marks the end 
of the built up area and is therefore sensitive. The Surgery is located 
on a sensitive site close to the Scheduled Ancient Monument and 
designation could help protect its stone walls. 

 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
The tall stone boundary wall to The Garters is a prominent feature in the 
townscape, effectively marking the entrance to the historic core of the 
village and is shown on the 1875 OS map. The properties along the north 
east side of Stocking Lane are suburban in character and only the 
boundary wall, which commences at Dingles Copse, I Stocking Lane, 
exhibits any special character. The Jitty is a delightful historic route, now 
gated and a shared private drive, and is already included within the 
proposed boundary for most of its length. To include the remainder would 
require the inclusion also of Oakworth and Orchard House, pleasant but 
undistinguished late 20th century dwellings in artificial stone.  These and 
other dwellings along Stocking Lane do not display any special character 
and to include these would suggest that other areas of relatively ordinary 
development should also be included and this cannot be justified and 
would devalue the designation. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the proposed boundary of the 
conservation area be extended to include the undeveloped plot 
immediately north west of Top Farm and The Garters and that the 
boundary should cross the road to include the whole of the  front 
boundary wall of Dingles Copse, but not the plot itself, then rejoin the 
original draft boundary. 

 
2.25 C, Mill Lane 

Seven requests were also received to the effect that more of Mill Lane 
should be included on the following grounds: 

• Sycamore House, Minerva House and Orchard Cottage (C1) are good 
examples of contemporary additions paying heed to local building 
materials. 

• Mill Farm House and Dairy Cottage (C2) are two agricultural dwellings 
located to the south of Mill Lane, faced in local stone and are 
prominent in local and middle distance views. 

• The stone walls, hedgerows and trees bring harmony to the street 
scene as with Stocking Lane. 

Page 36



 

    

• The allotments (C3) are part of the social history of the village, as are 
the ex public sector houses. 

• Views east and south from the end of Mill Lane provide open views of 
countryside. 

 
 Officers’ response is as follows: 
 

The recent infill referred to above is of sympathetic design using local 
materials.  However, it does not exhibit a special character or appearance 
worthy of designation, nor do Mill Farm House or Dairy Cottage, which are 
also separated from the rest of the village by pleasant but unremarkable 
suburban housing.   
 
It is therefore recommended that no amendment to the proposed 
boundary can be justified on Mill Lane. 

 
2.26 D, Top Farm field 

Six requests were received to the effect that Top Farm field should be 
included for the following reasons: 

• Formerly two fields, the boundaries have not changed for centuries, 
being defined by two historic routes. 

• The boundary hedge to Stocking Lane and the demolished wall to 
Rattlecombe Road are characteristic features worthy of protection / 
reinstatement. 

• The area is popular with walkers and provides glimpses through to the 
village. 

• Whilst not a public space this makes a positive contribution to the rural 
character and appearance of the area and creates the setting of the 
village. 

 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
Although the field itself makes very little contribution to the area as, for the 
most part, it is not seen from the public domain, its Rattlecombe Road 
boundary does make a positive contribution and the small plot off 
Stocking Lane also is bounded by an historic ironstone wall. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the boundary shou be extended to 
include the small plot and The Garters. 
 

2.27 E, The Lynchetts 
Nine requests were received to the effect that the Scheduled Ancient 
Monument (SAM) known as the Lynchetts to the north of Shenington 
should be included for the following reasons: 

• SAM status has not protected the views from the Lychetts 

• The public footpath affords fine views, particularly from the stile back 
towards Rectory Farm Barns and the Church of St Michael in Alkerton. 

• The whole of the valley between the villages should be included. 
 

Offers’ response is as follows: 
 
The designation of a scheduled ancient monument (SAM) provides 
greater protection to the designated area than Conservation Area 
designation would.  However, there is no provision in the Act for views 

Page 37



 

    

from SAMs to be protected, and in law a SAM does not have setting, 
unlike a listed building or a conservation area.  However, even if the SAM 
is not included within the designated area, it would constitute the setting of 
the conservation area and in that respect views to and from it would be 
afforded protection under paragraph 4.14 of PPG15.   
 
It is recommended that there is northing to be gained from including the 
SAM in the conservation area. 

  
2.28 F, Alkerton / Anderton’s barns 

Eleven requests were received to the effect that the farm complex known 
as Alkerton or Anderton’s Barns at the eastern entrance to Alkerton 
should be included for the following reasons: 

• They are noted on historic maps of 1833 

• They are magnificent barns with ashlar stone work sand fine pointing 

• They dominate the entrance to Alkerton 

• Stone wall and roadside trees links them to Alkerton. 

• They are currently for sale 

• They have no protection from demolition 

• The boundary walls mark the entrance to the village and contain a 
stone plaque donated by the village. 

 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
This is a fine complex in a prominent location.  However, it is too far from 
the rest of Alkerton to justify an extension of the boundary along the road 
and including agricultural land of no special quality.  Officers requested 
that English Heritage add these barns to the Statutory List, but this was 
declined.  However, they are worthy of addition to a Local List and the 
Heritage Protection Bill, expected to become law in 2010, will require 
Local Planning Authorities to draw up a Local List for their area, backed 
up by a policy in the LDF.  Whilst this will not afford much protection in the 
interim, officers intend to prepare Informal Development Guidance, setting 
out matters that should be considered in any scheme to covert these to 
alternative uses. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the boundary should not be extended to 
include these barns. 
 

2.29 G, Wider Setting 
 Seventeen requests were received to the effect that the wider setting of 
 the villages should be included on the grounds that: 
 

• The setting of Drayton and Wroxton has been included, so there is a 
need for consistency. 

• The valley to the west of the village includes an additional Lynchetts 
site on the field beyond The Level. 

• The valley to the north to protect views from Balscote Road 

• The valley to the east of The Lynchetts is an integral part of the setting 
of both villages, with good views of the elements of both villages. 

• The parish allotments are part of the social history of the village 

• In particular the view from the Balscote Road towards Mill Farm and 
the Church. 

Page 38



 

    

• Public rights of Way, including Percy D’Alton Way and Macmillan Way 
cross the area and afford a great number of positive vistas. 

• Positive vistas from the Green , The Level and Rattlecombe Road 
incorporating Top Farm fields towards the airfield is an important open 
space bounded by stone walls and hedgerows. 

• Land between Alkerton Barns and Alkerton is heavily treed and acts 
as part of the positive setting of the village. 

• Views of the villages, particularly of the churches, from the 
surrounding area are worthy of protection. 

• Designation would avoid more inappropriate development. 

• Designation would avoid the extension of Alkerton tip, which is visible 
from the Lynchcetts. 

 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
It is true that both Drayton and Wroxton boundaries include surrounding 
farm land, but these designations pre-dated the EH guidance.  In the case 
of Wroxton, much of this is landscape constitutes historic park and 
garden.  In the case of Drayton, land to the east was included in the 1977 
designation, probably to provide a buffer between the village and the 
westward expansion of Banbury, but this would not be the approach taken 
if the conservation area were to be designated today.  Both PPG15 and 
the English Heritage guidance is quite clear that conservation area 
designation is an inappropriate means of protecting the wider landscape.  
However, it does allow for the immediate setting to be included where this 
is desirable and justified or where it constitutes the landscape backdrop of 
a small rural settlement.  
 
Shenington, by virtue of its plateau top location, cannot be said to have a 
landscape backdrop.  Although there are pleasing views out of the village 
to the west and south, the EH guidance recommends that general 
planning policies should be used to protect this open countryside.  The 
landscape surrounding the boundary also constitutes the setting of the 
conservation area and paragraph 4.14 requires LPAs to have regard to 
the setting and views in and out of the conservation area inn determining 
development proposals.   
 
Views towards Alkerton include the Sor Valley and this was included in 
the boundary.  However, following representations, this has now been 
carefully re-examined it is now considered that some of the lower slopes 
to the north of the village do not make a positive contribution to views from 
Shenington as they are degraded, do not in themselves make a positive 
contribution and are not worthy of inclusion.  The southern slopes 
however are an intrinsic part of the vistas between the two villages and 
are included.  The rising land to the east of Alkerton was also included in 
the draft appraisal as constituting the landscape backdrop.  However, 
following representations, this was carefully examined, and it was agreed 
that it is the trees and the bank immediately east of the road that provide 
the backdrop; the field beyond dos not make a significant contribution.  
The same applies to a small pocket of farm land south of Ash Hill Cottage 
at the entrance to Alkerton form the east and so this also is no longer 
proposed for inclusion.   
 

Page 39



 

    

It is therefore recommended that some of the lower slopes to the north 
and east of Alkerton be excluded from the boundary but that the 
landscape back drop remains included elsewhere where this is justified.  
 

2.30 The whole of both villages 
Fourteen requests were received to the effect that the whole of the two 
villages should be included on the grounds that: 

• At Drayton and Wroxton, the entire villages have been included.  

• Including only part of the village is socially divisive. 

• It is the mix of character that makes up the village.  
 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
The entire village of Alkerton is proposed for inclusion, but only the 
historic parts of Shenington.  Drayton and Wroxton Conservation Areas 
were designated prior to the publication of the EH guidance and, as 
referred to above, the same approach would not have been taken today.  
The recent review of Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal did 
contemplate the de-designation of some areas, but concluded that no 
harm was done by maintaining the status quo.  Conservation Area 
designation is concerned with the physical fabric of a place and 
consideration of social issues is restricted to historical associations not 
community relations.  It is heartening that residents are keen to see their 
property afforded the protection that designation brings but it is important 
to ensure that paragraph 4.4 of PPG15 is complied with in ensuring that 
the concept is not devalued by designating areas lacking any special 
interest.  Where the area demonstrates special architectural or historic 
interest it is proposed for inclusion. 
 
It is therefore recommended that it is inappropriate for the entire village of 
Shenington to be included. 
 
The proposed changes to the draft boundary included within the Draft 
Conservation Area Appraisal are illustrated on Fig 1 below. 
 

Response to areas suggested for exclusion 
  
2.31  Area 1: East of the main road at the entrance to Alkerton 

This land was proposed for inclusion on the grounds that 
“The tall overhanging vegetation beside the main road is a key feature, as 
are the trees in the church yard.  In particular, the line of trees by the war 
memorial; provides an important backdrop for the main village crossroads 
and separates the village from the fields beyond, clearly defining the 
village boundary”. The line of trees along the eastern side of the road is 
identified on the Visual Analysis Plan Fig 11 as Key vegetation or trees. 
 
Representations on behalf of the landowner assert that: 

• The land is not identified in the appraisal as being an area of 
prominent open space, nor does it identify any significant view, nor do 
the historic maps associate the land with any aspect of historic 
interest. 

• The field is not a strong visual and / or natural boundary 

• The land is significantly higher than the road and therefore has no 
visual connection with the rest of the area. 

Page 40



 

    

• Protection of the trees would be better achieved by TPOs. 

• The boundary should be drawn along the line of trees 
 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
The special interest is provided by the line of trees and the embankment, 
not the field to the east. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the boundary should be amended to 
include the trees and the bank but exclude the higher land to the east. 

 
2.32 Area 2: Valley slope north of Alkerton 

This land was proposed for inclusion on the grounds that it contributes to 
the open valley between the two villages, with magnificent views, and is a 
key element to the appreciation of both villages. Positive views are 
identified in the Visual Analysis Fig 11 south west across this land from 
Hill Barn in the north east, from the edge of the Manor Farm courtyard 
looking north and north west.  There is a group of trees in the north west 
corner identified as being Key Vegetation.   
 
Representations on behalf of the landowner assert that: 

• The land is described in the appraisal as lying fallow with few 
buildings and therefore has little architectural or historic value of the 
built environment beyond The Barns Character Area  and so does 
not form an integral part of the historic built environment. 

• Hill Barn also fails to meet the test of being an integral part of the 
historic built environment as it is far removed from the existing 
settlement. 

• It does not constitute historic gardens or parkland. 

• Such open countryside is provided wider policy protection through 
Local Plan policies. 

• Its designation cannot be justified on the grounds of setting.  The 
setting of a conservation area is a material consideration in 
determining development proposals. 

• The northern boundary does not have a strong/visual and/or natural 
boundary, whereas the southern field boundary comprises an old 
stone boundary wall. 

• The land should be excluded from the conservation area. 
 
Officer’s response is as follows: 
 
The land itself has been substantially degraded by its current use as 
grazing, with the loss of historic field boundaries, the re-grading of the 
valley slope to create a flat ménage area and the introduction of modern 
means of enclosure.  Whilst the views across the valley are significant, 
they are over this land rather than of it.  It is considered that it therefore 
constitutes the setting of the area of special interest, rather than 
displaying special interest in itself. 
 
It is therefore recommended that this land should be excluded from the 
conservation area.  The boundary should be redrawn to run along the 
Manor Farm complex boundary and then due north along the line of the 
former field boundary (which is just discernable on the ground) to include 
Mill Barn, a prominent unlisted building. 

Page 41



 

    

 
2.33 Area 3: Land north of the Church of St Michael 

This land was proposed for inclusion on the grounds that the field pattern 
has not substantially changed since the mid 18th century and the land is 
also heavily vegetated and provides the setting to the Church of St 
Michael. 
 
Representations on behalf of the landowner assert that: 

• This land already has the benefit of planning permission for a 
garage and has been refused consent for a dwelling on appeal 
due to the proximity to the Grade  1 listed church. 

• It lies outside the line of the historic stone walls, being bounded 
only by a post and wire fence, which enables views through to the 
north. 

• It has no architectural or historic interest. 

• Although there is much vegetation at present, this could be 
trimmed without consent, even within a conservation area, and 
therefore the character of the land is open on account of the 
limited built form. 

• The land is protected by virtue of constituting the setting of the 
area of special interest and constituting the setting of the church. 

• It should be excluded from the Conservation Area. 
 
Officers’ response is as follows: 
 
The field boundaries have remained unchanged since the earliest OS 
maps and the land is closely associated with the group of buildings in the 
locality, contains vegetation that makes a positive contribution to the 
character and appearance of the area and its preservation is important in 
relation to the setting of the Grade 1 listed church.   
 
It is therefore recommended that the land should remain within the 
proposed conservation area. 

 
2.34      Second round of consultation 

Following this reconsideration in the light of representations received, 
Officers wrote to the Parish Council and all residents who would be 
affected by the proposed amendment to the consultation Draft, seeking 
views on the proposed change in a second round of consultation.   
As a result: 

• Three letters of support were received from residents of Rattlecombe 
Road and The Level (two continuing to seek additional areas for 
inclusion)   

• A further letter from a planning consultant continuing to make a case 
for the exclusion of land immediately north of the Church of St 
Michael, Alkerton, based upon the assertion that the boundary has 
changed over time.  However, close inspection reveals the boundary 
to be entirely consistent in all OS maps from 1875 to the present day 
and this has been explained to the consultant.  A further response has 
been received, which makes reference to the right of the landowner to 
pursue Judicial Review. 

• A letter from the same planning consultant on behalf of another 
resident / land owner challenging the inclusion of The Leys, the 
boundary wall to Top Farm field and the terrace on Rattlecombe 

Page 42



 

    

Road.  The reasons for inclusion have been re-iterated to the 
consultant. 

 
Officers gave further careful consideration to these suggestions but 
concluded, with the agreement of the Port Folio Holder for Planning and 
Housing, that there was no evidence to support further changes. 

 
If further representations are received on the second round of consultation 
these will be reported verbally at the Executive Meeting. 

 
 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The matter of whether to designate a conservation area has already been 

taken in principle by the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing,  on the 
basis of the request from the Parish Council that the Council prepare the 
Conservation Area Appraisal with the intention of determining which areas 
are worthy of inclusion.  

 
3.2 The matter to be decided is how much of the villages and their landscape 

backdrop should be included within the conservation area. 
 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the 
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One Approve the Conservation Area Appraisal as a material 

consideration and to designate the area identified at 
Figure 1, which includes and excludes specific areas 
following public consultation. 
 

Option Two Approve the Conservation Area Appraisal as a material 
consideration and to designate the area identified at 
Figure 1, without the addition and exclusion of specific 
areas following consultation. 
 

Option Three Designate an alternative boundary as members see fit. 
 

 
 
Consultations 

 

Shenington with 
Alkerton Parish 
Council 

Responded that all the individual comments from 
parishioners to be considered fully and for the DCD 
officers to come to a professional conclusion of those 
findings.  A majority of the Parish Council would like to 
see the Conservation Area boundary increased (no 
specific area indicated). 

English Heritage Responded, inter alia, that “it is very clear that the two 
settlements are of considerable historic interest and 
distinctive character and English Heritage therefore 
strongly supports the principle of designation as a 
conservation area in this case.  We are generally content 
with the boundaries, although the exact position and 

Page 43



 

    

extent will of course be decided following the results of 
consultation and the need to ensure that they are logical 
and related to obvious features or land ownership on the 
ground.” 

Results of Public 
Consultation 

Questionnaire responses are reported verbatim in full at 
Appendix C, together with a précis of any longer letters or 
reports also submitted.  Full copies of all responses 
received are filed in the Members’ Room for perusal. 

 
 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: There are no financial implications arising from this 
report. The costs of preparing the Appraisal and the 
public consultation are met from the approved revenue 
budget and the Council does not operate any grant aid 
scheme that would be triggered by the Appraisal. 

 Comments checked by Eric Meadows, Accountant 
01295 221552 

Legal: The Council has a duty under the Planning (Listed 
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to identify 
the parts of its area that are worthy of designation as a 
conservation area and to designate them as such.  
English Heritage has confirmed that the area is worthy 
of designation.  The Council is complying with its 
statutory duty in this respect. 

 Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Assistant Solicitor 
01295 221687 

Risk Management: The Conservation Area Appraisal analyses the special 
character and appearance of the designated area and 
sets out proposals for the management of the area.  
Having been publicly consulted upon, the Appraisal will 
become a material consideration in the determining of 
planning applications within the designated area and will 
be used by Inspectors in considering appeals. 

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management and Insurance Officer 01295 2215660 

 
Wards Affected 

Sibford 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

Greener Cleaner Cherwell 
 
Executive Portfolio 

Councillor Michael Gibbard   
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

    

Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix A 
 
 
Appendix B 
 
 
Appendix C 
 
 
Appendix D 

Leaflet distributed to all properties within the two villages, 
informing of implications of designation 
 
Questionnaire distributed to every property within the two 
villages. 
 
Consultation responses received  to the Draft Appraisal and 
Draft Conservation Area boundary 
 
Location of additional areas sought for inclusion and 
exclusion 
 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Linda Rand, Design and Conservation Team Leader 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221845 

Linda.Rand@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Page 46



Proposed 
 Shenington and Alkerton  

Conservation Area 

A PUBLIC EXHIBITION

7-9 p.m. Thursday 2nd October 
Shenington C of E Primary School

3-6 p.m. Thursday 2nd October 
Shenington Village Hall  

The draft appraisal can be viewed at: 

Bodicote House, Banbury 
Banbury Library 

The North Area Mobile Library 
The Bell Public House 

The Village Hall 
Shenington Cof E School 

The Churches of St Michael and  
Holy Trinity 

On the Council’s website at:  

http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/ 
or by request from  

01295 221883 
The Council is inviting comments on the 

proposed Conservation Area boundary and 
the draft appraisal by 24 October. 

Cherwell District Council is seeking 
comments on the  

Proposed Conservation Area boundary 
and on the appraisal

A PUBLIC MEETING

        What is Special about Shenington
and Alkerton? 

The villages of Shenington and Alkerton           
exemplify the picturesque settlements of the 
North Oxfordshire Ironstone Downs: historic 
cottages and houses in vernacular style,           
constructed from the golden-red local stone, 
iconic medieval churches and a settlement  
pattern that has changed little over the last few 
centuries. 

Both Shenington and Alkerton originated as         
Anglo-Saxon settlements and over time have 
developed so that the pattern of buildings 
closely reflects their landscape topography. 
Alkerton is a linear settlement across the steep 
valley sides, and Shenington a nucleated             
village around a hill top green. The intensive 
farming of the Medieval period is visible in the 
terraced cultivation of the valley slopes to the 
north and in the Medieval fish ponds to the 
south.  

There are a large number of high quality 
unlisted vernacular buildings within the           
proposed Conservation Area, the majority          
dating from the 17th century - a wealthy period 
for the District due to the boom in the wool 
trade.  

The medieval churches of St Michael in           
Alkerton and the Holy Trinity in Shenington are 
true gems and reflect medieval prosperity, with 
fine medieval carving the product of local 
stonemasons.

The planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990  places a 
duty upon local planning authorities to 
identify areas of special architectural or 
historic interest and to designate them as 
conservation areas.  

A Conservation Area is “An area of special 
architectural or historic interest,  the 
character or appearance of which is 
desirable to preserve or enhance”. 

An appraisal identifies what is special about 
the area.

Why a Conservation Area Appraisal? 

Appendix A 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



0m                             200m 

Fears that are ungrounded: 

‘I will have to ask permission to do anything’ 
‘My Council Tax will go up’ 
‘I won’t be able to cut my hedge or prune my trees 
without consent’ 
‘The Conservation Area will prevent change and   
development’ 
‘Designation will prevent the building of affordable 
housing’ 
‘I won’t be able to extend my house’ 
‘I won’t be able to paint my windows without consent’ 

Designation does NONE of these. 

The aim of designating a Conservation Area is not 
to prevent change or to stop new development, but 
to preserve and enhance the best of the past while 
allowing sympathetic development in the future and 
ensure a high standard of any new development. 

Some examples of the implications include: 

Owners are encouraged to maintain and         
repair their buildings: repair of traditional       
features such as windows is usually               
preferable to replacement. 

Where they are necessary, replacements 
should use local traditional styles, methods and 
materials appropriate to the building. 

Conservation Area Consent is required for 
some works that do not require consent        
outside a conservation area, such as  erecting 
satellite dishes on front elevations, cladding of 
front elevations and insertion of dormer          
windows. 

Conservation Area Consent is required for 
demolition of some buildings over 115 cubic 
metres in volume. 

Conservation Area Consent is required for the 
demolition of  boundary walls over 1m facing a 
highway and over 2m elsewhere. 

Advance notice needs to be given of works to 
trees over 15cm girth (except orchards) to give 
the Council time to assess their significance to 
the character and appearance of the area. 

In determining planning applications for new 
development, the impact of the proposal on the 
character and appearance of the                   
conservation area and its setting has to be 
taken in to account. 

    What are the effects of designation?  Why Shenington and Alkerton? 

The significance of the architecture, the historic 
layout of the settlements, the streetscapes, the 
open spaces within the villages and the 
continuity of historic field patterns, all mark  out 
the villages of Shenington and Alkerton   as an 
area of special interest deserving of 
Conservation Area designation. 

  Myths of Conservation Area Designation 

P
a

g
e
 4

8



Appendix B 

         

P.T.O. 

Shenington with Alkerton 

Proposed Conservation Area  
and Draft Appraisal 
 

 

 

 

 

1. Do you have any comments on the proposed Conservation Area boundary? 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2. Do you have any comments on the content of the draft Conservation Area Appraisal?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. Did you attend the exhibition on 2nd October 2008 3-6 at the village Hall?                YES   /   NO 
 
4. Did you attend the public meeting on 2nd October 2008 7-9 in the Primary School? YES   /   NO 
 
5. Have you seen the draft Conservation Area Appraisal?             YES   /   NO 

If so, where? 
 
   ¨                 ¨                  o                  o                   o                  ¨                 o 
Councils     Library      Requested          Pub          Village Hall       School           Other 
Website                            Copy 
 

6.   Do you live within the proposed Conservation Area boundary?               YES   /   NO 

 
 
7. Please rate the services provided by the Design and Conservation Team? 

 
               ¨               ¨                  o                  o               ¨                  o 
          Very Poor     Poor             Below           Above         Good         Very Good 
                                                   Average        Average 
 
 
Please return using the pre-paid envelope provided, attaching an additional sheet if required. 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE

 

Page 49



Appendix B 

         

P.T.O. 

The closing date for comments is 24
th
 October. Comments will be reported to the Council’s Executive. 

 

Page 50



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C

co
m
m
en
ts
 

on
 

pr
op
os
ed
 

bo
un
da
ry
?

co
m
m
en
ts
 

on
 c
on
te
nt
 

of
 d
ra
ft ap

pr
ai
sa
l?

ad
di
tio
na
l 

co
m
m
en
ts

P
re
c
is
 o
f 

a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

le
tt
e
r 

P
A
R
IS
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
:A
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 

th
e
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d

T
h
e
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 a
s
k
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
e
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 P
a
ri
s
h
io
n
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
u
lly
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
D
C
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 

to
 a
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
.

E
N
G
L
IS
H
 H
E
R
IT
A
G
E
: 
It
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 

c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 t
w
o
 s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 h
is
to
ri
c
 

in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 

a
n
d
 E
n
g
lis
h
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 o
f 

d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
 i
n
 t
h
is
 c
a
s
e
. 
 W

e
 a
re
 

g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
e
 e
x
a
c
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
n
t 
w
ill
 

o
f 
c
o
u
rs
e
 b
e
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

lo
g
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 o
b
v
io
u
s
 

fe
a
tu
re
s
 o
r 
la
n
d
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

g
ro
u
n
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
le
a
r 

in
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
in
te
re
s
t 
a
s
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 

w
e
ll 
ill
u
s
tr
a
te
d
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
I 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
a
 f
e
w
 o
f 

th
e
 p
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
-o
rd
e
re
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
g
ic
 o
f 
th
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 
 M
y
 m
a
jo
r 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6
, 
b
o
th
 

fo
r 
lis
te
d
 a
n
d
 u
n
lis
te
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 c
o
u
ld
 u
s
e
fu
lly
 b
e
 

a
n
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
r 
o
f 
th
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
is
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 
h
is
to
ry
 a
s
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
is
 r
e
a
lly
 a
ll 
th
a
t 
is
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 

I 
a
ls
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 

to
p
o
g
ra
p
h
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 

v
ie
w
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
, 
c
ro
s
s
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 t
e
x
t 
a
n
d
 a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 f
o
llo
w
 t
h
e
 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

la
te
s
t 
E
n
g
lis
h
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 “

S
e
e
in

g
 t
h
e
 

H
is

to
ry

 i
n
 t
h
e
 V

ie
w

: 
A

 m
e
th

o
d
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 v
ie

w
s
” 
b
y
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 

th
e
 v
ie
w
in
g
 p
o
in
ts
, 
d
e
s
c
ri
b
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
v
ie
w
 (
e
g
 

p
a
n
o
ra
m
a
, 
g
lim

p
s
e
d
, 
fo
rm

a
l,
 o
r 
to
w
n
s
c
a
p
e
) 
a
n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
it
 r
e
v
e
a
ls
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
n
 a
s
s
is
t 
b
o
th
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
h
e
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 o
f 
a
 v
ie
w
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 p
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
  

It
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
te
re
s
ti
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 t
h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
. 
I 

a
m
a
z
e
d
 m
y
s
e
lf
 b
y
 e
n
jo
y
in
g
 r
e
a
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
.

A
p
a
rt
 f
ro
m
 o
n
e
 o
r 
tw
o
 m
in
o
r 
e
rr
o
rs
 (
w
h
ic
h
 I
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 o
n
e
 o
f 
y
o
u
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
) 

I 
th
in
k
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
n
e
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
jo
b
. 
I 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 l
ik
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
v
ie
w
s
 f
ro
m
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 p
o
in
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
s
h
.

I 
h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 r
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 m
y
 o
p
in
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
m
 i
n
 

fa
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
: 
1
- 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 g
iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

le
a
fl
e
t,
 a
n
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
a
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
f 
C
A
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
. 
2
- 
T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

p
la
c
in
g
 o
f 
u
n
lis
te
d
 b
u
t 
c
o
n
g
e
n
ia
l 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
, 
c
o
u
p
le
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 o
f 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
lis
ti
n
g
s
.

I 
a
p
p
re
c
ia
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

a
re
a
 b
u
t 
I 
fe
e
l 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
o
ld
e
r 
p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
e
d
. 
It
 i
s
 a
ll 
a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 

b
a
la
n
c
e
.

Page 51



T
h
o
u
g
h
t 
th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
c
o
n
te
n
t 
w
a
s
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
b
u
t 

ju
s
t 
a
 f
e
w
 m
is
ta
k
e
s
 -
 v
e
ry
 i
n
te
re
s
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 

w
o
rt
h
 p
re
s
e
rv
in
g
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 i
t 
u
p
 v
e
ry
 w
e
ll,
 b
u
t 
in
 

th
e
 f
u
tu
re
?

I 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 t
h
a
n
k
 t
h
e
 e
n
ti
re
 p
a
n
e
l 
o
f 
D
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
- 
A
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 

v
e
ry
 w
e
ll 
h
a
n
d
le
d
. 
I 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
.

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
 V
e
ry
 w
e
ll 
p
u
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r.
 

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
t 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l.

G
e
n
e
ra
lly
 f
in
e

a
c
c
u
ra
te
 

M
y
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 i
s
 o
n
 M
ill
 L
a
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
re
a
 m
y
 h
o
u
s
e
 i
s
 o
u
t 

b
u
t 
m
y
 g
a
ra
g
e
 i
s
 i
n
. 
C
a
n
 I
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 h
a
lf
 i
n
 a
n
d
 h
a
lf
 

o
u
t?

A
ll 
th
e
 s
to
n
e
 w
a
lls
 t
h
a
t 
ru
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 

v
e
rg
e
s
.

W
o
u
ld
 i
t 
b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 e
n
ti
ty
 i
n
 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
?

I 
w
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 v
ill
a
g
e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 2
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
 M
y
 h
o
u
s
e
 i
s
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
a
 s
m
a
ll 

g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
It
 h
a
s
 v
ie
w
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 
o
f 
ro
lli
n
g
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
, 
a
n
d
 h
ill
s
. 
T
o
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 

v
a
lle
y
s
 i
n
 w
in
te
r,
 s
c
re
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
b
y
 t
a
ll 

b
ir
c
h
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 f
u
ll 
le
a
f.

W
e
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 p
le
a
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l

W
e
 l
iv
e
 a
t 
th
e
 '
O
ld
 B
a
k
e
ry
' a
n
d
 i
t 
w
a
s
 

m
is
la
b
e
le
d
 a
s
 '
T
h
e
 O
rc
h
a
rd
'

It
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
m
b
ra
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 b
e
h
in
d
 

R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 L
a
n
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l.

th
o
ro
u
g
h

W
e
 b
e
lie
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 

A
n
d
e
rt
o
n
's
 B
a
rn
 a
t 
th
e
 c
ro
s
s
ro
a
d
s
 

in
to
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 f
ro
m
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
. 
1
. 
T
h
is
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 w
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 f
a
rm

 t
o
 o
u
r 
h
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

o
n
ly
 c
e
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 1
9
3
5
. 
2
. 
A
s
 i
t 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
t,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
re
a
t 
to
 i
ts
 u
s
e
, 

p
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

Y
e
s
 -
 p
u
b
lic
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 m
a
rk
e
d
 -
 

p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
 p
la
n
 o
f 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
p
s

W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 g
re
a
tl
y
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 b
o
u
n
d
e
ri
e
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
p
o
ili
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
d
 y
o
u
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
p
th
 o
f 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
a
n
 o
v
e
rw
h
e
lm
in
g
ly
 

c
o
m
p
e
lli
n
g
 c
a
s
e
.

A
s
 a
 r
e
ti
re
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
p
la
n
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 o
w
n
e
r 
s
in
c
e
 1
9
8
9
 I
 h
a
v
e
 a
lw
a
y
s
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
t 

q
u
it
e
 a
m
a
z
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 

u
n
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

A
re
a
s
 i
n
 1
9
6
8
. 
I 
s
in
c
e
re
ly
 h
o
p
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
it
io
n
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
la
y
.

I 
h
a
v
e
 r
e
a
d
 y
o
u
r 
d
ra
ft
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 A
p
p
ri
s
a
l 

a
n
d
 f
e
e
l 
th
a
t,
 o
n
 b
a
la
n
c
e
, 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
c
h
 s
ta
tu
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 a
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
.

Page 52



C
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 m
a
n
y
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s

P
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
p
p
re
c
ia
te
d
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 g
u
id
e
d
 y
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
.

O
u
tl
in

e
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 v

is
ta

s
, 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

, 
tr

e
e
s
 a

n
d
 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

th
e
 a

re
a
s
 l
is

te
d
 f
o
r 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
a
 

w
id

e
r,

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 C

A
 

w
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 m

o
re

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

S
to

c
k
in

g
 L

a
n
e
, 
M

ill
 L

a
n
e
 &

 T
h
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 a

 u
n
if
y
in

g
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

. 
C

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 d

ra
w

n
 

to
 D

ra
y
to

n
 a

n
d
 W

ro
x
to

n
.

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 i
s
 f
a
r 
to
o
 

ti
g
h
tl
y
 d
ra
w
n
. 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 

S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 w
it
h
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 

ru
ra
l 
s
e
tt
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
if
y
 t
h
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 b
y
 t
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 

s
tr
e
s
s
e
d
 t
o
o
 m
u
c
h
.

a
p
p
re
c
ia
te
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t

D
ra
y
to
n
 a
n
d
 W

ro
x
to
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 p
re
c
e
d
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 

1
9
7
0
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 o
f 
D
ra
y
to
n
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 o
f 
it
s
 s
e
tt
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
S

to
c
k
in

g
 L

a
n
e
, 
M

ill
 

L
a
n
e
 a

n
d
 T

h
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
D

ra
y
to

n
 &

 

W
ro

x
to

n
's

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
'lo

w
 q

u
a
lit

y
' 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t
o
 v

ill
a
g
e
 

g
re

e
n
.

Y
e
s
, 
it
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fi
e
ld
s
 b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 

R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 S
to
c
k
in
g
 L
a
n
e
, 
a
n
d
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 o
ld
 s
to
n
e
 w
a
ll 

a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 s
id
e
 o
f 

R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 

b
e
a
u
ti
fu
l 
w
h
e
n
 v
ie
w
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
.

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t,
 a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 t
h
o
ro
u
g
h

P
le
a
s
e
 a
c
t 
q
u
ic
k
ly
, 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
m
o
lit
io
n
 o
f 
h
is
to
ri
c
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 c
o
m
e
s
 i
n
to
 e
ff
e
c
t.
 Y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 o
u
r 
fu
ll 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
.

Y
e
s
 i
t 
is
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

N
o

Page 53



O
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 e
a
s
t 
s
id
e
, 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

lin
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
te
n
d
 t
o
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 B
a
rn
 F
a
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 I
 

fe
e
l 
is
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
t 
fo
r 
s
a
le
, 
a
n
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
y
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 i
n
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
t 

o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
. 
T
h
e
 b
a
rn
s
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
w
e
re
 o
f 
a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 
in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 

d
e
s
e
rv
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 o
n
 

th
e
 w
e
s
t 
s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 i
.e
. 
S
to
c
k
in
g
 L
a
n
e
, 
M
ill
 

L
a
n
e
, 
T
h
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
&
R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 

b
e
e
n
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
o
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
to
 b
e
 a
 v
it
a
l 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
. 
A
n
y
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 a
s
 a
 

w
h
o
le
. 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
b
o
v
e
-m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 

a
re
a
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 l
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
lik
e
ly
 

to
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
ff
o
rd
e
d
 

b
y
 b
e
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
.

F
a
s
c
in
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d

A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
a
s
 i
t 
s
ta

n
d
s
 i
s
 s

ta
rk

 

c
o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 o
th

e
rs

, 
e
.g

. 
W

ro
x
to

n
 

&
 D

ra
y
to

n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 

re
g
a
rd

 s
e
tt
in

g
 m

o
re

 h
ig

h
ly

. 
3
 

a
re

a
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
: 

A
n
d
e
rt

o
n
 B

a
rn

s
, 
L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 &

 

v
a
lle

y
, 
a
n
d
  
R

a
tt
le

c
o
m

b
e
 R

o
a
d
. 

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 f
o
r 

v
ie

w
s
 i
n
 a

n
d
 f
ro

m
 

v
ill

a
g
e
 p

e
ri
p
h
e
ry

. 
A

re
a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 m
o
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
re

a
t 
fr

o
m

 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
e
.g

 

S
to

c
k
in

g
 L

a
n
e
 t
o
w

n
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 p
ro

te
c
t 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 

to
 v

ill
a
g
e
s
.

A
d
d
it
io
n
s
 -
 s
e
e
 l
e
tt
e
r

T
h
a
n
k
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 e
ff
o
rt
 i
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t

D
e
ta

ile
d
 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tl
in

in
g
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 

a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

th
e
 e

x
tr

e
m

it
ie

s
. 
R

e
m

in
d
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

o
f 
th

e
ir
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

c
t.
 

W
e
ig

h
ti
n
g
 o

f 
o
p
in

io
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
.

Page 54



C
a
n
n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

is
 n
o
t 
la
rg
e
r

T
h
a
n
k
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 h
a
rd
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 e
n
th
u
s
ia
s
m

T
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 a
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

d
ra

w
n
 e

n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
p
e
n
 a

g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
la

n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
o
u
th

 o
f 
th

e
 v

ill
a
g
e
. 
P

o
p
u
la

r 

w
a
lk

in
g
 r

o
u
te

s
 p

a
s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 a

re
a
 &

 a
ff
o
rd

 g
o
o
d
 v

ie
w

s
 i
n
 

a
ll 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
M

ill
 L

a
n
e
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 

m
o
d
e
rn

 b
u
t 
is

 o
ld

 r
o
u
te

 t
o
 

s
o
u
th

e
rn

 m
ill

 w
it
h
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 

w
a
lls

, 
h
e
d
g
e
s
 &

 t
re

e
s
. 
G

o
o
d
 

v
ie

w
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 S

h
u
tf
o
rd

. 

R
a
tt
le

c
o
m

b
e
 R

o
a
d
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rt

h
y
 

o
f 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
. 
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

w
ilf

u
l 
d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
.

E
x
te
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
o
w
n
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 

R
o
a
d
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
v
is
ta
 -
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

d
ra
w
n
 f
a
r 
to
o
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
ly

M
o
s
t 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t

9
 p

o
in

ts
 l
is

te
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
R

a
tt
le

c
o
m

b
e
 R

o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
te

rn
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

v
ill

a
g
e
. 
If
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 v
ill

a
g
e
 w

a
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
, 
th

is
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
.

E
x
te
n
d
 i
n
 t
w
o
 a
re
a
s
.

C
o
n
s
e
rv

e
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 o
n
 a

ll 
s
id

e
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 v

ill
a
g
e
s
. 
A

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 d

ra
w

n
 

to
 A

n
d
e
rt

o
n
 B

a
rn

s
 a

n
d
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 

v
a
lle

y
 (

M
a
c
m

ill
a
n
 W

a
y
).

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
w

h
o
le

 v
ill

a
g
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
.

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 i
s
 f
a
r 
to
o
 t
ig
h
tl
y
 d
ra
w
n

F
ir
s
t 
ra
te

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
tt
in

g
 i
s
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 w

h
o
le

 v
ill

a
g
e
s
 p

lu
s
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 
W

ill
 a

ls
o
 

s
to

p
 d

iv
is

io
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

v
ill

a
g
e
s
. 
F

a
il 

to
 s

e
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

n
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
o
le

 v
ill

a
g
e
s
. 

A
n
d
e
rt

o
n
 b

a
rn

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
.

W
e
 b
e
lie
v
e
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
. 
W
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a

T
h
a
n
k
y
o
u
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 r
e
a
l 
p
a
s
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
, 
a
n
d
 I
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
e
 C
A
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
. 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
th
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 b
e
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 

v
is
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t.
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 m
o
re
 l
y
n
c
h
e
s
tt
s
 a
re
 

th
e
 w
e
s
t 
e
n
d
, 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
t 
th
e
 w
e
s
t 
v
ill
a
g
e
 

e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 (
H
ig
h
 F
ie
ld
s
).
 P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
h
e
re
 

s
ta
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
ld
 q
u
a
rr
y
 s
it
e
. 
T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 d
ra
w
n
 f
a
r 
to
o
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
a
n
d
 i
f 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 w
e
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
, 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
.

Page 55



I 
d
o
 n
o
t 
b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

s
h
o
w
n
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 w
id
e
 e
n
o
u
g
h
. 

T
h
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 i
s
 m
u
c
h
 

w
id
e
r 
th
a
n
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
. 

T
h
e
 v
a
lle
y
s
 a
n
d
 l
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 a
re
 j
u
s
t 
a
s
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
lly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
th
. 
M
a
n
y
 h
is
to
ri
c
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
to
n
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

w
a
lls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 M
ill
 L
a
n
e
, 
S
to
c
k
in
g
 

L
a
n
e
 a
n
d
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 's
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 i
s
 m
u
c
h
 l
a
rg
e
r 

th
a
n
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 a
n
d
 I
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
it
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
b
o
th
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 e
n
ti
re
ty
. 
T
h
e
 b
a
rn
s
 (
A
n
d
e
rt
o
n
s
 B
a
rn
s
) 
a
t 
th
e
 

c
ro
s
s
ro
a
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 l
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
V
ie
w
s
 

in
to
 a
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
m
 a
re
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
- 
th
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 p
ic
k
 

u
p
 m
u
c
h
 m
o
re
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
ro
n
ta
g
e
s
 t
o
 T
o
p
 F
a
rm

 F
ie
ld
 

(S
to
c
k
in
g
 L
a
n
e
 a
n
d
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
is
 T
o
p
 F
a
rm

 F
ie
ld
. 
T
h
is
 a
ff
o
rd
s
 

v
ie
w
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 f
ro
m
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 h
is
to
ri
c
 r
u
ra
l 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
.

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 

o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 T
o
p
 F
a
rm

 

F
ie
ld
s
.

T
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
w
a
s
 w
e
ll 

th
o
u
g
h
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 I
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
n
t

T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 i
s
 d
ra
w
n
 f
a
r 
to
o
 

n
a
rr
o
w
ly
. 
T
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ie
ld
s
 e
tc
. 
T
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 m
e
ri
ts
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 

s
ta
tu
s
 a
n
d
 b
y
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 b
e
 

d
o
in
g
 i
ts
 (
o
v
e
rd
u
e
) 
d
u
ty
.

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
re
s
ti
n
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
 M
a
n
y
 

th
a
n
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 p
u
t 
in
 a
ll 
th
e
 h
a
rd
 w
o
rk

I 
a
m
 v
e
ry
 m
u
c
h
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 

s
ta
tu
s
 f
o
r 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
. 
A
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 s
a
id
, 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
g
a
th
e
r 

a
re
 (
to
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rd
s
 o
f 
D
r 
T
o
d
d
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
) 

'g
e
m
s
'.
 I
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 i
s
 n
o
t 

m
is
s
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
. 
A
s
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 o
n
ly
 t
o
o
 a
w
a
re
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 o
p
p
o
s
it
io
n
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 (
a
lb
e
it
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
&
 v
o
c
a
l 
m
in
o
ri
ty
) 

a
n
d
 I
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 b
y
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
. 
O
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

d
o
n
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
p
t 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

a
n
d
 w
o
n
d
e
r 
w
h
a
t 
a
ll 
th
e
 f
u
s
s
 w
a
s
 a
b
o
u
t.

Page 56



I 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
re
a
s
: 

L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 t
o
 S
W
 o
f 
v
ill
a
g
e
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 

T
h
e
 L
e
v
e
l;
 V
ie
w
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 

&
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
v
ie
w
 a
lo
n
g
 w
e
s
te
rn
 

R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
; 
T
o
p
 F
a
rm

 F
ie
ld
 -
 

v
ie
w
s
 f
ro
m
 r
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 

R
o
a
d
/S
to
c
k
in
g
 L
a
n
e
; 
W
e
s
te
rn
 

S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 -
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 c
o
tt
a
g
e
s
 o
n
 

R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 a
g
e
/s
o
c
ia
l 
h
is
to
ry
; 
V
ie
w
s
 f
ro
m
 

O
ld
 M
ill
 L
a
n
e
; 
b
a
rn
s
 o
n
 e
n
ta
rn
c
e
 

in
to
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 -
 s
u
p
e
rb
 a
s
h
la
r 
s
to
n
e
 

b
a
rn
s
 w
it
h
 f
in
e
 p
o
in
ti
n
g
; 
T
re
e
s
 &
 

s
to
n
e
 w
a
ll 
to
 L
o
n
g
 A
c
re
 s
it
e
 -
 f
in
e
 

fe
a
tu
re
; 
L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 &
 l
a
n
d
 t
o
 e
a
s
t 

lin
k
in
g
 t
h
ru
 w
it
h
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 -
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 &
 h
a
v
e
 

s
h
a
p
e
d
 t
h
e
m
 f
ro
m
 a
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e

N
o
. 
V
e
ry
 g
o
o
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t

O
v
e
ra
ll 
- 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 p
o
in
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
re
c
e
d
e
n
ts
 

s
e
t 
in
 D
ra
y
to
n
 a
n
d
 W

ro
x
to
n
 f
o
r 
to
ta
l 
v
ill
a
g
e
 

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 &
 i
d
e
a
lly
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 

S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 w
it
h
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 f
ro
m
 m
a
n
y
 p
a
ri
s
h
o
n
e
rs
, 
w
h
o
 e
it
h
e
r 
d
o
 o
r 

d
o
n
't 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
.

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
n
ti
re
 a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s

D
e
ta

ile
d
 l
e
tt
e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
, 
o
u
tl
in

in
g
 7

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
re

a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

w
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 

m
a
p
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

v
is

ta
s
. 
In

c
lu

d
e
s
 S

to
c
k
in

g
 L

a
n
e
, 

R
a
tt
le

c
o
m

b
e
 R

o
a
d
, 
M

ill
 L

a
n
e
 

a
n
d
 A

n
d
e
rt

o
n
 B

a
rn

s
.

T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
x
te
n
d
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
e
s
t 
a
lo
n
g
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 

R
o
a
d
. 
A
ls
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
W
N
W
 a
lo
n
g
 

K
e
n
h
ill
 R
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

a
llo
tm
e
n
ts
 &
 r
e
a
r 
p
lo
ts
 o
f 
S
to
c
k
in
g
 

L
a
n
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
- 
th
e
 v
ie
w
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
.

A
p
a
rt
 f
ro
m
 m
in
o
r 
d
e
ta
il 
(r
e
: 
d
a
te
s
 o
f 
c
e
rt
a
in
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
) 
- 
a
 t
h
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
W
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 a
im
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

W
e
 b
o
th
 w
h
o
le
h
e
a
rt
e
d
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

a
n
d
 r
e
ly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

A
c
t 
to
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
. 

W
e
ll 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
in
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
to
 t
h
o
s
e
 o
f 
u
s
 l
iv
in
g
 h
e
re
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
o
.

T
h
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
m
a
y
 w
e
ll 
b
e
 o
f 
a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 
in
te
re
s
t 
to
o
 

a
s
 a
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 e
ra
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
w
a
s
 b
u
ilt
?
 

W
a
lls
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
W
e
 m
a
y
 o
w
n
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
u
t 
w
e
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
m
, 
in
 e
s
s
e
n
c
e
, 
in
 t
ru
s
t 
fo
r 

fu
tu
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 
W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 n
o
n
-

lis
te
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
lt
e
re
d
 i
n
 s
y
m
p
a
th
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
m
b
ie
n
c
e
; 
w
a
lls
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 a
s
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 a
d
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
 f
e
a
tu
re
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
fe
a
tu
re
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
.

Page 57



B
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 -
 a
n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
/d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
u
s
 a
ll 

a
n
d
 i
t 
s
e
e
m
s
 u
n
fa
ir
 t
o
 w
e
ig
h
 o
n
e
 

o
p
in
io
n
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
ju
s
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
y
 c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 i
n
s
id
e
 o
r 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

th
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

J
u
s
t 
s
u
rp
ri
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
c
h
 a
 b
e
a
u
ti
fu
l 
v
ill
a
g
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
. 

In
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
im
p
ro
ta
n
t 

fe
a
tu
re
s
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
w
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
p
p
e
n
, 

a
n
d
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
s
 c
ru
c
ia
l 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t.

F
a
ir
e
r 
if
 b
o
th
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 w
e
re
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 e
n
ti
re
ty
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d

W
e
ll 
e
x
e
c
u
te
d
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t,
 

p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 s
tr
o
n
g
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
C
A
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n

W
e
s
te

rn
 e

n
d
 o

f 
v
ill

a
g
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
, 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 

in
te

re
s
t 
n
o
te

d
 i
n
c
l.
 w

a
te

r 
p
ill

a
r 

a
n
d
 v

ie
w

s
. 
B

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

lo
n
g
 M

ill
 

L
a
n
e
 a

re
 o

f 
m

e
ri
t,
 A

n
d
e
rt

o
n
 

B
a
rn

s
 a

re
 i
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
 

la
n
d
m

a
rk

. 
S

tr
o
n
g
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

h
o
le

 

o
f 
s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
a
re

a
.

W
h
y
 i
s
n
't 
th
e
 a
re
a
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m
u
c
h
 

la
rg
e
r?
 T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
o
p
e
n
 a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
la
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
o
u
th
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
. 
I 
fe
e
l 
th
a
t 

s
im
ila
r 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 n
o
rt
h
, 
e
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 

w
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
V
ie
w
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
to
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s
 

a
re
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t

I 
h
a
v
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 m
o
s
t 
im
p
re
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 

c
le
a
rl
y
 g
o
n
e
 i
n
to
 i
ts
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n

I 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
re
s
s
 m
y
 s
tr
o
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
. 
T
h
e
 a
re
a
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

b
e
a
u
ti
fu
l 
v
a
lle
y
, 
im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 
o
n
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 

th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 w
h
ic
h
 m
u
s
t 
s
u
re
ly
 b
e
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
.

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 b

e
 

e
n
la

rg
e
d
 -

 a
re

a
s
 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 

w
e
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 v

ill
a
g
e
. 

R
a
tt
le

c
o
m

b
e
 R

o
a
d
 i
n
 u

rg
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
. 
H

ig
h
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

re
fu

s
e
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

P
re

c
e
d
e
n
t 
s
e
t 
b
y
 D

ra
y
to

n
 a

n
d
 

W
ro

x
to

n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 w

h
o
le

 

v
ill

a
g
e
 i
n
 C

A
.

I 
d
o
n
't 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 i
ts
 n
o
t 

la
rg
e
r?

It
's
 t
o
o
 s
m
a
ll 
- 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 

fo
r 
e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
ie
ld
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

th
e
m

S
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
a
rg
e
r 
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 t
w
o
 v
ill
a
g
e
s

W
e
ll 
w
ri
tt
e
n

Page 58



I 
th
in
k
 a
 l
a
rg
e
r 
a
re
a
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
h
e
 f
ie
ld
s
 

b
o
rd
e
ri
n
g
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 

S
to
c
k
in
g
 L
a
n
e
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
d
g
e
 o
f 

th
e
 w
e
s
te
rn
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 s
ig
n
. 
A
ls
o
 

a
lo
n
g
 M
ill
 L
a
n
e
.

I 
th
o
u
g
h
t 
it
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 t
h
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
W
e
ll 
d
o
n
e
.

I 
g
re
w
 u
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 

lik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
m
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 a
s
 

b
e
a
u
ti
fu
l 
p
la
c
e
s
. 
I 
th
in
k
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

w
id
e
r 
c
ir
c
le
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 

w
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 f
a
n
ta
s
ti
c
 

v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
tt
y
 v
a
lle
y
s
. 
I 
k
n
o
w
 

th
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 b
y
 m
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ip
 a
t 
th
e
 m
o
m
e
n
t.

Y
e
s
 -
 a
 l
o
v
e
ly
 p
ic
to
ri
a
l 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

Y
e
s
. 
I 
th
in
k
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 

v
ill
a
g
e
.

O
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 a
re
 w
o
rt
h
y
 o
f 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 &
 s
o
c
ia
l 

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
v
ill
a
g
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
o
o
d
 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
fa
c
to
r.
 P
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 &
 t
h
e
 L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
.

I 
th
in
k
 i
t 
is
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
id
e
a
. 
It
 i
s
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 l
ik
e
 

th
is
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 o
u
r 
v
ill
a
g
e
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r.
 T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
e
e
m
s
 

fi
n
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 i
t 

s
p
re
a
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
u
t 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
 

A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 t
ip
 t
a
k
in
g
 m
o
re
 s
p
a
c
e
.

N
o
n
e
 r
e
a
lly
, 
o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

th
is
 t
o
 s
to
p
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 r
u
in
in
g
 o
u
r 
v
ill
a
g
e

S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 s
h
e
e
ts

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
ig
h
ly
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
v
e
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
 W

h
a
t 
a
 g
re
a
t 
p
it
y
 i
t 
w
a
s
 n
o
t 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 3
0
 y
e
a
rs
 a
g
o
.

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

a
is

e
d
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

re
c
e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

v
ill

a
g
e
. 
G

re
a
te

r 
a
re

a
 o

f 
C

A
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
, 
u
n
if
y
 n

o
t 
d
iv

id
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
. 

R
u
ra

l 
s
e
tt
in

g
 i
s
 p

a
ra

m
o
u
n
t,
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
, 
w

e
s
te

rn
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 
M

ill
 L

a
n
e
, 
A

n
d
e
rt

o
n
 

B
a
rn

s
, 
L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
 a

re
a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 S

A
M

I 
th
in
k
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d

A
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
re
a
d
!

n
o
n
e

w
e
ll 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d

It
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

n
o
t 
ju
s
t 
th
e
 m
a
in
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
re
a

It
 s
e
e
m
s
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
m
a
jo
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
te
n
ti
o
u
s
 't
o
p
 f
a
rm

' 
s
it
e
 

o
ff
 s
to
c
k
in
g
 l
a
n
e
. 
Is
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
 'b
ri
b
e
' s
o
 

th
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
o
p
p
o
s
e
 a
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
t 
to
p
 f
a
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 -
 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
t 
o
n
 a
ll 
o
f 
u
s
 b
y
 a
 

m
a
n
if
e
s
tl
y
 c
o
rr
u
p
t 
p
a
ri
s
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
w
h
o
m
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 v
e
s
te
d
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
in
 s
e
e
in
g
 t
h
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
e
d
.

It
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
if
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
d
 s
e
n
t 

u
s
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
s
 e
tc
. 
s
o
m
e
w
h
a
t 
s
o
o
n
e
r 
th
a
n
 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
h
a
n
d
!

Page 59



T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
b
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
s
 

to
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
, 
a
s
 

th
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 s
e
t 
th
e
 s
c
e
n
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

re
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
. 
E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
.

N
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
te
n
ts
. 
S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

fo
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
u
ld
in
g
s
, 
w
a
ll 
a
n
d
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 
in
te
re
s
t 
th
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d

A
rg

u
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 

v
ill

a
g
e
s
: 
1
 -

 m
a
in

ta
in

 &
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 v

ill
a
g
e
s
. 

2
 -

 p
re

s
e
rv

e
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 o

f 
v
ill

a
g
e
s
. 

3
 -

 p
re

s
e
rv

e
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

n
o
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 
H

a
v
e
 

C
D

C
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 a

ir
fi
e
ld

 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
?
 W

ill
s
 d

a
ti
n
g
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 

1
5
0
4
 o

n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rc

h
iv

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

lin
k
s
 t
o
 S

h
e
n
in

g
to

n
.

T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 s
e
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 j
u
s
t 

a
b
o
u
t 
ri
g
h
t 
in
 t
h
a
t 
it
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 C
A
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
/t
re
e
s
 e
tc
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 n
o
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
m
e
ri
t,
 b
u
t 
ta
k
e
s
 

c
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
t

T
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
 g
ir
th
 o
f 
o
v
e
r 

1
5
c
m
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 j
u
ri
s
ti
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
A
 i
s
 u
n
re
a
lis
it
ic
 a
n
d
 c
a
lls
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 
D
o
 y
o
u
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
a
t 
if
 I
 p
la
n
t 
a
 s
a
m
p
lin
g
 i
n
 m
y
 

g
a
rd
e
n
 I
 n
e
e
d
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 i
t 
w
h
e
n
 i
ts
 

g
ir
th
 r
e
a
c
h
e
s
 1
5
 c
m
+

A
s
 i
t 
a
ff
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 I
 

th
in
k
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 v
ill
a
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a

T
h
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
w
a
s
 o
v
e
r-
e
g
g
e
d
 -
 t
o
o
 s
im
p
lif
ie
d
, 

te
lli
n
g
 u
s
 t
h
in
g
s
 w
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 k
n
e
w
 o
r 
d
id
n
't 
w
a
n
t 

to
 k
n
o
w
. 
T
o
o
 m
u
c
h
 m
o
n
e
y
 w
a
s
 s
p
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
o
 

m
a
n
y
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 e
tc
. 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 
O
b
v
io
u
s
ly
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
 d
o
n
e
 d
e
a
l 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 t
im
e
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
e
y
 s
p
e
n
t 
b
y
 D
&
C
 T
e
a
m

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
ra
w
n
 f
a
r 
to
o
 t
ig
h
tl
y
. 
I 
re
q
u
e
s
t 
th
a
t 

th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 w
it
h
 

A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
s
 m
u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 r
u
ra
l 

s
e
tt
in
g
 a
s
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 p
e
rm

it
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d

T
h
e
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
A
re
a
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 c
le
a
rl
y
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 

a
n
d
 w
e
 n
e
e
d
 i
t 
n
o
w
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
iv
ic
 A
m
e
n
it
ie
s
 A
c
t 
o
f 
1
9
6
7
 a
n
d
 y
e
t 
4
1
 y
e
a
rs
 

la
te
r 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 w
it
h
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

C
A
 s
ta
tu
s

I 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
D
ra
y
to
n
 a
n
d
 W

ro
x
to
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

w
e
re
 g
iv
e
n
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1
9
7
0
s
 h
a
v
e
 

d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 r
u
ra
l 

s
e
tt
in
g
 i
n
 m
o
s
t 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
M
o
re
o
v
e
r,
 I
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

th
a
t 
D
ra
y
to
n
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 C
A
 

s
ta
tu
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
tt
in
g
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
u
s
 a
 p
re
c
e
d
e
n
t 
fo
r 
m
y
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t.
 

D
ra
y
to
n
 a
n
d
 W

ro
x
to
n
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
e
x
-p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 "
lo
w
 q
u
a
lit
y
" 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
a
s
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 f
o
r 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
to
c
k
in
g
 

L
a
n
e
, 
M
ill
 L
a
n
e
, 
a
n
d
 T
h
e
 L
e
v
e
l.
 G
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
p
lo
ra
b
le
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
v
e
rb
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 

d
ir
e
c
te
d
 a
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 d
e
s
ir
e
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
, 
th
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 u
n
if
y
in
g
 b
y
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 C
A
, 
n
o
t 

d
iv
id
in
g
 b
y
 a
 C
A
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 l
in
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
.

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

T
O
N
Y
 B
A
L
D
R
Y
 M
P
:

P
a
s
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 e

v
e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 d

iv
id

e
 a

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
S

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
o
ll 

b
e
fo

re
 a

 f
in

a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 (

L
e
tt
e
r 

d
a
te

d
 1

 O
c
to

b
e
r,

 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 C

D
C

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 2

 -
 2

4
 O

c
to

b
e
r)

.

Page 60



1
 -
 R
a
tt
le
c
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
it
s
 C
1
7
 

w
o
rk
e
rs
' 
c
o
tt
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

v
is
ta
s
 o
v
e
r 
T
o
p
 F
a
rm

 F
ie
ld
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
2
 -
 T
h
e
 l
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
S
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 A
n
c
ie
n
t 

M
o
n
u
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 c
le
a
rl
y
 n
o
t 

p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 i
ts
 s
e
tt
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 a
llo
w
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
. 
3
 -
 

T
h
e
 b
a
rn
 a
t 
th
e
 t
o
p
 o
f 
A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 

If
 o
n
ly
 t
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 w
a
s
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 I
 w
o
u
ld
. 
Y
o
u
 

a
re
 m
is
s
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 u
n
p
ro
te
c
te
d
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
! 
C
o
m
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 o
f 
D
ra
y
to
n
!

If
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
s
ir
a
b
le
 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
th
e
 e
x
is
tn
g
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
 "
g
re
e
n
" 
b
u
ff
e
r 

a
ro
u
n
d
 i
t 
(a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
a
te
rn
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 a
re
a
) 
to
 g
iv
e
 a
d
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 "
c
o
re
" 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 

a
re
a
s
 f
ro
o
m
 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 

in
s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
n
 v
is
ta
s
 

w
h
ic
h
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
e
s
s
 s
tr
ik
in
g
 t
h
a
n
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
, 
a
re
a
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 a
s
s
e
t 

to
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
.

T
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 h
a
s
 

c
re
a
te
d
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 d
iv
is
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
n
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 o
f 

th
e
  
P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 a
 m
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 

a
 f
e
w
 m
o
n
th
s
 a
g
o
 n
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 t
h
re
e
 

ty
p
e
s
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
: 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 

liv
e
d
 i
n
 s
to
n
e
 h
o
u
s
e
s
; 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 l
iv
e
d
 i
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 "
th
e
 r
e
s
t"
. 
 C
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
e
a
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
is
 

d
iv
is
io
n
 w
ill
 e
x
a
c
e
rb
a
te
 t
h
is
 n
e
w
ly
 a
ri
s
e
n
 "
c
a
s
te
 

s
y
s
te
m
" 
o
f 
"t
h
e
m
" 
a
n
d
 "
u
s
",
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
tr
im
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.

T
h
e
 v
ie
w
s
 s
e
e
m
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
a
l 
la
n
d
 o
n
ly
, 
e
g
 p
.3
3
 c
o
l.
3
 "
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 

re
s
tr
ic
te
d
".
 S
u
re
ly
, 
v
ie
w
s
 f
ro
m
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
?
  
T
h
e
 v
ie
w
 f
ro
m
 a
 h
o
u
s
e
 i
s
 

a
 f
a
c
to
r 
in
 i
ts
 v
a
lu
e
. 
 T
h
e
 i
m
p
re
s
s
iv
e
 v
ie
w
s
 n
o
rt
h
 

a
n
d
 e
a
s
t 
fr
o
m
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 N
 s
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
 s
e
e
m
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
g
n
o
re
d
 h
e
re
 o
n
 p
. 

3
3
 a
n
d
. 
m
o
re
 c
ru
ti
a
lly
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
im
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
. 
  
T
h
e
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 a
 

v
e
ry
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
fu
l 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 

w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 o
f 
g
re
a
t 
in
te
re
s
t 
to
 a
ll 
w
h
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 t
w
o
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

d
e
ta
ile
d
 e
rr
o
rs
 [
o
f 
s
p
e
lli
n
g
, 
p
u
n
c
tu
a
ti
o
n
, 
g
ra
m
m
a
r 

a
n
d
 f
a
c
t]
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
rr
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
h
e
 L
y
n
c
h
e
tt
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
T
o
o
 m
u
c
h
 

ja
rg
o
n
 -
 w
h
a
te
v
e
r 
d
o
e
s
 n
u
c
le
a
te
 m
e
a
n
?
!

1
. 
P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 a
n
ti
 C
A
, 
w
e
 a
re
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 t
o
ld
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 u
p
 S
to
c
k
in
g
 L
a
n
e
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

b
u
ilt
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
y
 i
f 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 h
a
d
 e
x
is
te
d
. 
If
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

c
a
s
e
, 
fi
n
e
. 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
 t
o
 k
n
o
w
 i
f 
th
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
A
 t
h
e
 d
e
is
g
n
s
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
i.
e
. 
le
s
s
 i
n
tr
u
s
iv
e
. 
 2
. 
A
s
 a
 h
ill
to
p
 

v
ill
a
g
e
, 
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
k
y
lin
e
 w
h
e
n
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
s
 a
re
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
ll 
ro
u
n
d
. 
i.
e
. 
fr
o
m
 

a
ll 
4
 s
id
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
o
w
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
n
tr
u
d
e
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
k
y
lin
e
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 f
o
r 

m
ile
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
. 
If
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 w
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 d
id
 

n
o
t 
h
a
p
p
e
n
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r.

n
o

n
o

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 h
e
a
r 

if
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
d
 h
a
d
 a
n
 m
ic
ro
p
h
o
n
e
/a
m
p
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
It
 i
s
 

s
a
d
 t
o
 s
e
e
 t
h
a
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
s
e
e
s
 f
it
 t
o
 t
o
 i
m
p
o
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 o
n
 t
w
o
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 o
n
e
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
d
m
it
te
d
 h
e
 h
a
d
 w
a
lk
e
d
 

ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 i
t 
w
a
s
 n
o
t 
a
 

C
.A
. 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
. 
P
e
rh
a
p
s
 s
e
lf
 r
u
le
 s
in
c
e
 D
o
o
m
s
d
a
y
 

s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
lf
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
o
u
ts
id
e
 

in
te
rf
e
re
n
c
e
, 
w
o
rk
s
.

Page 61



G
e
n
e
ra
lly
 w
e
ll 
th
o
u
g
h
t 
o
u
t,
 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
n
 f
ie
ld
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rt
h
 o
f 
A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t.
 A
ls
o
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 

to
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 
o
f 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 w
o
u
ld
 

d
e
v
a
lu
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
t.

Q
u
it
e
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
c
ie
s
 o
n
 d
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
n
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
fa
c
ts
 h
o
p
e
fu
lly
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
in
p
u
t.

W
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
v
ill
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 m
o
re
 

a
b
o
u
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 t
h
a
n
 w
e
/t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 d
a
te
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 h
a
v
e
 

fa
ile
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 i
s
 a
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

a
s
 t
h
e
 'j
e
w
e
l' 
w
it
h
in
. 
E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 a
w
fu
l 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 5
 t
o
w
n
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 S
to
c
k
in
g
 

L
a
n
e
. 
T
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 n
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 
is
 a
s
 i
m
p
ro
ta
n
t 
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
fr
o
m
 

th
e
 s
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

u
n
s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 f
o
re
ig
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
re
a
. 
O
n
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
w
a
rd
 o
f 

'c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
' s
ta
tu
s
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
e
s
ig
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

b
u
t 
th
e
re
 s
e
e
m
s
 l
it
tl
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
. 
O
n
e
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 t
w
o
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 e
n
v
e
lo
p
e
 w
it
h
in
 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 w
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t.
 P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
c
o
u
s
ti
c
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
ll 
a
re
 

n
o
t 
g
o
o
d
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
ty
p
e
 o
f 
Q
&
A
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s

S
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s

R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
M
r 

D
o
w
d
e
s
w
e
ll 
b
y
 O
liv
e
r 
T
a
y
lo
r 
o
f 
P
e
g
a
s
u
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p

T
h
re

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
la

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C

A
 a

re
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 a

s
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 m

o
re

 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
A

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
lim

in
a
te

s
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
re

a
s
.

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

Page 62



n
o

n
o

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 -
 f
a
r 
le
s
s
 

s
o
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
V
ie
w
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
e
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 b
y
 a
 v
o
c
if
e
ro
u
s
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 

b
a
s
e
d
 n
o
t 
o
n
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
t 
o
n
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

v
e
n
d
e
tt
a
. 
M
a
n
y
 o
ld
/i
n
fo
rm

 i
n
h
a
b
it
a
n
ts
 w
e
re
 

u
n
a
b
le
/f
in
d
 i
t 
to
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 a
s
 i
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
p
in
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 

w
e
ig
h
te
d
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 w
h
o
 d
w
e
ll 
in
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 z
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 l
ik
e
 m
y
s
e
lf
 

d
w
e
lli
n
g
 o
u
ts
id
e
 i
t.
 I
t 
s
e
e
m
s
 t
o
 m
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 w
it
h
 n
o
 r
e
a
l 
v
ie
w
 a
s
 t
o
 p
ro
/c
o
n
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 -
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 s
p
o
k
e
 l
o
u
d
e
s
t 
fo
r 
it
 

w
e
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 d
w
e
lt
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 a
re
a
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 m
a
n
y
 c
a
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
lt
e
re
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
, 

fe
lle
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
lis
h
e
d
 o
u
tb
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
s
 

in
fi
n
it
u
e
m
. 
I 
w
a
s
 s
ta
g
g
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
h
e
e
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

'a
d
v
is
o
rs
' p
la
n
n
e
rs
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a
m
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
.

If
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

im
p
o
s
e
d
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 w
id
e
r 

a
re
a
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
le
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
.

C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t

I 
a
m
 o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
s
ti
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 b
a
llo
t 
re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 i
m
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 

th
e
 b
a
llo
t 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
a
 C
A
. 
I 
a
m
 a
p
p
a
u
le
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
g
a
in
 

s
o
 s
o
o
n
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 b
a
llo
t 
in
 2
0
0
6
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
 v
o
te
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 o
f 
a
lm
o
s
t 
2
.5
:1
. 
H
a
v
in
g
 b
e
e
n
 

b
o
rn
 i
n
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 l
iv
e
d
 h
e
re
 f
o
r 
5
0
 y
e
a
rs
 I
 

s
e
e
 l
it
tl
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 a
n
d
 

lit
tl
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 

C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
. 
If
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 

c
o
n
fe
rr
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
re
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
fu
tu
re
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
s
h
 a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
 t
h
e
n
 I
 c
o
u
ld
 

s
e
e
 m
e
ri
t 
in
 C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
, 
b
u
t 
it
 c
le
a
rl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 n
o
 

s
u
c
h
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
a
llo
t 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 m
u
c
h
 i
ll 

fe
e
lin
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 r
e
p
e
a
te
d
ly
 r
a
is
e
 

th
is
 i
s
s
u
e
, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 c
le
a
r 
re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
6
.

G
iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
3
2
 h
o
u
s
e
s
/b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 l
is
te
d
 a
n
d
 o
n
ly
 1
1
 a
re
 

n
o
t,
 I
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
e
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
th
is
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
. 
T
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 i
s
 s
p
le
n
d
id
 

a
s
 i
t 
is
. 
I 
s
e
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 

b
u
re
a
u
c
ra
z
y
 a
n
d
 q
u
it
e
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

It
 s
e
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
la
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
 "
y
e
s
" 
v
o
te
.

Page 63



I 
a
m
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
A
 s
ta
tu
s
 b
e
in
g
 

im
p
o
s
e
d
 o
n
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
/A
lk
e
rt
o
n
. 

O
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 h
a
s
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
 

v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 (
a
p
a
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

h
o
rs
e
 t
ro
u
g
h
/f
lo
w
e
r 
b
a
th
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

g
re
e
n
) 
a
n
d
 w
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
b
e
a
u
c
ra
c
y
 t
e
lli
n
g
 

u
s
 h
o
w
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
ft
e
r 
o
u
r 
v
ill
a
g
e
s
.

I 
o
n
ly
 h
a
d
 a
 c
h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
s
o
m
e
 p
re
tt
y
 

p
ic
tu
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 a
t 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 h
a
ll.

n
o

W
e
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
 f
a
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 

s
e
e
 n
o
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l!

P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t

a
s
 a
b
o
v
e

I 
h
a
v
e
 l
iv
e
d
 i
n
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
ll 
m
y
 l
if
e
 a
n
d
 a
m
 v
e
ry
 

s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

h
a
s
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
ly
 u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
0
0
 y
e
a
rs
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 w
h
y
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
n
't 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 
O
u
r 
fa
m
ily
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 a
 g
ra
d
e
 I
I 
lis
te
d
 h
o
u
s
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
n
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
tr
c
it
io
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 

im
p
o
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
u
r 
d
a
ily
 l
iv
e
. 
S
u
re
ly
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 s
p
e
n
t 

p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
o
lic
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
o
lic
y
 

c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
p
e
n
t 
e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
.

W
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
ft
e
r 
o
u
r 
v
e
ry
 p
re
tt
y
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 

q
u
it
e
 w
e
ll 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
(t
ri
p
le

 u
n
d
e
rl
in

e
d
) 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 

fo
r 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 s
ta
tu
s
. 
W
h
y
 m
o
re
 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
re
a
u
c
ra
c
y
?
 U
s
e
 y
o
u
r 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
.

T
h
is
 i
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
 w
a
s
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 m
o
n
e
y
 w
h
e
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
e
re
 a
b
u
s
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 i
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
W
h
y
 

is
 e
v
e
ry
th
in
g
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 w
ra
p
p
e
d
 u
p
 i
n
 r
e
d
 t
a
p
e
?
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
v
o
lv
e
 q
u
it
e
 n
ic
e
ly
 s
in
c
e
 

A
n
g
lo
-S
a
x
o
n
 t
im
e
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
(t
ri
p
le
 u
n
d
e
rl
in
e
d
) 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 s
ta
tu
s
.

I 
a
m
 v
e
ry
 m
u
c
h
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
n
 a
n
y
 f
o
rm

, 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
ll 
fo
r 
it
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 a
n
 

a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 n
o
t 
in
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
re
a
, 
w
h
ic
h
 I
 f
e
e
l 
is
 

v
e
ry
 u
n
fa
ir
.

T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
re
fe
re
n
d
u
m
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 m
o
re
. 
3
1
5
 e
le
g
ib
le
 t
o
 

v
o
te
. 
1
9
9
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
it
. 
5
2
 f
o
r 
it
. 
S
u
re
ly
 t
h
is
 s
a
y
s
 

s
o
m
e
th
in
g
.

Page 64



W
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
n
't 
b
e
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 a
t 
a
ll.
 Y
o
u
r 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
g
ra
tu
la
te
d
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 o
n
 h
o
w
 

w
e
ll 
it
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 k
e
p
t.
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 

w
e
 c
a
n
 l
o
o
k
 a
ft
e
r 
o
u
r 
v
ill
a
g
e
, 
a
s
 

w
e
 h
a
v
e
 f
o
r 
h
u
n
d
re
d
s
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr
o
ls
. 
N
o
t 
o
n
e
 o
f 
y
o
u
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

c
o
u
ld
 p
in
p
o
in
t 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
h
re
a
t 
to
 

o
u
r 
v
ill
a
g
e
 i
s
. 
If
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 s
o
 

c
a
lle
d
 f
u
tu
re
 t
h
re
a
t 
if
 n
e
w
 p
e
o
p
le
 

m
o
v
e
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 t
h
e
n
 w
h
y
 

h
a
s
n
't 
it
 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t?
 

Y
o
u
 c
a
n
't 
b
a
n
 b
u
s
e
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 m
ig
h
t 
g
e
t 
ru
n
 o
v
e
r.

A
s
 a
 g
a
rd
e
n
e
r 
o
f 
a
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 w
it
h
 o
v
e
r 
4
0
 t
re
e
s
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
ft
e
r 

w
h
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 I
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 e
v
e
ry
 

ti
m
e
 I
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
ru
n
e
 t
h
e
m
. 
T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w
e
ll 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r.
 A
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l,
 i
'm
 s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
a
x
 p
a
y
e
r'
s
 m
o
n
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
u
t 
to
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 n
a
n
n
y
 

s
ta
te
. 
D
o
n
't 
fo
rg
e
t 
y
o
u
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 f
in
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 

fo
r 
n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
ly
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
u
le
s
 b
u
t 
if
 a
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
s
 

d
e
m
o
lis
h
e
d
 o
r 
a
 t
re
e
 c
u
t 
d
o
w
n
 i
t 
is
 s
ti
ll 
lo
s
t 
fo
re
v
e
r.
 

A
s
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
G
ib
b
a
rd
 s
a
id
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

O
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
g
o
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 n
o
t 
o
n
e
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
u
rn
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 s
o
 c
o
n
tr
a
ry
 t
o
 h
is
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
t 
is
 a
 f
a
it
-a
c
c
o
m
p
li.

M
y
 a
n
s
w
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
s
 a
 

d
e
fi
n
a
te
 N
O
. 
I 
w
a
s
 b
o
rn
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 e
ig
h
ty
 

s
e
v
e
n
 y
e
a
rs
 a
g
o
 a
n
d
 a
m
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 a
 l
is
te
d
 

c
o
tt
a
g
e
 w
h
ic
h
 g
iv
e
s
 a
m
p
le
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

b
e
a
u
ty
 o
f 
o
u
r 
v
ill
a
g
e
. 

I 
d
o
 n
o
t 
w
a
n
t 
it
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 i
s
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
lly
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
lly
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
tl
y
 

s
o
c
ia
lly
 d
iv
is
iv
e
, 
im
p
o
s
in
g
 

re
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
ld
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
s
 b
u
t 
p
e
rm

it
ti
n
g
 l
e
s
s
 

re
g
u
la
te
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
t 

o
f 
th
e
 s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t.
 M
o
re
 r
e
c
e
n
t 

b
u
ild
in
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
, 

n
o
t 
fo
r 
it
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
m
e
ri
t,
 b
u
t 
to
 

p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
e
n
ti
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ie
ld
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
o
u
th
 o
f 
s
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 i
s
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
to
ry
. 
F
ie
ld
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 

a
n
d
 w
e
s
t 
re
m
a
in
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 

u
n
c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
l 
v
a
lu
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

v
ie
w
 o
r 
a
s
p
e
c
t.
 E
it
h
e
r 
a
ll 

s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ie
ld
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
r 
a
ll 
o
m
it
te
d
.

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
s
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
 o
f 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
re
a
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a
c
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ly
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 l
iv
e
 

h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
ju
d
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
s
s
e
t 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y
 l
iv
e
;m
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
m
 n
e
it
h
e
r 

n
e
e
d
 n
o
r 
w
a
n
t 
th
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
. 

D
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
m
p
lie
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
ro
u
b
le
 

to
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
n
ti
n
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
It
 i
m
p
lie
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
to
 C
D
C
 i
n
 

b
u
re
a
u
c
ra
ti
c
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

u
lt
im
a
te
ly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
o
s
t 
to
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 p
a
y
e
rs
.

A
s
 w
e
 a
re
n
't 
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 w
e
 l
iv
e
 n
 t
h
e
 

o
u
ts
k
ir
ts
 o
f 
s
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 t
a
lk
in
g
 

to
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
. 
I 
c
a
n
't 

s
e
e
 a
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
it
 e
v
e
ry
 o
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 c
a
re
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
it
.

W
e
 v
o
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 t
w
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 c
a
n
't
 s
e
e
 w
h
a
ts
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 I
 c
a
n
't
 s
e
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
w
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 h
a
p
p
e
n
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

a
re
a
's
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
n
't 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 a
llr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
d
o
e
s
n
t 
lo
o
k
 l
ik
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 h
o
u
s
e
's
 

a
t 
a
ll 
m
o
re
 l
ik
e
 t
o
w
n
 h
o
u
s
e
s
.

Page 65



It
 i
s
 d
iv
is
iv
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 i
s
 a
 l
o
v
e
ly
 v
ill
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 

s
o
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

A
re
a
 s
ta
tu
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 e
x
tr
a
 c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 

in
c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 m
a
y
 o
r 
m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

m
a
rg
in
a
l 
b
u
t 
w
h
y
 r
is
k
 u
n
in
te
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 c
le
a
rl
y
 n
o
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
.

1
. 
M
a
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 a
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 
C
D
C
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
it
 i
s
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2
. 
O
u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
C
D
C
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
n
ly
. 

P
a
ra
 2
.1
.3
 o
n
 p
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
th
e
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
C
 a
ls
o
 a
s
k
e
d
 C
D
C
 t
o
 

"d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
" 
a
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
. 
W
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
C
D
C
 h
a
s
 d
e
lib
e
ra
te
ly
 o
v
e
rs
te
p
p
e
d
 i
ts
 

b
ri
e
f.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3
. 

In
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
u
s
te
re
 d
a
y
s
 n
o
 p
u
b
lic
 b
o
d
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
n
y
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 

fu
n
d
s
 a
re
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
a
s
k
s
. 
M
a
k
in
g
 

S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
/A
lk
e
rt
o
n
 a
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 i
s
 a
 m
is
-

u
s
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 f
u
n
d
s
 a
s
 i
ts
 a
n
 e
n
ti
re
ly
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
. 
S
u
c
h
 a
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
c
a
rc
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 

w
it
h
s
ta
n
d
 a
n
y
 a
u
d
it
 o
r 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
.

A
w

a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 d

u
ty

 p
la

c
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
t 
fe

e
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
. 
A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 d

iv
is

iv
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
f 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
.

C
e
rt
a
in
ly
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
P
o
o
rl
y
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s

L
ik
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 I
 v
o
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
; 
in
 a
 d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 v
o
te
, 

a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
t 
to
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 C
A
 f
o
rc
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 u
s
 b
y
 a
 

m
in
o
ri
ty
 w
h
o
 c
h
e
rw
e
ll 
a
re
 p
a
y
in
g
 l
ip
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
.

T
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
e
s
 t
o
o
 

la
rg
e
 a
n
 a
re
a
. 
I 
d
o
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

w
h
y
 t
h
is
 C
A
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
I 
v
o
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
in
 

2
0
0
6
 i
n
 a
 b
a
llo
t 
o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 v
ia
 

C
D
C
. 
I 
d
o
 n
o
t 
th
in
k
 C
D
C
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 i
n
 c
h
a
rg
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
in
g
 t
h
is
 

b
e
a
u
ti
fu
l 
v
ill
a
g
e
. 
A
ll 
th
e
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
e
re
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 C
D
C
.

F
u
ll 
o
f 
e
rr
o
rs
, 
v
e
ry
 i
n
tr
u
s
iv
e
. 
I 
b
e
lie
v
e
 a
n
 

E
n
g
lis
h
m
a
n
's
 h
o
m
e
 i
s
 h
is
 c
a
s
tl
e
. 
W
h
a
t 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 i
s
 i
t 
o
f 
C
D
C
 o
f 
o
n
e
's
 w
a
ll 
is
 d
a
m
p
?
 O
r 

th
a
t 
fo
lia
g
e
 m
a
y
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 a
 w
a
ll.
 M
Y
O
B

N
B
. 
W
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
w
is
h
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 

o
f 
S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
!

N
o

W
e
 a
re
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 "
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
" 
in
 t
h
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
. 
It
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
u
rn
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t,
 t
h
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 "
b
a
d
 f
e
e
lin
g
s
" 
in
 t
h
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 t
o
o
. 
W
e
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 w
e
ll 

p
ro
te
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 p
a
id
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.

B
o
th
 m
y
 h
u
s
b
a
n
d
 &
 I
 w
is
h
 t
o
 

o
p
p
o
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 i
n
 S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n

Page 66



W
h
y
 a
re
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
C
D
C
 h
a
v
e
 

g
iv
e
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
5
 

y
e
a
rs
 n
o
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
?
 

W
h
y
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 p
la
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ie
ld
s
 i
n
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
, 
th
a
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 s
e
e
n
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 f
e
w
 

h
u
n
d
re
d
 t
re
e
s
?
 W

h
y
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 l
e
ft
 

o
u
t 
th
e
 h
is
to
ri
c
 l
y
n
c
h
e
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 

p
u
t 
in
 t
o
ta
lly
 f
la
t 
la
n
d
 w
it
h
 n
o
 

h
is
to
ri
c
 i
n
te
re
s
t?
 W

h
y
 n
o
t 
p
u
t 
a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 a
ro
u
n
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 

th
a
t 
C
D
C
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 6
0
s
/7
0
s
 t
a
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
n
t 

to
w
n
 h
o
u
s
e
s
?

W
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
e
 p
h
o
to
s
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
v
e
l?
 O
r 
L
o
n
g
 

A
c
re
?
 O
r 
th
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 t
ro
u
g
h
 o
n
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

g
re
e
n
?

N
ic
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
c
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 o
n
e
 f
a
ir
 b
a
llo
t 
in
 t
h
is
 v
ill
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

w
a
s
 7
1
%
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 C
A
. 
F
A
C
T
!!
 Y
o
u
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
n
 

u
n
fa
ir
 b
a
llo
t 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 b
u
lli
e
d
 i
n
to
 

s
ig
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
h
o
 s
ig
n
e
d
 a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 n
a
m
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
ff
 w
e
re
 i
g
n
o
re
d
. 
C
D
C
 

o
v
e
r 
s
ta
te
d
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
. 
 L
e
a
rn
 t
o
 

c
o
u
n
t.
 W

h
y
 b
a
llo
t 
a
 v
ill
a
g
e
 i
f 
y
o
u
 j
u
s
t 
ig
n
o
re
 t
h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
 w
h
e
n
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
n
't
 g
o
 y
o
u
r 
w
a
y
. 
W
h
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 w
e
 

s
it
 b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 l
e
t 
p
e
n
 p
u
n
c
h
in
g
 b
u
re
a
u
c
ra
ts
 i
m
p
o
s
e
 

la
w
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 l
o
o
k
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
ir
 g
a
rd
e
n
s
. 

W
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
s
e
c
t 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 t
o
 r
u
b
 s
a
lt
 i
n
 

th
e
 w
o
u
n
d
s
. 
B
ra
v
o
. 
V
iv
a
 L
a
 R
e
v
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 
A
ls
o
 i
t 
is
 

a
lw
a
y
s
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 g
o
 b
e
h
in
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
?
 I
f 
s
o
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 p
o
in
t 
in
 t
h
e
m
. 

S
u
re
ly
 y
o
u
 c
o
u
ld
 e
m
p
lo
y
 a
 f
e
w
 t
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
 m
o
re
 

p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
ft
e
r 
a
ll 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 i
s
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
lly
 

s
o
u
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n
. 
B
u
t 
o
h
 n
o
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
n
't 
m
a
tt
e
r 
to
 y
o
u
 

a
s
 y
o
u
 a
ll 
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
ta
te
. 
J
o
b
 f
o
r 
lif
e
. 
Is
 t
h
a
t 
o
k
 

fo
r 
a
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t

I 
a
m
 n
o
t 
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
 C
A
 i
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
, 
a
n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 o
b
je
c
t 
to
 i
ts
 

c
re
a
ti
o
n
. 
I 
b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
 l
is
ti
n
g
s
 

o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 T
P
O
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 

v
ill
a
g
e
. 
If
 t
h
e
 C
A
 i
s
 t
o
 g
o
 a
h
e
a
d
 I
 

th
in
k
 i
t 
is
 t
o
o
 l
a
rg
e
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
n
't 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 v
a
lle
y
 l
a
n
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

S
h
e
n
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 A
lk
e
rt
o
n
. 
O
r 
th
e
 

a
llo
tm
e
n
ts
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
K
e
n
h
ill
 

R
o
a
d
.

I 
th
in
k
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 g
iv
e
 m
o
re
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 

liv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 -
 a
 b
e
fo
re
 a
n
d
 

a
ft
e
r 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
o
o
d
 w
it
h
 s
o
m
e
 F
A
Q
s
 -
 e
.g
. 
I 
a
m
 

th
in
k
in
g
 o
f 
ta
k
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
w
a
ll 
u
p
s
ta
ir
s
, 

m
y
 h
o
u
s
e
 i
s
n
't 
lis
te
d
 b
u
t 
I 
a
m
 n
o
w
 i
n
 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
. 
B
e
fo
re
 'n
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
', 

a
ft
e
r 
'p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 p
a
y
 £
X
 a
n
d
 

w
a
it
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 w
e
e
k
s
.

I 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

g
re
e
n
 f
ie
ld
s
 a
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
?

Y
e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 a
p
p
a
u
lin
g
ly
 c
ra
s
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra
te
. 
If
 

th
is
 i
s
 w
h
a
t 
C
D
C
 d
o
e
s
, 
G
o
d
 h
e
lp
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 u
n
d
e
r 

a
 C
A

Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



P
a
g
e
 7

0



 

   

Executive  
 
 

Cherwell Rural Strategy  
 

2 February 2009  
 

Report of Head of Urban and Rural Services 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
To consider the final draft Rural Strategy and Delivery Plan, and to consider 
appointing a Rural Champion.  To commend the Rural Strategy and Delivery Plan to 
the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership. 
  
 

 
This report is public 

 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) To recommend to Council the approval of the final draft Cherwell Rural 

Strategy 2009-2014 and the Delivery Plan. 
(2) Approve the appointment of the Executive Member for Urban and Rural 

Services to lead the delivery of the Strategy as Cherwell District Council’s 
“Rural Champion”. 

(3) Commend the final draft Cherwell Rural Strategy 2009-2014 and the Delivery 
Plan to the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership. 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 The need for a Rural Strategy for Cherwell stems from the fact that Cherwell 
is predominantly rural in character and one third of the District’s people live in 
its 73 rural parishes.    

 
Proposal 
 
1.2 It is proposed that the Rural Strategy is agreed by the Council and the 

Cherwell Community Planning Partnership to provide a framework for 
improvement and support across Cherwell’s rural communities and 
countryside.   Whilst many of the actions will be led by this Council, it is a 
Cherwell area plan.  It flows from the Cherwell Community Plan (Cherwell 
Sustainable Community Strategy) and as such is owned by the Cherwell 
Community Planning Partnership.  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 71



 

   

Conclusion 
 
The Rural Strategy 2009-2014 and the Delivery Plan, which sets out detailed actions, 
will be part of the strategic framework that helps deliver the rural themes in 
Cherwell’s Community Plan. 
 

Background Information 
 
2.1 The Council’s restructure and the establishment of a small Rural and 

Countryside Team (2 full time equivalent staff) within Urban and Rural 
Services has enabled the profile of this area of service to be raised and for 
the Team to be the catalyst to start effecting change. However, this is only 
one part of the Team’s work with other key priority areas placing demands on 
the Team’s time which will limit capacity to deliver the actions that are set out 
in the Rural Strategy.  

 
2.2  This limited level of resource is one of the reasons why extensive consultation 

has been undertaken and why it is so important that the new Strategy is 
adopted by the wide range of organisations (including those represented on 
Cherwell Community Planning Partnership) that have an interest in rural life 
and the countryside of Cherwell. It will only be successful through the 
combined actions of all partners.  

 
2.3 The previous Cherwell Rural Strategy covered the period 2002-2006.   Since 

the 2002-2006 Strategy was written, national rural policies and delivery 
mechanisms have changed significantly.  The Council has also undergone 
considerable change with a refocus on key Strategic Priorities and a 
restructure into new Service Teams. 

 
2.4 During 2007 and early 2008, research was commissioned and a series of 

preliminary consultations were undertaken with key partners, agencies and 
individuals. Based on this evidence, principles, themes and issues were 
identified and a draft Strategy was written.   

 
2.5 In July 2008, the draft of an updated Rural Strategy was put out for public 

consultation (via the Council’s website).  Draft strategies and response forms 
were sent to all Cherwell parish councils, Cherwell councillors, all 
organisations belonging to the Cherwell Voluntary Organisations Forum and 
several other targeted groups and individuals. This consultation process 
came to an end in mid October 2008. 

 

Feedback and Strategy Development 
 
2.6 Executive received a report and draft of the Cherwell Rural Strategy 2009-

2014 at its December 2008 meeting, where the early emerging issues from 
consultation were reported. 

 

2.7       Since this report the consultation feedback has been collated, analysed and 
reviewed and the final draft Strategy presents the themes, issues, objectives 
and aims that have emerged from this and from the review of other strategies 
that impact on rural communities.  Overall the consultation results strongly 
endorsed the vision, underpinning principles and objectives of the draft 
Strategy.  However several issues were raised that have led to adjustments in 
the final draft and influenced actions set out in the Delivery Plan. 

Page 72



 

   

 
2.8       The overall Vision of the Strategy is to work towards “Inclusive, sustainable 

rural communities in an inclusive, sustainable countryside”.  The first draft of 
the Strategy did not explain or define this Vision, and some consultees 
commented that it was not meaningful.  The final draft Strategy defines an 
inclusive, sustainable rural community as an active community where 
everyone has the opportunity to participate and can access the services and 
facilities they need.  It defines an inclusive, sustainable countryside as a 
productive, economically viable countryside, where the needs of farming, 
conservation and development are appropriately balanced and where 
everyone has the opportunity to enjoy accessible outdoor recreation.   

 

2.9      The essential underpinning principle of the Strategy is “Rural Proofing”, a 
commitment to explicitly consider the rural dimension in all future strategic 
and service delivery plans.  The consultation returned 98% agreement with 
this principle.  In essence, Rural Proofing is ensuring equal opportunity in our 
rural areas. 

 
2.10     Several consultees made comments related to development planning and the 

Local Development Framework (LDF).  In the final draft of the Rural Strategy 
particular emphasis has been given to explaining the relationship with the 
LDF, both in the introductory section and within each applicable objective.  To 
provide a better fit with the LDF the issue of sensitive development has 
moved from Theme C to Theme E, so that landscape and built environments 
are within the same objective. 

 
Principles and Themes 
 
2.11     The Rural Strategy cuts across many service areas, so other strategies and 

plans may already be addressing related issues.   Linked strategies and plans 
are signposted under each objective set out in the Themes.  

 
2.12      The Strategy has five underpinning principles which are:  
 

1:  Rural Proofing – We will seek to ensure that the rural dimension is 
explicitly considered in the development of all future strategic and service 
delivery plans. 

 
2:  Locality Based Approach – We will develop a locality based approach, 

targeting resources at communities by reference to their particular needs. 
 
3:  Community Engagement – We will actively engage with and seek the 

views of rural residents and countryside users. 
 
4:  Vulnerable and Disadvantaged People – We will seek to ensure equitable 

access to services and facilities for vulnerable and disadvantaged people.  
Where possible we will reduce vulnerability and the effects of 
disadvantage.  

 
5:  Sustainability, Climate Change & Resource Use – We will seek to improve 

the sustainability of rural communities and the countryside, and to reduce 
the impact on climate change and natural resources. 

 
 
 

Page 73



 

   

2.13 The five main themes of the Strategy are: 
 

• Theme A: Improve Rural Services and Facilities  
       

• Theme B: Develop Thriving, Inclusive Rural Communities 
 

• Theme C: Provide Village Homes and Secure Village Infrastructure 
 

• Theme D: Support a Thriving Rural Economy 
 

• Theme E:  Preserve, Enhance & Increase Enjoyment of the Rural 
Environment. 

 
Delivery Plan and Strategy Review 
 
2.14     The Strategy document (attached to this report) is supported by a detailed 

Delivery Plan which sets actions with specific, measurable targets over the 
five year life of the Strategy.  Many are unique to the Rural Strategy, but 
some are carried across from other strategies and “rural proofed.”  Input to 
the detailed Delivery Plan has been made by many organisations and has 
been considered by the Executive Member for Urban and Rural Services. It is 
available in the members Room but is not attached to this report due to its 
size and complexity. 

 
2.15     Each year, performance against the Delivery Plan targets will be assessed, 

reported to the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership (CCPP) and 
published on the Cherwell District Council Website.   

 
2.16     Development of the Delivery Plan actions will be influenced by feedback from 

the CCPP, parish input, individual representations and changing 
circumstances.  New actions will be added, or existing ones amended to 
reflect successes, lessons learned, and new opportunities.  Once the Delivery 
Plan is published it is likely that the proposed actions will spark further 
suggestions from interested parties, and that these can be considered for 
inclusion as part of the annual review process.  
 

Following Executive consideration, it is intended to report the Strategy to the 
Cherwell Community Planning Partnership prior to implementation from April 2009. 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One Approve the Final Draft Strategy and Delivery Plan and 

appointment of the Executive Member for Urban and 
Rural Services to become the Council’s ‘Rural Champion’.  
Commend the final draft Strategy & Delivery Plan to the 
CCPP 

Option Two Propose further revisions to the draft and delegate final 
approval to the Executive Member for Urban and Rural 
Services. 
Propose an alternative Member as the Council’s Rural 
Champion.  

Page 74



 

   

 
Consultations 

 

 Extensive consultation with key agencies and partners 
has been undertaken (listed at appendix 1 of the Strategy)  

 
Implications 

 

Financial: There are no financial effects arising directly from this 
report. Delivery of the actions will require commitment 
from partners. Actions that are the responsibility of the 
Council will be developed through the 2009/10 and future 
years Service and Financial Planning process. 

 Comments checked by Karen Muir, Service Accountant 
01295 221545 

Legal: There are no issues arising from this report. 

 Comments checked by Liz Howlett, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services 01295 221686. 

Risk Management: There are no significant risks to the Council arising from 
this report. 

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management & Insurance Officer, 01295 221566 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
A District of Opportunity 
A Cleaner Greener Council 
A Safe and Healthy Cherwell 
An Accessible, Value for Money Council 
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor Nigel Morris  
Portfolio Holder for Urban and Rural Services 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

None  

Background Papers 

Final Draft Rural Strategy 2009-2014 (available in Members room) 

Draft Rural Strategy Delivery Plan 2009 /10 

Report Author Chris Rothwell, Head of Urban and Rural Services 

Kevin Larner, Rural Development and Countryside Officer 

Contact 01295 221712 

Page 75



 

   

Information chris.rothwell@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

01295 221706 

kevin.larner@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 76



DRAFT Cherwell Rural Strategy 
2009 – 2014

February 2009 
Final consultation draft  

Reader Notes 

- The first draft of the Cherwell Rural Strategy was consulted on between July 
and October 2008.  57 written responses were received and analysed, as well 
as many discussions with respondents, service delivery and CCPP partners. 
This final draft of the Rural Strategy is a revised version, taking this feedback 
into account. 

- Aims identified in this strategy are addressed through actions in the 
accompanying delivery plan (the draft 2009/10 Delivery Plan is appendix II to 
this document).  The delivery plan will be reviewed each year to assess 
progress and add new actions. 

- Please note that wherever Parish Councils are referred to in this strategy, this 
includes Parish Meetings, unless specified otherwise. 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………

CCPP Partner logos

Banbury & District Council for 
Voluntary Service 

Oxford & Cherwell Valley College 

Banbury Town Council 

Bicester Town Council 

Banbury & District Chamber of 
Commerce

Bicester Chamber of Commerce 

Kidlington Voice 

Cherwell District Council 

Oxfordshire Rural Community Council 

Oxfordshire Association of Local Councils 

Oxfordshire PCT 

Thames Valley Police 

Oxfordshire County Council 

Oxfordshire Economic Partnership 

Faith Forum 

Kidlington Parish Council 

Cherwell Community Planning Partnership

Page 1 of 38 Page 77



Page 2 of 38 

Draft Cherwell Rural Strategy – Contents

Foreword           3 

Executive Summary         3 

Introduction           4 

 Rural Cherwell Profile 

 Rural Priorities in Context 

 Community & Spatial Planning 

 Structure and Delivery of the Cherwell Rural Strategy 

Underpinning Principles         7 

 Principle 1: Rural Proofing  

 Principle 2: Locality Based Approach 

 Principle 3: Community Engagement 

 Principle 4: Vulnerable & Disadvantaged People  

 Principle 5: Sustainability, Climate Change & Resource Use  

Theme A: Improve Rural Services and Facilities     8 

 Objective 1: Retain & Improve Rural Services  

 Objective 2: Retain & Improve Village Facilities  

 Objective 3: Maintain & Improve Rural Transport Options 

Theme B: Develop Thriving, Inclusive Rural Communities   10 

 Objective 4: Support Parish Councils and Parish Democracy  

 Objective 5: Encourage Parish Planning & Community Engagement 

 Objective 6: Develop Recreational & Cultural Activities  

 Objective 7: Promote Health and Wellbeing  

 Objective 8: Improve Community Safety  

Theme C: Provide Village Homes and Secure Village Infrastructure  14 

 Objective 9: Provide Good Quality, Affordable Rural Homes  

 Objective 10: Work for Effective Infrastructure and Utility Services 

Theme D: Support a Thriving Rural Economy     16 

 Objective 11: Support Rural Jobs & Businesses  

 Objective 12: Encourage Tourism that Supports the Local Economy and 
Communities

Theme E: Protect, Enhance & Increase Enjoyment of     18 
The Rural Environment

 Objective 13: Protect & Enhance Biodiversity  

 Objective 14: Preserve & Enhance the Landscape and Rural Built Environments 

 Objective 15: Promote Enjoyment & Understanding of the Countryside 

Appendix I – Evidence Sources, Consultations and Background Documents 20 

Appendix II – 2009/10 Delivery Plan       25

Page 78



Page 3 of 38 

Foreword

The purpose of the Strategy is to provide a framework for improvement and support across 
Cherwell’s rural communities and countryside.  The Cherwell Community Planning 
Partnership’s overall vision for rural Cherwell is: 

 “Inclusive, sustainable rural communities in an inclusive, sustainable countryside”.

An inclusive, sustainable rural community is an active community where everyone has the 
opportunity to participate and can access the services and facilities they need.  An inclusive, 
sustainable countryside is a productive and commercially viable countryside, where the 
needs of farming, conservation and development are appropriately balanced and where 
everyone has the opportunity to enjoy accessible outdoor recreation. 

This is a strategy for the Cherwell area and whilst Cherwell District Council has a               
co-ordinating role, many of the specific actions will be taken by or in partnership with others.
Substantial elements of “self-help” are included, encouraging rural residents to take steps to 
improve their own communities.

A Delivery Plan sets out the detailed actions that will contribute to delivering the overall 
vision up to 2014.  It will be updated annually to reflect achievements and new initiatives.   
Rural communities are partners in delivering this strategy and their views and suggestions 
will be actively sought as delivery of this strategy progresses. 

Mary Harpley, Chair of Cherwell Community Planning Partnership 
Cllr. Nigel Morris, CDC Portfolio Holder for Urban & Rural Services 

Executive Summary
The need for a Rural Strategy for Cherwell stems from the fact that Cherwell is 
predominantly rural in character and one third of the District’s people live in its 73 rural 
parishes.  In order to keep rural communities and the countryside thriving, their specific 
needs must be assessed and addressed. 

A set of five underpinning principles sets out aims that apply across all parts of the strategy.  
The most important is “Rural Proofing” which is a commitment to examine and modify 
district-wide services and targets to ensure they will not unfairly disadvantage rural people or 
the countryside.  The other four are commitments to adopt a locality based approach and 
maintain community engagement, ensure fairness for vulnerable & disadvantaged people 
and have regard to the issues of sustainability, climate change and resource use. 

The main part of the strategy is arranged in five key themes, they are: A - Improve Rural 
Services and Facilities, B - Develop Thriving, Inclusive Rural Communities, C - Provide 
Village Homes and Secure Village Infrastructure, D - Support a Thriving Rural Economy, and 
E - Protect, Enhance & Increase Enjoyment of The Rural Environment.  These themes are 
divided into 15 objectives, setting out aims to address identified issues.  

In addressing issues such as economic development, recreation, community safety and 
biodiversity, the Rural Strategy shares common ground with other, more specifically focused 
strategies.  The value of this cross-cutting approach is to gather up the broad range of 
issues affecting rural communities and the countryside, and where necessary to add “rural 
proofing” actions and targets. 

Page 79



Page 4 of 38 

Introduction

Profile – Rural Cherwell
Two thirds of the population live in the urban centres of Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington.  
The remaining third (about 44,000 people) live in Cherwell’s 73 rural parishes 

The land area of Cherwell is predominately rural in character.  Its landscape is varied and of 
high quality in a mainly agricultural setting.  The River Cherwell and its valley form a 
distinctive central spine to the landscape, through which are routed the Oxford Canal and 
railway. The M40 motorway also runs through the district from north to south.  The 
landscape has four distinct character areas, the central Cherwell Valley, Ironstone Downs to 
the west of Banbury, Ploughly Limestone Plateau to the north of Bicester and flat Vale of 
Otmoor to the south.  

Cherwell has around 700 farms.  Compared to the rest of Oxfordshire, a higher percentage 
of land is used for permanent grass compared to arable and woodland.  Cherwell has the 
lowest percentage of woodland in Oxfordshire, which is itself the least wooded county in 
south-east England.  

Rural settlements range in size from the six smallest, totalling under 500 residents between 
them, to the six largest, with over 2,000 each.  Two thirds of Cherwell’s villages have 
populations of less than 500.  Unlike other Oxfordshire districts, there are no rural market 
towns to act as hubs for local rural economies. 

Most of rural Cherwell’s economically active residents commute to their workplaces.  Less 
than a quarter of them work within 5km of home.  However, rural Cherwell also has a 
relatively high proportion of home-based workers (28% of total rural workers, which is above 
the county and regional averages).  Car ownership overall is high, but the people most likely 
to be without a car are pensioners. 

House prices in rural Cherwell are high in relation to average earnings.  In the decade to 
2007 there was a trebling in the values of Cherwell’s cheapest (lowest quartile) market 
housing. The house price falls of 2008/09 have done little to improve affordability due to the 
accompanying economic decline and more cautious lending policies.  

Over the next 20 years the proportion of older people living in rural Cherwell is expected to
increase significantly.  The population group aged 75 and over is expected to grow by 81% 
over the period. This trend is similar to that expected nationally and is driven by increasing 
life expectancy and the current age profile of the population. 

Rural Priorities in Context
Since the publication of the previous Cherwell Rural Strategy in 2002, national rural policies 
and delivery mechanisms have changed significantly.  

The national Rural Strategy 2004 had cross-cutting themes of sustainability and of devolving 
rural responsibilities and delivery closer to rural communities.  It set out the Government’s 
three priorities for rural policy as: 

1. Economic and Social Regeneration – supporting enterprise across rural England, but 
targeting greater resources at areas of greatest need. 
2. Social Justice for All – tackling rural social exclusion wherever it occurs and providing fair 
access to services and opportunities for all rural people. 
3. Enhancing the Value of our Countryside – protecting the natural environment for this and 
future generations. 

Page 80



Page 5 of 38 

Also published in 2004 was “Planning Policy Statement 7 – Sustainable Development in 
Rural Areas” (PPS7).  This set out policies to guide regional and local planning authorities in 
preparation of their Spatial Strategies and Local Development Frameworks.   

In 2006 the Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act extended to all public 
bodies and statutory undertakers a duty to ensure due regard to the conservation of 
biodiversity across all their activities.  

In 2006 a partnership of organisations and local authorities began to develop a rural 
evidence base to inform local priorities in Oxfordshire. The resulting Oxfordshire Rural 
Framework (ORF) was published in July 2007. 

In June 2008 the Commission for Rural Communities (CRC) published a pamphlet titled 
“Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities”. It outlined the six key policy issues that the 
CRC regards as most important to the development of sustainable communities in rural 
England.  These are: 

1 - The economic potential of rural communities should be promoted and supported much 
more vigorously at all levels in order to provide a greater range of well paid, secure 
employment. 
2- Affordable housing remains a serious problem for rural communities despite decades of 
research, analysis and policy interventions. 
3 - Many rural services continue to decline. Although there are great opportunities for IT-
based services such as home shopping, or assistive technologies such as computerised 
health diagnoses, there is a longstanding trend towards the concentration of key facilities in 
urban areas. 
4 - Rural transport; there has been no convincing strategic approach to developing a more 
integrated transport system which links rural areas to wider regional and national networks. 
5 - Ensure that policies addressing climate change and the carbon challenge do not treat 
rural areas unfairly, and indeed recognise and promote the contribution which rural areas 
can make. 
6 - Cohesive, empowered and active communities in which people can influence the 
decisions that affect their locality are at the heart of the Government’s vision for Britain. We 
must ensure that the policies and processes for realising this vision really work for rural 
England.

Community & Spatial Planning 
The long term vision for the Cherwell area is expressed through the Sustainable Community 
Strategy (SCS) and the Local Development Framework (LDF). 

The SCS is, as its name suggests, primarily a communities plan, identifying objectives that 
will help residents and businesses to access services, prosper, live healthy lifestyles and be 
involved in their local communities. The Rural Strategy is one of a series of medium term (5 
year) plans which implement the themes and priorities of the Sustainable Community 
Strategy.

The LDF is a spatial plan, identifying (in line with the SCS vision and objectives) the types 
and amounts of development and infrastructure that will be appropriate in different parts of 
the district. The LDF identifies five key issues, all of which have a bearing on Rural Strategy 
objectives.
LDF Key Issue 1: The need to ensure convenient access to services and facilities 

LDF Key Issue 2: The need to protect and enhance Cherwell’s built and natural environment 

LDF Key Issue 3: The need to promote a prosperous and sustainable economy 

Page 81



Page 6 of 38 

LDF Key Issue 4: The need to ensure full and timely provision of housing, including  
       affordable housing 

LDF Key Issue 5: The need to promote the role of town centres and local shopping facilities 

For the LDF the idea of village clustering has been examined to help understand the 
relationships between villages that have physical, social and economic linkages with each 
other.   Some of these villages can have common needs and issues that could be jointly 
addressed in the interests of improving the access to services and facilities. This work is one 
way the LDF may be able to help deliver objectives in the Rural Strategy. 

Structure and Delivery of the Cherwell Rural Strategy
The evidence base for this strategy has been gathered from many sources, including local 
consultation events, the ORF, census statistics, national rural research evidence, survey 
data, Parish Plans and, as well as responses to a consultation on the first draft of this 
strategy.  A list of evidence sources, consultations and background documents can be found 
in appendix I

At the start, a set of five “Underpinning Principles” sets out cross-cutting aims that are 
addressed throughout the strategy.  The rest of the strategy is divided between five themes 
(A-E), each of which is divided into broad objectives.  Aims under each objective address 
specific issues.  

The broad ranging nature of this strategy means that other strategies and plans may already 
be addressing related issues.  Under each objective, strategies and plans with common 
ground are signposted. 

This strategy document is accompanied by a delivery plan which sets actions with specific, 
measurable targets over the five year life of the strategy.  Each year performance against 
the delivery plan targets will be assessed, reported to the Cherwell Community Planning 
Partnership and published on the Cherwell District Council Website.   

Development of the delivery plan actions will be influenced by feedback from the CCPP, 
Parish input, individual representations and changing circumstances.  New actions will be 
added, or existing ones amended to reflect successes, lessons learned, and new 
opportunities.   

To ensure access to national and regional rural development opportunities, the partnership 
will continue to engage with the South East Rural Forum and the Oxfordshire Rural Forum.  

Page 82



Page 7 of 38 

Underpinning Principles:
Supporting the vision of “Inclusive, sustainable rural communities in an inclusive, 
sustainable countryside” are five principles that run through all themes of the strategy. 

Rural Proofing 
Aim: We will ensure that the rural dimension is explicitly considered in the 
development of all future strategic and service delivery plans.  
The idea of “Rural Proofing” is to examine and modify services and policies to ensure they 
will not unfairly disadvantage rural areas.  Rural people should have fair access to services, 
even if they are not as simple or cost effective to deliver as they would be in urban locations. 
Organisations in the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership have many aims which apply 
across the district as a whole.  Some already take rural delivery into account, for others, 
interim rural measures are added via this strategy.     

Locality Based Approach

Aim: We will target resources at communities and areas by reference to their 
particular needs. 
Different communities in Rural Cherwell have different needs.  These will be influenced by 
many factors including location, population profile, village history and existing facilities.
Mapping the location of local services and facilities, as well as the people who might benefit 
from them, is an important first step to targeting support and action. 
Several targets in years 1 and 2 of the Delivery Plan are concerned with gathering and 
collating local information in order to inform subsequent delivery priorities. 

Community Engagement 
Aim: We will actively engage with and seek the views of rural residents and 
countryside users. 
Each of Cherwell’s rural communities rightly expects to have a role in defining and delivering 
its own improvement priorities.  Similarly the views and aspirations of farmers, countryside 
users and visitors will be important in developing a thriving, inclusive and sustainable 
countryside. 

Vulnerable and Disadvantaged People
Aim: We will seek to ensure equitable access to services and facilities for vulnerable 
and disadvantaged people.  Where possible we will reduce vulnerability and the 
effects of disadvantage. 
It is difficult to identify and support vulnerable people scattered in small numbers across rural 
areas; in some areas the lower numbers of people at risk require a more specific and flexible 
response appropriate to their needs. 

Sustainability, Climate Change & Resource Use 
Aim: We will seek to improve the sustainability of rural communities and the 
countryside. We will seek to reduce impact on climate change and natural resources. 
Sustainability in rural areas is a balance between potentially conflicting pressures: they 
include the requirements of current versus future residents, productivity versus “quality of 
life” and conservation versus development. 

Page 83



Page 8 of 38 

Theme A: Improve Rural Services and Facilities

Services and facilities available within villages have environmental benefits (fewer journeys 
required).  They also promote community cohesion and capacity by providing opportunities 
for social contact and recreational activities. 

The smaller a village is, the fewer permanent services and facilities are likely to be 
economically sustainable within it.  For residents of more isolated villages, opportunities to 
use centralised services and facilities can be severely curtailed if they do not have access to 
a car.  Village services and transport to access centralised services are issues raised in 
several Parish Plans. 

Government planning guidance advises local planning authorities that they should “adopt a 
positive approach to planning proposals designed to improve the viability, accessibility or 
community value of existing services and facilities.”  Research into the availability of services 
and facilities in all Cherwell’s villages has been undertaken for the LDF.  This is an important 
factor in determining where development could be located. 

Objective 1 – Retain & Improve Rural Services

Objective 2 – Retain & Improve Village Facilities 

Objective 3 -  Maintain & Improve Rural Transport

Objective 1 – Retain & Improve Rural Services 
Some village services might have a permanent location (e.g. village shop, pub, school, GP 
Surgery) whilst some may visit the village, either on demand (e.g. supermarket delivery 
services) or from time to time (e.g. Health bus, mobile library, outreach Post Office).  Visiting 
services may be self contained or they may require village facilities to operate from.  
Financial and information based services are increasingly available online. 

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Local Development Framework 

Issues Aims

The number of permanent 
services is declining, especially in 
smaller villages, but access to 
specialist business support and 
advice has helped some village 
shops to remain viable.   

1.1 - Support existing rural services to assist ongoing 
viability, and encourage the creation of new services. 

Older people and disadvantaged 
people are less likely to own 
computers, and correspondingly 
less likely to benefit from web-
based online services. 

1.2  - Support rural communities in implementing 
improved ICT access for older and disadvantaged 
people

Objective 2 – Retain & Improve Village Facilities 
Village facilities (e.g. village halls, churches, recreation fields, play and youth activity areas) 
act as focal points for community activities, formal and informal recreation, and can provide 
bases for mobile and outreach services.  The Cherwell Greenspaces Strategy and the 
Playing Pitches Strategy identify specific communities where shortfalls in recreation 
provision have been identified.

Page 84



Page 9 of 38 

In villages where development will take place, developer contributions can go some way to 
addressing facility shortfalls.  The Cherwell Recreation Strategy Action Plan contains several 
actions for improving specific village facilities.   

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Recreation Strategy, Cherwell Green Spaces 
Strategy, Cherwell Playing Pitches Strategy, Cherwell Local Development Framework

Issues Aims

Facilities for recreation, leisure and 
culture- including village halls, 
playgrounds and sports facilities are 
key parish plan issues. 

2.1 - Support rural communities to provide 
recreational & cultural buildings that meet local 
needs and comply with regulatory requirements. 

The Cherwell Green Spaces and 
Playing Pitch Strategies have 
identified shortfalls in allotments, play 
areas, courts and pitches in some 
parishes.

2.2 - Support rural communities to provide outdoor 
recreation facilities that meet local needs and 
comply with regulatory requirements.  

Objective 3 - Maintain & Improve Rural Transport
Increasing car ownership has brought benefits for many, but reduced the customer base for 
public transport.  For the majority of rural residents the private car is the main means of 
transport.  The minority who don’t have regular access to a car (usually those on lower 
incomes, older people and younger people) often face difficulty gaining access to facilities 
such as health, education, employment and commercial leisure. 

Signpost to related strategies: Oxfordshire Rights of Way Improvement Plan,  

Issues Aims

In smaller and more isolated villages 
scheduled public transport can be 
infrequent or non-existent. 

Community transport initiatives and 
voluntary village schemes could help 
to reduce transport disadvantage in 
some villages.

3.1 - Support & develop community transport 
initiatives alongside improvements to local public 
transport services 

Targeted Improvements to public 
rights of way between villages could 
improve access to services, facilities 
and public transport connections.

3.2 - Improve links between villages for walkers, 
cyclists and equestrians

Page 85



Page 10 of 38 

Theme B: Develop Thriving, Inclusive Rural Communities

A sense of community spirit is one of the most valued aspects of rural life, it is characterised 
by a concern for ones neighbours, and a willingness to contribute to community life.   A busy 
calendar of cultural, social and sporting events is an important characteristic of a thriving 
village community.

In rural areas there is a particular reliance on voluntary effort to create opportunities which in 
towns might be provided by public or commercial organisations. 

Objective 4 - Support Parish Councils and Parish Democracy 

Objective 5 – Encourage Parish Planning & Community Engagement 

Objective 6 – Develop Recreational & Cultural Activities 

Objective 7 – Promote Health & Wellbeing 

Objective 8 – Improve Community Safety 

Objective 4 – Support Parish Councils and Parish Democracy 
Parish Councils are the grassroots tier of local government and have roles to play in almost 
every theme identified throughout this strategy.   An active, engaged and representative 
Parish Council is a crucial ingredient of an inclusive, empowered and sustainable village 
community.

Issues Aims

People are likely to appreciate and 
engage with their Parish Council if it 
is seen to be reflective of the 
community, active in community 
development and responsive to local 
concerns.

4.1 - Support Parish Councils to fulfil their statutory 
functions and be responsive to community needs 
and aspirations. 

4.2 - Encourage people to participate in parish 
democracy

Many parish councils (especially 
smaller ones) struggle to adequately 
assess & respond to the volume of 
consultations, information and 
guidance that they receive from 
principal local authorities and 
statutory agencies.

4.3 - Work with Parish Councils to reduce the 
burdens of consultation and “red tape”.

Page 86



Page 11 of 38 

Objective 5 – Encourage Parish Planning & Community 
Engagement 

Creating a Parish Plan helps a whole community to decide what is important to it.  The key 
factor in parish planning is inclusiveness.  A real effort is made to involve the whole 
community.  It can help to foster community cohesion and interest in local democracy.  Once 
engaged by involvement with the Parish Plan, people may go on to contribute to other 
aspects of community life. 

Issues Aims

A completed parish plan lets everyone 
know what the community’s aims and 
priorities are, and who will be doing what to 
achieve them. 

5.1 - Encourage and assist communities to 
identify and address local needs through 
parish plans. 

A parish plan can distil and express 
concerns and aspirations with an 
unparalleled attention to local evidence.  
When several Parish plans are analysed 
they can highlight issues of common 
concern.

5.2 - Make effective use of parish plan data to 
inform community planning and the LDF. 

People are more likely to become engaged 
with community life if they can easily find 
out what is happening in the community. 

5.3 Deliver improved community information 
to rural communities, including through the 
development of online services 

Objective 6 – Develop & Promote Recreational & Cultural Activities
A busy calendar of cultural, social and sporting events is an important characteristic of an 
inclusive and sustainable village community.  The Cherwell Recreation Strategy Action Plan 
contains many specific actions for sport and recreation developments in Cherwell villages. 

Signpost to Related Strategy: Cherwell Recreation Strategy 

Issues Aims

Around 10,700 people in Cherwell are 
active volunteers giving £5m per annum in 
voluntary labour 
Voluntary organisations can be important 
to the culture and social cohesion of rural 
communities.  They often provide services 
and opportunities that could not be 
delivered commercially. 

6.1 - Support the voluntary infrastructure and 
individual voluntary groups in Cherwell’s rural 
communities

The opportunities presented by village 
organisations (e.g. local history group, 
morris side, cricket team, scout group, 
gardening club amateur dramatic society 
etc.), enable villagers to form and maintain 
social bonds with one another.  Regular 
participation in sport can help to improve 
and maintain health 

6.2 Provide and support recreational and 
cultural activities in rural communities. 

6.3 Increase participation in community based 
recreational & cultural activities 

Page 87



Page 12 of 38 

Objective 7 – Promote Health & Wellbeing 
People who live in rural areas are subject to the same illnesses, conditions and disabilities 
as urban dwellers.  The rural population is relatively thinly spread over a large area though, 
making access to healthcare and advice more of a challenge for providers and potential 
recipients.  Analysis of unpaid carers by age shows a difference between rural and urban 
Cherwell, with a higher proportion of older people living in rural areas providing unpaid care 
to spouses or family members 
The Cherwell Joint Public Health Strategy recognises the need to specifically target health 
outreach services to rural areas 

Signpost to Related Strategy: Oxfordshire Joint Public Health Strategy  

Issues Aims

It can be difficult to identify and 
support vulnerable people 
scattered in small numbers across 
rural areas.  Where it is not 
practical to deliver healthcare to a 
rural location, consideration must 
be given to how a rural patient 
might access central facilities and 
services. 

7.1 - Ensure local Health Care and Social Service 
Provision meets the needs of the local population 
particularly in relation to local accessibility

Healthy lifestyle choices should be 
available to all. 

7.2 - Promote and support healthy lifestyle choices for  
Cherwell’s rural residents 

Page 88



Page 13 of 38 

Objective 8 - Improve Community Safety 

Official crime figures show that Cherwell District as a whole experiences low levels of crime 
compared with similar areas in the Thames Valley and South-East England.  Analysis of 
police data by parish shows that most crime recorded in Cherwell is concentrated in the 
urban areas. 

Most road casualties in Cherwell occur on ‘A’ class roads in rural areas.  Road safety issues 
are addressed in detail in the Oxfordshire Road Safety Strategy. 

Climate change brings an increased risk of extreme weather events.  Some of Cherwell’s 
Rural communities may want to consider emergency planning measures in anticipation of 
flooding or other identified risks. 

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Community Safety Strategy, Oxfordshire Road 
Safety Strategy 

Issues Aims

Consultations and Parish Plans 
consistently show that policing, 
crime and anti-social behaviour are 
concerns for residents across rural 
Cherwell.

The perception of crime in rural 
Cherwell doesn’t match the low 
level of crime recorded 

8.2 Reduce crime and fear of crime

8.2 Reduce isolation and vulnerability 

Parish Plans and Neighbourhood 
Action Group Priorities show that
residents of rural Cherwell are 
concerned about speeding vehicles 
and dangerous driving 

8.3 - Improve road safety 

In rural areas community action 
may need to be the first response 
to an emergency situation.  

8.4 – Increase community preparedness for potential 
emergencies

Page 89



Page 14 of 38 

Theme C: Provide Village Homes and Secure Village 
Infrastructure

Planning Policy Statement 7 advises local Planning Authorities that “The key aim is to offer 
everyone the opportunity of a decent home. The needs of all in the community should be 
recognised, including those in need of affordable and accessible, special needs housing in 
rural areas.”  It also states that “All development in rural areas should be well designed and 
inclusive, in keeping and scale with its location, and sensitive to the character of the 
countryside and local distinctiveness.”  The detailed local application of these principles will 
be dealt with in the Cherwell LDF. 

Objective 9 – Provide Good Quality, Affordable Rural Homes 

Objective 10 – Ensure Effective Infrastructure and Utility Services 

Objective 9 – Provide Good Quality, Affordable Rural Homes 
In the ten years to 2007 the cheapest (lowest quartile) market housing in Cherwell more than 
trebled in price.  Properties in Rural Cherwell tend to cost more than those in urban areas.  
Even with a fall in property prices, open-market housing will still be out of reach for many 
rural families.  The house price falls of 2008/09 have done little to improve affordability due 
to the accompanying economic decline and more cautious lending policies. 

Affordable housing includes social-rented and intermediate (e.g. shared ownership) housing
provided to specific eligible households whose needs are not met by the market.  On new 
housing sites in villages a percentage of the new homes will be affordable housing and will 
be allocated to eligible people who have expressed a preference for a village home. 
Permission can sometimes be granted for affordable housing on sites that would not 
otherwise be released for housing.  A local need for ‘rural exception sites’ must be 
demonstrated and arrangements put in place to reserve the housing for local people.  

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Housing Strategy, Cherwell Homelessness 
Strategy, Cherwell Local Development Framework 

Issues Aims

Affordable housing, especially for 
local families is consistently identified 
as a priority in Parish Plans and local 
consultations. 

A housing needs survey carried out 
for Cherwell District Council in 2004 
recommended that 141 new 
affordable housing units per year 
were needed across rural Cherwell.

9.1 - Secure housing growth that meets Government 
targets and the needs of the District through an 
appropriate mix of market and affordable housing 

In Cherwell it is older homes and 
homes in villages that are most likely 
to be unfit.  In rural Cherwell there is 
an ageing population, pointing to an 
increasing need for adaptations and 
improvements. 

9.2 - Improve the standard of housing, particularly for 
vulnerable people

People in rural areas can experience 
accommodation difficulties or 
homelessness just like urban 
dwellers, but they may find it more 
difficult to access the appropriate 
advice and support 

9.3 - Ensure advice and support services to prevent 
homelessness and help tenancy sustainment.

Page 90



Page 15 of 38 

Objective 10 – Work for Effective Infrastructure & Utility Services 

Reliable utilities are important to the wellbeing of residents and the efficiency of local 
businesses. 

Signpost to related Strategies: Cherwell Economic Development Strategy 

Issues Aims

Local consultation has identified 
utility services as a particular issue 
for some of Cherwell’s rural 
residents.  Certain villages have a 
perception of suffering unduly from 
power outages and other problems 
with utility services.

10.1 - Address local concerns over the reliability of 
electricity supply 

Distance from telephone exchanges 
can mean that broadband internet 
access is slow or unavailable in some 
villages

10.2 Address local concerns over the speed and 
availability of broadband internet 

Page 91



Page 16 of 38 

Theme D: Support a Sustainable Rural Economy

There is a strong interdependence of activities within the countryside - particularly the key 
relationships between farming, tourism and recreation.   Rural Cherwell has a relatively low 
business density compared with the regional rural average.  However, the level of home-
based working is above the average for Oxfordshire and the South-East.  Local employment 
and enterprise have social and environmental benefits, reducing car commuting and 
increasing the potential for community involvement.  The need to promote a prosperous and 
sustainable economy is identified as a key issue in the Cherwell LDF.

Objective 11 – Support Rural Jobs & Businesses 

Objective 12 – Encourage Tourism that Supports the Local Economy and  
         Communities 

Objective 11 – Support Rural Jobs & Businesses 
Farming employment in Oxfordshire has declined by almost 20% since 1990, however 
farming remains of vital importance to Cherwell’s rural identity.  In order to remain viable 
many farms are diversifying into tourism, recreation, food retail and other types of business. 

PPS7 advises that planning authorities should ”…be supportive of well-conceived farm 
diversification schemes for business purposes that contribute to sustainable development 
objectives and help to sustain the agricultural enterprise, and are consistent in their scale 
with their rural location.”  The Cherwell LDF will set out polices which allow and encourage 
appropriate farm diversification schemes. 

As well as land based businesses requiring a countryside location, the Cherwell Economic 
Development Strategy recognises that, 'light touch' industries, especially in the creative 
sphere, will continue to be attracted to rural locations, taking advantage of communications 
connections to remain fully engaged in the economy while enjoying social and environmental 
advantages.

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Economic Development Strategy, Cherwell Local 
Development Framework 

Issues Aims

Diversified businesses have a high discontinuation 
rate, suggesting a need for start-up advice and 
ongoing support and guidance. 

11.1 - Develop and promote initiatives 
to support farm diversification and the 
development of the rural economy

Increasing locally grown food will reduce the need 
for imports and the associated “food miles”, and 
also support local farm businesses.   

11.2 – Increase the value of local food 
and products and develop new 
markets. 

Home working offers potential benefits and 
opportunities for local rural communities including 
reduced outward commuting and potentially 
increased involvement in local community 
activities and services. 

11.3 - Support home-working and 
encourage home-workers to participate 
in community life. 

Lack of people with the relevant skills can cause 
recruitment difficulties for employers in rural areas.  
The role of traditional rural skills is significant in 
maintaining the natural and historic environments. 

11.4 - Improve access to skills 
development 

Page 92



Page 17 of 38 

Objective 12 – Encourage Tourism that Supports the Local 
Economy and Rural Communities

Cherwell’s rural tourism strengths are its distinctive rural characteristics, the Oxford Canal, 
and the range of outdoor leisure opportunities.   The economic value of tourism to North 
Oxfordshire in 2006 was estimated at £250 million.   

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Tourism Plan, Cherwell Economic Development 
Strategy, Cherwell Local Development Framework 

Issues Aims

Cherwell’s Tourism Plan focuses on 
balancing the preservation of the 
local environment against generating 
tourism trade and economic wealth  

12.1 - Encourage sustainable tourism

Local communities are a key 
resource for tourism employment as 
they hold valuable information and 
skills that can create added value 
during a visitor’s stay. 

12.2 – Increase tourists’ engagement with rural 
communities and  businesses 

Page 93



Page 18 of 38 

Theme E - Protect, Enhance and Increase Enjoyment of the 
Rural Environment

Objective 13 - Protect & Enhance Biodiversity 

Objective 14 - Preserve & Enhance The Landscape & Rural Built Environment 

Objective 15 - Promote Enjoyment & Understanding of the Countryside 

Agricultural production used to be by far the most important factor determining the character 
of the countryside. Increasingly, biodiversity, landscape conservation and recreation are 
growing in importance, with the role of farming broadening to encompass them.  
Development in Cherwell’s villages and countryside must strike a balance between 
potentially conflicting pressures: they include the requirements of current versus future 
residents, a balanced community versus “quality of life”, and conservation versus 
development.  The need to protect and enhance Cherwell’s built and natural environment is 
a key issue for the Cherwell LDF, and it gives detailed consideration to these issues. 

Objective 13 - Protect & Enhance Biodiversity & the Natural 
Environment

In 2006 the Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act extended to all public 
bodies and a duty to ensure due regard to the conservation of biodiversity across all their 
activities. There has been strong uptake of the Environmental Stewardship scheme, which 
pays farmers for conservation activities and sustainable practices. 

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Environmental Strategy, Cherwell Biodiversity 
Action Plan, Cherwell Local Development Framework 

Issues Aims

The Cherwell Biodiversity Action 
Plan identifies actions needed to 
protect and enhance habitats and 
species that are particularly 
important within the district. 

13.1 - Work with biodiversity partner organisations to 
deliver the Cherwell Biodiversity Action Plan 

Over three quarters of Cherwell’s 
countryside is under agricultural land 
use, but land owned by Parish 
Councils, churches, local trusts and 
individual householders can also 
have significant biodiversity potential 

13.2 - Support farmers, landowners and local 
communities to protect and enhance the biodiversity 
of the Cherwell countryside

The effects of climate change on 
biodiversity and landscape will be 
most noticeable in rural areas.   

13.3 – Support projects that reduce or mitigate the 
effects of climate change

Page 94



Page 19 of 38 

Objective 14 - Preserve and Enhance the Landscape and Rural Built 
Environment

Cherwell’s combination of diverse landscapes and villages is rich in historic character.  It is 
an economic asset (which helps to attract skills, income, businesses and visitors) and is 
valued highly by its residents. 

Signpost to related strategies: Cherwell Local Development Framework, Cherwell 
Biodiversity Action Plan 

Issues Aims

The need to preserve and enhance a 
village’s historic character is consistently 
mentioned in Parish Plans. 

14.1 – Preserve and enhance Cherwell’s 
rural built environments

Cherwell’s countryside is valued by residents 
and is key to the preservation of biodiversity. 

14.2 – Protect and enhance Cherwell’s  
distinctive landscape characteristics and 
countryside

Objective 15 - Promote Enjoyment and Understanding of the 
Countryside 

Improving access to and understanding of the countryside helps to fulfil aims relating to 
health and tourism as well as recreation.   

Signpost to Related Strategies: Cherwell Greenspaces Strategy, Oxfordshire Joint Public 
Health Strategy, Cherwell Recreation Strategy, Cherwell Tourism Plan, Oxfordshire Rights of 
Way Improvement Plan 

Issues Aims

The Cherwell Greenspaces Strategy 
recommends that access to natural and 
semi-natural greenspace should be 
increased.

15.1 - Make it easier for people to enjoy 
healthy recreation in the Cherwell 
countryside 

15.2 – Explore the potential for establishing a 
country park 

Cherwell has over 600 miles of public rights 
of way; they are the main means by which 
people get a countryside experience of the 
district.

15.3 - Improve access to a well maintained, 
joined up and improved rights of way and 
countryside network.  

Interpretation of features, sites and routes 
can help to educate and inform users and 
enhance the user experience.   

15.4 - Support & promote initiatives to 
improve public understanding of biodiversity, 
landscape and the countryside.  

Page 95



Page 20 of 38 

Appendix – I 
Consultations, Information Sources and Background Documents 

Consultation Events 
The list below outlines consultations that contributed to the development of the Cherwell 
Rural Strategy. 

19 July 2007 – Consultation workshop event for Parish Councils at CDC Bodicote  
   House (32 attendees representing 22 parishes) 

18 September 2007 – Consultation workshop event for delivery partner organisations
    at Exeter Hall, Kidlington (36 attendees representing 18 partner  
    organisations) 

18 June 2008 – Progress briefing and Q&A session at Cherwell Parish Liaison meeting 

15 July 2008 – Launch of public consultation on first draft strategy, (publication of draft 
   strategy on Cherwell DC website, sent to all Cherwell Parishes, all Cherwell 
   DC Councillors all members of Cherwell Voluntary Organisations Forum,  
   partner organisations and individuals 

01 October 2008 – Close of public consultation on first draft strategy (56 responses
         received) 

03 December 2008 – Rural Priorities Challenge  – Oxfordshire Rural Forum Steering  
             Group (peer challenge based on CRC policy priorities) 

In addition to these events there have been many discussions with service delivery partners, 
parish representatives and individuals. 

Page 96



Page 21 of 38 

Information Sources 
The list below outlines data sources used in scoping and writing the strategy. 

Title Description Source

Consultation responses Feedback from consultation 
on the first draft Rural 
Strategy

Consultation and 
analysis  by CDC 

Rural Cherwell – Overview of 
Statistics 2007

Discussion paper based on 
national and local statistics 

Research commissioned 
by CDC from MM 
Consulting

Oxfordshire Rural Framework Research paper and draft 
policy framework 

Oxfordshire Rural Forum 

West Oxfordshire & Cherwell 
Rural Strategies – a Critique of 
the Summary of Evidence  

Policy based analysis of the 
statistical overview and 
Oxfordshire Rural 
Framework

Research commissioned 
by CDC from 
Gloucestershire
University

Improving Rural Reach Report on BME communities 
in Rural Oxfordshire 

Report of research 
project by ORCC 

Community-led Plans in 
Oxfordshire: their potential 
contribution to strategic 
planning

Report of research into 
Oxfordshire Parish Plans 

Research commissioned 
by Oxfordshire 
Partnership from Glos. 
University

Cherwell District Council 
Customer Satisfaction Survey 
2008

Analysis of rural residents’ 
responses to CDC’s 
customer satisfaction survey 

Research commissioned 
by CDC from Oxford 
Research Agency 

West Oxfordshire & Cherwell 
Partnership Local Development 
Strategy 2008 

Bid document (jointly with 
WODC) for European rural 
development funding 

Cherwell & West 
Oxfordshire District 
Councils

South East Parish Plan Actions 
Database

A database of all proposed 
actions from published 
Parish Plans in south-east 
England

South East Rural 
Partnership? 

Cherwell Tourism Development 
Study 2008 

Analysis of existing and 
potential tourism in Cherwell 

Research Commissioned 
by CDC from The 
Tourism Company 

Rural Economies Recession 
Intelligence 2008 

Briefing paper for Minister for 
Environment, Food & Rural 
Affairs

Commission for Rural 
Communities

Planning Policy Statement 7 National policy statement on 
development in rural areas 

ODPM 

Page 97



Page 22 of 38 

Background Documents 
The list below outlines national and regional publications that have provided ideas or helped 
to set the context for the Cherwell Rural Strategy. 

Title Description Source

The Taylor Report – Living, 
Working Countryside 
July 2008 

National Review of Rural 
Economy & Affordable 
Housing

Matthew Taylor MP 

Planning Policy Statement 7 National policy statement on 
development in rural areas 

ODPM 

A Charter for Rural Communities Final report of the Carnegie 
Commission for Rural 
Community development 

Carnegie UK Trust 

Strong Counties and Vibrant 
Rural Communities 

National report on County 
service delivery to rural 
communities

County Councils Network

Rural Challenges, Local Solutions Report on the DEFRA “Rural 
Pathfinders” project 

DEFRA

Rural Strategy 2004 National Rural Strategy for 
England

DEFRA

South East Rural Delivery 
Framework 2006 

Regional rural delivery 
framework for south-east 
England

South East Rural 
Partnership 

Local Strategic Partnership and 
Community Strategy Rural 
Checklist

Rural Proofing checklist for 
rural Local Strategic 
Partnerships 

The Countryside Agency 

Health, Place and Nature 
Report into the health 
benefits of countryside 
recreation

Sustainable
Development 
Commission 

The Potential of England’s Rural 
Economy

Parliamentary report into the 
potential of England’s rural 
economy

House of Commons 
Environment, Food & 
Rural Affairs Committee 

Thinking About Rural Transport National Discussion paper Commission for Rural 
Communities

Participation Inquiry – 
Strengthening the role of Local 
Councillors

Report & recommendations 
on the role of local 
councillors in rural areas. 

Commission for Rural 
Communities

Planning for Sustainable Rural 
Communities – The Big Picture 

An assessment of the main 
policy challenges for rural 
communities

Commission for Rural 
Communities

Page 98



Page 23 of 38 

Local Plans and Strategies Related to the Cherwell Rural Strategy 
Below are listed strategies and plans published by Cherwell Community Planning 
Partnership and its partner organisations.  Each document has a relationship to the Rural 
Strategy and is “signposted” under one or more of its objectives. 

Title

Cherwell Community Plan (currently being revised into Cherwell 
Sustainable Community Strategy) 

Cherwell Local Development Framework (currently under development) 

Cherwell Environmental Strategy for a Changing Climate 2008 - 2012 

Cherwell Green Spaces Strategy 2008 - 2016 

Cherwell Playing Pitch Strategy 2008 - 2016 

Cherwell Community Safety Strategy 2008 - 2011 

Oxfordshire Road Safety Strategy & Plan 2008 - 2009 

Cherwell Recreation Strategy 2007 – 2012 

Oxfordshire Joint Public Health Strategy 2007 – 2012 

Cherwell Economic Development Strategy 2007 - 2011 

Cherwell Homelessness Strategy 2007 - 2011 

Oxfordshire Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2006 – 2011 

Cherwell Tourism Plan  2006 - 2011 

Cherwell Housing Strategy 2005 - 2011 

Cherwell Biodiversity Action Plan 2005 - 2010 

Page 99



Page 24 of 38 

This page is intentionally blank

Page 100



Page 25 of 38 

Appendix II – Delivery Plan 2009/10 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

Theme A - Improve Rural Services 
& Facilities 

1 - Retain and 
improve rural 
services

1.1 Support existing rural 
services to assist ongoing 
viability, and encourage the 
creation of new services 

Delivered through 
ORCC Village shops 
development worker 

Support the retention and 
development of village shops with 
professional advice & guidance to 
rural retailers. 

Target & measure 
to be determined 
during 2009/10 as 
part of ORCC SLA 

ORCC, 
CDC 

Delivered through 
ORCC Village shops 
development worker 

Through grant aid, support rural 
shops to develop their businesses 

1 business 
development p.a. 
supported 

ORCC, 
CDC 

Current delivery 
through Rural Access to 
Services  Programme 
(RASP)

Draw on regional development 
funding to implement new, 
improved or replacement services 

1 new service in 
2009/10 

ORCC, 
CDC 

1.2 Support rural 
communities in implementing 
improved ICT access for 
older and disadvantaged 
people

Assess patterns of ICT need, 
investigate best practice & develop 
targets for delivery subsequent 
years

Needs assessed & 
best practice 
investigated.
Delivery target & 
measure for 
2010/11 

CDC 

2 - Retain and 
improve
village
facilities

2.1 Support rural 
communities to provide 
recreational and cultural 
buildings that meet local 
needs and comply with 
regulatory requirements.

Through CDC's 
Community Hall, 
Recreation & Sports 
Facilities grant 

Support and improve 
community/village halls through 
grant aid funding 

8 Halls funded in 
2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



Page 26 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

2 - Retain and 
improve
village
facilities

Delivered through 
Oxfordshire Rural 
Community Council 

Provide a professional advice and 
guidance service to village hall 
managers (to include accessibility, 
safety, employment, maintenance, 
funding) 

Target & measure 
to be determined 
during 2009/10 as 
part of ORCC SLA 

ORCC 

2.2 Support rural 
communities to provide 
outdoor recreation that 
meets local needs and 
complies with regulatory 
requirements.

Delivered through 
Oxfordshire Playing 
Fields Association 
(OPFA) Community 
Development Officer 

Provide professional advice and 
guidance to rural communities on 
the development and maintenance 
of play and sport facilities  

Target & measure 
to be determined 
during 2009/10 as 
part of OPFA SLA 

OPFA,
CDC 

Through CDC's 
Community Hall, 
Recreation & Sports 
Facilities grant 

Support and improve village play 
and multi activity areas through 
grant aid 

7 play/multi activity 
areas funded in 
2009/10 

CDC 

Through CDC's 
Community Hall, 
Recreation & Sports 
Facilities grant 

Support and improve village sports 
facilities through grant aid 

5 village sports 
facilities funded in 
2009/10 

CDC 

3 - Maintain & 
improve rural 
transport
options

3.1 Support & develop 
community transport 
initiatives alongside 
improvements to local public 
transport services  

Investigate the potential, through 
Practice Based Commissioning, for 
a volunteer car scheme to access 
health related services. 

Potential
investigated and 
reported on during 
2009/10 

PCT, CDC 

Work with bus companies to align 
public transport services with local 
needs. 

Target & measure 
to be determined 
during 2009/10  

OCC,
ORCC, 
CDC 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

3 - Maintain & 
improve rural 
transport
options

3.1 Support & develop 
community transport 
initiatives alongside 
improvements to local public 
transport services  

Promote information about 
community transport schemes, 
targeted at the people and groups 
most likely to benefit from them 

Target & measure 
to be determined 
during 2009/10 

ORCC, 
CDC 

3.2 Improve links between 
villages for walkers, cyclists 
and equestrians 

through the OCC/TOE 
"Places for People" 
grant scheme 

Improve public rights of way routes 
between villages  

two funded 
improvement 
projects in 2009/10 

OCC, CDC 

Theme B - Develop Thriving, 
Inclusive Village Communities 

4 - Support 
Parish
Councils and 
Parish
Democracy

4.1 Support Parish Councils 
to fulfil their statutory 
functions and be responsive 
to community needs and 
aspirations. 

Create and maintain a “Virtual 
Parish Clerk” web portal to be a 
central information resource for all 
Cherwell Parish Councils. 

Initial version online 
& promoted to 
Parishes by end 
May 2009. Gather 
feedback & develop 
during 09/10 

CDC 

Encourage Parish Councils to attain 
"quality parish" status 

Programme & 
subsequent 
actions/targets 
agreed during 
2009/10 

CDC, 
OALC,
PCs 

Continue to organise the twice 
yearly Parish Liaison meetings 

2 meetings pa. 
>75% satisfaction 
rating

CDC 

Provide training opportunities to 
Parish Councillors and Clerks 

6 training courses 
during 2009/10 

OALC,
CDC, PCs 

Page 27 of 38 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



Page 28 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

4 - Support 
Parish
Councils and 
Parish
Democracy

4.2 Encourage people to 
participate in parish 
democracy

Action begins in 2010/11 (Assess 

baseline of parish council seats that 
were contested at their last election)

CDC 

4.3 Work with Parish 
Councils to reduce the 
burdens of consultation and 
“red tape”. 

2008/09 corporate plan 
action "Coordinated 
forward plan web-based 
consultation with 
parishes"   

Co-ordinate and forward-plan 
consultations with Parishes. Agree 
protocols for timescales and 
formats. 

Forward plan 
published, protocols 
negotiated and in 
place by end of 
March 2010 

All CCPP 
Partners

5 - Encourage 
Parish
Planning and 
Community 
Engagement

5.1 Encourage and assist 
communities to identify and 
address local needs with 
Parish Plans.

Provided through 
Oxfordshire Rural 
Community Council 
(ORCC) Community 
Development Worker 

Provide professional advice and 
guidance to Parish Plan groups 

No. of Parish Plan 
meetings attended 
& draft plans 
assessed.  Baseline 
2008/09 

ORCC 

5.2  Make effective use of 
Parish Plan data  

Analyse and respond to all 
completed Parish Plans, offering 
assistance and signposting 
opportunities as appropriate. 

No. submitted, No. 
responded to 

CDC, 
ORCC, 
OCC

Action starts in 2010/2011 (Establish 

publicly accessible database of parish 
plan actions, to aid identification of 
patterns and issues of common 
concern)

ORCC, 
OCC, CDC 

5.3 Deliver improved 
community information to 
rural communities, including 
the development of online 
services  

  Action & target from 
Corp Plan.

Support the development of village 
websites 

Four new websites 
to include Parish 
Council and local 
events information 

CDC, PCs 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
4



Page 29 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

5 - Encourage 
Parish
Planning and 
Community 
Engagement

Encourage Rural recreation & 
cultural providers to promote their 
events through CDC's new on-line 
"What's On?" guide 

Establish baseline 
& determine targets 
for subsequent 
years.  Measure = 
No. of events per 
year.

CDC 

6 - Develop & 
Promote
Recreational & 
Cultural
Activities

6.1 Support the voluntary 
infrastructure and individual 
voluntary groups in 
Cherwell’s rural communities 

Action carried over from 
2002/06 Rural Strategy 

Increase rural representation on the 
Voluntary Organisations Forum 

Promote the 
Voluntary
Organisations 
Forum at the 
November 2009 
Parish Liaison 
Meeting

CDC, 
BDCVS

6.2 Provide and support 
recreational and cultural 
activities in rural 
communities.

Corp Plan aim "Provide 
community facilities & 
activities to meet local 
need" refers 

Deliver and develop the "Live and 
Local" programme of rural touring 
arts events. 

30 performances 
during 2009/10 

CDC, PCs 

Corp Plan target. Main 
delivery through 
"Energise” sport 
roadshow holiday 
schemes.   

Provide formal and informal 
recreation opportunities for rural 
young people 

850 opportunities in 
2009/10 

CDC, PCs 

Action starts in 2010/2011 (Develop 

suitable villages as "Rural Sports 
Hubs")

CDC 

6.3 Increase participation in 
community based 
recreational & cultural 
activities

Corp Plan target 
2009/10 is for district as 
a whole.  Same target 
for 2010/11 & 2011/12.  

Increase the numbers of rural older 
people participating in group 
activities by 3%  

Baseline 2008/09.  
Measure=  No. 
participating 

CDC 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



Page 30 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

6 - Develop & 
Promote
Recreational & 
Cultural
Activities

Offer support and encouragement 
for villages entering the Calor 
Village of the Year competition 

Determine the most 
useful forms of 
potential support.  
Develop follow on 
actions for 2010/11 
onwards 

CDC, 
ORCC 

7 - Promote 
Health & 
Wellbeing 

7.1 Ensure local Health Care 
and Social Service Provision 
meets the needs of the local 
population particularly in 
relation to local accessibility 

Take healthcare/support providers 
to older people, particularly using 
the Cherwell Health Bus to provide 
a regular range of services. 

Baseline 2008/09.  
Measure = No. of 
rural people 
accessing 
healthcare via 
Cherwell Health 
Bus 

PCT, CDC 

7.2 Promote and support 
healthy lifestyle choices for 
all Cherwell residents  

Corp Plan action under 
aim "Make it easy for 
you to lead a healthy & 
active life through our 
countryside…"  Same 
target for 2010/11 & 
2011/12 

Help increase participation in active 
recreation {among Cherwell's rural 
residents} 

Target 1% increase.  
Measure= Sport 
England annual 
Survey

CDC 

Corp Plan action under 
aim "Make it easy for 
you to lead a healthy & 
active life through our 
countryside…"  Same 
target for 2010/11 & 
2011/12 

Increase the number of new 
walkers participating annually in 
local rural health walks by 10% 

10% increase on 
2008/09 baseline 

CDC, PCT 

8 - Improve 
Community 
Safety 

8.1 Reduce crime and fear of 
crime 

Narrow the gap between reported 
crime and perceived crime by 
improving access to local crime 
figure information 

Publish parish by 
parish crime 
statistics on the 
new "Cherwell CSI" 
website by July 
2009

CDC, TVP 

Narrow the gap between reported 
crime and perceived crime by 
making crime reporting easier. 

Facilitate and 
promote online 
reporting of minor 
crimes via the new 
"Cherwell CSI" 
website by July 
2009

CDC, TVP 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
6



Page 31 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

8 - Improve 
Community 
Safety

 8.1 Reduce crime and fear 
of crime 

Increase awareness of 
neighbourhood Action Groups and 
rural community policing - Reports 
received and action taken. 

Neighbourhood 
policing reports 
published in 10 
Parish Magazines/ 
websites during 
2009/10 

CDC, TVP 

Increase the percentage of rural 
residents who, when asked, say 
they feel safe at home and in the 
community

Target=79%   
Measure =District 
Survey or Place 
Survey

CDC, TVP 

Action from Corp Plan 
refers to district wide 
target of 10 actions.   

Bring forward community safety 
initiatives arising from Cherwell's 
rural Neighbourhood Action Groups 

3 initiatives in Rural 
Cherwell

CDC, TVP 

Increase membership and coverage 
of rural Neighbourhood Watch and 
Farm Watch schemes 

Baseline and target 
established in 
2009/10 

CDC, TVP 

8.2 Reduce isolation & 
vulnerability

Aim from Health 
Strategy.  Suggested 
action by KL 

Action starts in 2010/2011 
(Investigate best practise & consider 
setting up "good neighbour" schemes in 
Cherwell Villages)

CDC, PCT, 
PCs 

8.3 Improve road safety 
From OCC Road Safety 
Strategy

Support speed reduction measures 
at locations where excessive traffic 
speeds cause community concern 

No. requested, No. 
granted 

OCC

From OCC Road Safety 
Strategy

Analyse accident records to identify 
where revised speed limits may be 
helpful to improve safety, and 
appropriate given the character of 
the road. 

No. of sites 
identified, No. of 
speed limits revised 

OCC

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



Page 32 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

8 - Improve 
Community 
Safety

8.4 increase community 
preparedness for potential 
emergencies

Establish protocols and templates 
for Parish Emergency Plans 

Best practise 
investigated.
Subsequent actions 
& measures to 
follow.

CDC, OCC 

Action starts in 2010/2011 
(Encourage Cherwell Parishes to adopt 
and maintain Emergency Plans)

CDC, 
OCC, PCs 

Theme C - Provide Village Homes & 
Secure Village Infrastructure 

9 - Provide 
Good Quality, 
Affordable
Rural Homes 

9.1 Secure housing growth 
that meets Government 
targets and the needs of the 
District through an 
appropriate mix of market 
and affordable housing  

Aim is from Corp Plan.   
Survey housing need in rural 
communities and bring forward 
affordable housing schemes. 

4 need surveys and 
2 schemes during 
2009/10 

CDC, 
ORCC 

Increase the number of affordable 
village homes available to people 
with a local connection 

Review rural 
exceptions delivery 
and report to Parish 
Liaison meeting 
during 2009.  
Further actions to 
follow in 
subsequent years. 

CDC 

9.2 Improve the standard of 
housing, particularly for 
vulnerable people.

Aim & action from Corp 
Plan.

Invest in better quality housing for 
vulnerable people in rural cherwell 

Undertake a private 
sector stock 
condition survey in 
2009/10.  Further 
actions to follow on 
in subsequent years

CDC  

P
a
g

e
 1

0
8



Page 33 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

9 - Provide 
Good Quality, 
Affordable
Rural Homes

9.3 - Ensure advice and 
support services to prevent 
homelessness and help 
tenancy sustainment. 

Deliver home-based housing advice 
to people who find it difficult to 
travel to town for appointments. 

Measure & target to 
be established 
during Yr1 

CDC 

10.1 - Address local 
concerns over the reliability 
of electricity supply 

Investigate the reliability of 
electricity supply in Rural Cherwell 

Monitor outages in 
6 rural locations 
over a six month 
period 

CDC 
10 - Work for 
Effective
Infrastructure
and Utility 
Services

10.2 - Address local 
concerns over the speed and 
availability of broadband 
internet

Continue to work on making 
broadband connectivity universally 
accessible across the District. 

Indicator: Number 
of communities 
without broad-band 
quality access to 
the internet. Target 
(2011): 0 

CDC 

Assess broadband speed across 
rural Cherwell 

Monitor upload and 
download speed at 
6 rural locations at 
various times of day 
during 2009/10 

CDC 

Theme D - Support a Thriving Rural 
Economy 

11 - Support 
Rural jobs and 
Businesses

11.1 - Develop and promote 
initiatives to support farm 
diversification and the 
development of the rural 
economy

Support farmers and rural 
businesses with one to one 
business development advice and 
guidance on funding options. 

10 advice sessions 
to rural businesses 
during 2009/10 

CDC 

Promote development opportunities 
to farmers and rural businesses in 
association with Business Link 

20 attendees at 
Business Link rural 
business seminars 
during 2009/10 

CDC 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



Page 34 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

11 - Support 
Rural jobs and 
Businesses

11.2 - Increase the value of 
local food and products and 
develop new markets.

Review support for the Berkshire, 
Buckinghamshire & Oxfordshire 
Food Group 

Support reviewed in 
2009/10.  Resulting 
actions to follow in 
subsequent years.  

CDC 

Continue to support and promote 
the Farmers Markets at Banbury, 
Bicester & Deddington 

Monthly farmer's 
market held at each 
location through 
2009/10 

CDC 

Action in 2010/11(Investigate

establishing a Farmers' Market at 
Kidlington)

CDC, KPC 

11.3 - Support home-working 
and encourage home 
workers to participate in 
community life 

Based on Env Strat 
target No.73 Scale 
down & make CDC 
target for HR? 

Action in 2010/11 (Study a number of 

home-workers to provide case studies 
of successes and issues relating to 
implementing rural home-working.)

CDC 

11.4 - Improve access to 
skills development  

Identify the skill needs of 
employers.  

Undertake and 
analyse county-
wide skills survey 
during 2009/10 

CDC,OEP 

 Assess the need for specifically 
rural skills and crafts (e.g. 
Hedgelaying, stone walling, 
woodland management) 

Identify training 
providers and the 
potential market 
during 2009/10 

CDC 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
0



Page 35 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

12 - 
Encourage 
Tourism that 
Supports the 
Local
Economy and 
Communities

12.1 - Encourage 
sustainable Tourism 

Based on Tourism plan 
action

Promote walk & ride routes to 
increase visitor awareness of the 
countryside as a resource for 
leisure activity. 

All CDC routes 
promoted on & 
downloadable from 
the "visit North 
Oxfordshire" 
website 

CDC, OCC 

12.2 – Increase tourists’ 
engagement with rural 
communities and
businesses 

Expand and promote the "Eating 
Out" section of the "Visit North 
Oxfordshire" website 

15 rural pubs / 
restaurants 
promoted 

CDC 

Theme E - Protect, Enhance and 
Increase Enjoyment of the Rural 

Environment

13 - Protect & 
Enhance
Biodiversity 

13.1 - Contribute to a net 
gain in Cherwell's 
biodiversity

Deliver & Update the Cherwell 
Biodiversity Action Plan 

2009/10 Annual 
Delivery Plan and 
2008/09 review 
published on 01 
April 2009 

CDC 

Delivery by TVERC 
under terms of SLA with 
CDC 

Provide sites, species and habitats 
data to inform planning decisions. 

Updated data 
collated and 
digitally distributed 
during 2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

Delivery through Local 
Wildlife Sites Project  

Identify new areas of nature 
conservation value. 

1 new area 
identified in 2009/10

CDC 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



Page 36 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

13 - Protect & 
Enhance
Biodiversity

Corp Plan Action 
Action in 2011/12 To establish an 

accessible community woodland on the 
edge of Bicester

CDC 

13.2 - Support farmers, 
landowners and local 
communities to protect and 
enhance the biodiversity of 
the Cherwell countryside  

10 Surveys target is 
from Corp Plan.  
Provided through Local 
Wildlife Sites Project 
and Thames Valley 
Environmental Records 
Centre

Provide support and advice to 
owners of designated Local Wildlife 
Sites 

10 surveys & 8 
advisory visits 
during 2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

Provide support and advice to local 
communities on the management of 
land with existing/potential 
biodiversity interest 

5 community 
advisory visits 
undertaken during 
2009/10 

CDC 

Provided through 
Farming & Wildlife 
Advisory Group 
(FWAG) and 
Oxfordshire Woodland 
Project respectively. 

Provide support and advice to 
farmers and landowners on the 
management of land with 
existing/potential biodiversity 
interest

12 farm advisory 
and 5 woodland 
advisory visits 
undertaken during 
2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

13.3 - Support projects that 
reduce or mitigate the 
effects of climate change 

Action in 2010/11 (Support, where 

appropriate, local renewable energy 
production, including wood fuel, wind 
and solar energy.)

CDC 

14 - Preserve 
& Enhance the 
Landscape & 
Rural Built 
Environments

14.1 - Preserve and 
enhance Cherwell's rural 
built environments 

Regularly update Conservation 
Area appraisals to inform planning 
decisions 

7 rural conservation 
areas appraised 
during 2009/10 

CDC 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
2



Page 37 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

14.2 – Protect and enhance 
the  distinctive 
characteristics of Cherwell’s 
landscapes 

Part of the Parish of 
Epwell is within the 
Cotswold AONB 

Protect and enhance the Cotswold 
Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty.

Continued support 
for the Cotswolds 
Conservation Board 
during 2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

15 - Promote 
Enjoyment & 
Understanding
of the 
Countryside 

15.1 - Make it easier for 
people to enjoy healthy 
recreation in the Cherwell 
countryside 

Continue to publish, distribute and 
keep updated Cherwell District 
Council's 12 walks booklets and 
four riding route booklets in printed 
and electronic form 

Wholesale orders 
fulfilled within 10 
days.
Amendments & 
warnings posted on 
website within two 
days of notification 

CDC 

Monitor and maintain Cherwell 
District Council's 16 promoted walk 
and bridleway routes 

Each route walked 
and waymarked  at 
least once during 
2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

Publish detailed accessibility 
information for all CDC promoted 
recreational routes and countryside 
sites. 

Information
published on 
website by March 
2010

CDC 

Corp Plan Action
First action is in 2010/11 (Establish & 

promote new recreational routes)
CDC 

15.2 - Explore the potential 
for establishing a country 
park

Suggested by Green 
Spaces Strat & LDF 

First action is in 2010/11 (Identify 

potential sites and funding sources for a 
new Country Park.  (subject to final 
LDF)

CDC 

15.3 - Improve access to a 
well maintained, joined up 
and improved rights of way 
and countryside network.  

Analyse the public rights of way 
network to identify missing or poor 
quality links which could be 
improved to benefit public access. 

Analysis and 
prioritisation 
completed in 
2009/10.  Follow on 
actions in 
subsequent years 

OCC

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



Page 38 of 38 

Objective Aim Comment Action 2009/2010 Measure/ Target 
Delivery
Partners

15 - Promote 
Enjoyment & 
Understanding
of the 
Countryside

North Oxfordshire 
Canal Partnership 

Assess the need for improvements 
to the Oxford Canal towpath, which 
might eventually form a ‘spine’ for 
other radial routes. 

Assessment 
completed in 
2009/10.  Follow on 
actions in 
subsequent years 

OCC, CDC 

Improve the accessibility of 
Cherwell's promoted circular walk 
routes, to enable more people to 
enjoy the countryside 

6 improvements in 
2009/10 

CDC, OCC 

15.4 - Support & promote 
initiatives to improve public 
understanding of 
biodiversity, landscape and 
the countryside.

Organise and promote a 
Countryside forum to discuss 
issues of interest and concern 

Attendance >50, 
satisfaction rating 
>75%

CDC 

Delivered through 
Oxfordshire Rural 
Education Initiative 
("Kids on Farms"), 
Warriner School Farm 
and RSPB Otmoor 

Support initiatives that educate 
children about agriculture, 
biodiversity and rural life 

 Number of farm 
and reserve visits 
per year for 
Cherwell schools. 
Baseline and target 
to be established in 
2009/10 

CDC 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



 

Executive  
 
 

Oxfordshire 2030  
 

2 February 2009  
 

Report of the Chief Executive 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To adopt Oxfordshire 2030, Oxfordshire’s Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) To recommend to Council for adoption Oxfordshire 2030, Oxfordshire’s 

Sustainable Community Strategy, as a key strategic document for Cherwell 
District Council 

 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 Oxfordshire 2030, the Oxfordshire Sustainable Community Strategy, sets out 
a strategic vision for Oxfordshire.  The themes, priorities, pledges and actions 
that it contains should be acceptable to Cherwell District Council as it will be 
responsible for contributing to their delivery.  Oxfordshire 2030 is attached as 
Appendix 1 and the Delivery Plan as Appendix 2. 

 
1.2 Oxfordshire 2030 provides a vision for the future of Oxfordshire and 

consequently will be critical to determining future Local Area Agreements. It 
has, therefore, potentially significant financial implications. 

 
1.3 The Executive considered a draft of Oxfordshire 2030 at its meeting on 1 

September 2008. The majority of the comments made then have been 
incorporated into this final version. The responses to our comments are set 
out in Appendix 3. 

 
Proposals 

1.4 Executive Members are asked to adopt Oxfordshire 2030 as one of the key 
strategic documents for Cherwell District Council. 

 
Conclusion 

Agenda Item 9

Page 115



 

1.5 Oxfordshire 2030 is a key strategic document for the District. 

Page 116



 

 
Background Information 

 
2.1 Local authorities have a duty to prepare a Sustainable Community Strategy.  

The role of the Sustainable Community Strategy is to set out the strategic 
vision for a place.  It provides a vehicle for considering and deciding how to 
address difficult cross-cutting issues such as the economic future of an area, 
social exclusion and climate change. Oxfordshire Partnership, the Local 
Strategic Partnership for Oxfordshire, has developed Oxfordshire 2030 

 
2.2 Oxfordshire 2030 is a key strategic document for the whole of Oxfordshire.  

The new Local Area Agreement is based on it, as will future agreements be..  
Local Area Agreements potentially  have significant amounts of funding 
associated with them.   

 
2.3 Other key documents created by other public sector agencies in Oxfordshire 

will need to take account of Oxfordshire 2030, including our new Sustainable 
Community Strategy for Cherwell.  There is an expectation (and in our case a 
duty) of all of the key partners within Oxfordshire (the County Council, District 
Council, Police, Primary Care Trust, Health Authorities, voluntary and 
community sector, colleges and businesses) to embrace the messages within 
the Strategy and align themselves to help deliver it. 

 
Oxfordshire 2030 is important to Cherwell because: 

 

• It should reflect the priorities identified in the Cherwell Community Plan, 
and visa versa 

• Evidence for future Local Area Agreements will be based on it 

• Our Local Development Framework will need to demonstrate strong links 
to it 

• Cherwell District Council has to ‘have regard’ to the Oxfordshire 
Sustainable Community Strategy and also has a ‘duty to co-operate’ to 
agree relevant targets in the Local Area Agreement 

• Cherwell District Council will be one of the partners who will contribute to 
delivering it 

 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 Acknowledging that Oxfordshire 2030 is a countywide document and as such 

can’t reflect all of Cherwell’s issues, does Oxfordshire 2030 reflect the 
priorities for the District? 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One To adopt Oxfordshire 2030, Oxfordshire’s Sustainable 

Community Strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



 

Consultations 

 

Cherwell Community 
Planning Partnership 

Considered the consultation document at its meetings on 
17 July and 18 September.  The views of Executive were 
reported to the 18 September meeting and agreed. 

Executive Considered the consultation document at its meeting on 1 
September.  The responses to comments made are 
included in Appendix 3. 

 
Implications 

 
(Financial, Legal and Risk and other implications e.g. Equalities, Human Resources, 
Data Quality and Environmental where relevant) 
 

Financial: Oxfordshire 2030 itself has no financial effects.  However, 
it should be noted that it will be used as the evidence 
base and set priorities for future Local Area Agreements.  
If Oxfordshire 2030 does not reflect Cherwell’s priorities 
there is a real danger that they will not be included in 
future Local Area Agreements and consequently will not 
get funding.  While there is still uncertainty about the level 
of funding that will be available and how it will be 
distributed, it is important to note that the sums involved 
could amount to millions of pounds. 

 Comments checked by Sarah Best, Senior Accountancy 
Assistant 01295 221736  

Legal: Cherwell District Council is required by law to "have 
regard" to Oxfordshire 2030. This means that our policies 
should not be in conflict with it or inconsistent with it. If 
they were this could be grounds for a successful 
challenge.   

 Comments checked by Liz Howlett, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services/Monitoring Officer 01295 221686  

Risk Management: By not contributing to Oxfordshire 2030 there is a 
possibility that priorities are set for Oxfordshire that don’t 
reflect priorities in Cherwell.  The Strategy could commit 
the Council to delivering actions that either it may not 
agree to or it does not consider a priority.   

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management and Insurance Officer 01295 221566 

CAA Implications Under the new Comprehensive Area Assessment (which 
replaces Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
(CPA)), it is expected that Cherwell’s contribution to 
priorities set within Oxfordshire 2030 will be formally 
assessed. 

 Comments checked by Mike Carroll, Head of 
Improvement 01295 227959  

 
 
 

Page 118



 

Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
All 
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor Wood   
Portfolio Holder for Policy and Community 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 Oxfordshire 2030 

Appendix 2 Oxfordshire 2030 Delivery Plan 

Appendix 3 Oxfordshire 2030 – Responses to Executive Comments 

Background Papers 

 

Report Author Helen Couperthwaite, Community and Corporate Planning 
Officer 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221751 

Helen.couperthwaite@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 119



��������	�
��
�

���������	
��������
��

�����������������

�
���
�������
���	
���

Page 120



��������	�
��
�

���������	
��������
��

�����������������

�
���
�������
���	
���

Page 121



���
����� � � � � � �

��������	�
��
�
� � � � � �

���
������	�����������	�
� � � �

���	�	���������
������
� � � � �


�
�	�
�	����
������ � � � � ��

�����	������� 
��
��!��"
������	�
#� � ��
�
�����������$� � �

%�����"�����
"���&'� � � � ��

(
����'��������	�	���"�&&��	�	
�� � ��

)��	���&
�������"�	&��
�"����
� � ��

*
��"	���	�
+���	�	
������ �
�$	��� � ��
��
�"'"�
�����
!�	���	��� �

,�"����	��	�"�	�
�
��� � � � �


-�
��
��� � � � � � ��

������� � � � � � ��

.�������������	�
� � � � � �


/��
����%�	�
�(���
� � � � ��

%
�����������	�
� � � � � �0

(���"���1��
��	�����
�2� � � � 3�

4
& 
���	!������
���������	�
�� � 3�
�����
���	!

5������'� � � � � � 33

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 �

��������

Page 122



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
�

�6��*�.(1*)��
�
�	�
��	7�
�������
��	����
�!���������
�"����
��
����"	�����������	�
���
����
�

�
����
8�'
���9�1���
�������������:�
�&��	�	���������������	�
;�������
9������	�	���	������& 	�	������
<

��� ����� ��� �	
�� �
���������� ��� ��� �����
����� ���� ���� ���
�����

��������� �����	
��
�� �
����
��
�� 	
�� ��	����� ��� ������ ���

��� 	� ��	��� ������ ������
�� �	
� ��	����� ������ ����
��	���

��
�������� ��� 	
�� ��
� ��� ����� ���
����� ����������� 	
��

������ ������� 	��� 	�������� �
������� �
� ������ ���	�� �����
�����!

=�	�������
�'����� 

���
�
��!
�� '���
���������	�
������
���	!���� 
����������
�!
�!�
��	�	���

�������$	���	����������	�
9�=�
�!����
���	!� �	�������
��
��!
�!�
����&���������	�
;��&����

	�>��
��	��������	���	������������!�������"$�
���
�	���
���������
�	&!������������"���!
�!�
9�

��������	�
��
�
�	��� ����!����
���	!����$	��9�1������ 

���
�
��!
����������
��
��	�
�

"��������	�������"���� ����	��������	��� 
��
������'��
�	
�
�������!���
�9�

=�	��	�����	�
��
�����"����	���"����'9�=�
�
���
�!�"$
�������
!�	���	����&������!���!
�����

"�&&��	�	
�?���
��������������	����������� 
���'�������
�������	��	7�"��������	�������

"�&&
�"	����
�
��!&
��9�������������
��#�&��$
�������������������	��
������
��	��
�
�����"���

	�
��	�	
�#�"����
��
������!�	��	�	
�9�1��"���
+�
�"
���	�������
�'��

$������
"���	�
� �����

!�	��	�	
����	�����
"���	�	���������"�	����

�������
>�
"����
��

������������"���"�&&��	�	
�9�

%�
���
���	�
������������"�&&����	&�#��
�"����"�	
�
�����
����
������$	������
��
�9�=�	��

�����
�'�!���	�
����
����&
���$������!!����!����
���	!��"�	��9�%
����
��
����������$
'�!�
��
��

��������
��������	���!� �	����
��	����������'����������""
�������
���
�	���"�	
�	�����
&9

����	��


�����
�������
���

���
����������

-��	�&��������
���������	�
������
���	!�����

,
��
�������������	�
�-����'�-���"	�

������������

-��	�&���-�
��
���

-�&&��	�'������	��������
���	!�����-�	
��

)�
"��	�
�-�
��
����	���	"��-���"	�

����������
��

���������-��	�&���

.�������������	�
������
���	!�����@	���!����

���"�
��
�

���������

���������

-��	�&���/��
������
���	!�����/	"������5���


���

����
���

1��
�	&�-��	�&���

%
�����������	�
�.����
�	"������
���	!�����

-�	
��)�
"��	�
�%
�����������	�
��	���	"��

-���"	�

��� 
��!
�
����
�

-��	�&��

�������.����
�	"������
���	!�����(
������

�����
���	!������)+���	�	
�#���������	�
��-=Page 123



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 �

�6��*�.(1*)��
�
�	����.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�'�.����
�'9�1���
�������������:�
�&��	�	�������

��������	�
;�������
9�"����#�
�
���
����<

-�
��
���������"�����
"���&'�������������	�
� �	��	���!���	"�����'������
��	����
"���
"���9

(��
��
����'��������	�	���"�&&��	�	
�9�%
��������������	�������	�������� ��������"	�'#�

�����������	����
�� ���������
�!���������
��

��������
������"
����'�	�"���	�����
�	&!�"��

����
&����!�	"������	�
��'�
�"����
�9

,��$����
������
��	���&
��������
�!���������
����
������"�	&��
�"����
�������
�!��
��	���

����&��
�
���
&
��
���
��"���	�	���9�=�
����
������>����	���	����!���	"�����"��"
��9

@�
�$���
�"'"�
�����
!�	���	��� '�����
��	�����
��
�
�
���	����

�������	���������
��

"�&&��	�	
�?��
��"	�����
���!� 
��

����
� 
�����������������������!!���	���!
�!�
����

&��	&	�
���
	�����
����������	�
���
	����!	���	���9�

=�
������
�'�������
���!!�������������
�$
'���������'���
�"	
��	����
�"����'�����
������

��������'����� ��	�
����
"����
�����
&
��9�����
�!
"���	���	�������$
'���
�"	
���	����
>�
"��

��
��	�	�������!�	��	�	
��	����
	������"��!����
�!���������	����
	���
����"
�����"��	�������
�


����
�������
��
�	�
����
��	�	��9

�����������	����
���
�����	
���������
����

������"���������	�	
�����
������'�������$��	���!����
�������	���	�������!����"
���.����	�� �
�

-�&&��	�'�.����
�'�A�����"�&
�����	"���
&�������
��������"��������	���	����������
�"	
��

�	������$����
��
�����	&!���
���
�
"���&	"#���"	�������
��	���&
������
��: 
	��������
	����
�9�

$���������������#�
�������
��	
��
��������������%

���"
�A���
�
�����	����������
���
�
��!&
����	��� 
�"��"
�����
�9

4�B�����
&
��A�,���
�'�"
���
�����
"���&	"�����"�&&��	�'��
��� 
	��9

-�����"���	���	���
��A�=�"$�	���	�
+���	�'#��
�!���	������"�	&��
�"����
����������	�� 	�	�'�

A�
����	�������������!!���"�����	&!���	�������
"���&'#�
��	���&
�������"�&&��	�	
��

��$
���""����������
��

����������:�
�&������	�� �
������	����A�����
��&!�
<��	�	����	��	��

����
��	���&
�����&
���������"�	����������
�!�"�&&��	�	
����� 
�&��
��
�	�	
��������
��:

��!!���	��9

"&'��
��
���()*)

Page 124



��
�����������
�����

�����

=�
����$�����
�
��!	�����������	�
��
�
����� 

����$
����� '���
���������	�
������
���	!�

��	"���
!�
�
����!� �	"#� ��	�
���������������'��
"����	��
�
�������&��"�������
�"����'9�

=�
���������	�
������
���	!�	����
���
�:��"�	��������
�	"�!����
���	!�������
�"����'�����

!���	�
����
����&������
��	�����
������
�	"��	�	���������
�"����'���������"�!���	�����
�

�	�	���	����
�.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�'�.����
�'9�=�
�
���
��	&	����!����
���	!������
�"��

�	���	"��������
	�������
�	
���	���!	"$��!�&��
��
��	�
��	���
��������"��������
��

��������"���

"�&&��	�	
�9

$���#�
����+���
�����'�����"&'��
��
���,��������
��

���<

=���
�
��!���������	�
��
�
�:���.����	�� �
�

-�&&��	�'�.����
�'�������������	�
9

=�����
����
��!����
���	!����$	������
����
������


�
�'��
�	�����$	���	����
���&
������
�	"��	�
"�	��#�

����	����
����"
�#�	����&��	�������
�!
��	�
��������
���

$
'�	���
��������"���!�	��	�	
�9

=��!��&��
�
+���	�'#��
�!
"�������	�
��	�'�����	&!���
�

��
�+���	�'�����	�
�����
�
�'��
������	�
��	�#����$��	�#�

����	�	�����������	�
9�

=�
�
�	�
�"
<

1���
�
��!	�����
������
�'#���
�!����
���	!����$
�������
�

����:�
�&���"	��#�
"���&	"�����
��	���&
�������
���#�

	���
���������
��!��������������
�	
�����
"�	�����
������
�

�����
�"����'9������	���	�������&���
�!����
���	!#�	�"���	�����
�!��	"
#��
������
��	"
�#�

 ��	�
��
�#���
���������'�����"�&&��	�'��
"���������
�
"�
��&
& 
��������"���"���"	���

�
�
�	��	�
�����
�
����	���

������
 ��
���
�	&!�	"��	���������
�
���
���9�=�
'���
�����

��

!�	��	�	
�������"�	��������	�
��"��������	����	�����
�!� �	"9

.

���
��
 �	�
�����&��
�	����&��	��������
����
������
���������	�
������
���	!�������
�

�
�
��!&
��������
������
�' 			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 

� ��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


Page 125



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 �

����
��
�
�'��#��
��������������
����
�
�������''���
���"&'��
��
�������'���
����

����	���
���			-�&'��
��
�������������-
�'�

��������	�
�	����"����'���	�
��	���
��
�!�	�
#��
���	��������	����'9�1������ 
"�&
�

	��
����	�����'��
����
�������!��"
������"�	�
"������������������ 
���'#���"
���
����


�"
��
�"
������	��
��
��"��	��#��
�
��"������	������	����������
�	����
��)���!
���-
���
�

���-�����
9

=�
�"����'�	�"���
�����

���
��������������	����������� 
���'<���
�-��������#���
�-�	��
����

������
�C�����%
��
������������	��"����
�� '���
�*	�
��=��&
������	�����	 ����	
�9�=�
�

	��
����	�����'���&����"	�'�����������	����������
�� '���&
������	����	"������������	����
��

�
��	�� 
���	����"�����'�	�
9���������	�
�	�������
������:�
��
���
��
������
�.�����)����

�
�	������#��	���	���"
��������"��	���	��)������#�������������	�$�����,������������
�4	������#�

����
�������
��������
�-���������������������
�4��"���	���9

)"���&	"�!���!
�	�'�������
�+���	�'������
�
��	���&
���&�$
���������	�
���������"�	�
�

!��"
�	����	"������	�
��������$9��
�!�
�	����������	�
�	���
�
�����	�
�����������
����'��	�
�9�

(��
�
����
�
���
�!�"$
�������
���	�
��
!�	���	�����
�
��
�	�
�������
����
�����
������

�����$	���#�!��������	��#�'�����!
�!�
�����������7�����
	��!��
��	�������"�����������
�
����
��

!
�!�
����
�!���
���
����������&���9�

����������
��
���
�
��

1��&	�:�

3#����
��	&��
��3��#


�

!
�!�
��	�
��	����������	�
9

��������	�
�	����
�&����������"����'�

	����
�.�����)�����
�	���:���
���
D�

���!
�!�
�	����������	�
��	�
�	��

�
���
&
��������
���������
#


�!
�!�
9

��������
����
���
&
���	���������-	�'�

�	�����!�!����	��������E#�

#��	���

��#�

�����
�������
��	���
	��
��

���������	�
��	�'�����������@���$
��

��	�
��	�'�F=���������
���#�(	��
��

)��"��	���.���	��	"����
�"'�:�����

����
����	���
�	�
�"
G9

���������
:��	��������
�!�!����	���

�	�
��	������&��$
�������9

��������	�
 �
�
 � ������	�� ��
 ����	�� �� �	�
 	� ��������	�


.�
������

���"&'��
��
���

Page 126



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
�

���	�����
�������

=�
�!�!����	��������������	�
�����&��
��������� �
���	�"
���
��E�
�9

@
��

���

3������
�3�

��������	�
;��������!�!����	���	��

���
"������������ '���
����D#�

��	������
���& 
�����!
�!�
���
��

���������
��	��!��B
"�
����������

 '�3
D���
����
���&
�!
�	��9�=�	��

��
���	���	&	������������
�!
"�
��

���	�����'�����	����	�
�� '�

	�"�
��	����	�
�
�!
"���"'�������
�

"���
�����
�!��7��
������
�"����'9

1���

3���
�!��!���	������!
�!�
����&����:��	�
�
���	"�����!��	����������	�
������9�D9�

���
�� #

�())/ #

�()(0

��������	�
 3
�#�

 ���#0



-�
��
�� ���#


 �3�#E



������ ���#�

 ���#�



.�������������	�
 ��0#�

 ���#




/��
����%�	�
�(���
 ���#0

 ���#�



%
�����������	�
 E�#�

 ���#E



Page 127



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 �

����������
���

����
�

�

�0D������
������	����������	�
�	�����
�����	"��������&����
&
���������&������+����
�����

��
������	���
�	����
�������
�������������	����������� 
���'9

=�
���& 
�����"�������
�� '�!
�!�
��	�	���	����������	�
�	�"�
��
�����&����#


������
��

�

#


�F8�0DG� 
��

���E0�������

�9

=���7�"������������	�
;��������	�"�
��
�� '���9�D�	����
��
�'
���!
�	�������

39

�
9������
�����"�� ����	��	�
�!
��!
������
�
�
&	��
��	����������	�
�	���

�<���39�D����

��
�
&	��	�����
�
����&���&
��	"�����"
��	9
9�������&
�#��09�D����&�	������'�������9�D�

���&�����������!���9

���������	
�

Page 128



"������������	
���
���������������������
����������������
�����

��������������	
��
���
����
��
��	
����	��������������������	���	���

������������
���	
���	���������������
��	�����
�����������	
����
� ���

��������
����������������	
���������������	���	���������
��������
�

���������	�������
�����!#

�	�������
������ 
����
����
!�

�9!���
������������#�<�=�� �	��������������	�
;���	 �����
"���&'�����&�$
����
������


�
�'��
���������!!�����	�'���� 
�	�"���
��	���������""
��9

�9 ����������
����
�
�����##��
�
��<���������	�
�	������
���!��"
�����	�
�����&���� �������

���#������
��

�������"$�
�"�	&
#����	:��"	��� 
���	���#��
�����	�
+���	�	
�#���"$��������	���

����"���
��	��������
�!����
��
"�	�
�'������
��
&����!�	"�"����
��
���
���"
���
����
�

�
����
�'
���9�%
���������������-	�'#�&��$
�������������	����
����� 
�"�&&��	�	
���	�����

�
���9

�9 ���
���#������
���
#����������<�=���
�!���������
�"����
��
�����"�	&��
�"����
� '�

&	�	&	�	�����
�
��
"������>����	��#����$	������
������
��	���&
��#��
��"	�������
�������
�

���
�
��'����	&!���
���
�+���	�'�����	�
��������9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
�	

1��
�
���'�������'�����

�
��������������
��

Page 129



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

�9 ��
��
���
��2���
�
�����
����� 
��������������'�
���
���
��<�%�	������������	�
�	����

!�
����������!���!
�����!��"
�����	�
��������$#���
�
���
�!�"$
�������
!�	���	����'!	7�
��

 '���&
�������������
�������	��<

��,���
��"��	���������	�&
��

����&	�'� �
�$����

��%��$�
���
��

��-�	&
��������	:��"	��� 
���	����

��������
����

�����������	��9

=�
�
�!�� �
&����
��	�$
������&������'�

�
	����"	��9�=�
'�"���"�& 	�
����"�
��
�

��"�&!�
���	"	����"'"�
9�-
�������������

�	�	���	��
����	��������
�
�'��
��������


+�����!!�����	�'������""

��	���	�
9�=�
�

�����
���	!��	������$����
��
������
��"
�

	�
+���	�	
���������������
���!� 
��

��

��
��
��������&�����
!�	�
��	��	�	������

����"�&&��	�	
��	����������	�
9

%
�������
"���	�
������	���
���	������


�
�'��	����
���#�	��#���<

*
��"
���
���!� 
��

����
� 
�������

���������9�%
��	��������	�� '�	&!���	�����
�

���"�&
��������
������:�������� �	��	���

��
&�"���
�������
����"�&
��
�B�'
�� '�

��
� 
��:���9�=�	���	���&
�������
�	���

�
����"
�������
���"��	�	
�����"�&&��	�	
��


�!
�	
�"	�����
����������"�&
������
�

	&!�
&
�����������!����9

��������
����������
����$�����
�	�
�������	�	����
�&����"���	�
����
���"	��#�
"���&	"�����


��	���&
�����	&!�"�������������$#�����
����
���
��
����"
������"�!�"	�'��

�
������
�	�
��

"����
�
�	���������
������	�� �
9�%
�&���������
����
�������
�&

����
��

��������
�!�
�
���

�	������"�&!��&	�	�����
�� 	�	�'���������
��
�
���	�������&

����
	�������

��9

���������������

Page 130



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


=()*)�	��������������"$��
"���������"��������	���	�������$	���"���� ����	�
�'�����
�	�
��

�
��	"
���������"�&
���"�������
�!� �	"#�!�	���
#���������'#�"�&&��	�'�������	����
"����9�

=�
�
�	�����������	��������"���
����!����
���	!��	�"���	���"����':�	�
�!����
���	!�F����


��&!�
�=�
�-�	���
�;��=�����@��������$	���������������'�����!
�!�
G�������"���!����
���	!��

F����
��&!�
�-�	&
������	����
��*
��"�	��������
���	!���������$����
��
������
��"
�"�	&
#�

���	:��"	��� 
���	���������� ����"
�&	���
G9�

��������	�
��
�
�!���	�
����"���
���������	�����$9�=�
������
�'�	����!!���
�� '����
�	�
�'�

�����F			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 3�&'��
��
��()*)G���	"���
��������!
"	7�"�����

&
����� �
�&
�	�&��
�&�!�	��	�	
��������
�!����
���	!9�����
��&!�
�����
�������
��"
�"�	&
#�

���	:��"	��� 
���	���#�	&!���
��
����#�����	��#������!���#�����
��"��	���������	�&
�������

���$���"
��$	���9�

=�
��
�	�
�'�!����"����	�����
�������	��<

=��

�'
�������
����������
�	������,�"�����
�����

&
���F,��G�A�������

&
��� 
��

��

��
�5��
��&
�������!����
���	����������	�
���	"���
>�
"�����&
������
��	��
���!�	��	�'�

$
'�����
��9

H
'�����
�����	"����
�	&!���������"���'� �������	����
���"�����
�����

&
��9

%	��	����������	�
��
����
���"����'�	�
���"��������
�	"�!����
���	!�����7��
���"��������
�	"�

!����
���	!������	���	"���
�
�9�%
���
��������$	������
��
������"�	
�
���
�����
���	�	���������
�

�����
9�=�	���!!���"��&
����������
�"���&�$
� 
�����
���������
����"
�#�B�	�	����!���
�
�

�
"
����'#���	����
����	����
�'���"���	���
����
��������"$�
�9

"�
�����
�������
����
���
��	��
�����
�


=�
������
�'�	��	&!������������
7��	��������� �������
������	��
�������
��

�������$
����"$����

�

�	��"	�"�&����"
�����
�"����
�9�%
��	��������	������
����
�
�'�7��
�'
���9�%
�������

�����

&��	����!����
������	��������
���������������� ��	������
��������$	������"$���� ����
��+���	�'�

����	�
�	��	"�����9�

=�
�,�"�����
�����

&
���������
��
�	�
�'�!�����	��� 
�&��	���
�������+����
��'� ��	������

!����
����	��� 
��
!���
�������
���������	�
��� �	"�.
��	"
�@����#���	"��	���
�!���	 �
�����

&����	�����
�,�"�����
�����

&
��9�1���	�������� 
����&���'��
!���
�������
�5��
��&
���

��"
���'
��9�%
��	���!����"
������������
!������	"���	�������'�
�"���
���!
����&��"
�����

�����
���
���9

���
���
����������

�


Page 131



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


$�
������
���
�����������
����������
����������������������������
���'�������'�����-�

�6��*�.(1*)�������� ����"
���
��

�����!���
"������
����"
�	����!
"	���
��	���&
��#� ����

�� ������������#��	�����
��

�������
"���&	"����������������	��9�=�
�
�	����������

�����


����
������!�'�	"���������"	���	��������"���
�F��"�����!� �	"������!���#��
������
��	"
������

�"�����G#� �����	��	����������	�
������
	�� ���	�����
��#���
�!���	�
�������
��	�����	&
9�

���'� '� ����"	�����
�
��
+�	�
&
�����	�����
�"����'� 
�� �
�����"�	
�
�	���� B
"�	�
�����

�
"��	�����������"�����
"���&'������
����'��������	�	���"�&&��	�	
����	������"$�	���"�	&��
�

"����
���������
��	���
��	���&
�����	���
�9�

-���
���'���
����&
���$�������
���
������!��	���

!����	��������
�'�������������	�
�	��!���	�
�� '�

��
�.���"���
������F			-�&'��
��
��-���-� G9

(��
�
�#���	���	���"����
��
�'��������
����
�

.�����)���������	���!!���
�� '���
�5��
��&
��9�

@
������
��
�	������
�
����
�
��	��� 
�,�"���

�
�
��!&
������&
���$��!�
!��
�� '�
�"�����

��
�7��
��	���	"��"���"	���������&	�
�������������
�

�
�
��!&
������&
���$�!�
!��
�� '���
�-����'�

-���"	�9

��������.�����)�������������!�
!��
�� '���
�

.�����)����)�������*
�	��������
& �'�F.))*�G�

������ &	��
�������
�.
"�
���'����.���
�	��4��"��

�

3����������� B
"�
�������!� �	"�
��&	���	���	��

���
��

3�����
���'��

�9�=�
�!� �	"�
��&	���	���

!��
�;���
!��������!� �	��
��	����������

�#�����

��
�.
"�
���'����.���
�!� �	��
���
��!��!��
��

"����
�������
�!����	��I��'��

09�

=�
�
�	�"���
�����
�	
�������
���

� 
������������

�������	�����
�������"	�	���
������ ���
��
��	������

����
�����#


���&
�9�=�
�.
"�
���'����.���
;��7�����

�
"	�	���������	���"��������	���	�����	�
�9

,����
���'���������������������
��4���������
�	�� 

��

��	�������������
���������

Page 132



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

���
����
�!�
!����	��������
�.�����)�����������
����
��&
���	��	�
���� &	��	����������

��& 
�����J
"�������;9�K%
�������&���L� 
��

��%
����������
�5�

��������
�4�
�	��

��
��������	�
���"�������
�"�����'�"���
���'����
��"���	�
���	��9����
"	�	�����������
��
��

��	��!��!�����	��	�"���
��	����'�7�����'��!!���
���	���	��
�!
"�
��	���

E9�=�	���
"�	��������
�

�����
�'��	��� 
��!���
��	���

E�����
>�
"����
��
+�	�
&
���������
�.�����)������������M���

)"��=����!���	�	��9

#�
$�����#�����%
�
����

��&���
���$�

-�	�	"��������
��
�	�
�'�����
�
�������	����
�!���	�	��������
�!�'�	"���������"	���	��������"���
9�

=�
�!����	����'��
&��	���!��'����	&!����������
�	���
�!	�������
�	�
�������	�� �
�

"�&&��	�	
�� '���"	�	���	���!���	�	�����#�����
��&!�
<

������� �
���&
����������	����!�	���9

.��!�#� ��	�
����	�
������!�
&	�
�9

."�����������
�������"	�	�	
�9

=����!�����
����$������!
�
���	���#�"'"�	���#� ���������	����
��#�����!�	���
�����"�&&
�"	���

�������
��9

���$�9

�������
�
�"
�9
�
����������������
���������

Page 133



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

=��&�$
����
���	����!!
�������7��
��	���	"��"���"	�����
��
�
��!	�����"����
�
��!&
���

���&
���$��F,��;�G�A���"���
"�	������!��	"	
������!����������	�
��
�
��!&
���	����
���"���

��
����	"����
�
��
��	���������	�����
��������!
�"�&&��	�	
������
����
�������
��	"
����
�

�
�	�
�
�����&

����"����

��9�=�
�
����&
���$�#��������	�����
�.�����)����������������
��

&�B���!�������"�������
�&	�
�������������
��
�
��!&
������&
���$#��	�����	�
�����&�"��

�
�
��!&
������� �	��	�����
�
�	��	��'������
�#���
�
�	��	����"��
�����������	��������"���
�

F�����#��"�����#�"�&&��	�'���"	�	�	
�G���
��

�
�������!!����	�9

����
��

(���	����
&����	���	���	����
�.�����)���9�=�
�������.�����)���������!��!��
������	���

�����������#�3
���
��	����
�"��'
���F�	��	����������	�
G����	���
�3� �����
�.
"�
���'����

.���
�����!��!��
�����	�"�
��
�����#�3
�!�9�=�
�������!����!��!��
�����������
�����
�!
��"
���

��������
������
��F	����
�-
��������������	�
��� ��
�	��G#�������� 
�J������� �
;����&

��

��
��

������'�����!
�!�
���������
��������	�"�&
�#������������
�.
"�
���'����.���
�����

����
��
���������	�� 
��
��"
������
D9�5������!�	�������
� 

���
�	����
���	��	����
�

"����'����������������	�"��9���"
���
�.�����)���������	���!!���
����
����������	�
��
�
�

�	��� 
��!���
������
>�
"����'�"����
�9�

��##��
��

=�
�.�����)���������
& ��"
����
�"��"
!�����J�	�
�	&
��
	�� ��������;��	���	�"���	�
#��
���

�
�	��
���	�	���
��	���&
��������������
�9����	�
�	&
��
	�� ��������������!���	�
�����

�
�	�
�����	�����
� 
���!���	 �
�"���"
�����
����#��
�� 
	���������"	���	�"���	��#�!���	"�����'�

�����
'���������
�9�=�	���������
+�	�
�����""
��	 �
�����!�
������ �	���
��	���&
���	����	"��

�
�	�
�������������
����
��������
"
����	�'�
�"���
�� '���
#�!�'�	"������"���	�	�
�� 	�	�'#�

�����
&�	��� �
�������$#���"	��	�
�����!���	"	!��
����������������!���	 �
9�%
��	������$�

����
�!����������
��!
�!�
;���

�������
�!
�	
�"
������
��&!�
#�	���
���	��������
���
����

!� �	"������!���#��""
�������
�	�
��	���"��
��
��	"
�#��""
���������!�#��&
�	�	
�������
	���
�

�!�"
#���
	��!
�"
!�	�������
"��	�'#��
	�� ������������!��"
#�������
��
�	�
����"����
���
#�

��"	��	�
�����!���	"	!��
9�

�#����#���

=�
�&�	����"��	����������
�!���	�	���������	�	��������������
&!��'&
����	��� 
����@	"
��
��

�����	�"��#�	��!���	"��������!���	�
�������
�
��"��	��#��"	
��	7�"������
"������	"����
"���������

��
�
�!���	��������
��"��	������
�	��	�����"���7��&�9�1��������#���
�%
���)����
�
��!&
��#�

��
�C����
���5��
��'�����!��
��	���'���
�."	
�"
����$������
�.����������
�-	�'��	���!���	�
�


&!��'&
����!!�����	�	
�9�1��@�� ��'��
�
��!&
�������
&!��'&
����	�����$
�!��"
�&�	��'�

���!�
�	����'��
�
��!
������9

Page 134



$��'5����������
��

*��������7�"�������������!	��'�	����������	�
#�!���	"�����'������
�4�
��������#�����

"���
��	���	�����	��	7�"����!�� �
&9�=�
�-����'�-���"	�#�	��!����
���	!��	���C
����$�*�	��

������
�(	����'����
�"'�	��!��&��	�����!�"$��
����&
����
��"���
��J�""
������������;�

�
�	��
�����
��
�"���
��	������������
�"����'9�(��
�
�#������
������7�"�&����
&
�������

�
�
��!&
�����������!�����
����$��!���	"�����'������������&��$
���������	��� 
��

�
�9�

��������	�
;��!�	�"	!���������
����$�	�����
��'��!
���	�������
���"�!�"	�'���������7�"�

�������	��!�
�	"�
�����	�"�
��
��	��	7�"����'���
����
��
����
��'
���9�=�
�
�	���� �"$�������

	��������"���
��
�
��!&
��� ����	�������������	�9�=�	��	���	$
�'���� 
�������	���!�� �
&� ����

���� ��	�
��
������	��	�	�����9�=�
��
������������7�"�"���
��	����	���������������!�����	��9

�����������������

=��&
��%��
�#���������	����
����"
��&����
&
���!���#�����!��!��
����&�B����
���
�
���	��

�����
��������
������� 	�������
�����
��	����
����.�
�
����#������������
��

��������	��

	����	��� 
	���
��&	�
�9�-��������	��������
����
���
����"
��&����
&
���!�������$�!��"
�

���	�����
�.�&&
������

09

��������	�
�����
��
��	�
��
!��	����������#�����
�������	&
����
�����	�����	&!�������

!����"
���������
���
�&	�
���������"������"�	������$�&����'��	��	����
�"����'9�����
���
��

��
��

�
�� ���������
���
�
��!&
����������&�	���	����
�
�	��	��� �	����� �	"�����

	��������"���
9�=�
�������.�����)����������
�������!���������
����"�	������
�� ���������	���

"
���������
��&
�����	�
�	�
����
����� 
	����
�	
�
�9

�� ��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


� !�����
���������

Page 135



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

'
�����	
���
��	�
!

.�!!���	�����������	��������	����
"������'� ��	�
��
������	�"�
��
��	�������
�


&!��'&
��9

=�
��

��������������	�
����"���	��
�����
"��
�	������	��
��&
�������
�!�
�	��	���

 ��	�
��
�����J������ ��;9

=�
��

�����!���	�
���
� 
���!���	 �
� ��	�
�����!!������������
�	��	��� ��	�
��
�9

1&!���	���	��������"���
�����	��!���	"����������!��������
��"
�"���
��	��9

1�"�
��	�����
���!!�'����������� �
�����	��9�

*�	�	���
��"��	���������	�&
��#�	&!���	������$���"
��$	��������
�"�����	����	�
�����

�
���	��9

,�"����
�
�
���	���	�	�	��	�
�9

1&!���	�����
������	�� 	�	�'����������
"���&	
�9�

�	��

���������


��������	�
;��
"���&'����������	�
��"���	��
���������������� 	�	�'���
�����
��
��
��!
�	���

����	���
"���	�
��������
"���&	"�!��
�����
��	��	����
������:
���������H���������������
�

����������
9�1���������
�"
!�	�����"��"
�����	�������
�
��"�������
�
��!&
���F�9ED������
�

���$���"
�"�&!��
���	����9ED�������
�.�����)���G��	����������
����
��
��� �	��&
������"��

�����
�"�	�	"�����	����
������	�
��	�	
�#����!	���������&
�	"����
�
��"���
��	�������	����
"������'�

�!	������#�������
��	�&����.'�"�������������
�(���
���."	
�"
�����1������	���-�&!��9�1��

��
�.�����)���������������
�*
�	�����)"���&	"�.����
�'#��������-	�'�����-
��������������	�
�

	���

�������*
�	�����(� �A���"
���
����
"���&	"��"�	�	�'��������	�&��������1��
��&
�������

5�����9�=�
�-����'����������
�������������
"�����	������	�&#�&�����!�����F@�� ��'�	������ �

�
�	������� ��������
����
���	��C�������������	�
G#�����!� �	��	���	������	
�9�

1���
�&���������������
����
��F5/�G���������	�
�!
����&��"
����$��	����
���!��
D�������
�

�H#����	���	�"�
��
��&��
������-�& �	��
��	�
� ����	��	7�"����'��
��������@
�$��	�
��	�"
�

�EE�9���������	�
�5/��!
���
������� 

��"���	��
���'�� ��
���
�.�����)������
���
9

����������
�����
�
��
��������������
����
�(�������
���������
��
��������
�)'�

	

������

����������
����
�
��
������������
��	�(��
����
�����������
����	����!�

��
�����
����
�
������
�
������
���
�
����

���
��
��
�
�*	���
+�����
�

������
�

�������,���
-�����,�
����
�	����+��
�������	��
-������,�

��

��	
��
�����
�(�.	��

�������
��
�������
�����
���
������
�����
��
�
��
����
�������$�
�

�����
�����

�
�	�
���������������
��
����������
���	
��(

!���
������������#��

Page 136



�
�
����

=�
���&
�����"
����
���
�����
���
&!��'
��	����
�"����'��	����
#


�&	�	���'�!
�����
�����

 ��
��	��@	"
��
�#�� 	�����#�@
����#�@�	N
�C�����#�.��	�
���&������	�"��9�=�
�
� ��
�����
�

�!
"	����

��#�����
��&!�
�"����
�����
&!��'&
�����
�
�!
"�
����
����
�&
�	�&��
�&#�����

��
�
����
� 

���
>�
"�
��	������!����	��9�

�����������#�

=�
�-����';��&��$
���������
!
�������
�'�����&���� ��	�
��
�����!���	�
���
����!������

�
��	"
�������"�&&��	�	
���

�9

��������	�
�	����
�&����������"����'�	����
�.�����)��������	���!�
�����������������"�!
#���
�

�	���+���	�'����	��� �	���
��	���&
�������"�����
�&�$
�	����!��"
���
�
� ��	�
��
����������

�!
���
�����!
�!�
����������	�
��������$9����&	���!��'�����	�������
�	����
�
"���&'��	���

�0D������
������	����������	�
����
�����	"��������&����
&
��9�

����"����'�	�����	
���������
����	�	����������
�	�
��������& 
�������	+�
������������� ���

�����"�	���9�%
����$��	���!����
������!��&��
������������	�&� ������F����
��&!�
�������#�

-�������������@	"
��
��/	����
G���	"���	���	�������
�
�
��
�	"�����"��&�!��	����"	�'����

������#����� ����	���&��$
�������#�!	"���
�+�
�������"�&&��	�	
��������
��������������	���

�������� 
���'9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

��
"����	��������

Page 137



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

����&��'��	����	"������������������	����
��!���	�
��""
���������	�
�����
��������������

�
��	"
�������� ��
����� ����
��� �	��
�������
�� ��	�
��
�����&�����"�	�������������
�


��	�

�	���������"����
��	�#�7����"	����
��	"
�������	���	 ��	��9�@��	�
���	��
�
�'��
�
�	����
�

"����'����&�	�����
��������!��	��
������	����
"�� ��	�
���!��$���
�������&�B��������������	��

����
�9

����������
���
����

(	���+���	�'�"�������#��!���#��
	���
�����

�
"�
��	������"�	�	�'�	����$
'���"����	��&�$	���

��������	�
��������!��"
����� ��	�
��9�=�
'�

!���	�
�
&!��'&
�������	&!���
���
�+���	�'�

����	�
����
�
�'��
�	����
�"����'9�=�
�
���
�

&��
�������
��
��	����#�������"�����&��
�&������

�
�	���
������"�	����	�"���	�����
����&��
���

����@�
��
	&�����"
?��	���+���	�'���
���
#�����

����
�	
�������!���	���
�
���������""
��������
�

"�����'�	�
#�!��$�������	�
��9

������ ���"�&!
�	�	���	��
��	7�
�#�&�	���	�	���

�����������!���!
�	�'� 
"�&
��&��
�����&��
�

"����
��	��������
��

�������"�����������#
�

���������
���A�!���	"�����'

�� ����
��	����"
����������;��%
���)��9

�
�
��!	�����
�.����
�����������	�
�."	
�"
�

/��
�������	��
����	�����"
���
�����	������	���

����
��
�!�	�
9�=�
�."	
�"
�/��
�	�������
��

���
"���&	"��������	�������
���"
������

��������	�
�����
������
�	���
7��
�� '������

!�	����A�(���
����"	
�"
�����	������	���

"�&!��#�4	��������$#��	�"�������5���
9

�
�
��!	�����
�@	"
��
��
"���&'��	�����
��
��


&!���	��������	�������
#��	������
#�����

�	����
"��
"���&'����$

!�!�"
��	���!����
��

����	���������9

�
�
��!	�����
�@�� ��'�
"���&'� '�

�����"�	���&	�������	��:�
"��	������	
�9

�����
�������"#��
�
���
����$��%����&��

Page 138



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�

	

���$����
��$����

�����������
�"����'�������
��	��
���"��"
�����	�������
��

��
�
��+���	7�"��	�������

��'�"����'�F�����
��	&
������
�-
������

������
'#���������0D�!
�!�
���
���3�������	��

��������	�
��������
��

�����	��
�#���
��	��
���!��!���	��������'�"����'�	��)������G#�

���	��	7�"����!��!���	��������
����$	�����
�!�!����	�����
��	������+���	7�"��	��������

��
���
�
���
�	���
+�	!!
�����&

����
�

�

������ ��	�
��
���!
���	���	���
�'�

"�&!
�	�	�
�&��$
��9��
�!	�
���	���	���

!
�"
����
�����������
��������
�����

���
������
&!��'&
��#���
�"����'������
�

��
����	��	����
��������
D�	��)����������


��"��	��#��$	�����������	�	����
!�	���	���

�������

���
���	������������$
���	��	��

��
��������D�	��)������������	��&
����
9

�""���	��������
��

��C��	�����)&!��'
��

.$	����.���
'#���������	�
�
&!��'
����
�
�

&��
��	$
�'�������
��
"��	�&
���	���
��

�����$	������!�������	��
	��
����
�4	�����

H
'�
�#���������	�
�����@�"$	����&��	�
�

��
�����������
�����"�������
�.�����)����

�
�	��9

)��"��	���������	�&
���	�������"������	����

"���
�����"��"
����	���!
����&��"
�����

�������������	��"�&!��� �
���
��������
�

"�����'9�=�
�
�	�����

������B���������	�
�

5-.)�!
����&��"
�	���"�����#� �����������

'�����!
�!�
�	����
�"����'������!	�
����

����
�	����
��
��
�����!!�����	�'���	"��	���


"���&'�!���	�
�9

1��
��&
���	�������!������������	���	��������"���
������ 
�	�����
�!�"
����
"���&	"�

�
�
��!&
��9�=�	������"����	 ��
�����	�"�
��	����
�
������"���
��	��������������
�����

������� �
�����	��9�=�
���"$����������� �
�����	���	��
�!
"	���'���!�� �
&���������
�	��


��
��	����
��	"
�B� ����������	���	����
��	������
�
"���&'9

&�"����
���������'�(���������"
���
����
����	�)�������������#�#���

Page 139



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 
�

=���7�"�"���
��	������	�����'�����

��"���'�	���
��	�������
9������
�

!�!����	���������	��	���	$
�'������

"���
��	������������
�"����'�

�	���"���	��
��������
�����
���

�"�	���	����$
���������
���	�9�

=�$	���	�����""��������	���������

��"�������
����
���������
�
������

"�&&	��
������
�!
"�
�������
�

�
�
��!&
��#��������	����������7�"�

�����������	�
�������	��!�
�	"�
��

��� 
���
����D���
����
�!
�	���

����
�3�:��
���� ��
���
����	�����

��
���
�����0D9

��������	�
�	����&����'�������

"����'���������&��'���
�"���

	��F����������
����
�

� �
�

�����
��	���"���	��
���� 
G���
�

!�
��&	�����&��
��������
�9�

(��
�
�����	��	7�"����&	���	�'����

�������
��""
��������"��#����
"�	���

��
	��� 	�	�'�����
�"���
��	"
������


&!��'&
��9�=�
�"����';�������

�
����$�	���
��:�
�
��!
�#�����

!���	�
��"�����
����	����	�
"���	�$��

�������&�B����
��	���	���9�(��
�
�#�

��������
�!
�!�
���������������
�

�""
��������"��������������!���������
�

�	&
#��
��	������$
'��
��	���	����

"��� 
��������&�
��'9

1&!���
&
���������
���	���'����"�����)���:%
���*�	�#�	&!���
&
��������������.���	�������
���

����&���
���"�
&
�������"�������	����F����
��&!�
�5���
G����
���
�!��
��	������	&!���
�!� �	"�

�����!�����
��	"
�9�)����"
&
������� ���	��������"���
��	������
����	&	����	&!�"�9�=�
�-����'�

-���"	�������
"��
������	������&�5��
��&
���������&�B���!��B
"��"���
���""
������������#�

	�"���	���	&!���
&
����������	�#� ��������
�
�������������7�"#���	"��	����� 
��
�	�
�
��	��

�
��:�
��9

����*�
"������$������
��������+�
�������

Page 140



=�
��

�������
&��������������� �
�����	���F��"	����
��
������	��
�&
�	��
G�	���	���	�

��������	�
����	��	���������������
�.�����)�����
�	������� 
'���9�(��
�
�#���"$�������������

��
��
�	�
����!���
"����
�"����';����	+�
��	����	"��#�
��	���&
���������"���������
�	���
��	���

	��	 	������� 	�	�'�������	��'��
&���9�

��������	�
�	��	�����������!��	�	�����������	��
"���&	"�������9�=�
�
���
���&
���	���������

��������	�
������	�����������������
����
�A���
� ����"	������
"���&	"�����
��	���&
�����

	��
�
����������
��	�$�� 
��

����	�
��	�	
�#��"	
�"
#�	������	�������
���
!�
�
��	�&

!�����
�����

-���� ����
��"�����!� �	"#� ��	�
���������������'��
"�������� �	��������������	�
;��


"���&	"���""
��9

-�
��
���
�"���	�	��������
�
�'��
�������
��""
������B� �9

)����
������
��"��	���������	�&
��������$	����
�
�����
��&��������
��
�'� 
���	����
�"�����'�

����
�!���	�
����
���+���	7�
�#�&��	���
�����$���"
����&

����
��

������ ��	�
��9�

5������
�
"���&'���	�����"�	
�	����������	�� �
� ����"
� 
��

��B� �#�����	�������


��	���&
��9

=�"$�
�����7�"�"���
��	����"�������������	�
#�!���	"�����'��������$������������������

&��$
�������#��������-	�'��������
������!���9�

*
��"
���
���!� 
��

����
� 
���������
����������� '�����
�	����������$��!!��!�	��
�'9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�




)�����
���������������%�����

Page 141



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


/����
�������
��	�
��	��
��

���()*)�	���&����<

)��"��	��������$	�����
�
���������
��	�
���
���� ��
���
����	�������
���
9

5/��F����������
����
�G���� 
�	����
���!��
D����	�����'9

=�
����	���������	�����!!�'�����
&����������
�+���	�'������������ 	�	�'��������	������ 
�

	&!���
�9

=���
�������
�������$	�����
� �������	�����$#�������	&
�
��"��	���������	�	�����������
�

�����"�	�
�'��

$	������$#���� 
���
����
���	����
�"�����'9

��������	�
���� 
�$������������������
������������"
���
�����"	
�"
�����	������	���


�"
��
�"
9

I����
'��	&
�������������	�
���������� 
��	��	����
�&�����
�	� �
��
D�	����
�"�����'9

�""
�������
��	"
��������"	�	�	
�� '�!� �	"������!���#����$	�������"'"�	���������
�	&!���
�9

�	����������
�����������


�
��	�������"�	���!����
��������
�&
�	�&���������
���
�&���
��
������	����
��""�&!��'	���

�
�	�
�'������			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 3�&'��
��
��()*)

'
������

�����������
�
������
���
�


��������	�
�)"���&	"������
���	!

,
���	���O�.$	���������
���	!�

(���	��������
���	!

)��	���&
��������
���	!

�	���	"��,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!�


�

Page 142



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�

�

'
�����	
���
��	�
!

(���	������� 
"�&
���������� �
�!���	"�����'�����&��'�'�����!
�!�
��	��	���� �������

��������
��9

4�	���	�	�����"����
��	"
��	��������"�&&��	�	
�9

���
��!
�!�
���������
��	����	�� 	�	�	
�������&��
�"��	"
�����"���������
����
	��"��
#��	���

����	�
�	��
!
��
���'��������
��""
�������	���+���	�'��
��	"
����
����
'��

����
&9

��
�
��	���	��:�
�����	����
���
	���!�!����	��9

-�&&��	�'�
����
&
��������
����
�!�	���
���������������	����"
�����������
�"�&&��	�'�

������������'��
"�����

������
����
�	��������!!������	�9�

-�	&
�	���
���	�
�'����� ����
������"�	&
�����"��"
���� �������	:��"	��� 
���	����A�����

!���	"�����'�������
����������"�������������� ��
�A�	��������	���"��"
�������&��'�!
�!�
9

�
���
� 

 ��� ����
�� �
�����������
(��	��
��� �����	�� ����� ��
�� 012���� ��
��
���
� �
�

����������
� ��$
� ����
�� �
� ��
�������	
���
�(��
���
�����	
��
� ������
������	�����
�

���������


�������
�����
�����
�
��
��
�
-��������
�
�����
���
���
����
�
��
���
��(�

/��
�
�-� ��
�
� ��
� ���$
��� ��
�
� ���
� 
��
���
��� ��� ���
�� �
� ������ ��� ��
� ��	
��(�

#
�
����������
���
��


������ ���
�� ���
���
���
(��
����
������
��
����	�����
!����

��
������ �	������	
��� �
� ��
���	���
�������*
���
�-�������	�����	�����
� ���
� �
� �	����

��
����	����3	���
�����
��
��������������������
��
���
�
������
���
��	���	����
�����$
��

���
� �
���
� ��
�� 45� ����
�� �
� ��
� ��	
��� �
�� ��
� 
	��
�� ��� �
���
� ����� �
��
�
��

����������
������
���
�
�����������
��
��
�(��	������$��
����
������
��
�������	
���
��

����	
������52��������������
������	�����
���
������
��672��
������������(��
���
�����



�	�
������
�
���

�������
����������-����
�������
����
���������
����
��
��������	
��

�
� ��
�����	
���� �
������� ��
�� ���
-����$-� �����	���
����������(��
��������
�� ���



�	�
� �
���
� ���
� ��
� �������� ��� ����������
� �
�� ��
����	�
� ��� ��
��� ����	
���
�(

/
�������
��������
������	
���
�������
������!

8���	�����
�-�

�����	��������
��������
����
�����	
���
����������
���-���
�
�������

�
���
����$������
�������
���
��������
����
�������
������������
���
�����
��(

8���
����$����
��
������	�������
������
��������	�

����
����	����
��	��
�����
��

�
���
��
������
����������������
��

8���
���
���
�������������
���

�������
�������
�����
���
�
�

8������������
����������
���
�
��
���
��

�����
��
���
����
�(��	����	
�����
����
�

����
�!���
�
���
���
�
�
�����	���
��,��������
�����	���	���


�������	������-����
��

�
��������
����
����
��
����
���
������
���
�������������
(�

����������
����
�
�����##��
�
���

Page 143



,	�
�
�!
"���"'�	��	&!���	���'
������'
��#�!���	"�����'�	��������>��
���"�&&��	�	
�#� ���

��
�
���
�����	���"��"
����� ������
�
��
"���������
����'��	�
��'�
��	����&
��������

"�&&��	�	
�9

*
�
�
���	�������
!�	�
����"���"�&&��	�	
�9

1�����	���&��
�!
�!�
�	��&�$	����
"	�	����� ������
	��"�&&��	�	
��:�	�"���	�������
�����

���
����� 

��	�����
��	����
�!����F����
��&!�
#�'�����!
�!�
���������
����&��	��
�
���

"�����
������ �"$�������G9

����	�������
�
��'������
����"
��	����"�&&��	�	
���������
�
�!
�	
�"	�����!	��"����
�

��
��������	����
�
��!&
��#�!�!����	��������
&����!�	"�"����
�������
�
���
�
�	����
�

��
��
����

�����!�
�
���	��:�
����#��
��"
�"�	&
��������
��!�� �
&�9�

)�"�����	������
���
�
���	������������

��������"�	�
�'���!!������
	��"�&&��	�	
�9

/���	���"�����
#��!���#��
"�
��	��������
	���
���� 
	����	�������&�	���	�	��������+���	�'����

�	�
�����	��!���	�	����!!�����	�	
������
"���&	"������������
&!��'&
��9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 
�

�	��

���������


��������	�
�	�����	�
��
�"����'�	���
�&�������
�����
������ �������������
��	���&
��������


���	"	�'9���+����
�������
�!�!����	����	�
�	����
�"	�'������������	������	&	����!��!���	���	��

����&��$
�������������������
�!�!����	����	�	���	����������
��9�=�
�!�!����	���	����
	���

�	����� �����	����������	����
�!��!���	��������
�!�!����	�����
��0��������
�9�=�
�
�	���������

����	���!��!���	������!
�!�
��	����
���	����	�� 	�	�	
�9�

@��"$�����&	���	�'�
���	"�"�&&��	�	
����
��D������
�!�!����	���

������
�-����'���
�����������D�	����
�"	�'������������	����
9ED�	��

��
�@�� ��'�5�	&� ��'�%�����������	N
� �
�!�!����	���	���	�"��9�

�������������!�!����	���	���
�
����'��
����	
�������
��
��
�
#�

�	����	�
�
�!
"���"'�� ��
���
���
���
#���
�
���
��	��	7�"����

���	��	��������	�
+���	�	
�� 
��

����"���"�&&��	�	
�9�=�	��	��

�
>�
"�
��	����
��	�
���!�	���	�
�
�!
"���"'� 
��

����
� 
�������

���������9

�����
���
��������,��

Page 144



����	
���
����������
���

�
�!�
����������	�
�	��"�&&��	�	
����
�
��
��	"
����
��
���!����
������"����	���
�?���
�
���
�

��"���"
���
�!���	�
����������!!	���!���	�	��?���
�
���
�
�	���������+���	�'�
��	���&
��?���
�
�

��
�
�	���""
�����������+���	�'�����	��������
��	"
�?���
�
���
�
�	���""
�������	���+���	�'�"�����
#�

�!���������
	���
9�%
�����������!��"
����
�
���"���!
�!�
��
�!����!
���
������
�������
	��"	�'#�����#�

�	����
�����
	�� �������������������$����"����	 ��
������
������	��������"���!�� �
&�9

1����&
���
��������
�-	�'���������&��$
����������
�
�	�����

����� 
��
��B�	���!��"�	�	�'�

����
�������
+�	�
&
��������&��
��"�	�
�
����
&
������ �
�$���
�"'"�
�����
!�	���	��#�	��

�
���	�������$	���#�"�&&��	�'����
�'������
����9

%
��"$����
��
���
��	�7�"���	
�����!
�!�
�

"�&&��	�������
���	����"
��������$�����!
�!�
�

���$	�������
����������	"�����
����	&!�"�������
�

�&���������	&
�!
�!�
����
����	�� �
����	�!���	����

��
	��"�&&��	�	
�9��
�!	�
���	���
�$�����������
�
�

��
�����
�����#


���������'�����"�&&��	�'�����!��

	����������	�
�����&��'�!
�!�
���
�	�����
������

���$	�����������&�$
��	�
� 
��
��������"���!
�!�
�

������
	��"�&&��	�	
�9��(��
�
���
���
��
��	�'�

�
�	�����������
�������
�"�&&��	�'��!	�	�
������

�"�	�
�	������"�&&��	�	
�������
��

�����
����
�

&��
�!
�!�
���� �	�������������������$�	����
�

�����
9

���

�	������	�
��	�'�����J�
��
����!��"
;�	��"�	�	"������

&�$	�����������	�
����
�
�� 
��
��!��"
9���������	�
�

�
�	�
�������
������������7��	��	��������
�"����'�����

�����
	����"���"�&&��	�'�������
�
�	�����
����
��
����

"�&&��	�'����� 
����	��9��	��	�"�	�
���"����"�	�	�	
��

����
�
����A���"�������
�!�!�������&
����K�����.���'L#�

��
�����������	���!�����&&
���	"�� �	�����	�
������


�
���������"���"�&&��	�'��!�"
�#���
��������,
�
��
�;��

��'�	��@�����������
��������
������!
"	���
�
��������

�
��	������	$
�K,�&	���L�	����������
	����"
���	���
��
����

	�
��	�'�����!���	�
��""��	��������������
�"�&&��	�'�

���"�&
����
��
�9��

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�

�

*)�����
���$�����
���������

Page 145



������������'#�"�&&��	�'�������	��������	���	������
��	���������
��
��: 
	��������"���!
�!�
�

����"�&&��	�	
�������
�����!��	��#�����#��	���	"������"����'�"���"	�������!���	�
���"���

�
��	"
��������"����
&�"���	"���'�
�
"�
���
!�
�
����	������&�$
����
�������
��	"
����
�

�
�!���	�
������"���!
�!�
;���

��9��

/�������'#�"�&&��	�'�������	��������	���	����!��'����	�������
�	����������	�
��	�
#� ����	��

!���	�	����
��	"
�����!
�!�
������

����
&�����	��&�$	���������

�	����!!�����	�	
��

���	�� �
�����!
�!�
�����
��	�����
��	����
	��"�&&��	�	
�9�%
��	������$����
����
����������

"�&&��	�'������	���	�����
"
	�
���
���!!������
'��

������
�
��!������!
���
�
��
"�	�
�'�	��

���
�����&

����
��

��������
�!
�!�
���
'��
��
9�

����	"	!��	���	��"�����
#��!���#��
	���
������
"�
��	�����
������	&!��������������!
�!�
�


�!
�	
�"
�����!
�"
	�
���
�!��"
���
�
���
'��	�
�A�"����	 ��	���������	��	�"�	�
�	�
��	�'#�


��
��
�	���!�	�
��������
��
���� 
����	�����	�
��
�!	�����������	��"�&&��	�'�"��
�	��9�

=�
��

�����	&!���
�!��'��!!�����	�	
������"�	���
������'�����!
�!�
�	�������	&!�������	��

���
�������!!�������	�	���"�&&��	�	
�9�=�
���������	�
����'������
���	!�	�����$	����	���

������"���������	�	
��F	�"���	���!��	������������"���"	��G������
�
�����/-.������	���	�������

	�"�
��
�����	&!���
�!��'��!!�����	�	
�

�����������"���"���������	�
�������"��	"
�����
	���
������
"�
��	������!!�����	�	
���
�	�
�� 
�
7����

��	"�����
����
��"�&&��	�	
������"����	 ��
�������	"��+���	�'�����	�
�����������	�
����	������

!��	�	�
�	&!�"�������
�
"���&'#�����	�&#�
��"��	���������	�&
�������"�&&��	�'����
�'9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 
�

*-�"���
$�����
����

Page 146



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


!��	���
��
 ��"&'��
��
�������������##��
���	����<

�
�!�
��

����
'����
�����'�	����
	������"�&&��	�	
�� ��������!�����&
��	��� �"$�	���
�&��

����
	�� ����	�
��#�����	�����"���!��B
"���
9�9��
	�� �����������"�#��������	�	��#�
�
���

�����	�	���
�"9

=�
�
���
������������!��	�	�
��
���	����	!�� 
��

��!
�!�
����&��	��
�
��� �"$��������	��

��
�"�&&��	�'9

��������	�
�"�&&��	�	
����
��
���

������������	�����
��E
D������
�!
�!�
�

	����������	�
���'	�����
'��	$
��	�	���	��

��
	����"���"�&&��	�	
�9����
"
�������'�	��

���!��	���!���������������������������	���

��& 
�������"���!
�!�
���
����$	����	���

��
	��!��	���"���"	������"�	�
�'�!����������
�

�����
������
	��"�&&��	�'9��������-	�'�

-���"	������������
��"�&&	��

��������&
�

'
����������
��
�
��!	�����
	���!!���"��

����
	�� ��������!����	��9�='!	"���'�

"�&&��	�':�
��!������
�
���"��"
����

� ������
�J
��	���&
��;��	���J�""
������

�
��	"
����������
�;#�J������� �
�����	�������

�"�	�	�	
������'�����!
�!�
;��������	�
�9�

%
�������������
�


��
������
�$
'���
������"����
���"	����������

	����
���
	����������!�!����	��9�������
�����

�������	&!���
������
�	�'������
"�	�	���

 	���:���
���
�
�	����!����������	���	����
�

����"���
��������!�!����	��9�1&!���
&
����

	��	�"�&
#��
�����"��
������
����	
���	�
��'�
��

���
��
�����&��
�!
�!�
��	�	�������
�9�=�	��

�����
��������	�"�
��
�	����
���& 
�����

�
���	�
�'�7��������"�	�
����
��!
�!�
#�&��'�

���������
�������������"���	��
���� 
��"�	�
�

"����	 ������	��
&!��'&
��#�	����
	����&	�	
��

����"�&&��	�	
�����������

��#�
&!��'

��


�

(�����������������������

Page 147



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


����"��
��9����
��!
�!�
�&�$
����	&!�������"����	 ��	������
"���&	
������"�&&��	�	
�����

"����&
�������������
	��
�!
"���	�������"	�	N
��9�1�������&
����&��
�!
�!�
��	����

����!!�������

�
&�	��	��
!
��
���	�����
���	�
9�

(��
�
�#���
��	���	 ��	������	�"�&
��&��������
����
��!�!����	���	���
�'���
�
�9����
��

!
�!�
����
���
������
��	��
����	�$�����!��
��'����������
�����!������
�!
�	
�"
���"	���


�"���	�����
����������
������"�����	�"���	����
��"
����"	���"����"�#�!���
���
����#�����

	�"�&
�������"$����&� 	�	�'9�=�
���
��
���"����&
�������
�����������"	���"��
���
�����
���
��

0����	"��	����
��
"�	��������
�!�!����	�������	��������
�����
������
9�=�
�
�	����������	�"�
��
�

	����
���& 
�����'����
��!
�!�
��������
�
�!
�	
�"
����&
����&�����
���	������!�'�	"���

�	�� 	�	�'����&� 	���#�����������
�����	�
��������&�9�=�	���	���!��"
�	�"�
��
��7����"	���

!�
����
���� ������
�-����'�-���"	�;��������"��
��
��	"
��������
���������	�
�C(.9

=�
�
�	�����
�������
������������
����'�!�!����	����	��� 
"�&
��
����
����'���
����
��
����
�

'
���9�=�
�	�"	�
�"
����� 
�	�'�	���	�	����������	����"�����"����&!�	��9��!�������&���
��
�����

	&!�	"��	���#�
�"
��	�
���"�����"����&!�	����&������!
�!�
�������	�
���	�
�������	:��"	���

 
���	�����������	�"�
��
���
������"�	&
9


�

���������.
��������

Page 148



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


*
�!���	��������
�
�"����
��
���	���	�����
����
�
�
��
&!���	�����!�
�
��	�������!���	�	���

�����!!�������	��	�	����������	�
���
	���	�
��	��
!
��
���'�������""
������'9�%
��	���������

��

���
&!���	�
�F
�
��&��
��������'�������
�������G���
�	&!�����"
������&	�'�"��
���������
�

��!!������
'��

�����"���'�������	�����
�
��
"�	�
�'������	�����
��
����������
	��!
�������

�

��9�%
�����������	�����
�
&!���	�����!�
�
��	������������
�"���	��
��
�
�
���'#�!���	�	���

��!!��������
�!���
�!
��������'�	��
!
��
��������
��'���
��

������"����'�	��
��	�
���!!����

���������������!���	 �
9

���
������	
���
�

��������	�
���
���������
��	���"�	&
��
�
��?�	��

��!����������
�"����'����
��
�'�����"�	&
�

�
�
���"�&!��
�������
��
��������
�"�����'9�(��
�
����"����:��
��
�����	:��"	��� 
���	����

����������
���
��"�	&
���
�!���	"�����!�� �
&��	����&
���
��������
�
����'��
������"�	&
�

	���	�!��!���	����
�'��	����������������������	�
9�.�������'���
�"	
��F��"�������
���"���

������	�'����	���"	��� 
���	�����
�&�G�������������'���
�"	
����
����$	����	�����
����	"
����

��"$�
�"�	&
��������	:��"	��� 
���	���� ����
�������

����"���"�&&��	�	
������
�!�7������"���

�����	���9

!�����
�����

%��$��	�����"���!
�!�
�	�"���	�����
���������'#�"�&&��	�'�������	��������	���	����

������
�&	�	���'���������	������ �	�����!!���	�
�"��
�	�
#��
�	�	
��������
���!����
��

"�&&��	�	
�9

=�"$�
�"�	&
��������	:��"	��� 
���	����A�!���	"�����'���
�
���
�"���
�	����
�� ��
����

��"�����������
���� ����"
�&	���
9�

%��$����!�
�
����������&�����
���
&	�&���������
��
����
��
��: 
	��������"���!
�!�
�����

"�&&��	�	
�9

.�!!������
�!
�!�
������������	�
�����"�	
�
����
����'�����!��	�	�
�������
#�

"��"
�����	��������
�����!��	����
��
����

�9

)����
�
�
�'�"�	����
���
�
�'��!!�����	�'������������������	���	�
9

1&!���
���!!���������!!�����	�	
������	��
!
��
����	�	��9

���&��
��
����'��	�
��'�
��	�"���	�����
�	�"�
��
����!�'�	"����"�	�	�'�

�
�
����""
��������"����
��	"
��!���	"�����'�	��������"�&&��	�	
�9

*
��"
���
���!� 
��

����
� 
���������
����������� '�����
�	����������$��!!��!�	��
�'9

�	

Page 149



/���������
��
��	�
��	��
���

���()*)�	���&����

)�
�' ��'��

����
�"�&
���������
�	����
	����"���"�&&��	�'9

/�����

�	�������"�&&��	�'��
����
�!���
�������
���������
����	�������
���
9�

�
�!�
���
��	�	�������
�� '����'	����
����'9

���
��"�	���	����
���!�	�� 
��

����
� 
����������������9

-�	&
��������	:��"	��� 
���	������� 
�	����
� ����&�+����	�
�	����
�"�����'9

,�"���"�&&��	�	
��������
�

�
�
��!
������	&!�
&
��
����

"�&&��	�':�
��!����F����
��&!�
<�

��!��	���!�����������"���"�&&��	�'�

�"�	���!���G��������
��"�	
�
����

����
��������	 �
�	&!���
&
���9�

�	����������
�����������


�
��	�������"�	���!����
��������
�

&
�	�&���������
���
�&���
��
������

	����
��""�&!��'	����
�	�
�'������

			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-

���-� 3�&'��
��
��()*)

'
������

����������

�
�
������
���
�


(
���������%
�� 
	��������
���	!

��������	�
�.!����������
���	!

��������	�
�.��
��-�&&��	�	
��

�����
���	!

-�	&
������	����
��*
��"�	���

�����
���	!�

��������	�
�/�������'�.
"����

�
�
��!&
��������
���	!

�	���	"��,�"���.����
�	"�

�����
���	!�

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

Page 150



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


'
�����	
����
!

*
��"	�������"�� �������!�	����������!�	������"�	&��
�"����
9

)����	�������������
�
��!&
�����
��"
�"�� ���
&	��	��������	�"�
��
��
�	�	
�"
����"�	&��
�

"����
9

��
�
��	�������
����"
���
�"����"�
���������"	�'#�����&��$
�������������	����
�9

)����"	�����
�+���	�'������
���������
��	���&
��#������"�!
������ 	��	�
��	�'9

����
��	���>����	����	�$�9

*
��"	�����
�����7�����������
9�

�
��	����	�����
�
��	���&
�����	&!�"�����!�!����	���������������
�
��!&
�����	�
�

&�	���	�	�����
�"����"�
��������������#��	����
������"�����'�	�
9

����
"�	�������
����"	��� 	��	�
��	�'9

�	��

���������
�

����"�	&��
�	��"����	��9�=
&!
�����
����
��	$
�'�����	�
� '��90:�9
P�-� '���
�
��������
�

"
����'#��
!
��	��������
�
��
�������
&
�	����"�	�������
��"
�"�� ���
&	��	���9��=�
�

	�"�
��
�	����
��
����
:�
�'
����F 
��

��
9�:�9
P�-��
�
�	����
��HG��	���!�� � �'���!!
��

�
�����
�������
&
�	����"�	��� 
"���
������
�	&!�"������"�� ������
��'�
&	��
�9

�


%�
���
������
�-�������
����


�����
�-��	����
�����

�
���
�������������!��
����	���

��	���������
�

 ����
�
��
����
���

����
�

�(��
��
���
��
��	���������
�����
�

����	������
�������
�

����
�

��
����
�������	�	�
��


�����
�(��	�������

�
����

�������
����	����
������
��	�����
�	�������
��

��
����
��
��
��������96����

�	���

���
����
��
���
�
���
��
���
����
�
�����	�����
(��
��
���
��
��������
��	�	�
�����	��



����
�

���������
�����
$
�������
�
����
����
���
�
�
����
����
���
�
������
��������

�����

�
����������
����
�
(��
���
��������
�������$�
���	����
����	���
(

:
�����	���-�����	
���
�-���
��	������
������
���	��

��
�����������


����������

��
��������������
��
�	��
�������
�
������
���
����$�
���	����	
�������
����

�����

�������
������
�
��
�������������
����
�
(�

�	�����������
���������
�
��
��
��

��
�
��	��
��	�����
���	����

����
�

������
�

����
��
�����������
�����
�


��������������
��
��
�����
����
�����������������
�

���
�
(

���
���#������
���
#�����������

Page 151



�������+���	�'���"���
��	���&
���

"����
�!�	&!���
��
����#��
��"
�

"�	&
�����"����	 ��
��������


"���&'9�����
��	���&
���

	��!�
"	����������
�	&!�"���

���"�	&��
�"����
��	��� 
�

�	�
�����	����������
"������

�	�
��'�
������
"���&'9�%
�

�
"���	�
���
��

�����
����
�

������& 	�	�����������!�����

������
��

�������
������	���

����������
��
�'����
"����
�

���������� �	���
��	���&
����

������	�
���������	�
�	���

"����"�
������!���	�
������ �
�

�
"�
��	������
����"
��������
�

����
�"�&&��	�'9�%
������

���$

!���������	�
�"�
�������

��

��A�	&!���	������

������


��	���&
�����"�
���	�
���	����

!�	��	�'9�

�""
�����������!����	��"��"	����������

�	&���� ����"	���
��	���&
�����

����
"���&	"��

��9�����!��$�����

�	�
��"�
&
�#�!�	��	�'� �������
��

������
��
��:�	&
� ���	����&��	���

�
��	"
�&�$
�!� �	"������!����

�""
��	 �
�������
����	
���'9�%
�

"���	��
�������
���
��	��
���

!� �	"������!������
������'�"����'9

=�"$�	����������!�	������"�	&��
�

"����
�F&����	��������
��"	���

��
�	&!�"�����"�	&��
�"����
����

����
��	���&
��G�����!���
"�	���

����
��	���&
�����
����������
�

&����	&!�������	���
���
���"
9�

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

)���
������
���
�����������

Page 152



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


%
����
��'�
�!
�	
�"
����
���������
�#�&��
�
���
&
��
���
��"���	�	�����
������
�#�

	��
��
��	��
������&������>����	��9�-�	&��
�"����
��	���	�"�
��
���
���
+�
�"'#��
�
�	�'�����

"���������"��
�
��������"��������
��
������	���	&!�"��#�
�!
"	���'��������
�����
������
�

	���
!
��
����!�����
	��
��	���&
��9�1��	����
�
���
�	&!�������������
����$����
��
�����

��"$�
�"�	&��
�"����
�����!��������	���	&!�"��:� ������
�!��	�	�
�������
���	�
�9�%
�"�������

!��'�����!���#�����
��&!�
#� '��
��"	�����������
#�
�
��'��������
��"����&!�	���������	���

��

�
�������!�����!�	���9�

"�
���
����
�����������������
����
�


����& 
�����!� �	"#�!�	���
�������������'�����"�&&��	�'��
"���������	���	�������
�

�
�
��!
���"�	���!����������
��"	�����
	��"�� �������!�	��9����	�"�
��	�����& 
�����

 ��	�
��
����
���	�����	�����#� 
"���
���
'��
"���	�
�������
��"	���"�� ���
&	��	����	��

 ���������������
�
��	���&
�������"����
��"
���
	��"����9���	����
����"
��
��
"�	�
�'�����

�
��"	�������
����
�
"���&	"���'�"�	�	"������ ��	�
��
�9�.�!!���	������� ��	�
��
����� 
�


�7�"	
����	����
����"
��	��!���������
&� 
"�&	��������
&�	�	���������"����9�

.�&
������
�&
����
������
��"
�
&	��	����

�
+�	�
�	��
��&
��#���"�����	&!���
�� �	��	���

	������	������ 
��
���
��	��������	���	���

"�������#� �������
����
�������"��� 
��"�	
�
��

��������"����
��	�� 
���	���#�����
��&!�
<�

��	�"�	�������
�
"��	"����!!�	��"
����
����
'�

��
�����	����
9�=�
���
�����
�
�� �
�����"
��

���
�
��'�������

������ 
�
�!���
�9�

�	�!��	����������
�	������7�����	�
��	��

���������	�� �
� 
"���
����	���
��
"�����

��

�����
�����
&	��	���#���
��!

�����

��	"������7�����	�
����
� 
	���7���
�#�������
�

����"	��
��7����"	���!
����	
����	"����
�

	&!��
�� '����
��&
��9�=�
�
���
��
��"	���

����
�������
��7���	��� 
��
����'������
��	���

�	���	��	���	���9���������	�
;����&
��	"�����
�

�
�
�����
����
��'����������
"'"�	������
����
�

�	���"�&!��
���	�����
��
��������
�"�����'#�

 ���	��
����	�����"�&!��	�������
��
���

������� �
9

��

�
��������������	������������������

Page 153



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


=�
���������	�
�%���
������
���	!�F��	"��	�"���
����
�7��
���������	�
��	���	"���������
�

-����'�-���"	�G��������

���������
�'������
��"	�������
�����	�"�
��	����
��
������
"'"�	��#�

 ���
�
��	���
"'"�	������
��&��"�
����
� 
���	��)���!
���
�
��	�����	��� 
����

�������
��

����
���
��&
���������
&
���9�=�
�-����'�-���"	��	��	����
�!��"
������!��"��	�����
��&
���

��"	�	�	
����������#�����
�������
�	���������
9�=�
�����
������
��	��� 
� ���
��	�����
��!�����

"���
���'�!��!��
����� 
� �	���������
�	��	�������7�����	�
����
	��
������
'����.������-����
��'9�

=�
�!������	���!���	�
�
�
"��	"	�'�������
���	������!��
��	���'�"�& 	�
���
�������!��
�9�

����
���
����
�*
����
�

�

��������	�
����������C��	�����C����
�*
�
��
�#�&��
��������
������
��.	�
�����.!
"	���

."	
��	7�"�1��
�
��#��
�
��.!
"	�����
������"���
����	��#�����&��'���"��������
��
�
��
�9��=�
�
�

��
����

���
��������������	���C�������@
���'?���
�-�	��
���(	���#���
�-���������������
�

C�����%
��
�������9��������"	�'�!���	�
�����	&!��������	����	"�
��	���&
������������
�

�
���������
�"����'#�@�
��
	&�����"
�O����$��	�����������
�	���
��	�
#�������
�
���
���
���

�

"���
����	�����
���������������������	��
�� �	��	�����"�������������	�
9�

��������	�
�"���
���'�������
�&����
��
"�	�
�"����'� 	��	�
��	�'�!����
���	!�	��)������9�

%	��	����������	�
��
����
��""
�������	���	�
���������!� �	"��	����������'������!
����

��

�!�"
#� �	��	����
����
"���	�
�� 
�
7���������
����������
�� 
	��9

��

����	�����
����
#�

Page 154



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


!�����
�����

*
��"
�"�� ���
&	��	��������	&!���
�
�
��'��������
��
�7�"	
�"'� '�!� �	"��
"����

�����	���	���#�����
�"�����
��
�	�
�������� ��	�
��
����������
���&
9

*
��"
�����
�����	�"�
��
��
:��
������
"'"�	��� '�����
���������� ��	�
��
�9�

4	�	&	�
���
�
��
"��������	�$����>����	��9�

)����
��
���
�
��!&
���	�� �	�������	���
��	���&
��������������9�

.�!!����	��	�	�����#�"�&&��	�	
������ ��	�
��
�#�����
�!�������"�	&��
�"����
��������

	&!���
�
�7�"	
�"'�	����
	����
����
�
��'��������
�9

H

!���������	�
�"�
���������

�9�

����
"������
����"
���
� 	��	�
��	�'������
�"����'9

*
��"
���
���!� 
��

����
� 
���������
����������� '�����
�	����������$��!!��!�	��
�'9

/���������
��
��	�
��	��
���

���()*)�	���&����%

-�&&
�"	���������&
��	"�����
��
��"�	��#��
:��
������
"'"�	������ 
�"�&!��� �
��	�����
�

 
���	��)���!
9�

�� �	"��
"����������&
��	"�
�
��'��������
����
� 
������
��H���
���
9

�����
������	����
�
��!&
�������	�"���
������	�� �
����	���
9�

��������	�
;����

�����
�����
&	��	�����
��"
������
�
���"�&!��� �
��	�����
� 
���	����
�

�H�:����
D��
��"�	���	��-��#�����

0��
�
��� '��
�
9

��������	�
;�������������� �	���
��	���&
���	��!�
�
��
�#�!���
"�
������
����"
�9

�	����������
�����������


�
��	�������"�	���!����
��������
�&
�	�&���������
���
�&���
��
������	����
��""�&!��'	���

�
�	�
�'������			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 3�&'��
��
��()*)

'
������

�����������
�
������
���
�


��������	�
�%���
������
���	!

��������	�
�)��	���&
���5���!

-�	&��
�-����
������
���	!

�	���	"��,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!�

��

Page 155



�6��*�.(1*)�	�������>��
���"����'� �����
�
���
�!�"$
�������
!�	���	��9�1��	��	&!�������

�����"$�
���
�
�!�� �
&������
"���&	"��
�����#����
����
��
������	������� �
�����"��
�	�
�

��"	
�'���������	�
�	��	�	������
�
�'�"���"
������""

�9�H
'���
����������
��	����	���	�"���
<

1&!���	���
��"��	���������	�&
��������$	���9�

���&��	����
����'��	�
��'�
�9�

%��$	����	�����"���!
�!�
��������
�����"���"�&&��	�'�"��"
���9�

��"��	������
��	��������
���"��	�	
��	����
��
����

�����&�$
����
����	��
�
�"
9

�	��

���������


��������	�
�	�#�	���
�
���#������>��
���

"����'��	��������
�
��������"	���


�"���	���"�&!��
���	���)������������

����
9���
&!��'&
��#�!��
��'#�!����

�
����#�!��������	�������"�	&
���
�����

�	��	7�"����'� 
������
����	�������
���
9�

@������  ����	�
+���	�	
���
&�	�#��	��	��

!���	"���������!�����!
�!�
������!
"	7�"�

�
����!�	"�����"��	�	
�9�%
��
"���	�
�

�����!�"$
�������
!�	���	�����������!��

���!
�!�
�
�!
�	
�"	���	�
+���	�'��""���

	������������
�������� �����
��������
�

"����'�����������������
!�	���	���	��

!���	"�����'��	�7�"�����������
������	��	��

�"���
�
���"�����������
���& 
��������
��

�&�����
���
&
���9

1����"��"�&&��	�	
����
�
�&�'� 
�


�	�
�"
�������$�
���
���F����
�����

��
�������$	�����
� �������	�����$#�

������	&
�
��"��	���������	�	�������

����
������"�	�
�'��

$	������$G#�!����

����	�������"�	&
9�1��	�	������&�'� 
�

�	�	���	���
���	�
�!��
��'����
���
���
��

�������	�"�&
#�!����+���	7�"��	��������

�$	������������"	��
�������
���
��

&9�

,	�
��'�
��&�'������ 
����
����'9

��
��
���
��2���
�
�����
����� 
��������������'�
���
���
��

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

����	������
����
��
���
��

Page 156



=�
�"'"�
�����
!�	���	���	����

�
�"�	!�	�������������!!
���

��
��!
�!�
������
�������
�����&�

��"�& 	���	�������	�$
����"�����

	�"���	���
&!��'&
��#�!�����$	���#�����

	�"�&
�#�!��������	��#�"�	&
#�!����

�
�������������
��""
�������
��	"
�9�

=�
�"�& 	���	�������
�
��������������

��
�
�
�
&
�����
��������	���������
�

�����"���"���	��
����&���
�

�
�
���	��������
��
��9�%
��
"���	�
�

�����
�����
������	���
+�	�
����� �
�$�

��	��"'"�
���������
�
�'��
��������


+�����!!�����	�'������""

���������

�"�	
�
���
	�������!��
��	���	���	�
9

%
�������
"���	�
��������
�
�	�����	���K������
�L�����
�	�
����	����&
�"�&&��	�	
���	���

!
�!�
�&��	��������������!����
�B� �#��
"��
���
�����	��������""
�������
��	"
����
'��

��

������	��"������
�&	�
����
��
������"���"�&&��	�'9�=�	����
����

������ 
��
�
��
��	����
�

��!	���	���������������"�&&��	�	
����� 
����	�	���"�&&��	�	
��	����� 
��
�	�
�
�9

"������������	
������'�����
��������'����	
��<

*�	�	���
��"��	������"�	
�
&
��������$	����
�
���A�%
�����������	�
�
��"��	�����

�"�	
�
&
����������� �����
�
�	����!���	"������

���������
�����
��"�	
�
&
��������&
�

@��"$�����4	���	�'�)���	"�"�&&��	�	
�#�"�	���
��	��!� �	"�"��
�����!
�!�
�	��"�&&��	�	
��

��
�
�!
�!�
����
��
��+���	7�"��	��������	��!���	"��������
+�	!���"���!
�!�
��	�����
��$	����

�

�
�� '���"��� ��	�
��
�9�

��&	�'���!!����A���� �
�$���
�"'"�
�����
!�	���	��#����$��	�����&	�	
�����!��&��
���
�

	&!�����"
����
��"��	��������$	���#�����
��	���!��
��	����$	���#������
��"
��

���
�

!�
����"'�����!��&��
��
����'��	�
��'�
�9

*
�
�
���	�����"���"�&&��	�	
��A���
�
���
��
�
������
��������
�"	�'����������&
��������

&��$
����������
�
���������'���
�"	
���

��������$����
��
�������	�����"���!
�!�
����

	&!���
���
���
�9�=�	���	���	�"���
����$���

� 1&!���
���
���!!�'�����+���	�'��������	�����������
������
+�	�
�	��������!!������
�

����
�� �
�	�"���	�������
�
�!
�	
�"	�����&
�
���
���

� *
��"
���
�	&!�"�����"�	&
�	��	�
��	7�
��K����!���L������	�
���'�����!
�!�
����&�

���	��"	��� 
���	���9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

/"#�������������

Page 157



!�����
�����

*
��"
���
���!� 
��

����
� 
����������������9�

1�"�
��
�
��"��	���������	�&
��������$	����
�
��9�

=�"$�
�"�	&
��������	���"	��� 
���	����K�����!���L9

*
�
�
���
��
!�	�
����"���"�&&��	�	
�9

/���������
��
��	�
��	��
���

C��"�&&��	�	
����� 
��&��������
��������
D�	����
�

"�����'�������!
"�������
!�	���	��9�

)��"��	���������	�&
��������$	����
�
���������
��	�
��

�
���� ��
���
����	�������
���
9�

(
�����	�
+���	�'�&
����
��	���	��
�
�"
��	���
����

�����	�
��
����
�� 
��

����
� 
�����������������

�	��� 
��
��"
�9�

%��$�
���
���F����
�������
�������$	�����
� �������

	�����$#�������	&
�
��"��	���������	�	�����������
�

�����"�	�
�'��

$	������$G���� 
�	����
����
����
D�

	����
�"�����'9

-�	&
������
������"�	&
���� 
� 
������
����	�����

��
���
9

�	����������
�����������


�
��	�������"�	���!����
��������
�&
�	�&���������
��

�
�&���
��
������	����
��""�&!��'	����
�	�
�'�

���� 			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 3

�&'��
��
��()*)

'
������

�����������
�
������
���
�
!

��������	�
�/�������'�.
"�����
�
��!&
��������
���	!

-�	���
������Q������
�!�
������
���	!

(
���������%
��:@
	��������
���	!

��������	�
�.��
��-�&&��	�	
�������
���	!�

)"���&'������
���	!

)��	���&
��������
���	!�

�	���	"��,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!�
��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

&���
����
��
������"��������
��

Page 158



�6��*�.(1*)�	�����	�
��
�"����'����#�����������
����
�	�
��	7�
������& 
�����"����'�	�
�

!�	��	�	
�#���
�
���
��
����!�	"������	��	����	���
�&���������	&!�����������
�!�	��	�	
����
�

�����	��
�
���!����������
�"����'9

=�
�7��
��	���	"��,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!��F,.��G�	����������	�
����
�����!����"
��

"�&&��	�'������
�	
���
�
����������
	����"�����
��#���	"���
>�
"����
	�������& 	�	���#��	&��

����� B
"�	�
�9�=�
�
���"����& 	�	�������
��
��	���������
�!
�����	�
��	�'���
�"����'�	�
�

!�	��	�	
���
������	����	����"�&
��9�

=�	���
"�	����
�������������
�$
'�	���
���	��	��
�"���	���	"����������&&��'������
	��!�	��	�	
��

�����"�	��9�,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!���	������
����	&!����������
����!��'�	��	&!�
&
��	���

 ������
�"����'�	�
�������"���!�	��	�	
��	�
��	7�
���	��	����	�������
�'9

��������	�
������
���	!<�			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 

-�
��
���-�&&��	�'������	��������
���	!<�			-����	���6
�-���-� 

������������
���	!<�			-�&'��
���������
�-���-� 

.�������������	�
������
���	!<�			-������&��-���-� 

/��
������
���	!<�			-����������������
�-���-� 

%
�����������	�
������
���	!<�			-	����&��-���-� 

7�����

��
���
������

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
�	

Page 159



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ����������	�
 �
�
 � ������	�� ��
 ����	�� �� �	�
 	� ��������	�
 ��

Page 160



-�
��
���"��
��������
������E
$&��	��������

��������	�
9�C�&
�����
����
�*	�
��-�
��
���

��	"��>�������������	�#���
��	���	"�����
���

����	+�
�������""
������"�& 	���	��<�	���

7��
������������"�!
�!���	�
����&
������
�

&���������"�	�
�����!	"���
�+�
��"
�
�'�

	����������	�
#���	�������	�	���"�&&
�"	���

����	������	���"
���
�� �	���!���!
�	�'�����


"���&	"����
�����	�����	���'��""
��	 �
�����

�
�	�� �
���"��	��9�

-�
��
���	�����
���	�
�'���>��
�����
�� ���

��
�
���
��	��	7�"�����	��
�
�"
��	���
�����

�	���	 ��	��9�@�� ��'�	��!���	"���������!�"$
���

����
�
�
��
!�	���	��#��
"�������'�����������	��

��
�-����'9����
�����&������
!�	���	����
�	�
�

���&�������	�����	��9����#3

�!
�!�
��	�
�	��-�
��
��9���
��3�D������
�!�!����	����	�
�	����
�

!�	�"	!���"
���
�����@�� ��'#�@	"
��
������H	��	�����?���
��
���	��&��
�������
��&���
���
���
&
����

 
��

���
������#�

�!
�!�
9�0�D������
��	���	"��	�������"�	�
����&�����������D��	
���	��	����
�

�������5�

��@
��#�"����	 ��	������&�$	���-�
��
�����
�������
�����
��
�'�!�!����
���	���	"��

	����
�.�����)���9�.��-�
��
��;��!�!����	�����"
�� ������ �������������"����
��
�9�@�� ��'#�

-�
��
��;���� ���"
���
#�	�����	������	������������
��
��	"
�#���	"��	�"���
���
�(������(��!	���#�

��!!����������
��������	��
��������	"�����
�"�
�� 
'������������	�
9

-�
��
��;��!�!����	���	�"�
��
�� '���&������D� 
��

���EE�������

������ '��������
��

�9�D��	�"
9�5������!�
�	"�	��������������
��0D� '��
�3�������"�&����	�
���93D� '��
�3���
�

�	��	7�"����'��	��
��������
�	������������	��������
�9�4���������
��
"
�������������� 

��

	��@�� ��'�����@	"
��
��������	���	���"���	��
9�@	"
��
�;��!�!����	���	��!��B
"�
���������� '�

��90D� 
��

���

�������
�39�=�
���!	����������"�������
��	���	"���	���!���!�
����
������
�

��"���	��������"���
9

-�
��
��;��!�!����	���!��7��
�	��"����	��9�=�
��

��-
���������
��������9ED������
��	���	"�;��

!�!����	�������������:��	�
�
���	"���	�	�9�=�
�
�������& 
����
�
��
�
����'��	���'�

�	�!
��
�#��!�������&��	��
��"��"
�����	����	����&
�@�� ��'�%����9��

3�
��	&��
��	��	"��
�

�������
����:��	�
�!�!����	�����������������9ED���
����9�1���

���9�D������
�!�!����	���

"���	�
�
����
&�
��
����� 
��������������!����
���������	�
�@�	�	��9�@'��

3���	������������

����
9�D9�)�!
�	
�"
�����
�����������	���������"�&
������"���	��
�����"�&
����&�&	������

���$
������&����	����������
��)���
���)���!
���"�&&��	�	
�9

����	���

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
�


(
�����������

Page 161



-�
��
�������������
��	��
���!��!���	������
:���'
���

�����	����������	�
9�@'��
�����
�!�!����	���	�����
"����

�����
����&��	"���'#��	�����& 
���	��
�"�������
���
��

3��#���
������������
��0��� �����	�"�
��	��� '�����
����

���!
�"
����
�!�	����&��
���������	��������
�#����� '�

&��
���������!
�"
����
�!�	����	����
�"��
������
���
��

0��9

��������
��������
��
����
��	�
!

!���
������������#�

*�	�
���
�����������	���"����������"���
�
���	���

��"��	���������
������
��"��	�����+���	7�"��	���#����

&

����
��

������-�
��
��;�� ��	�
��
�9�

1&!���
�
��"��	������"�	
�
&
��#�!���	"�����'�	��

�
"�����'��"��������
�
����"�&
����
���&
�	&
��

 
����"����'��������	�������
���
�9�=�	��!�� �
&�

	���	���	���
��	��@	"
��
����
�
���
�
�	����&��$
��

&	����	������!�!	���
	��
���������	�
������
�"����'����

���!�	���
��"�����9�

%��$���������"�������
��&	�������	��:�
"������
���

���$����
��
: ��
��	������	
�����-�
��
����	�����

�	
�����!���	�	���&��
���"��#������"�	�
�
&!��'&
���

�!!�����	�	
�9�=�
�
&!��'&
���&	��	��-�
��
���

&
���������
���	�������&�-�
��
������$!��"
����
�

�9ED� 
������
����	�������
���
#� ����
�	�
���;�


���	������
#����
�
�#�� ��
����	�������
���
�9

4�$
�	��
��	
������'�������
����
�
�'����

�����

��9�-�
��
����
�	�
��������
�������
��������$������

!
�!�
�	����
��
��������
�.�����)�����������	�����'9�

1��������� 
����
�������&��'�!
�!�
�	����
�������

�����
��	���	"���
���������$���������@�� ��'�����
��

�����������9�

1�"�
��	�����
���& 
������������ �
���&
���
&�	���

��
����-�
��
��;����!�!�	��	�	
�9�=�
��

��&
�	���

����
�!�	"
����	�"�&
����	��	��09E#��!����&��9��	��

�

�#�� ��
� ����.�����)��������)���	�����
���
�9

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

���##����
��(��������0���
��

Page 162



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


����������
����
�
�����##��
�
��

(
�!�'����

�����
�	��'������&
�����"�&&��	�'#����$	�������
��"
������
����
��
�'�����

�
�
������"�	&
�	��-�
��
��9���
�����"�	&
��
�
������!!
�� '���9�D� 
��

���

�M
������

�

�M
0�F���
����
��"�	�������E���
!���
��"�	&
�G#�"�&!��
���	������
9ED��
��"�	���

�"�������
�=��&
��/���
'9�(��
�
�#�	���

3��
�	�
�����
����
������
����������
�	����'����
��

��������	�
��	���	"��	���
�&����� 
	�������
��������$	�������
����	�����
���'��������	���9

*
�	�����	����	���5���	������	��!��������C�������������	�
9

-�:���	���
#�	&!���
�����!���	�
�&��
��	�
��
������""
��	 �
��
�����!���	�	����������	"
�

��������	&!���
��
��"��	��#�!����
���	!����$	��#� 
��
����"����""
�������	�"�
��
��"��	"
9

4�$
�	��
��	
������'�������
������
����'������"�	�
��	�
9

*
��"
��

���
�"��"
!�	������
�����-�
��
����������	��������	�	������
��	����������������	��

@�� ��'�������	����
��	��
����
D�	��)�������	���

�9

1&!���
���"����
��	"
�������!!�����	�	
��	����������
��9����������������	��-�
��
������
�

��
���������
����
�	����
��
D�&�����
!�	�
�����	�����'����� ���	
����������	��������
��	"
�9

�
�
��!���
���	+�
�"����"�
������@�� ��'#�@	"
��
������H	��	����������
��
��
�����
��
�

���!�	�
#� 
����	��������
�"�&&��	�'������
�	���
9

1&!���	�����
�+���	�'�����	�
��������#�!���	"�����'����
��!
�!�
#���
�'����#��	�� �
��!
�!�
�

����
���	"�&	���	�	
���
"���	�	���������!!���	�����
�	&!����������
������
���&	�'#�"��
��#�

��������'��
"����������	���"�&&��	�	
�9�

���
���#������
���
#����������

����
"������
����"
�����
��	���&
��#��	���	�
��� 	�����������
�"�����'�	�
9�

����
"������
����"
����� �	���
��	���&
��9�1��������� 
����
�������-�
��
����������	"��

 �	����
�	���
#��	����!!���	&��
�'��#


��	��
�� �	��	����F093D������
�.�����)���;�������G�

�������"���
����	�����
��9

*
��"
�"�� ���
&	��	���9��
��"�!	���"�� ����	��	�
�
&	��	����	��-�
��
���	���

���
�
�

�	��	7�"����'��	��
��������
�	������������	������
�
��#������������&
��	"�
&	��	�����
�
�

��
����
���	����������	�
9

1&!���
������
���������
��'��	����
"'"�	������
��F�0D������&
��	"�����
������
"'"�
��	��

�

�M
0G����������
�"����
��"
���
��&������������7��������
9�

��
!��
����������
�!���������
�
��
"������"�	&��
�"����
9

-���
��
��
����"
�������
��"
�
�
��'�"����&!�	��9

#�����%
�
����

��&���
���$

=�
���"����
�
��!&
������&
���$�F,��G��	�����!!����������"	�	���
���
��
�	�
�'������
��	&��

�	��	����
������	�� �
�"�&&��	�'������
�'9��	�������&��
����			-����	���-���-� 

��

Page 163



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


�������	��"
������'���"��
���	��	��

)������#�����	�������
��
���������
�

"����'������������	�
9�

�������	����
������
�&����

!�������!�
�#�7��&
�#�������	��
��

� ����"	�	
��	����
������9�=�
�
����	���

	&��
����
�����	����	"��������������
�
�

	&��
����
��	�����������>����	��	���

����	���	������'� 
"���
�	��	���	����	"�

����������������	�����	�	��	��&	��	���9�1��

	�#����
�
�#����'���
�!�����������"	�';��

����'9�������������
� 
�	��	��������
�

�����"
����'#���	�
���	����	���	����	����	"�

"��
�������

���!�"
�#�	��������"�'����&�

	���&
�	����
�
��'!
9�

=�
�!�!����	�������������	��&	�:�

��

	��
��	&��
����� 
����#


�9�1��&��$
��

"��������������
��!����������
�"����'#�

�������	��
���	"���'�����"��������'�

�	�
��
#��	�����
���	����	��
���&	���	�'�


���	"�!�!����	���	����
�.�����)���9�

=�
�"	�'�	���������'�"��������'��	�
��
�

 ��������'�������9���D����������;��

!�!����	���"���	��������3:�E�'
�������9�

=�	��	����	"
���
����	�������
���
�9���
��

�
#


�����
��������	
������:�	&
����

��
�������	�
��	�	
���	���

�M
3?���	��	��

��
��	��
���!��!���	����������
����	��

)�����������%��
��9

"&'��
��
��

�9 .���"
<�4	��Q
���)��	&��
���

�#���7�"
�����C��	�����.���	��	"�

�9 .���"
<��

��-
����#���7�"
�����C��	�����.���	��	"�

�9�.���"
<�(	��
��)��"��	���.���	��	"����
�"'

�9�.���"
<��

��-
����#���7�"
�����C��	�����.���	��	"�

��

�
���������
"��
'��
����

Page 164



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

�������	�������>��
���"	�'9�(��
�
�#�&
�	���
���	��������
�	�
����FR�00�!
���

$G���
����
��

�������
��
�	�������
���
��������
�"	�'�"����	���!�"$
�������
�
�
��
!�	���	��9����0����
���	��

������#��0���
��&������
��
D�&�����
!�	�
����
���	��)������39�=�
�
���
�������
��&���	!�
�

�
�
�������
!�	���	���:������$	���#�����	�"�&
�������	����
�
������"�	&
9�

=�
�"	�'�	����&
������������#�

� ��	�
��
��!���	�	����
0#


�B� �9�=�
�
����� 

���	���
�

"����
�	����
���������& 
�����B� ��	�����������
����
�������
�'
���9����&�����"���	�������

�
"�	�
�#���
�
�B� �����
�

 

���
!��"
�� '�B� ��	��

�
����#�
��"��	�������

��
��
��	"
��
"����9�0ED�

���
&!��'

���������$�

	���
��	"
�#�	�"���	�����D�

	��!� �	"���&	�	�����	��#�


��"��	��������
�����9

���
��$
'��
����
�������
�

��"���
"���&'�	�"���
���
�

 	��"	
�"
��
"���#�1=#��������
�

����"�
��	�
�&
�	�� ��	�
��
��

������	�
��	�'�J�!	�:���;�

"�&!��	
�9�=�
�	&!�"�����

��
�
��"��	���
"���&'#�

��	�
��	�	
������&�B���

�
�"�	������!	������
�!��	�	�
�

��	�
���������
�
"���&'�

 ������������
������	�	�����

!�!����	�������!����!�
����
�

�����
�����	���&��$
�9�

��������������	����
�
�����	�:

"�&&��	��#��	���������������

	������$���"
��	�	�������	�
�	���

 ������'09

�9�.���"
<��������.���
'����(���������)���	����

�#���7�"
�����C��	�����.���	��	"�

39�.���"
<�1��	"
������
!�	���	����

�#��
!���&
�������-�&&��	�	
������,�"���5��
��&
��

�9�.���"
<�/��	���#����	�� �
����&�C�&	��F���9��&	��
 9"�9�$G

09 .���"
<��

��-
����#���7�"
�����C��	�����.���	��	"�

Page 165



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

=�
�"	�'�	�����
��
�'�!�"$
���� ����!�"
�:�"��
�	����3��+�$&�F�E��+�&	�
�G�:��	����
�'�

�	����
�
����������	����
��	�'9�=�
�
���
��
�
�
�!�
����
���������	������"$#��	�������
�

"��"
�����	���������&
��	��&���	!�
��""�!��	��������	��	7�"������& 
��������&
�
�������

���
������
�� �
�����!�9�(���
�!�	"
��	�����������
���&�����
���	&
����
��
��������������

	�"�&
�E9�=�	�����	��	��"���	�
�� �'��	��
���������
�.�����)������
���
9�-���
+�
���'���
�

��
���
�B�	�������	�� �
�&������
�	���������
���������
���
���
�!�	"
��������
�9

�������
� �'	���	����
�"	�'�	����������
�"�����&��������
�����#���
�
�	�������
��
&��������

&��
�������� �
��
��
������	���	��������9�=�
�������.�����)�������������
��������


��
��

����
��������� 
��
�
��!
��	���������-	�'����	�����
��
�'
���!
�	����

3�A��
�3�F��
�!
��

'
��G�����	�"���
�����
�	
�������
���

�� 
�����	"��&�'��
�����	���!!�����	�	
�����&

����&
�

�����
�����	���!�
����
��	����
�"	�'9�

-���
&!����'��������	������� ��� ����9�1��	�����
"���&	"��� ������
�"
���
������
�.�����)��������;��

"
��������������	�
��� :�
�	���������
�*
�	�����)"���&	"�.����
�';��K�	�&��������	��
��&
���

����������L9������"��	��	��!����������� :�
�	����	�����
���
��
���"��"
�����	�������
�
��"������

�
�
��!&
���	���
��
���)���!
#��	����������:"�����$����
��
�
"���&'���������
�!	���"���	��
��

!���!
�	�'�����B����	����������	�
� ���	����
������:
�������)����������� 
'���9

�������	������!�	��
����	���������	����
��	���	������������"�
���!!���	&��
�'�090�&	��	����	�	�����

	���

��
9�=�
�"	�'������"�
����
��
�	����	���K)���!
���-
���
����-�����
L�	���

�#�����"	��
��

�	�����
��H�����	������K)���!
���-�!	�������-�����
L�	���

09�=�
�"	�'�"
���
�	�����
�	�����

���!!	����
��	���	��#���	"��!
����&��
���
&
�'��
�������������������"��"'����
9��������	��

���$
���	����������
��	��"
���
�����
�	�����	&!�����"
�	����
�.�����)���9�=�
��
��	����"
����

��
�%
���)���	�����
�"	�	���B�	���!��B
"�� 
��

��.))��#��������-	�'�-���"	��������������	�
�

-����'�-���"	�9�=�
��	�	���	��������
�"�
��	���������	 �����+����
�������
�"	�'�"
���
����������	���

��&	�������
��������"	�	�	
����������
���
�
��!��!!�����	�	
����������	�&#�"�����
������
��	�9

��
���


���������'�����-�&&��	�'�5���!��
�	���	����������	�
��	���������
�!��!���	���

!���	�	����
��	"
�������
��
�	�
��������������-	�'��9

E9 .���"
<�*��	�����&
�	�������
�!�	"
����&
�	���
���	�����

�#��
!���&
�������-�&&��	�	
������,�"���

5��
��&
��

�
9 .���"
<�=�
�)"���&	"�1&!�"�����=���	�&���������

�#�=���	�&�.�����)���

��9 �������-	�'�-���"	��!���	�
��R�93&�	������������"�&&��	�'�������������'��
"���������	���	����	���

3M�

Page 166



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

��������
�������
�������������
��������

�����

=�
��������.����
�	"������
���	!;���	�	���	�����&�$
����������������"�����"	�'�����
�
�'��
9

=�
������
���	!��
"���	�
����������
����
�	�����
���"���
"���&'�	����"�����"���	���	���
������

	&!�"��������
������
���	!;��7��
�$
'�!�	��	�	
������� B
"�	�
�<

=����"$�
���
����
����

������&��
�������� �
�����	��9

=��	&!���
���
��
�����������"	����
����
������
�!
�!�
����������� '�!���	�	���

�!!�����	�	
������	&!���	����
��	"
��������
�����
�� �
���������
�
�!
�	
�"	���

�	���������
������
!�����	��9�

=�����$����������������-	�'� 
"�&	�����"�� ����
������"	�'�������"
���
����
�"
��
�"
�����

"�	&��
�"����
����!���	�������&	�	���	���	�	�	��	�
�9�

=�����$�	��!����
���	!����	&!���
���
�!� �	"��
��&�	��������
��������
�"	�'�

=��&�$
����������&��
�"��
�	�
��������
��!��"
9

=�
�
�!�	��	�	
���	�$��������'������
����

�$
'���
&
�������������	�
��
�


%�����"�����
"���&'

(
����'��������	�	���"�&&��	�	
�

)��	���&
�������"�	&��
�"����
�

��������
���
���
�#�����%
�
����

��&���
���$

=�
��������.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�'�.����
�'�F.-.G�������
�,�"����
�
��!&
������&
���$�

����-��
�.����
�'���
� 
	���!�
!��
��	��"���
�"���� ����	��#��	���-	�'�-���"	��!����
���

�
!���	����
������'������
�.����
�	"������
���	!9�������
����#���
���!	���	�����
������	����
�


&
��	���-��
�.����
�'��	�	�����
��
�'��	&	�����������
�	����
�.-.��	�	��9�=�
�-��
�.����
�'�

����
��������������������<

 �	������	�����	+�
��
�	���
�����	��
����	������
!����	��9�1��
&!���	�
����
�	&!�����"
����

�
���
�
��!&
����"����	 ��	��������
��	��	�"�	�
�"����"�
�����!���	"�������
������������9

 
������
����
���������&
����
�������"$�
�"�	&��
�"����
9


����"
�	������
�������� :�
�	�����"�!	���������
��	"
�"
���
#�
9�9� '�!��&��	��������	�� �
�

����	�&�������
��
��	����"
������
�%
���)��9

 �	������	������
�����������"
���
����
�"
��
�"
�	����
�����"������	��
��
��"��	��#��
�����

�
��	"
�#�"���&�����"���	��#�����&
�	"��������"	
��	7�"��
�
��"�9

Page 167



���������
5������4����������8���������������������%

�"�	
�	������	����
�
������������ �
�����	������&��
�	�
��	����
�
��!&
������� '�

�
+�	�	�������!!��!�	��
�"����	 ��	������&�"�&&
�"	����
�
��!&
��9

���!�	����������!����	���!��	"	
�����>�����!���
"�	�������&	�	&	�	�����
���
����
�
��'�

�������������
����"
��	���
���
�
��!&
�������&	�	���
���
�	&!�"�����"�	&��
�"����
9

����
��	�����
���
&
�����
�����������"	���	�"���	��� '<

� !��&��	�����
�!���	�	�������	���+���	�'�"���
�	
�����"����
������
��	"
�

� !�	��	�	�	����
����

���!�"
��	����
����	������	��	7�"����"���
����������


� !��&��	����
�
�
���	���	����
�&�����
!�	�
����
��������
�"	�'9

�	�������&��
����			-�&'��
���������
�-���-� 

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

������/��������
����

Page 168



.�������������	�
�	����&�	��'���������
����������+���
�&	�
�#���B�	�	����������	����
������#�

����*
��	���	����
�.����#��	���%'"�& 
�����&�	�
��
������
��&	�
�������
�
���9�1������

 
���	����"�����'�	�
#���	"��	�"���
������	�����������#�����
���	���#��	����	"�!��$����#����:

�'	������&����������	�
��	�
�&
�������	"��	�� 	��	�
��	�'9�=�
�*	�
��=��&
�#��������������

.�������������	�
����&���
������:�
��������
��	���	"�����5��	��9

����������!
��"
������.�������������	�
;����0#


��
�	�
�����	�
�	����
����������������	�"��#�

(
��
'#�=��&
�����%���	��������	�����
�&�B��	�'�F3�DG��	�	���	����
�&��
������
	���'�

�	����
�������
���
&
����������'	����	N
���������������
��	���	"�9��	�"��#��
"
���'��
�	����
��

��C
��5��������	��#����� 
�
7��
�����&�	��
��&
���	�����
�����!!	���"
���
#�"	�
&��

������
�-���
�����
������-
���
�������
����

��	����	"�&��$
��������
�"�����
���
	������

�	��	�"�	�
�"����"�
�������
�	���
9

���	"�����
�	����
�&�	���������
�	��.�������������	�
� �����
��	���	"�������"����	���&��'�

�"	
�"
������	�������
� ��	�
��
�#�!���	"�����'�	��������������	�"��#�������
����������������

!���	�
�������
���� ��	�
��
������
&!��'&
����!!�����	�	
�9

8�����"&'��
��
��

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
�	

%
���������

Page 169



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

�����#
��
�����

��
&!��'&
������
����
����#�"���
���'�����	������

�
���������D9

��
������
��	� 	�	�'������
�&��$
��������	����$
'�

"��"
���������
�����	�������	��
!
��
��� ��	�
���

�����!
"	��	����
��	������
�������	&!���
&
�������

�	�	������"	�	�	
������&��$
�	�����
��

�����"
������

�����
������;�!���!
�	�'9

���&� ��
��
&!��'&
��������
"�	�
�� '���&����

��
:7������	�"
��EE
9

�&���� ��	�
��
�����	�
�	��.�������������	�
?�

 ��	�
��
���
�	��
�	�������/�=�	���

��������
�

�	��
�������	�������
�F��DG�	����
�"����'9

��
�������
��
�
�����+���	7�"��	��������
�	�
����	��

�	��#� ����
�!
��"
��������
����$���"
��������

���&���+���	7�"��	��������0D���� ��	�
��
��	����
�

�	���	"���
!�������$	������!9

8��
���
�����

���	��
��!��!���	������!
�!�
���
���
����
���
�����
�	�
&
���	��.�������������	�
�F�
9�DG�

"�&!��
���	�����
����	�������
���
#�������
�!��B
"�
��	�"�
��
�	����
�!�!����	�����
�����

������
�� 
��

���

3������
�3�	��33D9

.�������������	�
�	����
������
��
�����
!�	�
��!����������
�"�����'� ���!�"$
������

�
!�	���	���
�	��9

�
�!�
�	��.�������������	�
���
��
���	�
�'��
����'� �����
�
���
���
��
��������&��&�$	���


�"��'
��#���D����!
�!�
���
� 	��
���	�$
��#�� 
�	�'����
����
��	�	����������'���D����

�������!���	"	!��
�	����
��
"�&&
��
���

$�'��
�
������"�	�	�'9

1��4�'��

����
���
���
�����
�!�	"
�����R�

#�

�"�&!��
���	��������	�������
���
����

R���#


�������
���
����������������������	��������� �
�����	���	��.�������������	�
�	��0�����	��9�

.�������������	�
�
�!
�	
�"
�������
�
�������
!���
��"�	&
������

�	����������
�'���
�

	&!���	��� �����"������
���
�����	��"	��� 
���	����	����$
'�"��"
����&�������
�	�
��������

��"������
���
���""	�
�������
&
��
�"'���&	��	������
��	�	��9

Q�����!
�!�
����
���!����	&��
��&������&��'�������� ���&��'�"�&&��	�	
�������

�
"���	�
��������"	�	�	
�������""
�����������!��������'�����!
�!�
��

����� 
�	&!���
�9

4��'�!
�!�
��
�'����"�&&��	�'�������������'��"�	�������
�!���
&�����""
���!� �	"�����

���
���
��	"
�9

(�
��#�
�����	���'�+�����1��1��
"��

Page 170



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


���
���#������
�����

.�������������	�
�������
��	��
���"������
���	!��������
��������	��	����
�"�����'9

!�����	��+���	�'�	���
��	��.�������������	�
���
��	�
"��'��	�$
�����"���
��	������������!����


&	��	���9

��&
��	"�
�
��'�"����&!�	�������-���
&	��	����	��.�������������	�
���
��	��
���������
�

��������	�
#�.�����)���������H���
���
�9

��
��&����������&
��	"�����
��
"'"�
�����"�&!���
������	�"�
��
��'
������'
��� �����
�

�������&����������&
��	"�����
�"���
"�
��!
���
������������	�"�
��
�9

!���
������������#�

"�
��
�������!!�����	 ������������	�	���
"���&	
��	��

&��$
�������������	����
�9

�"�	
�
������	�� �
� ����"
���� ��	�
���������#��
������

&��
���"���': ��
��B� ������
��	���&
�����!���
"�	��9

	�"�
��
�	������	��
��&
��9

�
�
��!����$	��
������&��	���
�����$���"
�&��"�
�����

��"��� ��	�
����

��������!!�����	�	
�9

����������
����
�
�����##��
�
��

�
��"
�"�	&
������
������"�	&
�	����
��	���	"�9

&

��!
�!�
;������	����

���	��.�������������	�
9

 ����"
�����	����
�
��!&
����	���!���
"�	�������


����"	�����
�
��	���&
��9

	&!���
���
���!!�����
��	"
�������������'#�"�&&��	�'�����

��	�������!�9

��!!������"���!
�!�
�����
�
��!�	�"���	�
�!�����������
	��

��
�9

!��&��
�������!!�����!!�����	�	
������!
�!�
����������
��

����
��	�����
��	��"�&&��	�'��	�
�������!!����	�"���	�
�

����"��
�	�
�"�&&��	�	
�9

!��&��
��""
�������
��	"
�9

	&!���
�!
�!�
;���
����������
��: 
	��� '�!���	�	���

+���	�'��
�����"��
�����!���"�	�
�'����$	���	��!����
���	!�

���!�
�
���	��:�
����9

�


.�������
��	
���
��	
����
����
Page 171



���
���#������
���
#����������

!���
"������
����"
���
�+���	�'�������� �	���������������
��	���&
��9

!���
"������	&!���
���
�+���	�'��������!� �	"��!
���!�"
�9

�
��"
�����
9

"���
��
��
����"
�������
��"
�
�
��'�"����&!�	��9

!�
!��
����������
�!���������
�
��
"������"�	&��
�"����
9

&�	���	�	�������	&!���	�����
�+���	�'������
���������
��	���&
������������"�!
9

#�����%
�
����

��&���
���$

=�
���"����
�
��!&
������&
���$�F,��G��	�����!!����������"	�	���
���
��
�	�
�'������
��	&��

�	��	����
������	�� �
�"�&&��	�'������
�'�F.-.G9�=�
�.-.���"�&
���!���	�
��
��&!�
�����

������
�"��
������
�'��������
��,���!��	"	
���	�����!!�����
�	�
�'������$
'��	&���	��	��
�"��

�����
���
&
���
��9������
��	����&��	���� ������
��
�
��!&
��������
�,���	�����	�� �
����

			-������&��-���-� 3�������������'�����

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

����������
��+�����1��1��
"��

Page 172



=�
�/��
����%�	�
�(���
�F��
�J/��
;G�"��
��������
������0
��+���
�$	��&
��
������
��
����

���&���
�
��
�����������	����
�������
������&���������
�
��
����.�	�����	����
��������
��9�

=�
�������
���������
��	���	"��"����	���!����������
��������5�

��@
�������	����
���������
�

���������&�!���������
�C�����%
��
����������
�������������	���C�������@
���'9�=�
�*	�
��

=��&
�����&����
������
�������!���������
�
���
��� ������'������
��	���	"�9

=�
�/��
�	������&��
������	���������"����"�
��&	��������
��<���
�����!��
������	��������	�"���

������
��
�
���	��������&����&�$
�&�B���"����	 ��	���������
�!��
���������
����!!�'������
�

�	�
���
�	��9�=�
��H��
�
�"
��"��
&'����%��"�7�
��#���
�.�S��@��	�
���."����;��)�
"��	�
�

)��"��	���-
���
����)����
����$#������������@���$
����	�
��	�';��%
��&	���
��-�&!�������

!���	�
��	��
��
��"��	�����"	�	�	
�9�=�
�
���
�
��
��	�
�
&!��'&
�����
���	�"���	���4	�����

���$�������
�(���
���."	
�"
�����1������	���-�&!���A���
������
�����
����
�
��"��"
���
��	��

)���!
9�=��
��
����
�
������	�
��
&!��'�� ������#


�!
�!�
9�

I������
������������
�/��
;�����#�

��
�	�
�����	�
�	����
�7��
�&�	���
���
&
�������� 	�����#�@���
'#�

���	�����#�5���
�����%�����
9�=�
��
��������
�!�!����	����	�
��	����
���
��	����
��������&�
��9

9�����'�!�
��������

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

)����������	��+
��

Page 173



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


1������&���

����
�/��
������
���	!�!�
!��
��

���J1���
�������!�	���;��
!���9�=�
��
!����

����	�
����
�	���
���������
�/��
��	�����"
�	����
�

�����
����������
�����"���	�
����'��	����	"��

��
'�&	���� 
�����
��
�9�=�
������
���	!���
��

"������
���	����
�	�
�������� ��	�
��
�����

�
����&��
�� �����������
�	���
����"	�����
�

/��
�	����
������
�&	���� 
#�����������"���

!
�!�
����� ��	�
��
������������
����
��	���

�	�����
&9�(����
�������
�	�
��������
�	������

���
��
��&

�	����������	���

� �"$��
�!
��

�	�����
�!�
!����	��������
�/��
;��.����
�'�����

.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�	
��F��
�K.����	�� �
�

-�&&��	�'�.����
�'LG9�

8��
���
�����

=�
�/��
����������
	���!�!����	��9�@
��

��

�

3������
�3���
�!�!����	���	����
��	���	"��

��
����
�����	��
��	&��
�����	�"�
��
� '�3�D9

4��'��
�	�
�������
��
����� �
�	�"�&
��

 ���	���

��3#


��
�	�
����F�D������
�/��
;��

!�!����	��G��
�
��
!
��
������&
�����
��
��

 
�
7����������������#E

�"�	���
���	�
�	������

	�"�&
�����
�����9

1��	��
��	&��
��������
D�����������	����
�/��
�

��
�� 
�
9

1���
�&������
!���
��"�	&
#���
�/��
�	����
������
����
����	���	"���	��.�����)����)������#� ���

��
��
������"�	&
�	�����
���"��"
�����"���'9�

4��'�'�����!
�!�
���'���
'�����������
���	����������	����
	���
	���
��	&
9

1���

3����������D����!�!	���	����
�/��
;������
��"�������	�������"�	
�
�7��
����&��
��T����-�

5-.)�!���
�9

=�
�
�	����������
��
����"�&&��	�'�	����
�/��
� ���&��'��
�	�
�����"$����
��
��������
'�

����������
���
��	&
���� 
�	�����
��	����
	����"���"�&&��	�'9

=�
���
���
�����
�!�	"
�	����
�/��
�	���
���'��	�
��	&
���	��
���������
���
���
�	�"�&
9

=�
�/��
�	�����������	���	"�������""
�������
��	"
������B� ��	��&��'���
���	���	�7�"���#��	���

&��'�!
�!�
����	��������
���"�������
�������!� �	"������!���9

��

%
��
�����	��������

Page 174



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


�����#
��
�����

=���7�"�"���
��	��#�!���	"�����'����

��
����#��	���"���	��
�������
"����
�

"�&!
�	�	�
�
��������"��� ��	�
��
�9

=�
�/��
������	���	&
����
����	�����

��
���
�����
�
��"�������
�
��!&
���

B� �� ���-�	��#�1��	���������
��
&
��	���


"���&	
����
�	��
��	����
��	�'�	��

��
��$	�����

�
�����"�&!
�
��	�������


"���&'9�

���������"
���
����
���������
�B�'	���

��
������ 
�
7���������
�/��
;��
"���&	"�

��""
��9

���&	���"���	��
�����"����
#��	����	��
��

���	��!�	"
��&�$	����	�
���"$����&	���

�	�7�"�����������	�"�
��
��	��
�
���	��

����	��� 	�&�������"��!������ 	�:��
�?�

 ���������	"�����
���
�!��
��	������

"����
���
����$������
�"�����'�	�
9�

���
���#����
�����

����
�I��'��

�����
"�����&����������	��

"���
��
��
��	�
�>����	���	����
�/��
#�

���	��������>����	����������
��
���
&
�

�
���
��"���	�	����&�'� 
"�&
�&��
�

��
+�
���	����
������
9�

1���

3�
�
�'�!
�����	����
�/��
�

!����"
�������
���
��������	��������

����
������  	��9�

=�
�
�	������ �����	��� ��'����
�	�
�"
��������
�)����;��"�	&��
�	��"����	���������
�����������

	�"�
��
�	����

�����
����
����	"����
����!!	���&��
��
��������
�!���
�;�������"
9

=�
�����	���!�!����	���	����
�/��
�������
�.�����)�����	���!��"
�	�"�
��	���!�
����
����

���
����!!�	
�?�=��&
��%��
��	��"������	������!��!��������� �	���������
��
�
���	���
���

� 	�����9

=�
�������.�����)���������!��!��
���������#��
��
����&
��������� 
� �	���	����
�/��
�

 
��

���

3������
�39�

��

%����
"��23���
�,�
�����'�4����

Page 175



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

��������
�����������


����������
����
�
�����##��
�
��

(
����	
��"�&&��	�	
�9

1&!���	���+���	�'�����	�
��������
��!
�!�
9

.��
��"�&&��	�	
�9

����
�	�������
��
���
��
����"�&&��	�'9

����������
������	���������������!��	���!�	��	�	
�9

1�����	���'�����!
�!�
9

(
�!	�������
��	������"��������""
���B� �������
��	"
�9

������� �
���&
�9

5����+���	�'���&
�9

�""
�����������+���	�'���

���!�"
�#��!���#�"�������������
	���
���"	�	�	
�9

!���
������������#�

����
��	���
"���&	"��
�$�
��
�9

@�	��	����������
"���&	"����
�����9

4�	���	�	�������
����"	�����
��
����������	���	�'������
�/��
;��&��$
�������"
���
�9

���
���#������
���
#����������

������"�� ���/��
9

,	�	����	���
���
&
��
���
��"���	�	���9

��	����
����"
���	�
�'9

*
��"	�������
�����	�"�
��	����
"'"�	��9

���	���+���	�'��������������	����	"�
��	���&
��9

#�����%
�
����

��&���
���$

=�
�"�&&����	&������
�/��
;��.����
�'�����.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�	
��������
�,�"���

�
�
��!&
������&
���$�	�����"�
��
������!��"
������	�
��������$9�.�&
��"�	�����	��� 
�

��"$�
���!
"	7�"���'���������!��	"	
������!��!������	����
�,�"����
�
��!&
������&
���$?�

��	�������
����	��� 
�����
��
������������
�.����
�'�����.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�	
�9

�	�������&��
��� 			-	�
�������
�-���-� 3��##��
��:�������:��
:�
�
��3

��##��
��:��������3
�'����-���

2
�������

(�����

Page 176



%
�����������	�
��	
�������
��
��������
�"	�'����������������
��
��
���
��
������
�.�����

)����*
�	��#�������B�	�����
�-����'� ������	
���	���5���"
��
���	�
�����%���	"$��	�
9�=�
�

�!!
���
�"�
�������
�*	�
��=��&
�����&���
������
��� ������'�������
�-��������(	����"��
��

��
������:�
��
���!���������
��	���	"�9�

%
�����������	�
�	����
������
�&���������"�	�
�!��������@�	��	�#���"���&	��� �
������ ����	���

&��$
�������#�!	"���
�+�
��	����
������ �
�����$	������������"
�
�'9�����	��������
��	���	"��

	��	����
�-����������
�������������	���C�������@
���'#������D��	
���	��	����
�5�

��@
���

��������	����������-	�'9�=�
��	���	"��������!�!����	������� �����

#


�!
�!�
��������

��
������
��	�'������������9��!
������!
���
"���
#�&�$	���	����
������
�&����������������	�	
��

�	��	����
�.�����)����*
�	��9�*
�	�
���������	�	�����
�B�'����	���+���	�'�
��	���&
��#��	���

����������
��
����!��"
��
�	�
�����&���
�"����"�
�����	��� �	��	�����
��	�������"�	�
�����	���

"�����'�	�
���������
���	�
������
'�9�=�	��!��"
����
���	&!�����"
����!���
"�	�������


����"	�����
�
��	���&
��#�����&����	�����
�	&!�"������"�	&��
�"����
9

%
�����������	�
��������	"����"�	�
"�����������	����	"��
�	���
�����	������&�-������������
�

"�����
��������'�����
������������
��!�
���������@�
��
	&�����"
#���%�����(
�	���
��	�
9�

!����"&'��
��
��

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
��

(������"��
�
��'�%��������

Page 177



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


=�
�
���
������	��	�"�������"�!
��'!
�#���
�-��������

(	����������
��!!
��=��&
��-��'�/��
9�.
�
����

�	�
�����"�������
�%	������#�)�
����
#�=��&
������

-�
��
���"����	 ��
������
��	���	"�;���	"�� 	��	�
��	�'�

�������
���!!�����	�	
�������
	���
������
"�
��	��#�

	�"���	�������������
�����
����
������
��!	��9�

=�
�
���
�&��
�������

�&	�
�����!� �	"�����!����#�

 �	��
��'��������':&��$
������
���"�������
�

�	���	"�9

=�
�
���
����������
��
!����
��
���
&
���#� ���

�
������
�������9��
D������
�!�!����	����	�
��	��

��
���������
���"
���
��F%	��
'�����-���
����G#�

�������
"���������
�������� '��
�3��
���'���������

��
�!�!����	����	����	�
�	��B�����D������
��	���	"�;��

��
�9�%
�����������	�
��������	��
��!��!���	������

�
�	�
��������
�	�
&
�����
��������'������
����
��

��������	�
��	���	"��������
�.�����)������
����#�����

��	��!��!���	���	�����
"�������	�"�
��
��	��	7�"����'�

��
����
��
����
��'
���9�-���
�����	����&
����*���

@�	N
�C�����#���
�!��!��
��
�!���	��������	"��

&
������
��	���!��!���	������!
�!�
�	����
��	���	"��

���$	���	������	�$
�������
��
��	"
�"�&&��	�'�	��

�	$
�'����	�"�
��
9�

=�
���
����"
�����&�B�����"	���!�� �
&�#�����"�	&
�7����
����
��&��������
����
���	����
�

"�����'9�=�
���"���
"���&'�!
����&���
��#��	���� ��
���
���
��
�
������
���
!�
�
��	���

�"�	�	�'#�������
&!��'&
����������	������ ����&��$
�9�=�
���
��	����������"�	�
�!��"
�����	�
�

�����$	��
�������#��	������	�
��
�
"���&'�	�"���	���"����
�������	����
"������'�	������'�������

�����������	�&��
"������������
��R�

�&	��	����������'������
��	���	"�;��
"���&'9�(��
�
�#�

�	�������
�!�	"
��	����
��	���	"��"���&�$
�	���	�7�"��������'�����!
�!�
�������&	�	
��������'�	��

��
���
�#�����"�& 	�
���	��������
	���!�!����	�����	��"�
��
��"����
��
������"�&&��	�	
��

	��&�	���	�	�����
��	 ���"'�����!���!
�	�'������
������������	����
�9

4�	����������"�������
���
#����#���3��������
E��!���	�
��""
����������
��"
���
������	�
�

�����
��	���	"�� ����	��	��
��'��
�"�#�	�"���	���������#�.�	����#�-�
��
���&�����@�� ��'9�

=�
�-������������-�
��
���/���
'���	���'��	�
��!��������������
���
�#�������
�
�	�����
����$�

��� ����
��	"
������"�&&��	�'������!�����"�
&
�9��
�!	�
���	�#�� ������+����
�������
�

��

��
������

Page 178



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


!�!����	����	�
��	����
������$
���	��	����
�������

�
D�	��)�������	���
�&������""
��	 	�	�'����������
�

����
��	"
�9�������
�����&��'��������
�	�
�������
�

������
����	�
� �������
�'����"����F��
�
����	�� �
G#�

&
��	�����
��	���	"����"
���!
"	7�"�"����
��
��	��


����	��������
�	�
����"����""
�����
��
��	"
������

��"	�	�	
����
'��

����������	����
������
9�

!���
������������#�

.����	��
"���&	"���'�!���!
����������	 �����

�����������	����
�9

-�
��
����
��	���&
��������
�"�����
�����	�
��
�����
����

 ��	�
����'!
������
&!��'&
����"�������
��	���	"�9

�
�
��!	����$	�����������!!������"��� ��	�
�����""
��9

�
�
��!	����!!��!�	��
� ��	�
����
�
��!&
���������!!����	����
���"�����
�9

5	�
�'�����!
�!�
���
� 
���"���"
������	�	���
&!��'&
������� 
"�&	���
"���&	"���'�

	��
!
��
��9

����������
����
�
�����##��
�
��

��"	�	���
��	 ����#�	�"���	�
����������	�� �
�"�&&��	�	
�#���������
�����
��!
"	7�"�

"����
��
������	�	���	��������%
�����������	�
�	���
�&������""
�������
��	"
��������"	�	�	
�9

)����
����������!��	"'������
��	"
��
�	�
�'�	���� B
"������
��	������&�$
����
�	��"���	�
�����
�

	&!�"�����������	���
��������
���F������!���7���G9

I�	������$	������	&!���
��""
�������
��	"
�#�	�"���	�����"�:���	���
���!!���"�����

&	�	&	�	�����
� ���	
���
�!
�	
�"
�� '����
��!
�!�
9

���&��
������
�!���"	�	���
�	��
��&
���	���
��	��������"���
����� 
��
��!� �	"������!���9

-�
��
���B�	�
�:�!��!!���"�����	&!���	����
����������
��: 
	��#�����!��&��
�����

��!!�����
����'��	�
��'�
�"��	"
�9�

����
�����
�	�
+���	�	
��	���
�����	��%
�����������	�
#������
�����	���
��������!!�����

���

�!
"	7�"���������
	���!�!����	�����"�����&
������
����������
�� 
	���������"	���	�"���	��9

1&!���
���
�!��&��	��������
��
����
����"�	���
������'�����!
�!�
�	����
��	���	"�#�����

��!!����"�&&��	�	
��������
�����	�
�����
����!��	�	�
��"�	�	�	
������'�����!
�!�
9

=��!��&��
���
�!���	�	�������
��������� �
���&
�#�	�"���	��� 
��
���""
������������� �
�

����	�������	&!���
&
���	����
�������� 	�	�'����
�	��	����""�&&����	��9

�����
���
��"
�"�	&
�������	���"
������
������"�	&
��"�������
��	���	"�����	&!���
���
�

+���	�'�����	�
�	�������
	�� ��������#���������
����
	�� ��������"��"
���9

�	

(��5���������
����
��

Page 179



���
���#������
���
#����������

4�	���	������
����"
���
���������
��	���&
����"�����%
�����������	�
9

4�	���	������	&!���
���
� �	���
��	���&
����"�����%
�����������	�
9

=�$
���&��
������	�� �
��!!���"������
����"
�&����
&
����"�������
��	���	"�9

*
��"
�������

�����
�����
&	��	�����������!�������
�	&!�"������"�	&��
�"����
9

#�����%
�
����

��&���
���$

.��!	��������
�#���
�.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�'�.����
�'�F.-.G�����%
�����������	�
#�������
�

-��
�.����
�'�������
�,�"����
�
��!&
������&
���$�F,��G���
� 
	���!�
!��
��	��"���
�

"���� ����	��#��	���B�	���"��������	������
���$
��	����
�	�	�	�������
�9�������
����#���
�


&
��	���-��
�.����
�'�	��
�!
"�
�������!!����������"	�	���
���
��
�	�
�'������
��	&���	��	��

��
�.-.9������
��	����&��	���� ������
��
�
��!&
��������
�,���	�����	�� �
���

			-	����&��-���-� 3�����
��37��-�'#

�	�������&��
����			-	����&��-���-� 

��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�
 ��

(���������'����##����������

Page 180



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


�6��*�.(1*)������
���	!����������&��'���"���!
�!�
����������	���	�������!���	 �
����$����

� ����������
���#������
���
�!
����&	�����������!
�!�
�"����
��	�����
��	���������$9�=�
�
�

��
�����������'��'���"����
��	�����
�9�Q���"����
"
	�
��
���
��
��#��
�!�!��&��
������"�	�	�	
�#�

���
���&

�	��������
�
���#���$
�!����	��"��������	���#������	�"����	���
���	���'������"���"���"	����9

�	������
�����	��

���
��
�

C
���
��
�����
����	�� �
� '�
&�	������	�"���
��!���
��� ������
����$������
�!����
���	!9�=��

�� �"�	 
�
&�	���&'��
��
�����������
�;�&'��
��
��-���-� 

;��

���

��
��

��'��
�	���
�"�&
�������
�����������	�
������
���	!�&

�	������
�
������
�	"�"����'�	�
�

	���
����
��	�"���	��9�1����&��	���� ����&

�	������
��	�����	�� �
���

			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 

1��'����������	$
�������
�����&

�	������'�����	���	"����"��������
�	"�!����
���	!�!�
��
�

"����"����
&��	�
"��'9�

��������	�
������
���	!�:�
�03��0�3
�E

�&'��
��
�����������
�;�&'��
��
��-���-� 

-�
��
���-�&&��	�'������	��������
���	!�:�
��E��������

��##��
��-�����
��;����	���6
�-���-� 

������������
���	!<��������-	�'�-���"	��:�
�03����E0��


�'�;�&'��
���������
�-���-� 

.�������������	�
������
���	!<�.�������������	�
��	���	"��-���"	��:�
��E��0��
��

���������
��;������&��-���-� 

/��
�.����
�	"������
���	!<�/��
����%�	�
�(���
��	���	"��-���"	��:�
�������
�
�

��##����;	�
�������
�-���-� 

%
�����������	�
�.����
�	"������
���	!<�%
�����������	�
��	���	"��-���"	��:�
�EE��03�




���$������	����	
������

Q�������'����"�&&��	�'���
��
!�
�
��
�� '�"����'������	���	"��"���"	�����������	��� 
�

��!!'�������$����'���� ������'�	���
��'����������	$
������	�
9�����
��&!�
�'���&	���������

������$������
&�� ����	&!���
&
����'����������	$
�����

�	��'������
�9�Q���"���"�
"$�����

'����"���"	��������
����			-�&'��
��
��-���-� 3�����
�����9�Q���"�����������$����'����

��	�����<�����
������
=

�


Page 181



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


!��	���"���"	�#������"���"	�������
��"�&&	��

��
!�
�
����	�
������	���	������"���"��"
���9�

*
���&��
�� �������������!��	���"���"	�����			-�&'��
��
��-���-� ���������-	�'�

�
�	�
����"���7��������&��
�� ������
��"�&&	��

�����			-�&'��
-���-� 

&�
���	�����
����	����	��#����������
��������

�����

=�
��	��,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!��F,.��G�	����������	�
����
�����!����"
��"�&&��	�'�

�����
�	
���
�
����������
	����"�����
��#���	"���
>�
"����
	�������& 	�	���#��	&������

� B
"�	�
�9�=�
���"����& 	�	���������
�7��
��	���	"��,.������
��
��	���������
�!
�����	�
��	�'�

��
�"����'�	�
�!�	��	�	
���
������	����	����"�&
��9�Q���"���7��������&��
�� ����
�"�����

��
&������
�������	����
 �	�
�<

��������	�
������
���	!<�			-�&'��
��
�����������
�-���-� 

-�
��
���-�&&��	�'������	��������
���	!<�			-����	���6
�-���-� 

������������
���	!<�			-�&'��
���������
�-���-� 

.�������������	�
������
���	!<�			-������&��-���-� 

/��
������
���	!<�			-����������������
�-���-� 

%
�����������	�
������
���	!<�			-	����&��-���-� 

&

����$

%
��
�"�&
�'����"�&&
����� ������
����$������������	�
������
���	!9���
��
�"����"����
�

�����
���	!��
�&��	���'����"�&&
���<��&'��
��
�����������
�;�&'��
��
��-���-� ����

�
�
!���
�
�03�����E339

��

Page 182



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


�����	���	���M��
"��� 4
& 
��

-����'�"���"	� -����H
	���4	�"�
�� ,
��
�������
�-���"	��A�-��	�&��

(
���� ��
��(�"$
� -��	�&��#���	&��'�-��
�=����

=��&
��/���
'����	"
 ����"	��(� ���� =��&
��/���
'����	"
����	������-�	
��

-����� �
�F,�"������	"	��G

�	���	"��"���"	�� -����@� ���	"


-����������"$
�

-����@���'�C�����

-����@���'�%���

-����=��'��
�/
�


,
��
���������-	�'�-���"	�

,
��
��.�������������	�
��	���	"��

-���"	�

,
��
��%
�����������	�
��	���	"��

-���"	�

,
��
��-�
��
����	���	"��-���"	�

,
��
��/��
����%�	�
�(���
��	���	"��

-���"	�

�	���	"��,.�� I�"$	
�%	��
��!	��

*
��I����*� 
�����

4��'�(��!�
'

@	���!�-��	����
�"�
��

���	��C
��
��

-��	�&����������.����
�	"������
���	!�

-��	�&���/��
������
���	!

-��	�&���-�
��
���-�&&��	�'�

�����	��������
���	!

-��	�&���.�������������	�
�

�����
���	!

1��
�	&�-��	�&���%
�����������	�
�

.����
�	"������
���	!

���	��M�����"���"	�� ����<

-�������	��*����
�

-����4�I�,

�	��

F���
���(	����	���

.�����
�G

�������
���������<

-����H
��
��5
���
�

F.�����(��!��
�G

0
������%�����+����<

-����1���-��������

FH	�������@��!�	N
�

�	���.����&���G

�!����7��
��
!�
�
����	�
�9������
��

"��������	���	���
+�	�
���	���

��	����	
��������	�	
��M���������	�
�

����"	��	������,�"���-���"	������"���	�'�

�
!�
�
����	��9

��

��#�����
���'�����"&'��
��
���,��������
�

Page 183



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


�����	���	���M��
"��� 4
& 
��

���	��M�����"���"	���

F"���	��
�G

%�����
���������<

4���-���
�	�
�(	�"�
���

F�	7�
��G

����	���<

-�������	��%����

F-��
��7�
��G

�!����7��
��
!�
�
����	�
�9������
��

"��������	���	���
+�	�
���	���

��	����	
��������	�	
��M���������	�
�

����"	��	������,�"���-���"	������"���	�'�

�
!�
�
����	��9

,
���	��#��$	���#�


��"��	��

@� �%���	��

I��	
�4�����

�����I����*���
�'

=@-

)�
"��	�
��	�
"����,
���	�������.$	����

-���"	��=��&
��/���
'

*
�	���������������	�
��	�'

����/	"
:-���"
�����F)��
����G��������

@���$
����	�
��	�'

-��	�������
�,
���	��������
���	!

��	���
�.
"��� ����$�C	��	
���

�
�
$�(��&
��

C	"$�4
��'

)�	N� 
���.��


4	������4��$��&

-��	�&��������������	�
�)"���&	"�

�����
���	!

)�	�����������=	&
��

-��	�&������������	�
������ ����-�� 

��
�	�
�����������	�
�-��& 
�����

-�&&
�"


-�&&��	�'�*
���	����4����
�#�/���
�

*
��	�

5��
��&
�����7�"
�����

��
�.�����)���

-��	�������	�� 5�.)�,�"��	�'�4����
������

��������	�
�F=��&
��/���
'G

.))�� %���
��*���� ��
���	�
"���

/�������'#�-�&&��	�'�

������	����
"����

��	����@���
�

@
�
�5
������

=@-

4���	��@�	���

�	�
"������������	�
�-�&&��	�'�

/�������'��"�	��

-����'�)"�&
�	"�����7�"
��-���"�
��

���
��
��	����������	�


/�������'�����-�&&��	�'�.
"����


�
"�
���
!�
�
����	�


/�������'�����-�&&��	�'�.
"����


�
"�
���
!�
�
����	�
�F��������	�
�

-������	�&����-	�	N
������	"
�@��
��G

@4)��
"��� ����	"$�=����	 �	�
"���#���������	�
�*�"	���)+���	�'�

-���"	�

��

Page 184



��������	�
��
�
���������	�����
�����	�������	�
�	����������	�


�����	���	���M��
"��� 4
& 
��

-�����
#�����	�&�����

�
	���


.�����4��7�
�� -�	
��)�
"��	�
#��������1��!	�
�

2��������������
����������,������	����

����������������
�������#������
����

)��	���&
�� *� 	��@����� -��	�#���������	�
�)��	���&
���5���!

2��������������
����������,������

	�����������	�����������"��
���

#
��������#����������
��
������
�����

��#������
����

*�����"�&&��	�	
� ,	����%����� -�	
��)�
"��	�
#���������	�
�*�����

-�&&��	�'�-���"	�

$���� *>�#�#����

"������	��������
������2�
��
�3����
��
���
��

-����'�"���"	�#

�
����#����
��

-����'�"���"	��:�-�	
��)�
"��	�


�	���	"��"���"	��-�	
��)�
"��	�
�

-�	
��)�
"��	�
��-=

�	�
"��������� �	"�(
����

-��	��������
���
&��	"�!����
���	!��:�����
��&!�
<�-�	���
��

����Q������
�!�
;�������
���	!9����#���������������������

#
��������#��	���������(�
���
�����#�������-))�
���������

���
�������
������
����"�������������

.�!!�����
�& �����
���	!�%��$	�����	�#�-��!����
�-��
#

��������	�
�-����'�-���"	�

��

8����
��������##��
���8��������?8�8@�:�=�
�������
�&��	�	��������"�	���!�������	"����	�����
���!	���	���#�

�

�������!�	��	�	
�������
���"���"�&&��	�'#�!�
!��
�� '���
�,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!9�=�
������
�'�	��


�	�
�"
� ��
�9�������������	�
���	��	����������	�
��
�
9

7�����8������
��,��������
��?78,@�:�	����&���	:��
�"'�!����
���	!��
!�
�
��	��������
"����������
�"�&&��	�'�

��	"����
��

���
�
��!&
��������
��	�	���������
���"�����
������������
�.����	�� �
�-�&&��	�'�.����
�'9�=�
�
�

��
��	��,.���	����������	�
�������
���
����
�"����"���������	�';����
�9

A�������

Page 185



"&'��
��
���,��������
��?",@�:���
�"����'�	�
�,�"���.����
�	"������
���	!9�1�� �	�������
��
�������	���	����

���&���
�!� �	"#�!�	���
#���������'�����"�&&��	�'��
"������	��	����
�"����'#��	�����
�� B
"�	�
�������$	���

���
��
�����	&!���
���
�+���	�'�����	�
�������������	�
9

7�����1����1����#����?711@�:�	�������

�'
������

&
��� 
��

����
���"�����
��F	����	��"��
���������	�
G�

�������
��&
�������
�	�
��������
����	&!���
&
�������
��9�=�
�,���!�	��	�	
����
����������&���
��	�	�������

��
���
��������	"����
��	����
������	�� �
�"�&&��	�'������
�'9

,���
��8���
�������
�?,8�@�:�	���
�!���	 �
������
���	��	��������
�	�
�'������
�,������ 
����������
���������	�
�

�����
���	!9�1�� �	�������
��
���
"	�	���&�$
������&���
�$
'�!� �	"��
"���������	���	����	����
�"����'9

A�����#����"'5�����'�����8����������?A"8�@�:��
!�
�
����"
���������
��&
���	����
��
�	�������!��&��
�

 
��
������&��
�
��
"�	�
�	��
����	������5��
��&
���!��	"	
������!�����&&
��������
�	�����������"����
�
�9�%
�

���$��	�����
�5��
��&
�����7�"
�������

�����,�"�����
�����

&
��9

8����������������
��������#����1������?8���1@�:�	����
�5��
��&
�������
����
�"'��
�!���	 �
�������
�


"���&	"�������"	����
�
��!&
��������
�.�����)�������)������9

8����������������
����
�����1���#����?8���1@�:�	����!����
���	!������
��
�	��;��"���"	�������"�&&��	�	
�#�

�
!�
�
��	�����
�	��
�
�������.�����)����)������9�1�� �	����"���"	�������"�&&��	�	
�����
��
�����&�$
��
"	�	����

�����
�.�����)�����
�	��;��!�	��	�	
������!����	��#������!������������	��9

"'5����'������
�����8���
��
���?"�8@�:�=�
���7�"
�����C��	�����.���	��	"��!����"
��	��
!
��
���	����&��	������

	&!���
��������
������	��������
��H;��
"���&'�������"	
�'9�%
���
���
�
�����	��	"�����	����&�����!����	�������

��
������
�����!�	��	�	
�������"�	����	��	����
�"����'9

A�����9�����1

�
�?A91@�:�&
����
����
�"����	 ��	��������
�
"���&'����
�"��	��	�	�����!����"
�#�	������'�

����
"����	����
���	�
��H	����&9�1��	����
��	����
�
��	&��	��������
��H;����������&
��	"�!����"��F5��G#���	"��	��

��$
'�	��	"����������
�����
������
�����
�
"���&'9

���� 
��������������'�
���
���
���:�1����&
������
�!���
�����&	�	
����
�
�	�����
����"'"�
�����
!�	���	����'!	7�
��

 '���&
������
�������	�������
��"��	���������	�&
��#���&	�'� �
�$����#����$�
���
��#�"�	&
�����!�����
�����

��������	��9�=�	��!���
�����&��
�
���	�������
�
���	��#�����
�
�� '���
���
�������
��'
�������#���
��	�
�"���"
��

���'�����"�	���
����
����!
�9�=�
��	&�	����� �
�$���	���	"	����"'"�
�	������
���
��M��&	�	
����
�
�	��"��� 
��

�9

���� ���
��
���
�������
��?���@�:��
�"�	 
��!
�!�
��	�	���	��@�	��	��������	"��#�-��	  
��#�.�������	��#�

���
����	�����	�	���F	�"���	�������
�����	�
��	�'��	���&��
��������
�
���	"���	�	�G#�����!
�!�
����&����
��

"�&&��	�	
���������
���"�&&���
�!
�	
�"
�����	�"�	&	���	��� 
"���
������
	����"
�����������
��������&���
�

&�B��	�'���	�
�"�&&��	�'9

B�������'������C�:�	�����

�	������	�
��	�'����� 
����	��������
���
���������'��������
�"�&&��	�'�'����	�
�	�9�

1��	�������"����"�
�	�
����!��"
�����	��	�"��������	+�
����&����
�������"����	 ��
��������
��
�����
��: 
	�������

"�&&��	�'�"��
�	��9�

7�����
������#����'��#�	�� �?7��@�:�	��������
�������"����
�
��!&
�����"�&
�������������	�
������

!����	����	��� 
�&����
��	�������
�9�1����������	
����
�
�	������"����
�
��!&
������&
���$�	��
�"���	���	"��

"���"	������
��������
�����&	�
�������������
�!����	���������
�����
�"����'9�=�
�
���"�&
������	�
�����&�"��

�
�
��!&
������� �	��	�����
�
�	��	��'������
�#���
�
�	��	����"��
�����������	��������"���
�F�����#��"�����#�

"�&&��	�'���"	�	�	
�G���
��

�
�������!!����	�9

Page 186



���
����	�
����&���������	��!� �	"��	���"��� 
�&��
����	�� �
�����
+�
��9�=�
�
�

	�"���
����
���������
�#�����
�!�	��#�@��	��
#�)��'�*
��#����	�"���
��
#�"�&!��
��

�	�$����
&�	�9���
��
�"����"����
������
���	!��
�&����)/D0E�*(*F00���� '�


&�	� �&'��
��
�����������
�;�&'��
��
��-���-� 

���	��
������

D��
"'"�
��!�!
��

��
��
���
�'������"���!�!
�� ��$���
���	�!��	��������	���������
��!�!
�9

�
�	��
�� '���������	�
�-����'�-���"	�;��-�&&��	"��	������	�
�	&9��
����
�U��������	�
9���9�$�M�
�03��0���0EPage 187



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 1

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Oxfordshire 2030  
Delivery Plan 

 
  

Delivering on our pledges  
to improve quality of life in the county. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 188



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 2

 

Oxfordshire 2030   
 

Oxfordshire 2030 is a Sustainable Community Strategy and sets out a long-term vision 
for Oxfordshire’s future.  
 

“By 2030 we want Oxfordshire to be recognised for its economic success, 
outstanding environment and quality of life; to be a place where everyone can 
realise their potential, contribute to and benefit from economic prosperity and 

where people are actively involved in their local communities” 
 
Our ambition is to: 
 

• Create a world class economy for Oxfordshire building particularly on the high tech 
sector 

• Have healthy and thriving communities. We want to sustain what is good about our 
city, towns and villages but also respond to the needs of the 21st century including 
the impact of demographic and lifestyle changes 

• Look after our environment and respond to the threat of climate change and the 
potential for more extreme weather conditions. The threat of flooding is a particular 
concern. 

• Break the cycle of deprivation by addressing the regeneration needs of 
disadvantaged communities; reducing the gap between the best and worst off and 
supporting people to maximise their talents and raise their aspirations.  

 
Our main strategic objectives are therefore: 
 

1. A World Class Economy 
2. Healthy and thriving communities 
3. The Environment and climate change 
4. Reducing inequalities and breaking the cycle of deprivation  

 
The Partnership is committed to tackling inequalities across all its work.   
 
We recognise that in relation to everything we do we must: 

 

• Reduce the gap between the best and worst off. We will do this by improving the 
outcomes for the worst-off and bringing them closer to the outcomes enjoyed by the 
best-off. This will mean targeting resources to the localities or communities 
experiencing the worst outcomes as we implement all our plans. 

 

• Be sustainable. As we work to deliver our vision we must consider the social, 
economic and environmental impacts of our work, and ensure the resources and 
capacity needed to deliver change exist and are sustainable.  

 
The strategy has the support of all of the key statutory agencies in the county as well as 
voluntary and business sectors’ endorsement. The expectation of the Oxfordshire 
Partnership is that key agencies will reflect the Vision and priorities in their own corporate 
plans and in their resource allocation so we ensure that we deliver the vision.   
 

Page 189



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 3

The Delivery Plan   
 

The Delivery Plan contains the following: 
 

• Three year targets that are in our Local Area Agreement (LAA) – an agreement 
between the Government and partners in Oxfordshire which reflects some of the 
highest priority key targets.  

• Key targets which are important locally but not in the Local Area Agreement  
 
We officially agreed our Local Area Agreement 2008-11 with Government in June this 
year. At the original negotiation it was not possible to agree three year targets for all our 
chosen indicators. It was agreed that these gaps would be filled during the first year of the 
agreement through the review and refresh process. We are currently scoping the 
indicators that will be refreshed and are having regard to the current economic situation in 

doing so. This will in turn be reflected in the Oxfordshire 2030 delivery plan. 
 
 

Managing performance 
 
The governance and performance management framework for the Oxfordshire 
partnership is currently under review. The principles are as follows: 
 
Progress in meeting targets and objectives is managed by the thematic partnerships 
responsible for that theme. Some targets cut across partnerships and in these cases 
agreements will be made about who shall be responsible for delivery.  
 
Partnerships are responsible for developing action plans which show how we will achieve 
our targets. The detail of the targets is not reflected in this plan but will be available 
through the performance reports. We are also developing project and risk management 
principles.  
 
LAA and Local targets are monitored by the Oxfordshire Public Service Board 
(www.oxfordshirepartnership.org.uk) who report to the Oxfordshire Partnership and to the 
public on progress. In addition the Oxfordshire Partnership will review quality of life 
indicators annually to ensure that action being taken is having a beneficial effect on the 
lives of local people. Local targets are managed by Local Strategic Partnerships in each 
district and district Local Strategic Partnerships also contribute to relevant countywide 
targets – please see the local distinctiveness section. We are all working together to 
achieve the shared vision for the future. This approach means that we can make best use 
of our resources, joining up where necessary, whilst ensuring very local issues are also 
tackled.  
 
 

Local Area Agreement 
targets – agreed by the 
Oxfordshire Partnership 
and with the Government. 

• Progress managed by thematic 
partnerships. 

• Progress monitored by the Public 
Service Board quarterly. 

• 6 monthly reports to GOSE / 
Government.  

 
 
Oxfordshire 
Partnership 
produces an annual 
overview of 

Page 190



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 4

Local targets – agreed by 
the Oxfordshire Partnership  

• Progress reported quarterly to the 
Public Service Board. 

 

District targets + 
contribution to countywide 
targets where relevant – 
agreed by District Local 
Strategic Partnerships. 
 

• Progress monitored by District 
Local Strategic Partnerships. 

progress based on 
quality of life 
indicators. 

 

All performance reporting shall be available on the Oxfordshire Partnership website. 
(www.oxfordshirepartnership.org.uk)  
 

Criteria for agreeing targets and actions in this plan 
 
Targets and actions in this delivery plan have been included because: 

• They will deliver on the strategic objectives in Oxfordshire 2030. 

• They can only be achieved through partnership working – not “business as usual” 
for the public sector or any organisation acting alone.   

• They came out of the consultation events we held in 2007 to develop Oxfordshire 
2030. 

• They are targets agreed with the Government for the Local Area Agreement. 

• They are targets agreed by the Oxfordshire Partnership as being Local targets 

• There is an emphasis on, or contribution to, preventing problems developing further 
in the future, for example, reducing childhood obesity to improve health and well-
being later in life, or reducing the risks of flooding to housing and business. 

 
There are many plans and strategies in the county. Strategic county-wide partnerships, for 
example, Oxfordshire Children and Young People’s Trust have their own priorities and 
action plans. There are five District Local Strategic Partnerships – the Oxford Strategic 
Partnership, Cherwell Community Planning Partnership, West Oxfordshire Strategic 
Partnership, South Oxfordshire Partnership and the Vale Strategic Partnership. They each 
have their own challenges, priorities and action plans.   
 
This Delivery Plan does not replace these. Its purpose is to align our objectives where it is 
relevant to the priorities in Oxfordshire 2030 in order to deliver better outcomes for 
everyone in the county and raise the profile and importance of acting together to get things 
done. 

Page 191



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 5

Oxfordshire 2030 Delivery Plan  
 
 
Strategic objective :   World Class Economy 
 

 
Oxfordshire is an economically vibrant area. Compared with the rest of the UK unemployment is low and the economy is prosperous. We 
have a lot to be proud of: the highest level of research and development in Western Europe; a concentration of high-wage, high-tech 
industry; and of course, world-renowned universities. But global economic conditions and competition mean we have to work even harder 
to secure a world class economy for the County 
 
We pledge to: 

• Collaborate across public, business and voluntary sectors to build on Oxfordshire’s economic success. 

• Create the conditions for everyone to have access to jobs. 

• Ensure that educational attainment and skill levels are amongst the very best in the country so we provide a well qualified, 
motivated workforce to meet the needs of business.  

• Grow the economy whilst achieving a sustainable balance between jobs, housing and environment  

• Tackle traffic congestion across Oxfordshire, particularly on trunk roads and around market towns Oxford City and other hotspots 

• Reduce the gap between the best and the worst off by targeting our work appropriately.  

P
a
g

e
 1

9
2



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 6

 
 

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

1.  Collaborate 
across public, 
business and 
voluntary sectors to 
build on 
Oxfordshire’s 
economic success. 
 
 

 

 

• Increase the GVA per head of Oxfordshire’s 
population from its current position of 13th out of 
131 NUTS3 (county) regions nationally to one of 
the top 10  in the NUTS3 league by 2010 
 

• Increase the economic impact of tourism, 
increasing the value of tourism activity for local 
businesses. The aim therefore is to increase the 
value of tourism activity that directly benefits local 
business in terms of direct business turnover 
from the 2006 baseline of £1,198,616,000  (from 
economic impact model data commissioned from 
Tourism South East). 

 

• Increase the promotion of cultural and sporting 
events within tourism and create 5 new 
festivals/events with a national profile by 2012. 

 

• VAT registered businesses showing 
growth. NI 172 

• New business registration rate NI 
171 

• Average earnings of employees in 
the area NI 166 

• Partners receive clear and timely 
intelligence about Oxfordshire’s 
economy and the issues and 
opportunities facing it. 

• Strengthened town centre 
economies through retail, 
employment and tourism data on 
individual towns 

Oxfordshire 
Economic 
Partnership  
 
 

2.  Create the 
conditions for 
everyone to have 
access to jobs 

 

• Reduce the numbers of working age people on out 
of work benefits. (LAA target NI 152) 

 

• Increase the number of those joining Oxfordshire 
County Council apprenticeship schemes by 100% 
by December 2010 (2009 target is 50/2010 target 
is 100) 

• Increase numbers of Level 2 Health and Social 
Qualifications in the workforce. (PCT / Learning & 
Skills Partnership to set target by Jan 09). Local 
target. 

• Oxfordshire’s overall employment 
rate is above the average for the 
South East. NI 151. 

• Job density (number of jobs filled to 
working age population) QoL 14 

• % of the working age population 
that is in employment QoL 11 

• Working age people have access to 
employment by public transport. 
NI176 

Oxfordshire 
Learning & 
Skills 
Partnership 
and 
Oxfordshire 
Economic 
Partnership. 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
3



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 7

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

3.  Ensure that 
educational 
attainment and skill 
levels are well above 
the national average 
so we provide a well 
qualified, motivated 
workforce to meet 
the needs of the 
business 

 

• Increase the numbers / percentage of all 16 to 18 
year olds who are in education, training or 
employment. (LAA target NI 117) 

• Reduce the inequality gap in the achievement of a 
Level 3 qualification by the age of 19. (LAA target 
NI 81) 

• Mandatory educational attainment targets (LAA 
NIs 72, 73, 74, 75, 83, 87, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 
98, 99, 100, 101) 

• Increase the percentage of the working age 
population qualified to at least Level 2 or higher. 
(LAA target NI 163) 

• Increase the percentage of the working age 
population qualified to at least Level 3 or higher. 
(LAA target NI 164). 

• All young offenders and care 
leavers to be in education, training 
or employment.. NI 45 

• Increase the percentage of the 
working age population qualified to 
at least level 4 or higher.  NI 165 

• Reduce skills gaps in the current 
workforce as reported by 
employers. NI 174 

• Ensure that attainment, and skills 
levels are well above the average 
so we provide a well qualified, 
motivated workforce to meet the 
needs of businesses and public 
sector employers. 

Oxfordshire 
Children's 
Trust 
and 
Oxfordshire 
Learning & 
Skills 
Partnership 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.  Grow the 
economy whilst 
achieving a 
sustainable balance 
between jobs, 
housing and the 
environment 

 

• Increase net additional homes provided. (LAA 
target NI 154) 

• Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) 
(LAA target 155) 

 
 
 

• Ensure housing supply (including 
affordable housing) meets targets 
agreed in the South East Plan. 

• House price to income ration QoL 
41 

 

Oxfordshire  
Housing 
Partnership 
 

5.  Tackle traffic 
congestion 
particularly on trunk 
roads and around 
market towns, Oxford 

• Increase access to services and facilities by public 
transport, walking and cycling. (LAA target NI 175) 

 

• Increase the percentage of school pupils who 
travel to school by walking, cycling, by bus or 

More reliable journey times (reduced 
average journey time per mile during 
morning peak times) NI 167 

• Delivery of major strategic transport 
projects including improvements to 

Oxfordshire 
Children's 
Trust 
 
Partnership 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
4



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 8

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

City and other 
hotspots  

 

through car sharing (LAA target NI 198) 
 

M40 Junction 9 and 10./ East-West 
rail/ Access to Oxford and Quadrant 
Strategic Transport package. 

• Implementation of localised 
transport packages / improvements 
to deal with congestion hotspots 
throughout central Oxfordshire. 

arrangements 
to be 
confirmed 
subject to the 
current review 
of 
governance. 

6 Reduce the gap 
between the best and 
the worst off by 
targeting our work 
appropriately. 

 • Develop targets and objectives 
that improve the outcomes for the 
worst-off and bring them closer to 
the outcomes enjoyed by the best 
off. 

Oxfordshire 
Economic 
Partnership 
Oxfordshire 
Learning and 
Skills 
Partnership 
Oxfordshire 
Children’s 
Trust  
Oxfordshire 
Housing 
Partnership 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
5



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 9

 

Strategic objective :   Healthy & Thriving Communities 
 
People enjoy living in Oxfordshire. Surveys show us that over 90% of the people in Oxfordshire like living in their communities. We are 
fortunate to have a population that is generally healthier than elsewhere, with longer than average life expectancy. However, there are 
pockets where life expectancy is lower in parts of the County. Levels of crime are generally lower than average. We have a diverse 
population: as the most rural county in the south east of England, half our population lives in rural areas, but a quarter live in Oxford City 
with the remainder living in our bustling market towns. The profile of a ‘typical’ Oxfordshire resident is changing. There are now many 
more people over 85 living in the county and the number of people with learning disabilities living here has also increased. Our black and 
minority ethnic communities account for 5% of Oxfordshire’s population overall and 13% in Oxford city. We want to ensure that everyone 
is safe from harm, able to live a healthy lifestyle and is valued in the community in which they live, work, grow up and grow old. We also 
want to ensure people have the ability to participate and contribute to their communities. 
 
Healthy and Thriving Communities implies that: 
* Our towns, neighbourhoods and villages are communities with a heart, where local people work with each other and with service 
providers to improve their areas. 
* We work together to support and protect all vulnerable groups including older people and those with disabilities  
* People are physically and mentally healthy and live longer 
* Oxfordshire is a place where people feel safe and welcomed. Our foundations are strong: there are concerns about anti-social 
behaviour but generally our City, towns and villages are safe and pleasant places in which to live.  
 
We pledge to: 

• Work with local people including the voluntary, community and faith organisations and the military to sustain and build supportive 
cohesive, resilient and well planned communities 

• Tackle crime and anti-social behaviour – particularly where the cause is the abuse of alcohol or other substance misuse. 

• Work to prevent all forms of extremism that threaten the well-being of local people and communities   

• Support the people of Oxfordshire to achieve a healthy and positive old age, concentrating on the groups in greatest need 

• Ensure every child gets every opportunity for a good start in life. 

• Improve support and opportunities for independent living. 

• Promote healthy lifestyles including the increase of physical activity  

• Defend access to local services particularly in rural communities 

• Reduce the gap between the best and the worst off by targeting our work appropriately. 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
6



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 10

 

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

7. Work with local 
people 
including the 
voluntary, 
community 
and faith 
organisations 
and the 
military to 
sustain and 
build 
supportive, 
cohesive, 
resilient and 
well planned 
communities.   

 

• Increase participation in regular volunteering (LAA 
target NI 6) 

• Improve the overall/general satisfaction of residents 
with the local area (LAA target NI 5) 

• Increase the number of people who feel that they 
are treated fairly when using local services. (LAA 
target NI 140)  

• Increase the number of communities benefiting from 
involvement in local community planning to 8 -10 
communities starting per annum and 20 already in 
development (April 09) 

• Increase the number of actions (identified as local 
priorities in community-led plans) are progressed 
within one year of publication to at least 50%. (April 
09) 

 

• Create an environment for a 
thriving voluntary, community and 
faith sector by supporting the 
VCS Delivery Plan and 
objectives. NI 7.  

• Areas in the most deprived 20% of 
wards nationally will show a 
consistent improvement in 
deprivation scores (measured by 
indices of multiple deprivation 
domain scores. Proxy indicators 
on mortality rates, crime, skills, 
housing, education, income, 
benefits uptake and employment). 

Oxfordshire 
Voluntary 
Sector 
Development 
Partnership  
 
 
 
Local 
Authorities + 
Town and 
Parish Councils  
 
 
 
 

8.  Tackle crime and 
anti-social 
behaviour 

 

• Reduce hate crime in Oxfordshire (Actions to reduce 
hate crime commence November 2008.  Baseline 
and target to be set June 2009). Links to NI1 and NI 
140 

• Reduce the assault with injury crime rate. (LAA 
target NI 20). 

• Dealing with local concerns about anti-social 
behaviour and crime. (LAA target NI 21)   

• Reduce repeat incidents of Domestic Violence. (LAA 
target NI 32) 

• Reduce first time entrants to the Youth Justice 
System aged 10 – 17. (LAA target NI 111) 

• Reduce the harm caused to young people under 18 
caused by the use of illicit drug and alcohol use 

• Reduce the re-offending rates of 
priority and prolific offenders (NI 
30). 

Oxfordshire 
Safer 
Communities 
Partnership 
 
Town and 
Parish Councils 
(includes parish 
meetings) 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
7



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 11

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

(LAA1/S&SC) 

• Reduce crime rates including vehicle crime, 
burglary, theft, criminal damage, assault, woundings 
and robbery (LAA1/S&SC) 

• Increase the number of drug users in effective 
treatment (LAA target NI 40) 

 
Targets to be set by Safer Communities Partnership 
date TBC  

• An increase in the number of young people 
engaged in organized activities  

• A decrease in the number of young people 
entering the criminal justice system 

• A reduction in the number of complaints of 
antisocial behaviour associated with public 
houses 

• Improve public perceptions around the levels of 
anti social behaviour and the behaviour of 
others (NI 17) 

• A reduction in alcohol related A&E admissions 

• A reduction in the number of alcohol related 
assaults  

• A reduction in the level of alcohol related 
criminal damage 

• A reduction in the number of shops and pubs 
found to be prepared to sell alcohol to children 

• Reduce priority crime and fear of crime.  

• Reduce harm caused by drug misuse to 
individuals, the family and wider community 
through increased numbers entering and drug 
treatment programmes, offenders completing 
the programme and quantities of drugs seized. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
8



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 12

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

• Reduce the rate of Domestic Violence 

9.  Work to prevent 
all forms of 
extremism that 
threaten the well-
being of local people 
and communities 

 

• Build resilience to violent extremism (NI 35)  Oxford Building 
Resilience 
Amongst 
Communities 
Delivery Group. 
 
Town and 
Parish Councils 
 
Oxfordshire 
Partnership 

10. Support the 
people of 
Oxfordshire to 
achieve a healthy and 
positive old age, 
concentrating on the 
groups in greatest 
need 
 

• Increase the number of vulnerable people 
achieving independent living. (LAA target NI 
141) 

• Increase the percentage of over 
65s who say that they receive the 
information, assistance and 
support they need to exercise 
choice and control in their lives. NI 
139 

• Shift the emphasis to prevention 
and work together with the public 
to promote health and wellbeing 
and self care. (N1 137 Healthy life 
expectancy at age 65 – place 
survey) 

• Improve the range and availability 
of extra care housing or other 
support to enable older people to 
live at home – we will provide 840 
units of extra care housing by 
2013 

Oxfordshire 
Health & 
Wellbeing 
Partnership 

11.  Ensure every 
child gets every 

• Improve the stability of placements of looked after 
children: number of moves. (LAA target NI 62) 

• Reduce the percentage of a) 
children and b) over 60s that live 

Oxfordshire 
Children's Trust 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
9



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 13

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

opportunity for a 
good start in life 

 

• Increase young people’s participation in positive 
activities. (LAA target NI 110) 

• Reduce the under 18 conception rate. (LAA target 
NI 112) 

• Increase the number of schools in the healthy 
schools programme (LAA1/CYP4) 

• Reduce the number of vulnerable homeless 16/17 
year olds (LAA1/CYP7). 

• Reduce hospital admissions caused by unintentional 
and deliberate injuries to children and young people 
(LAA target NI 70) 

• Reduce obesity among primary school age children 
in year 6 (LAA target N1 56) 

• Increase the number of young people participating in 
the youth service  (LAA1/CYP13, links to NI 110) 

• Reduce the number of half days missed by children 
looked after (LAA1/CYP14) 

in households that are income 
deprived. 

• Increase the number of care 
leavers who are living in suitable 
accommodation for their needs. 

 

12.  Improve support 
and opportunities for 
independent living 

 

• Increase the number of vulnerable people achieving 
independent living. (LAA target NI 141) 

• Reduce the delays in transferring people from 
hospital to home and other types of care (NI 131)  

• Increase the numbers of carers receiving needs 
assessment or review and a specific carer’s service, 
or advice and information (LAA target NI 135) 

• Reduce the number of households living in 
temporary accommodation. (LAA target NI 156) 

• Establish a common referral assessment process 
(LAA1/HCOP8). 

 

• Increase the number of extra care 
housing units provided each year. 

• Increase the percentage of over 
65s who say that they receive the 
information, assistance and 
support they need to exercise 
choice and control in their lives. NI 
139 

• Achieve the 365 Alive fire safety 
scheme to reduce fatalities from 
household fires.  

• Shift the emphasis to prevention 
and work together with the public 
to promote health and wellbeing 
and self care. (N1 137 Healthy life 

Oxfordshire  
Health & Well-
Being 
Partnership 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Oxfordshire 
Housing 
Partnership 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
0



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 14

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

expectancy at age 65 – place 
survey) 

• Improve the range and availability 
of extra care housing or other 
support to enable older people to 
live at home – we will provide 840 
units of extra care housing by 
2013  

13.  Promote healthy 
lifestyles including 
the increase of 
physical activity 

 

• Reduce the gap in all-age all cause mortality 
between the worst and best 20% (LAA target NI 
120) 

• Increase adult participation in sport. (LAA target NI 
8) 

• Improve mental health and well-being in the adult 
population, especially among vulnerable groups and 
those living in areas with worse outcomes focusing 
in particular on employment and housing. 

• Increase healthy life expectancy 
at age 65. NI 137 

• Increase life expectancy at birth 
(QoL indicator 33) 

• Increase the number of people 
who quit smoking NI 123 

• Reduce the harm to health caused 
by harmful or hazardous 
consumption of alcohol (alcohol 
harm related hospital rates NI39) 

• Reduce obesity rates in the adult 
population 

Oxfordshire 
Health & Well-
Being 
Partnership 

14. Defend access to 
local services 
particularly in rural 
communities 

• Ensure that the impact of decisions made by public 
service providers that affect local and rural services 
is assessed through a customer impact 
assessment. 

• Adoption of consistent customer / 
equality standards across public 
service providers. 

Partnership 
arrangements to 
be confirmed 
subject to the 
current review 
of governance. 

15.  Reduce the gap 
between the best and 
the worst off by 
targeting our work 
appropriately. 

 • Develop targets and objectives 
that improve the outcomes for 
the worst-off and bring them 
closer to the outcomes enjoyed 
by the best off 

Oxfordshire 
Voluntary 
Sector 
Development 
Partnership 
Local authorities 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
1



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 15

Pledges Medium term objectives 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

(including town 
and parish 
councils) 
Oxfordshire 
Safer 
Communities 
Partnership 
Oxford Building 
resilience 
amongst 
communities 
delivery group 
Oxfordshire 
Children’s trust 
Oxfordshire 
health and 
wellbeing 
partnership 
Oxfordshire 
housing 
partnership 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
2



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 16

 

Strategic objective :  Environment & Climate Change 
Dreaming spires, rambling green spaces, buildings steeped in rich history: few could doubt that we enjoy an exceptional environment. We 
recognise our important role as custodians of the environment now and for future generations. Our challenge is to protect our areas of 
natural beauty while meeting the demands of a 21st century lifestyle and an expanding and ageing population. We recognise that the 
future of our environment is closely linked to the national and international response to the global challenge of climate change. We are 
committed to making our contribution. 
 
Individuals, communities, the public sector and businesses will all need to play their part both in reducing carbon emissions and making 
our county as resilient as possible to the effects of climate change. 
 

Our aspiration is to conserve and enhance our natural and built environment while balancing this against the needs of a thriving economy 
and the impact of climate change.  
 
We pledge to: 

• Reduce carbon emissions and improve energy and water efficiency by public sector organisations, and encourage residents and 
businesses to do the same. 

• Reduce waste and increase re-use and recycling by households and businesses.  

• Minimise the effects and risk of flooding.  

• Ensure new development is built to high environmental standards.  

• Support individuals, communities and businesses, to respond to climate change and to improve efficiency in their use of energy 
and water 

• Keep Oxfordshire clean and green.  

• Protect and enhance the biodiversity of the county.  

• Reduce the gap between the best and the worst off by targeting our work appropriately. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
3



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 17

 
 
 

Pledges Medium term targets 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

16.  Reduce carbon 
emissions and 
improve energy and 
water efficiency by 
public sector 
organisations, and 
encourage residents 
and businesses to do 
the same. 

 

• Reduce CO2 emissions caused by local authority 
activities (LAA target NI 185) 

 

 Oxfordshire 
Environment  
Partnership 

17.  Reduce waste 
and increase re-use 
and recycling by 
households and 
businesses  

 

• Reduce the amount of residual household waste 
per head (LAA target NI 191) 

• Increase the amount of household waste recycled 
and composted  (LAA target NI 192) 

• At least 55% of household waste is 
recycled or composted by 2020. NI 
192 

Oxfordshire 
Waste 
Partnership  

18.  Minimise the 
effects and risk of 
flooding  

 

• Develop plans that help Oxfordshire adapt to 
climate change (LAA target NI 188) 

• Carry out a minimum of 25% more drainage 
clearing focused on areas vulnerable to flooding 
(action plan to be agreed in January 09 by the 
long term flooding issues group)  

 
Oxfordshire Environment Partnership to develop 
strategy and local targets (date TBC) which 

• Increases our preparedness and 
responsiveness to flooding including 
managing flooding events including 
improvements to joint emergency planning. 

• Improve our resilience to flood 
through flood risk management NI 
189 

 

Oxfordshire  
Environment  
Partnership 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
4



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 18

Pledges Medium term targets 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

• Supports EA to implement all planned flooding 
alleviation schemes 

• Supports the district councils to ensure new 
developments reduce the risk and minimise 
the impact of flooding 

• Ensures all flooding alleviation schemes 
planned by local authorities are implemented 

• Ensure waste, minerals and highways plans 
include measures to reduce flood risks 

19.  Ensure new   
development is built 
to high 
environmental 
standards  

 

• The District Councils will ensure the delivery 
of new housing development to at least code 
level 3 in the Code for Sustainable Homes 
(which is expected to be a national 
requirement in building regulations by 2010) 

• The District Councils Local Development 
Frameworks, to be adopted by 2011, will 
include a range of policies and proposals to 
deliver higher environmental standards and to 
reflect the delivery of the minimum 
requirements in the Code for Sustainable 
Homes 

All developments: 

• Incorporate high standards of 
energy efficiency in design and 
construction in line with best 
practice  

• Achieve high levels of water 
efficiency in line with current 
best practice  

Spatial Planning 
Partnership (to 
be agreed) 

20.  Support 
individuals, 
communities and 
businesses to 
respond to climate 
change and to 
improve efficiency in 
their use of energy 
and water. 

Oxfordshire Environment Partnership to  

• develop a  programme and local targets (date 
TBC) which engage residents, communities 
and businesses in energy and water 
reduction. Measures : Per capita water 
consumption (Thames Water). Energy 
consumption measured through per capita 
CO2 emissions (NI 186). Average annual 
domestic consumption of gas and electricity 
(kwh) (QoL 26). 

• 50% reduction in CO2 emissions 
from Oxfordshire on 1990 levels by 
2030 (need to look further as gov’t 
target 60% by 2050) per capita 
CO2 emissions in the county. 
NI186  

Oxfordshire 
Environment  
Partnership  
 
Town and 
Parish Councils  

21.  Keep Oxfordshire • Improve street and environmental cleanliness  Oxfordshire 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
5



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 19

Pledges Medium term targets 
(LAA and Local targets for next 3 years) 

Longer-term objectives   Lead 
partnerships 

clean and green  

 
(reduce levels of graffiti, litter, detritus and fly 
posting)  (LAA target NI 195) 

• Improved street and environmental cleanliness – 
reduce fly tipping. (LAA target NI 196) 

Waste 
Partnership 
 
Local 
Authorities / 
Public Service 
Board 
 
Town and 
Parish Councils  

22.  Protect and 
enhance the 
biodiversity of the 
county 

Oxfordshire Environment Partnership to  

• Implement actions set out in Habitat action plans 
for Oxfordshire  

• Report annually on core/contextual biodiversity 
indicators as part of the annual monitoring report 

• Report annually on NA 197 (biodiversity) on local 
wildlife sites  

• Work with partners to maintain and enhance sites 
of special scientific interest, local wildlife sites and 
other key sites  

 Maintain and enhance status of UK 
biodiversity action plan 
habitats/species in the county 
 
Implement conservation target area 
and habitat action pan objectives and 
help accommodate to the 
consequences of climate change. 

Oxfordshire 
Environment  
Partnership 

23. Reduce the gap 
between the best and 
the worst off by 
targeting our work 
appropriately. 

 Develop targets and objectives that 
improve the outcomes for the worst-off 
and bring them closer to the outcomes 
enjoyed by the best off 

Oxfordshire 
Environment 
Partnership 
Oxfordshire 
Waste 
Partnership 
Spatial planning 
partnership (to 
be agreed) 

 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
6



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 20

Local Distinctiveness 
 
Oxfordshire is a diverse county and, although we have identified a number of countywide priorities, there are geographical variations in 
terms of how important those priorities are for different parts of the county. 
 
The five district Local Strategic Partnerships (LSPs) in Oxfordshire have all produced community strategies relevant to their local areas, 
which reflect their own ambitions, aims and objectives. These local ambitions have fed into and helped to identify the countywide 
priorities set out in this document.  
 
This section sets out how the key issues within each district and a summary of their priorities for action. Local Strategic Partnerships will 
have an important role to play in implementing both the countywide and local priorities identified within this strategy 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
7



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 21

Cherwell 
 

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

Reducing Inequalities and breaking the cycle of deprivation is a cross cutting theme 

A World Class Economy 
 
Make it easier for you to get where you need to 
go 

 

 
 

• Complete transport studies and infrastructure needs assessment of the main 
urban areas and incorporate the results in the Local Development Framework 

 

Support business success by fostering innovation and 
helping to recruit and retain skilled employees 

• Create 6200 additional jobs by 2011 
 

• Improving educational achievements 
 

Improve local services and opportunities in rural areas 
 

• Complete a review of planning policy through the local development framework 
 

• Establish improved support initiatives for existing rural services to assist ongoing 
viability 

 

• Encourage the creation of new services to rural areas to meet established 
demand and gaps in provision 

Develop the unique characters of Banbury, Bicester and 
Kidlington and engender a sense of pride, belonging to 
the community and heritage 
 

• By 2012 complete environmental enhancement schemes for Parsons Street, 
Banbury 

Secure housing growth that meets the Government 
targets and the needs of the District through an 
appropriate mix of market and affordable housing 
 

• Achieve an annual average rate of new homes constructed of 600, at least 100 
of which are affordable.  

Healthy and thriving communities 
 
Help you feel safe in your home and community, 
working to reduce further very low levels of crime 
 

 
 
 

• By 2012 reduce crime by 5% and achieve a perception of feeling safe in 
Cherwell by 80% of residents 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
8



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 22

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

Make it easier for you to lead a healthy and active life  
 

• Increase participation in active recreation by 1% per annum 

• Improve all age mortality rates in Banbury 

Co-ordinate, improve and provide more diverse and 
accessible health provision and advice through 
improved education, partnership working, better local 
access and increased choice 
 

• Ensure local health care and social service provision meet the needs of the local 
population particularly in relation to local accessibility 

• Continue determined efforts to retain the Horton Hospital’s status as a District 
General Hospital. 

 

Environment and climate change 
 

Protect our environment, wildlife habitats and the 
countryside, by working with others   
 

 
 

• Achieve a measurable improvement to biodiversity 

Keep streets and open spaces clean and free from litter, 
graffiti and abandoned vehicles and well maintained 
 

• By 2012 achieve 80% resident satisfaction with street and environmental 
cleanliness 

Help you recycle so we can reduce the amount of landfill 
waste 
 

• By 2012 recycle 55% of household waste 
 

• By 2012 reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill by 5000 tons 

 
Find out more at www.cherwell-dc.gov.uk  

P
a
g
e
 2

0
9



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 23

 
Oxford   
 

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

A World Class Economy  
Managed and sustainable economic growth 
 
Improved position in the retail hierarchy  
 
 
 
Affordable housing 
 
 
Skills and employment 

 

• Developing the Northern gateway site for employment uses 

• Regeneration of the West End of the City and implementation of the West End 
Cultural Strategy. Creating an estimated 1,000 new homes and 5,000 jobs  

 

• Ensure the development of 1,200 new and affordable homes in the City (NI 154 
and 155) 

 

• % population qualified to level 2 and level 3 (tbc) 

Healthy and thriving communities 
 
A thriving place to live and visit 
 
Improve life changes and life expectancy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce homelessness 
 
 
Reduce crime and the fear of crime 
 
 
 

 

• Ensure that 85% of people are satisfied with their neighbourhoods (NI5) 
 

• Raise the levels of adult participation in sport by 4% (NI 8) 
 

• Increase benefits take up by 20% 
 

• Reduce the age mortality gap between the best and worst areas within the City 
by % (tbc) (NI 120) 

 

• Aim to reduce the use of temporary accommodation for the homelessness to 
below 50 households (NI 156) 

 

• Reduce the number of assaults with injury in domestic violence incidents, all 
alcohol related crime and violence 

 

• Reduce concerns about anti-social behaviour (N1 21) 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
0



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 24

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

Community cohesion • Provide positive activities for young people in the most deprived areas of Oxford 
by investing £120,000 in free holiday activities for 5-19 year olds. 

 

• Number of people from different backgrounds who believe that they get on well 
together in their local area (NI 1) 

Environment and climate change 
 

Pollution / mitigation 
 
 
 
 
 

Adaptation 
 
 
 

Congestion 
 
 
 

Reduce waste 
 
 

Improved public realm 
 
 

• Reduce the Council’s CO2 emissions by 800 tonnes per annum (% reduction on 
2005-06 levels (NI 185). (Getting Our House in Order – Carbon Management 
Strategy and Implementation plan maps a way to meeting our target of 25% 
reduction of CO2 emissions by 2010/11 and 3% year on year beyond 2010/11 

 
 

 

• Provide £100,000 of fuel poverty grants that will improve energy efficiency and 
the health and comfort o residents. 

• Develop a Climate Change Action Plan (aim for level 3 of NI 188 by 2010/11) 
 

• Access to services, transport/cycling/walking(NI 175) 
 

• Reduce domestic landfill by 45% (NI 191 and NI 192) 
 

• Improve the quality of our streets so that 90% reach the national quality standard 
(NI 195) 

 

• Achieve the Green Flag for 5 of our parks 

  
Find out more at www.oxfordpartnership.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
1



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 25

South Oxfordshire 
 

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

A World Class Economy • Improving the vitality of town centres and prospects for rural businesses 
 

• Supporting the establishment of new small businesses to increase productivity 

Healthy and thriving communities • Increasing the supply of homes, including affordable homes 
 

• Promoting health lifestyles 
 

• Tackling antisocial behaviour 
 

Environment and climate change 
 

• Conserving environmental resources 
 

• Maintaining and improving the quality of the natural environment and landscape 

 
Find out more at www.southoxon.gov.uk  

P
a
g

e
 2

1
2



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 26

The Vale of White Horse 
 

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

A World Class Economy 
 

- maintenance of high and stable levels of economic growth and employment: 
 
Addressing economic needs; 
Building on our economic strengths, and 
Maintaining and enhancing the health and vitality of the Vale’s market town centres. 
 

Healthy and thriving  communities 
 

- social progress which recognises the needs of everyone:  
 

• Healthier communities; 

• Improving quality of life for older people; 

• Safer communities; 

• Fostering a greater sense of community; 

• A good understanding of local need; 

• Involving young people;  

• Helping those without cars to access jobs and services; 

• Affordable homes; 

• Good quality homes; and 

• Access to good quality green spaces, sport, cultural and leisure facilities 

Environment and climate change 
 

- effective protection of the environment and wise use of natural resources: 
 

• A low carbon Vale; 

• Living with extreme weather conditions; 

• Using resources wisely; 

• Reducing waste and increasing recycling; 

• A high quality natural and historic environment; 

• Protecting the natural environment, and 

• Enhancing the built heritage. 

 
Find out more at www.thevalepartnership.org.uk  

P
a
g
e
 2

1
3



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 27

West Oxfordshire 
 

District Priorities Local Actions and Targets 

A World Class Economy 
 

• Sustaining economically prosperous and 
vibrant towns and villages 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Campaigning to improve the transport 
infrastructure including the provision of 
public transport 

 

 
 

• Increase participation in regular volunteering by local people 
 

• Increase in the number of communities developing community-led plans 
 

• Maintain and increase the number of retail businesses in the District’s principal 
towns and villages  

 

• Increase the economic value of the Visitor Economy (tourism and wider 
hospitality) to West Oxfordshire 

 

• NI 177 Bus journeys originating in the local area 
 

• NI 175 Access to services and facilities by public transport, walking and cycling  

Healthy and thriving  
 Communities 
 

• Maintaining and improving the health and 
wellbeing of all residents in West Oxfordshire 

 
 

• Further reducing crime and nuisance and the 
fear of crime across the District to improve 
the quality of life in our neighbourhoods 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

• N1 120 – reduce the gap in all age, all-cause mortality by 10% in 2011 

• N1 8 – increase in adult participation in sport by 4% by 2012 
 

• Maintain our position within the top quartile in terms of low levels of all crime per 
1000 population within the Thames Valley Force (March 08 baseline) 

 

• Maintain the current percentage of the population who are not afraid of crime 
during the day and night (baseline Neighbourhood engagement 07/08) 

 
 
 

• Contribution to achievement of the District Council’s target for provision of new 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
4



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 28

 
 

• Supporting individuals and young families 
who want to stay in the area that they grew up 
in 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• Addressing the specific challenges of living in 
rural West Oxfordshire in terms of access to 
services and facilities 

 

• Supporting and assisting young people to 
make the transition from childhood to 
adulthood 

 
 

• Supporting the elderly to maintain their 
independence and heath 

affordable housing  

• Increase in the number of households purchasing under Homebuy or discount 
market housing schemes with the benefit of financial assistance 

• Reduction in the percentage of potentially homeless 16 and 17 year olds who 
actually become homeless 

 

• Increase in the number of joint initiatives that seek to improve rural access to 
services  

 
 

• NI 110 Young People’s participation in positive activities  

• Conduct annual strata surveys of young people to understand issues they face 
 

• Number of individuals registered in primary care with acquired +65 mental health 
problems  

 

• NI 139 – people over 65 who say that they receive the information assistance 
and support needed to exercise choice and control to live independently  PSA17 

Environment and climate change 
 

• Keeping West Oxfordshire as a clean, 
beautiful place of high environmental quality 
whilst seeking to reduce the causes of and 
adverse impact of climate change 

 

 
 

• NI 195 Improved Street and Environmental Cleanliness – 96% of litter 
inspections to be grade B or above by 2012 

• N1 196 Improved street and environmental cleanliness – reduce reported 
incidents of fly-tipping by 10% by 2012 

• N1 188 Adapting to climate change – to achieve level 3 by 2010 

 
Find out more at www.westoxon.gov.uk 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
5



Oxfordshire 2030 DELIVERY PLAN 

 29

Plans and Strategies  
 
The priorities will be delivered through a range of plans and targets will be incorporated within partner’s corporate plans.  
Contact District Local Strategic Partnerships for further information on local action plans/parish plans. 
 
Countywide plans: 

Local Area Agreement  
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
Race Equality Scheme 
Comprehensive Equality Policy 
Disability Equality scheme 
Oxfordshire Structure Plan 
South East Plan (central Oxfordshire sub region) 
Emergency Plan 
Local Transport Plan 
Economic Development Strategy for Oxfordshire 
Rural Framework 
Carbon Management Programme  
Joint Municipal Waste Strategy  
Oxfordshire Supporting People Strategy 
Public Health Strategy for Oxfordshire  
Commissioning strategy for older people 
Children and Young People’s Plan 
OCC Corporate Plan 
Oxfordshire Biodiversity Action Plan 
Oxfordshire Voluntary Sector Development Partnership 

Sub-regional plans: 
Structure Plan 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan  

Key regional plan: 
South East Plan 
Regional Housing Strategy 
Regional Economic Strategy 
Regional Transport Strategy 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
6



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

W
h
o
le
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
O
x
fo
rd
 

c
e
n
tr
ic
, 
n
o
rt
h
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
ty
 n
o
t 

re
fl
e
c
te
d
 

A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
, 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
w
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 

P
a
g
e
 1
5
 –
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
ra
 –
 l
a
s
t 

s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 ‘
…
m
o
to
rs
p
o
rt
s
 

(B
a
n
b
u
ry
 i
s
 a
 s
u
b
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
h
u
b
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
n
 N
o
rt
h
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
),
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
in
g
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
.’
 

 P
a
g
e
 2
4
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
ra
 v
e
ry
 O
x
fo
rd
 c
e
n
tr
ic
. 
 

In
c
lu
d
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
 m

a
rk
e
t 
to
w
n
s
, 

C
o
ts
w
o
ld
 a
n
d
 i
ro
n
s
to
n
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
. 

D
o
n
e
 

     D
o
n
e
 

 
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
re
fe
rs
 t
o
 S
E
 

re
g
io
n
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 

n
o
rt
h
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
ty
 b
o
rd
e
rs
 

E
a
s
t 
M
id
s
, 
W
e
s
t 
M
id
s
 

A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
, 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 o
n
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
1
2
 -
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
ra
 –
 

ta
lk
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

a
re
a
s
 

 
 

 
 

P
3
 F
o
re
w
o
rd
 r
e
a
d
s
 a
s
 

th
o
u
g
h
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
b
e
lo
n
g
s
 

to
 c
o
u
n
ty
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

fo
rm

 o
n
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
, 
n
o
t 
in
 

s
p
ir
it
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
ll 
L
S
P
 C
h
a
ir
s
 t
o
 s
ig
n
. 

 
 

 
 

P
6
 B
lo
x
h
a
m
 i
s
 o
n
 m

a
p
 

w
it
h
 c
it
ie
s
 

B
lo
x
h
a
m
 s
ti
ll 
o
n
 m

a
p
. 
 

R
e
a
ll
y
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
. 

A
s
k
 f
o
r 
B
lo
x
h
a
m
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 m

a
p
 o
n
 p
8
. 

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
. 
  

A
s
k
 f
o
r 
B
lo
x
h
a
m
 t
o
 

c
o
m
e
 o
ff
 m

a
p
 o
n
 p
6
. 

D
o
n
e
 

P
7
 d
o
e
s
n
't
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 

m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 s
ta
ts
 

N
o
t 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
g
e
 9
 -
In
w
a
rd
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
is
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t.
  
In
 2
0
0
1
 7
.5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
lo
n
g
 t
o
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 

o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 w
h
it
e
 B
ri
ti
s
h
; 
b
y
 2
0
0
6
 t
h
is
 h
a
d
 g
ro
w
n
 

to
 1
0
.7
%
. 
 O
u
r 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 g
ro
w
th
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 m

ig
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 

P
o
lis
h
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
E
a
s
te
rn
 E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
  

 T
h
is
 a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 o
n
 p
a
g
e
 2
0
 –
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 –
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 p
a
ra
 –
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

th
e
 %

 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 D
id
c
o
t 
(B
a
n
b
u
ry
 

G
ri
m
s
b
u
ry
 w
a
rd
 h
a
s
 1
0
.9
%
).
  
B
u
t 
w
h
it
e
 n
o
n
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 

C
h
e
rw
e
ll.
 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 a
d
d
 

in
to
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 –
 i
t 
is
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 t
h
e
re
 

s
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
n
o
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

   N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 a
d
d
 

in
to
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 –
 b
u
t 
a
s
 

O
x
fo
rd
 a
s
 %

 
w
h
y
 n
o
t 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

          P
a
g
e
 1
8
, 
7
.3
, 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

to
 r
e
a
d
 ‘
…
1
3
%
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
 o
f 
O
x
fo
rd
 w
it
h
 

1
0
.9
%
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 G
ri
m
s
b
u
ry
 

w
a
rd
 a
n
d
 a
 s
iz
e
a
b
le
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

          D
o
n
e
 

Page 217



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
id
c
o
t?
 (
p
a
g
e
 

1
8
, 
7
.3
) 
in
 n
e
w
 

v
e
rs
io
n
. 
 

D
id
c
o
t…

’ 

P
9
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
ri
v
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
: 
fo
c
u
s
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 r
u
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
 m

o
s
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 O
x
fo
rd
 c
e
n
tr
ic
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 

tr
u
n
k
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
rk
e
t 

to
w
n
s
. 
 B
u
t 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
1
7
. 

P
a
g
e
 1
7
 –
 ‘
w
e
 p
le
d
g
e
 t
o
’ 
–
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 l
a
s
t 
b
u
lle
t 

p
o
in
t 
to
 r
e
a
d
 ‘
T
a
c
k
le
 t
ra
ff
ic
 c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 o
n
 t
ru
n
k
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 m

a
rk
e
t 
to
w
n
s
, 
O
x
fo
rd
 C
it
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

h
o
ts
p
o
ts
’.
 

D
o
n
e
 

 
 

P
1
1
/1
2
 w
o
rr
ie
d
 i
f 
g
o
 t
o
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

c
o
u
n
ty
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
s
 

H
a
rd
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 C
llr
s
 O
K
 w
it
h
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 n
o
t!
  
 

 
 

 
 

P
1
1
/1
2
 w
it
h
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 
a
 

lo
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 n
o
rt
h
 o
f 

d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
re
 c
ro
s
s
 b
o
rd
e
r 

e
.g
. 
H
o
rt
o
n
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
o
e
s
n
't
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

th
is
 2
 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
 v
is
io
n
s
 f
e
e
d
 

in
 t
o
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 p
c
t 
a
n
d
 

a
n
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 v
is
io
n
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
h
e
lp
fu
l 

C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
p
a
g
e
 m

a
k
e
s
 t
h
is
 

c
le
a
re
r 
a
n
d
 p
1
2
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
ra
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 ‘
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’ 

a
n
d
 ‘
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 a
re
a
s
’.
 

 
 

 
 

P
1
1
/1
2
S
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 

is
 c
ro
s
s
 b
o
rd
e
r 
is
s
u
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

is
 n
o
t 
re
fl
e
c
te
d
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 
 

 
 

P
1
2
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 
a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 n
o
t 

c
o
v
e
re
d
 

M
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 ‘
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
’ 
th
e
m
e
. 

 
 

 
 

P
1
2
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

n
o
t 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

W
o
rd
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

–
 m

o
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
in
g
 

u
n
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
. 

 
 

 
 

P
1
2
 T
ra
ff
ic
 c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 ,
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 O
x
fo
rd
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

o
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
m
a
rk
e
t 

to
w
n
s
 i
g
n
o
re
d
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

la
rg
e
ly
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
b
o
a
rd
. 

 
 

 
 

P
1
3
 F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 t
e
c
h
 

N
o
t 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
 

P
a
g
e
 1
5
 –
 ‘
k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
’ 
–
 f
ir
s
t 
b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t 

D
o
n
e
 

 
 

Page 218



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr
y
 o
u
r 
fo
c
u
s
 i
n
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 i
s
 o
n
 m

id
 t
e
c
h
 

e
.g
. 
m
a
n
u
fa
c
tu
ri
n
g
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 w
e
 a
re
 

p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
lo
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
. 
 P
a
g
e
 3
0
 –
 

C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
p
a
g
e
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

m
id
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 t
e
c
h
. 

a
d
d
 i
n
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 m

id
 t
e
c
h
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 s
o
 r
e
a
d
 

‘…
o
u
r 
m
id
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
..
’ 

P
1
5
 '
w
e
ll 
a
b
o
v
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
g
 n
o
t 
q
u
a
lif
ie
d
, 
d
o
e
s
n
't
 

s
a
y
 b
y
 h
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 r
a
ti
o
 o
f 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
ly
 t
o
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 

to
 b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
tt
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 c
o
u
n
ty
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
is
 s
o
rt
 

o
f 
d
e
ta
il 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 i
n
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
n
’t
 

b
u
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 O
P
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

M
a
k
e
 c
le
a
re
r 
th
a
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 i
n
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

(a
s
s
u
m
in
g
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
).
 

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 

‘t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 

a
re
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 

th
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
.’
  
N
o
t 

s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
le
a
r 

e
n
o
u
g
h
, 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 n
o
t 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 

A
d
d
 a
 f
o
o
te
r 
o
n
 e
a
c
h
 

p
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 s
a
y
 ‘
D
e
ta
il
e
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 o
n
 

w
w
w
.o
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
p
a
r

tn
e
rs
h
ip
.o
rg
.u
k
 

o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
’ 

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
 

P
1
7
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

n
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 

p
la
c
e
 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
s
a
id
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 w
a
s
n
’t
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

c
ri
ti
c
a
l.
 

 
 

 
 

P
1
9
 Y
o
u
th
, 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 y
o
u
th
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
 V
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
L
A
A
. 
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 c
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 p
o
in
t.
 

 
 

 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
lim

a
te
 

Q
u
it
e
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 m

a
d
e
 

 
 

 
 

Page 219



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 w
o
rd
e
d
 

a
s
 a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is
 

g
o
in
g
 t
o
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 a
n
y
w
a
y
 

to
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 

re
fl
e
c
t 
a
d
a
p
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 m

in
im
is
in
g
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

P
2
6
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 h
ig
h
 v
a
lu
e
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
 f
ro
m
 w
in
d
 

tu
rb
in
e
s
 

N
o
t 
m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
. 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
lk
s
 a
b
o
u
t 

‘p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
o
u
r 
c
it
y
, 
o
u
r 

m
a
rk
e
t 
to
w
n
s
 a
n
d
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
’ 

a
n
d
 ‘
e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
th
e
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
 a
n
d
 

b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
’,
 a
ls
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

‘t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
n
e
w
a
b
le
 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 a
ls
o
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
’.
  
Is
 

m
o
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
?
 

 
 

 
 

M
a
rk
e
t 
T
o
w
n
s
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

h
a
d
 i
ts
 d
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
o
n
e
 a
 

d
is
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 

n
/a
 

 
 

 
 

P
1
6
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 

to
w
n
 a
n
d
 p
a
ri
s
h
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lo
s
e
s
t 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
, 

b
o
tt
o
m
 u
p
 s
m
a
ll 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
e
d
 

M
o
re
 i
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 

to
w
n
 a
n
d
 p
a
ri
s
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
–
 

e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 o
n
 p
a
g
e
 6
. 

 
 

 
 

L
a
rg
e
 N
o
. 
in
 N
o
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 n
o
t 
re
g
is
te
re
d
 

w
it
h
 a
 G
P
  

N
o
t 
m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
. 

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
w
it
h
in
 

n
o
rt
h
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 l
a
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
re
g
is
te
re
d
 w
it
h
 a
 G
.P
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
. 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
g
e
 2
9
, 
1
0
.1
0
, 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 b
u
lle
t,
 a
d
d
 

‘R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

G
.P
.s
 i
s
 l
o
w
 i
n
 p
a
rt
s
 

o
f 
n
o
rt
h
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
.’
 

D
o
n
e
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
 A
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

a
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
. 
 T
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

 
 

 
 

Page 220



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

p
la
n
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 

ta
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 L
A
A
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
ly
 l
is
ts
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
. 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 g
lo
s
s
a
ry
 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
h
o
p
e
fu
lly
 

le
s
s
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
n
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
in
 

c
le
a
re
r 
E
n
g
lis
h
. 

 
 

 
 

P
2
6
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 

O
x
fo
rd
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
, 
O
x
fo
rd
 C
it
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

c
it
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
a
re
fu
l 
a
s
 w
a
n
te
d
 l
e
s
s
 

O
x
fo
rd
 c
e
n
tr
ic
. 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
 

C
it
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

 
 

 
 

W
h
y
 i
s
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 S
q
 k
m
 w
h
e
n
 

c
it
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 i
n
 s
q
 

m
ile
s
?
 

W
ill
 p
u
t 
in
 s
q
 m

ile
s
! 

P
a
g
e
 3
0
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
lin
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 ‘
…
C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
c
o
v
e
rs
 

a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
5
9
0
k
m
2
 (
2
2
8
 s
q
u
a
re
 m

il
e
s
)…

’ 
D
o
n
e
. 

 
 

T
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
L
S
P
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

2
0
3
0
 P
le
d
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 T
a
rg
e
ts
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
c
le
a
r.
 

M
a
d
e
 c
le
a
re
r.
 

T
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
L
S
P
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 P
le
d
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
c
le
a
r 
o
r 
s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

            T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
c
le
a
r 
lin
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
p
le
d
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

     

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
: 

‘t
h
e
re
 i
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

w
o
rk
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
o
n
e
 b
y
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o
f 

s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 

is
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
’.
 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
: 
‘w
e
 

fe
e
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
k
e
s
 

th
is
 l
in
k
 –
 a
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 l
in
k
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

A
 d
ia
g
ra
m
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 

h
o
w
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
L
S
P
s
 l
in
k
 

in
to
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
fu
l.
  

           A
g
re
e
d
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 a
t 
th
is
 

ti
m
e
 b
u
t 
c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
a
 

v
e
ry
 s
im
p
lis
ti
c
 

d
ia
g
ra
m
 l
is
te
d
 

‘t
h
e
m
a
ti
c
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
’ 
a
s
 a
 

b
lo
c
k
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
?
  

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
 

               N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
 

Page 221



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

         T
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

T
h
e
m
a
ti
c
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
L
S
P
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 

to
 b
e
 c
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t.
 

a
d
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
f 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
’.
  

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
le
a
v
e
 

a
s
 i
s
. 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
: 
a
 

m
o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 i
s
 

s
ti
ll 
u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 

..
w
e
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

a
 d
ia
g
ra
m
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
’.
 

O
th
e
rw
is
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
lin
k
s
 c
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 l
o
s
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 6
 –
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 

 
H
e
le
n
 C
o
u
p
e
rt
h
w
a
it
e
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 0
1
2
9
5
 2
2
1
7
5
1
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.p
la
n
n
in
g
@
c
h
e
rw
e
ll-
d
c
.g
o
v
.u
k
  

F
o
rm

a
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
, 
n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 

n
a
m
e
d
 c
o
n
ta
c
t.
  
 

P
a
g
e
 4
3
 –
 a
d
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
: 
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.p
la
n
n
in
g

@
c
h
e
rw
e
ll-
d
c
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

D
o
n
e
. 

P
a
g
e
 6
  
- 
fi
n
d
 o
u
t 
m
o
re
 

a
b
o
u
t 
y
o
u
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
P
a
g
e
 6
 –
 F
in
d
 o
u
t 
m
o
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
y
o
u
r 
L
S
P
 –
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 –
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 ‘
 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
m
b
it
io
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 f
iv
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
L
S
P
s
 h
a
v
e
 f
e
d
 …

’  

D
o
n
e
. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1
6
 –
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 
P
a
g
e
 1
6
 –
 l
a
s
t 
b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t 
b
e
fo
re
 ‘
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

s
k
ill
s
’ 
a
d
d
 ‘
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
ll
y
 h
a
s
 a
 

m
a
n
u
fa
c
tu
ri
n
g
 b
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
m
id
 

a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 t
e
c
h
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
’.
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

–
 b
u
t 
m
a
d
e
 i
t 

s
o
u
n
d
 l
ik
e
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

B
ic
e
s
te
r 
h
a
v
e
 

s
im
ila
r 
n
e
e
d
s
 –
 

n
o
t 
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

tr
u
e
, 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 

P
a
g
e
 1
4
, 
6
.1
0
, 
th
ir
d
 

b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t,
 t
a
k
e
 o
u
t 

‘a
n
d
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
’,
 b
u
t 

a
d
d
 n
e
w
 b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t 

th
a
t 
re
a
d
s
 

‘D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 

b
y
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
 m

id
 

a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 t
e
c
h
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
’.
 

D
o
n
e
. 

Page 222



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 7
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 2
1
 -
 t
y
p
o
s
 

 
P
a
g
e
 2
1
 –
 p
a
ra
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 ‘
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
u
lt
u
re
…
’ 
–
 l
a
s
t 
w
o
rd
 o
n
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 l
in
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

re
a
d
 ‘
id
e
n
ti
ty
’.
 

 S
e
c
o
n
d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
lin
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 p
u
t 
‘V
C
S
’ 
o
u
t 
in
 f
u
ll.
 

 L
a
s
t 
p
a
ra
 b
e
fo
re
 ‘
d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 c
h
a
n
g
e
’ 
n
o
t 
c
le
a
r 

w
h
a
t 
it
 m

e
a
n
s
. 
 I
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

la
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
im
m
ig
ra
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
e
ll 
in
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
w
n
. 

D
o
n
e
 

   D
o
n
e
 

 P
a
ra
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
u
t.
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2
2
 –
 m

o
re
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
?
 

W
it
h
 t
h
e
 H
o
rt
o
n
 i
n
 m

in
d
, 

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 p
le
d
g
e
s
 w
e
 

a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
‘e
n
s
u
re
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
k
e
y
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’.
  
T
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 n
o
w
 

s
a
y
s
 ‘
 d
e
fe
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 

ru
ra
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
’ 
–
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
w
e
 a
ls
o
 a
s
k
 f
o
r 

‘e
n
s
u
re
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

k
e
y
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’.
 

P
a
g
e
 2
2
 –
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 ‘
e
n
s
u
re
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
k
e
y
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’.
 

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 

‘d
e
fe
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 

ru
ra
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
’ 
is
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t.
  

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
w
e
 

p
u
s
h
 f
o
r 

‘e
n
s
u
re
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

k
e
y
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’ 
s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

m
o
re
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 

o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

P
a
g
e
 2
1
–
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

p
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 

‘e
n
s
u
re
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
k
e
y
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’.
 

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
. 

P
a
g
e
 2
5
 -
 c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

 
P
a
g
e
 1
5
 –
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 –
 p
a
ra
 3
 –
 l
in
e
 6
 –
 m

a
k
e
 c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 5
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  

A
ls
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
ils
t 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s
 

m
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
in
 E
u
ro
p
e
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 d
o
n
e
 –
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 w
h
o
 

o
n
 O
W
P
 b
u
t 

n
o
t 
c
re
d
it
e
d
 u
s
 

w
it
h
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 –
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 

 
 

Page 223



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 8
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll.
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 2
8
 –
 r
e
-s
tr
e
s
s
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t.
 

 
P
a
g
e
 2
8
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t 
–
 i
n
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
w
h
it
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 c
la
s
s
 m

a
le
s
 t
e
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 B
M
E
s
 a
re
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 v
e
ry
 

h
ig
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm

e
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 p
o
in
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
. 

N
o
t 
d
o
n
e
, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

P
ro
b
a
b
ly
 o
u
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
te
x
t 
th
e
re
 

s
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 a
s
 i
s
. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3
1
 –
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
p
a
g
e
 

 
P
a
g
e
 3
1
 –
 b
u
lle
t 
p
o
in
t 
s
ta
rt
in
g
 ‘
m
a
k
e
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie
r 
fo
r 

y
o
u
 t
o
 g
e
t.
.’
 –
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 

‘I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
il
s
t 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
o
u
th
e
rn
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
lo
o
k
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 

O
x
fo
rd
 m

o
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 n
o
rt
h
 l
o
o
k
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
.’
 

D
o
n
e
 

 
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 

P
5
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 9
 a
n
d
 1
0
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 a
s
 

a
ls
o
 t
ra
ff
ic
 c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
, 
n
o
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
g
e
 7
 –
 b
o
tt
o
m
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
g
e
 –
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

to
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 9
 o
n
 M
4
0
 s
o
 

re
a
d
s
 ‘
…
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 M
4
0
 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 9
 a
n
d
 1
0
, 
E
a
s
t-
w
e
s
t…

’ 

D
o
n
e
. 

 
 

P
6
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
th
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

S
e
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 –
 

n
e
e
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
lin
k
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
re
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
. 

 
 

 
 

P
8
 r
e
s
is
t 
v
io
le
n
t 
e
x
tr
e
m
is
ts
  

M
o
re
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 

v
io
le
n
t 
e
x
tr
e
m
is
m
. 

 
 

 
 

P
9
 d
o
e
s
n
't
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 e
x
a
m
s
 

a
n
d
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
N
Is
 (
m
a
n
y
 o
f 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 i
n
 L
A
A
) 
a
re
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 –
 a
g
a
in
 t
h
is
 m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 a
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o
 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 

 
 

 
 

P
3
 m

a
n
y
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
ro
s
s
 

b
o
rd
e
r 
is
s
u
e
s
, 
s
o
m
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 m

a
y
 w
a
n
t 
to
 a
c
t 

a
lo
n
e
 

C
ro
s
s
 b
o
rd
e
r 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 a
c
tu
a
l 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 s
e
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
c
ti
n
g
 a
lo
n
e
 i
s
 n
/a
 

a
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

 
 

Page 224



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
3
0
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

(N
o
te
, 
p
a
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
a
ry
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
ra
ft
s
) 

P
a
g
e
 9
 o
f 
9
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 

O
x
o
n
 

2
0
3
0
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
n
ly
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
re
 t
o
 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 

E
c
o
n
o
m
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 

o
x
fo
rd
 c
e
n
tr
ic
 

T
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 

le
s
s
 O
x
fo
rd
 c
e
n
tr
ic
. 

 
 

 
 

P
9
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
in
 a
ll 
a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 d
o
n
’t
 

a
lw
a
y
s
 w
o
rk
 w
e
 d
o
n
't
 w
a
n
t 

th
e
m
 h
e
re
, 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
x
fo
rd
 

A
g
re
e
d
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 

n
o
t 
a
ll 
a
re
a
s
 –
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 w
h
a
t 

O
x
fo
rd
 C
it
y
 h
a
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

T
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
. 
 

 
 

 
 

P
1
0
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

d
iv
e
rs
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
a
ri
s
h
 

a
n
d
 t
o
w
n
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
  

N
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
 L
o
o
k
s
 l
ik
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

is
s
in
g
 f
o
r 

th
is
 p
le
d
g
e
. 

P
a
g
e
 1
2
 –
 p
le
d
g
e
 8
 –
 m

o
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

h
e
re
, 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
T
o
w
n
 

a
n
d
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 p
le
d
g
e
. 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 ‘
w
e
 

w
ill
 n
o
te
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

to
w
n
 a
n
d
 

p
a
ri
s
h
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 

in
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

th
is
 p
le
d
g
e
’.
  

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
is
 i
s
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t.
 

 
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
d
, 

to
w
n
 a
n
d
 p
a
ri
s
h
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 

h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
o
p
 u
p
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
t 

N
o
t 
a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

p
la
n
 –
 b
u
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

w
o
u
ld
 p
ic
k
 t
h
is
 u
p
 –
 s
e
e
 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 
 

 
 

P
1
1
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
b
u
t 
n
e
e
d
 

to
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 

T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
–
 b
e
tt
e
r 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 –
 s
e
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 
 

 
 

P
1
1
 p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
ro
s
s
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

P
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 i
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
n
 

p
a
g
e
 1
2
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
ra
. 

 
 

 
 

N
o
th
in
g
 i
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
b
o
u
t 

3
,0
0
0
 m

ili
ta
ry
 p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
in
 

B
ic
e
s
te
r 
n
o
t 
p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 a
s
 a
 

m
in
o
ri
ty
 

M
ili
ta
ry
 p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
n
o
w
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 b
o
th
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 225



 

   

Executive  
 
 

Consultation and Engagement Strategy   
 

2 February 2009  
 

Report of Chief Executive and Community and Corporate 
Planning Manager  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 
This report presents a final version of a consultation and engagement strategy and 
action plan for Cherwell District Council and outlines the steps the council needs to 
take to meet the requirements of new legislation in this policy area.  
 
 

 
This report is public 

 
 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 

(1) To undertake consultation on the draft strategy and make any 
amendments in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Policy and 
Community Planning. 

(2) Following consultation, to recommend to Council the adoption of the 
consultation and engagement strategy and action plan as council policy and 
the preferred approach to improving consultation and community 
engagement, to delivering our commitment to be an Accessible, Value for 
Money Council and to meeting the statutory requirements of the Duty to 
Involve in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

(3) To request an annual progress review of the strategy and action plan to 
be received by the Executive. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 226



 

   

Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 Cherwell District Council has a record of effective consultation and 
engagement with the local community. This currently takes place across the 
council in all service areas and covers issues around customer satisfaction 
and service development. In addition, our service and financial planning 
framework and partnership work aims to identify and address needs within the 
Cherwell community.  

 
1.2 Recent policy developments (including new legislation and the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment) mean that councils and other public 
bodies are being required to improve their approach to community 
consultation and engagement. This includes requirements to demonstrate we 
have consulted and acted on the basis of the results and to work increasingly 
closely with partners to consult, engage and demonstrate a clear 
understanding of the needs of the local community.  

 
1.3 Our Strategic Priority to be an Accessible, Value for Money Council commits 

us to being easy to contact, approachable and responsive, seeking the views 
of customers about our services, maintaining transparent and public decision 
making and listening to views and comments from the local community. This 
strategy will help us to deliver our commitments within the corporate plan. The 
strategy also helps us to meet our commitments under Theme 10 of the 
Cherwell Community Plan as it also provides a framework in which to improve 
engagement with harder to reach groups. 

 
Proposals 

1.4 To update the council’s existing consultation framework, to include a number 
of documents and activities: a medium term strategy to develop and improve 
our current approaches; a three year action plan to meet the strategy’s 
objectives; a charter that clearly outlines our commitment to consultation and 
the standards that consultees can expect; toolkits; support and guidance for 
managers and officers undertaking consultation; and a clear approach to 
working with our partners to consult with the local community. 

 
1.5 It is proposed that the strategy and action plan is based on six objectives. 

Cherwell District Council will: 
 

1. Demonstrate a clear commitment to consultation and community 
engagement. 

 
2. Have a coordinated but flexible approach to consultation that meets the 

needs of all our services and ensures a consistent approach across the 
council.  

 
3. Work in partnership with others to ensure joined up consultation.  

 
4. Undertake consultation in line with clear standards and good practice. 

 
5. Ensure our consultation is open, accessible and inclusive. 

 
6. Demonstrate how the results of our consultation influences outcome. 

Page 227



 

   

 
1.6 The strategy also outlines a series of principles that should underpin all future 

consultation to ensure quality and value for money. These principles are 
explained more fully in the consultation strategy attached as Appendix 1.  

 
1. Purposeful  
2. Robust  
3. Accessible  
4. Communicated and Coordinated 
5. Used 
6. Proportionate 

 
1.7 Appendix 2 outlines the actions that will deliver the objectives outlined in the 

strategy. These cover a three year period. 
 

Conclusion 
 
1.8 The business benefits of adopting the consultation and engagement strategy 

as proposed in this paper, and the supporting appendices, go beyond 
meeting statutory requirements. They reflect and develop the Council’s 
current commitment and approach and include:  

 

• A clear statement of our commitment to consultation and engagement and 
an overview of the standards the public can expect when we undertake 
consultation.  

 

• Support for Members in terms of better information about community 
needs and also improved opportunities to be involved in consultation.  

 

• Closer alignment between service and financial planning and community 
needs as expressed through robust consultation and engagement 
opportunities. This will include the provision of an evidence base for 
service developments and growth bids.  

 

• A clear set of standards and requirements for managers in terms of 
service consultation and support to help them fulfil this.  Support will 
include consulting with harder to reach groups.  

 

• Improved coordination of consultation across the Council and in 
conjunction with partners. This will ensure consultation results are timely, 
improved sharing of information and the reduction of consultation fatigue.  

 

• Improved access to consultation for members of the local community. 
Consultations will be better planned and publicised. This will include better 
online access.  

 

• Better value for money by working with others to procure consultation and 
share results.  

 

• By adopting clear principles and standards the quality of our consultations 
will improve.   

 

Page 228



 

   

• A programme of corporate consultation that can be used to underpin the 
Council’s strategic framework including setting the budget and the 
corporate plan and understanding customer satisfaction trends.   

 
 
Background Information 

 
2.1 Our Current Approach  
 

Currently all councils have a statutory duty to consult on major policy 
decisions and specific areas of activity or service delivery (for example in 
planning).  To meet this requirement we undertake a local annual satisfaction 
survey, the BVPI surveys (now the place survey), and complete a detailed 
qualitative programme of budget consultation. We also consult widely with 
regards to medium term strategies and the Community Strategy.  In addition, 
service managers undertake specific and necessary consultation to inform 
service development.  

 
Our current approach is comprehensive; we are committed to undertaking 
consultation and use a variety of techniques, we are part of a county wide 
group that jointly procures government required questionnaires to improve 
value for money and quality and we are developing fora to help improve 
community engagement.  
 
We have also signed up to the Oxfordshire Compact which sets consultation 
for consultation and engagement with the voluntary and community sector. 

   
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 New statutory requirements  
 

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (2007) places a 
Duty to Involve upon us. This duty is a specific requirement that we (and all 
Best Value Authorities) must fulfil with regards to consultation and 
engagement.  
 
The requirement comes into force in April 2009 and Appendix 3 to this report 
explains the implications of the new duty in greater detail. Whilst the duty 
does not require us to undertake any specific consultation events we will be 
required to demonstrate that are proactive and coordinated in our approach to 
consultation (both across the council and with partners). It also requires us to 
feedback the results of consultation to those who have taken part and take 
action as a result of consultation (or be able to demonstrate that we have 
considered consultation results and can account for why we have not acted 
upon them).  
 
In order to fulfil this duty we will need to ensure we have robust approaches to 
the issues outlined below. The consultation and engagement strategy aims to 
address them: 

 
• Accessibility - using appropriate methods and ensuring we talk to groups 

that are sometimes considered harder to reach for many reasons, for 
example economic, social, cultural, geographic, health, time etc.  

Page 229



 

   

 

• Proportionality - balancing the benefits and costs of consultation with the 
significance of the issue 

 

• Partnership working – to ensure we are joined up across the district, 
learning from our partners, better value for money 

 

• Coordination - ensuring our consultation activities are part of an integrated 
approach across the area  

 

• Timing - when to consult, making sure the results can feed into service 
planning and development, making sure we avoid consultation fatigue 

 
3.2 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) 

 
Our response and approach to these new requirements will be measured 
through the CAA (the inspection regime that replaces the CPA 
(comprehensive performance assessment) from April 2009. One of the key 
questions that will be considered as art of this assessment is the extent to 
which local priorities express community needs and aspirations. As such we 
will have to demonstrate that we have robust arrangements in place to collect, 
listen to and act upon the results of community consultation and engagement.  

 
As part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment an annual Use of Resources 
assessment will be undertaken. This judges the effectiveness of the 
organisation in terms of the extent to which it meets the criteria outlined in the 
key lines of enquiry (KLOEs).  
 
These KLOEs require a number of activities and achievements in terms of 
stakeholder consultation and involvement. These include consultation around 
setting the budget, setting priorities on the basis of local need, consulting with 
people in terms of how they would like to access information about the council 
and its reports, policies and services, consulting with service users when 
designing and commissioning services, using information (including customer 
information) to improve service performance and working with partners to 
ensure information about community needs is effectively and safely shared. 

 
3.3 Working in partnership  
 

In addition to the requirements of the CAA already identified in this paper the 
assessment will also consider how effectively we work in partnership to 
engage the community and understand community need. We already work 
with partners to improve our understanding of community needs (for example 
as part of the Community Planning Partnership and the Safer Communities 
Partnership) and this strategy will help us to develop this work.   

 
3.4 The Cherwell Community Strategy – Focus on People (Theme 10)  
 

Theme 10 of the community strategy identifies specific actions aimed at 
improving accessibility and engagement with younger people, older people, 
people with disabilities and people from black and minority ethnic 
communities. This strategy will support these actions by improving our 
engagement with groups of people we find hard to reach and improving 
consultation resulting from equality impact assessments.  

Page 230



 

   

There is also a clear requirement to effectively consult and engage the 
community as outlined in the equalities standard and our own equalities 
polices. This is with regards to the impact council polices have on different 
communities in the district (through equality impact assessments). 

 
3.5 Service and Financial Planning  
 

The proposed strategy will build upon the work undertaken during 2008 and 
further integrate consultation into the service and financial planning process.  
This means identifying consultation needs early on (as part of service plans) 
effectively planning and resourcing them and making best use of consultation 
outcomes to inform our service strategies.  It will also ensure that there is a 
corporate consultation plan and programme to inform key strategies and 
activities such as the corporate plan and budget. 

 
3.6 Value for money  
 

An improved approach to consultation and engagement will support improved 
value for money in a number of ways. A clear strategy and action plan 
underpinned by additional support for managers will reduce duplication, 
improve procurement of research services and reduce the amount of time 
spent undertaking consultation work.  
 
The outcomes of consultation should also result in improved services, 
focused on service users’ requirements and therefore providing better value 
for money.  

 
3.7 As a result of these issues it is recommended that the Executive adopt the 

proposed Consultation and Engagement Strategy as council policy. It is also 
recommended that the Executive receive an annual update regarding the 
progress and implementation of this strategy.  

 
 The Executive is also invited to identify any additional issues, actions or 

initiatives to be included in the strategy and action plan. 
 
 
 
Consultations 

 

External  The Equality and Access Advisory Panel considered 
issues around communication, consultation, engagement 
and participation and a public meeting on 1 December as 
part of the equalities impact assessment for this strategy.    

Internal  The Community Links officer group has reviewed the 
strategy and the council’s approach to consultation has 
been considered by EMT.  

 
Implications 

 

Financial: None beyond current budgets set for 2009/10. The action 
plans for subsequent years will require resources to 
ensure it is implemented. These will be drawn from the 
Community and Corporate Planning budget.  

Page 231



 

   

 Comments checked by  

Legal: The new community strategy will meet the requirements 
of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007, particularly the Duty to Involve. It will also 
provide a framework for emerging legislation around the 
‘Communities in Control’ White Paper.  

 Comments checked by Liz Howlett, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services/Monitoring Officer, 01295 221686. 

Risk Management: Without the adoption of a new strategy there is a risk that 
the business benefits outlined in paragraph 1.8 will not be 
realised.  In addition there is a risk that we will not meet 
the standards required by the new legislation or that we 
will not meet the standards outlined in the CAA.  

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts 

Risk Management & Insurance Officer, 01295 221566 

Equalities Approaches to consultation and engagement have been 
discussed by the Equality and Access Advisory Panel and 
one of the actions in the strategy is to develop guidance 
on improving consultation with harder to reach groups.    

 Comments checked by Grahame Helm, Head of Safer 
Communities and Development 01295 221615 

 
 
 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
Strategic priority 4 – Cherwell: an accessible, value for money council.  
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor Barry Wood   
Portfolio Holder for Policy and Community Planning  
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 Draft Consultation and Engagement Strategy  

Appendix 2 Draft Consultation and Engagement Action Plan 

Appendix 3 Duty to Involve Briefing Note 

Background Papers 

 

Report Author Claire Taylor, Community and Corporate Planning Manager 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221563 

claire.taylor@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 232



  1

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cherwell District Council 

 
Consultation and Engagement Strategy 2009-2012 

Page 233



  2

 

Contents 
 
Introduction and purpose of the strategy  
 

3 

Scope of strategy  
 

3 

Timeframe for strategy 
 

3 

Performance and review 
 

3 

Strategic Aim 
 

4 

Strategy Objectives 
 

4 

What is consultation?  
 

4 

Why does the council consult? 
 

5 

How does the council consult? 
 

6 

Who does the council consult? 
 

6 

Quality and standards 
 

6 

Cherwell Consultation Principles 
 

7 

Contact details 8 

 
 

Page 234



 
Introduction and purpose of the strategy  
 
This strategy sets out a broad framework for how Cherwell District Council proposes to consult and 
engage with local people and communities, including residents, people who work in the district, 
local businesses and the voluntary and public sectors. This framework will be used as the basis for 
a medium term action plan to guide the work of the Council in this area during the period 2009-
2012.  
 
As part of the strategy a charter will be developed that clearly and concisely outlines what 
members of the public and other stakeholders can expect from the Council in terms of the 
consultation and engagement activities that we undertake.  
 
Guidance, training and ‘toolkits’ will also be developed to ensure that Council employees have the 
necessary support and training to meet the objectives in this strategy. 
 
 

Scope of strategy  
 
The strategy outlines our general approach and commitment; it does not replace any statutory or 
formal consultation processes that we currently undertake, for example in relation to planning, 
licensing or any appeals processes.  
 
The strategy and action plan covers Cherwell District Council services, decisions and processes 
and does not commit partner agencies to its objectives and actions at this stage. However, it is 
recognised that working in partnership is an important part of this approach and one of the aims of 
the strategy is to develop joint strategies to improve consultation and engagement with partners. 
As such the Cherwell Community Planning Partnership will be asked for its views on this 
document.  
 
 

Timeframe of strategy 
 
This is a medium-term strategy covering the period 2009/10 (April 2009) to 2001/12 (March 2012).  
 
 

Performance and review 
 
An annual performance report will be published that reviews our performance against the strategic 
aim, objectives and actions outlined in this document. The content of the strategy and action plan 
will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis taking into account new policy developments and 
changes in local requirements, areas identified for improvement and national policy initiatives and 
ensure these are reflected in new actions as required.  
 
Performance, in terms of implementing the action plan, will be reviewed by officers on a quarterly 
basis as part of the Community and Corporate Planning Team’s service plan.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 235



  4

Strategic Aim 
 
Cherwell District Council is committed to consulting the people and communities of Cherwell and 
developing strategies and services that take into account local priorities. Consultation and 
community engagement helps us to ensure that we are responsive to local needs and aspirations.  
 
This consultation and engagement strategy will provide the Council with a consistent, corporate 
and agreed approach to how we consult the people and communities of Cherwell and use the 
results to inform our policy, strategy and service delivery.  
 
The aim of the consultation and engagement strategy is to ensure the delivery of high quality 
consultation and effective engagement across the Council. The people and communities of 
Cherwell will have confidence in our activities and consultation and engagement will produce 
robust results that can inform service development and council policy.  
 
This aim supports the delivery of the Council’s strategic priority “Cherwell – An accessible, value 
for money council”.  
 
 

Strategy Objectives 
 
Our objectives are to: 
 

1. Demonstrate a clear commitment to consultation and community engagement  
 

2. Have a coordinated but flexible approach to consultation that meets the needs of all our 
services and ensures a consistent approach across the council  

 
3. Work in partnership with others to ensure joined up consultation  

 
4. Undertake consultation in line with clear standards and good practice 

 
5. Ensure our consultation is open, accessible and inclusive 

 
6. Demonstrate how the results of our consultation influences outcomes 

 
 

What is consultation?  
 
The concept of a ladder of consultation or participation is well known (e.g. Arnstein's model in 
1969). This approach sees consultation as a continuum moving from the most basic information 
giving to more complex and interactive modes of engagement. David Wilcox (1994) 
http://www.partnerships.org.uk identifies a number of stages that is useful for local authorities and 
those working in community consultation activities. (See figure 1) 
 
This strategy aims to support consultation and engagement activity in each of these stages, using 
techniques that are appropriate for the kind of consultation or engagement required.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 236



  5

Figure 1: From Communication to Engagement  
 
 

 
 

Information 

 
Telling people what is planned so that they 
are informed about what is happening 
 
 

 
 
 

Consultation 

Being clear about what we are asking 
people’s opinion about and why, specifying 
what can and cannot be changed. Offering a 
number of options and listening to the 
feedback. Decisions made taking account of 
the consultation results alongside other 
factors.  
 
 

 
Deciding together 

Encouraging people to provide some 
additional ideas and options, and to working 
with them to decide the best way forward. 
 
 

 
 

Acting together 

Deciding together a course of action and 
forming a partnership (or other arrangement) 
to carry it out. All are equally responsible for 
the outcome. 
 
 

  

 
Supporting community 

initiatives 

Working with stakeholders to do what they 
want - perhaps within a framework of grants, 
advice and support provided by the resource 
holder. 
 

 
(See http://www.partnerships.org.uk) 
 
 

Why does the council consult? 
 
The main purpose of consultation and engagement is to ensure that our services reflect the needs 
of the local community. This requires us to actively undertake consultation to inform strategy, 
policy, service development and the allocation of the council budget. Key requirements include: 
 

• To support the role of Councillors in understanding the needs and wishes of the Cherwell 
community 

• The need to inform the community strategy and provide a solid knowledge base for 
developing services and service strategies  

• To measure customer satisfaction and opinion in relation to service delivery and be able to 
track changes over time and in relation to service changes  

• To measure issues around quality of life, such as the fear of crime 

• To measure LAA targets and other performance indicators   

• To improve the delivery and take up of our services  

• To support bids for resources or the allocation of resources  
 
 

Engagement 

Consultation 

 

Communication 

 

Page 237



  6

How does the council consult? 
 
The council has a good record of using different ways to consult people and communities, 
including surveys online and by post, workshops, focus groups, formal methods such as the 
publication of draft policies and strategies and consultative forums.   
 
We are committed to using consultation and engagement methods that are inclusive and 
appropriate for the target audience. The council is also keen to consult in partnership with others 
and works with partners to jointly commission consultation. This strategy will help to improve our 
techniques and methods (with the aim of improving response and participation rates) and also 
increase the amount of joint projects we undertake with partners.  
 
The council will publish planned consultations and the method being used to undertake the 
consultation or engagement event on the consultation pages of the website (www.cherwell.gov.uk).  
 
 

Who does the council consult? 
 
Before embarking upon consultation it should be clear who the target audience is. For example 
service users, potential services users, the families/carers of service users, council tax payers, 
partners, local businesses, other public agencies and the voluntary and community sector. The 
target audience and purpose of the consultation may have an impact on the consultation methods 
and techniques chosen.  
 
Within these broad categories we recognise that there may be people or groups that are less likely 
to take part in consultations for a number of reasons for example they may have language or other 
accessibility requirements, they may not use many council services, they may be busy or spend a 
lot of time outside the district.  These groups are often called ‘harder to reach’ and different 
approaches are usually required to establish and maintain contact with them, so that their views 
are not overlooked.  This strategy will help improve the council’s approach to consulting and 
engaging with groups that have sometimes been seen as hard to reach.  
 
 

Quality and standards 
 
There are a number of standards that we will be working to. These include the Oxfordshire 
Compact Consultation Code, for consultations involving voluntary and community sector 
organisations, government set standards for consultations such as the place survey and good 
practice standards such as those laid out by the Market Research Society or the Consultation 
Institute.  
 
As part of the strategy a clear statement or charter regarding our principles and standards will be 
produced.  

Page 238



  7

Cherwell Consultation Principles 
  

1. Purposeful  
 

Consultation is the cornerstone of the Cherwell Community Strategy, the medium term 
strategies flowing out of it and the Council’s Corporate Plan. Consultation should be 
undertaken when we have a good reason, informing or developing service delivery, council 
policy or strategy. Consultation must be targeted and well-focussed, with clear objectives. 

 
2. Robust  

 
Consultation should be of good quality, meeting our required standards. We should be clear 
about the purpose and scope of the consultation and how its outcomes will be used. We 
must consult at a formative stage rather than later on in the process and provide people 
with information to allow informed response. The council will employ external expertise as 
necessary and support staff to undertake effective consultation.  

 
Efforts will be made to ensure that information collected is in a standard format in order that 
it can be easily retrieved using a standard set of demographic categories and put to use by 
all council departments and partners.  This contributes to reducing the need for new 
consultations and research. 

 
3. Accessible  

 

Consultations should use methods that appropriate to the people who need to participate.  
Consultations should allow all interested parties to have their say and give them adequate 
time to do so.  Consideration should be given and steps taken to engage with groups we 
find hard to reach or those who may be unlikely to participate in traditional consultation 
methods. Consideration should be given to people who find it harder to participate in 
consultation and engagement activities for any reason, factors may be social, economic, 
cultural, geographical, health related, age related or time availability.  

 
4. Communicated and Coordinated 

 
Consultation activities should be appropriately communicated and integrated into the 
service and financial planning framework. Co-ordination of consultation activity should take 
place both across the council and with partner organisations to avoid duplication of effort, to 
share knowledge and provide better value for money.  

 
5. Used 

 
Proposals to carry out consultation must include a clear explanation of the information 
needed in order to ensure that all consultation activity is of value and relevance. 
Consultation findings should be reported clearly and outcomes of consultation must be 
clearly fed back to consultees and stakeholders; this includes the results of consultation 
and action taken on the basis of consultation findings.  

 
6. Proportionate 

 
Consultation expenditure will be proportionate to the scale of the service or theme being 
researched and the significance of the issue. Consultation should demonstrate value for 
money and be conducted in a coordinated way to avoid duplication of effort (both within the 
council and across partnerships) and consultation fatigue. 

Page 239



  8

Contact details: 
 
For more information about this strategy, the supporting action plan or the guidance and toolkits 
contact the Community and Corporate Planning Manager.  
 
For information about planned consultation and engagement events have a look at the consultation 
calendar on our web pages. 

 
 
 
 

( 01295 221563 
 

8  
 

consultation@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 
 

�  
 

www.cherwell.gov.uk  
 

+ 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, 
Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire OX15 4AA 

 
 

 
 

Page 240



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 1
: 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
 c
le
a
r 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 1
: 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
 c
le
a
r 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
  

 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
U
p
d
a
te
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 (
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
) 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

1
. 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 b
e
 s
ig
n
e
d
 

o
ff
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

B
ri
n
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 n
e
x
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
  

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

R
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
e
.g
. 
C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 A
re
a
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 D
u
ty
 t
o
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
) 
b
y
 

p
u
b
lis
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
, 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
ie
s
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

c
h
a
rt
e
r 
to
 c
le
a
rl
y
 s
ta
te
 o
u
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
 

 

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 e
v
e
n
t 
(E
M
T
 )
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
  

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

It
e
m
 i
n
 C
a
s
c
a
d
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
it
e
m
 o
r 
p
la
c
e
 i
n
 C
D
C
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

A
rt
ic
le
 i
n
 I
n
s
id
e
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
a
b
o
u
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

2
. 
P
ro
m
o
te
 n
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
S
P
(L
o
c
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
) 

M
o
n
th
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
in
d
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
le
n
d
a
r 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
, 
a
d
 h
o
c
 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 n
o
te
s
 w
h
e
n
 

p
o
lic
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

R
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 b
ri
e
f 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
n
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
, 
o
n
g
o
in
g
, 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

Page 241



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 1
: 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
 c
le
a
r 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
e
tu
p
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
le
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
ro
a
d
 s
h
o
w
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
a
y
s
. 

F
ir
s
t 
e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

ro
le
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 m

o
re
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
  

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

re
p
o
rt
s
 m
a
k
e
 c
le
a
r 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r
o
le
s
  

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
w
it
h
 p
a
ri
s
h
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 t
o
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
o
v
e
rl
o
a
d
 o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
ti
g
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
ri
s
h
e
s
. 
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 R
u
ra
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

E
v
a
lu
a
te
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
’ 
tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 E
v
a
lu
a
te
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

 

A
p
ri
l-
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

4
. 
S
e
t 
u
p
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

fo
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

S
e
t 
u
p
 t
ra
in
in
g
 e
v
e
n
ts
. 

 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t,
 

d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 H
R
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
 

Page 242



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 2
: 
H
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
u
t 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
ll
 o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
. 

  O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 2
: 
H
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
u
t 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
ll
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
. 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

1
. 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 a
s
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
  

 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

2
. 
U
s
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

A
ll 
m
a
jo
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
. 

A
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
n
lin
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
le
n
d
a
r 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
. 
P
ro
v
id
e
 t
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

P
ro
c
u
re
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 o
n
lin
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
, 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

(i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
),
 a
n
d
 a
 s
in
g
le
 p
o
rt
a
l 
fo
r 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
le
n
d
a
r.
  

M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
u
b
lis
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t 

 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

P
u
b
lis
h
 a
 t
o
o
lk
it
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 T
o
o
lk
it
) 

 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

4
. 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 c
le
a
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 o
n
lin
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 b
a
n
k
 o
f 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

5
. 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 (
lis
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 t
o
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 (
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
 

Page 243



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 2
: 
H
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
u
t 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
ll
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
g
ro
u
p
s
 -
  

w
h
o
 m

ig
h
t 
h
e
lp
/s
u
p
p
o
rt
/ 

ta
k
e
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 )
 

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

6
. 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 t
h
re
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 s
in
g
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 a
 3
 Y
e
a
r 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
T
h
is
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
a
p
ta
b
le
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
n
y
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
h
it
e
 

p
a
p
e
r.
  

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

7
. 
D
e
liv
e
r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
ro
u
n
d
 o
f 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 –
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t/
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t/
s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
) 
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
 

 

 

Page 244



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 3
: 
W
o
rk
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 3
: 
W
o
rk
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 c
o
u
n
ty
 w
id
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 j
o
in
t 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
n
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 w
id
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
o
rt
a
l 
to
 h
e
lp
 

C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
ty
 w
id
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

fr
o
m
 a
 s
in
g
le
 w
e
b
 p
a
g
e
. 
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

1
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
ro
s
s
 c
o
u
n
ty
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
re
 w
e
ll 

p
la
n
n
e
d
, 
p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 

d
o
 n
o
t 
le
a
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
ti
g
u
e
. 
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
v
ia
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
ty
 w
id
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 g
ro
u
p
 (
p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
) 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

a
ll 
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
. 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

2
. 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
c
e
 

S
u
rv
e
y
  

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
p
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
’s
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

 
2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
. 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 j
o
in
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

A
g
re
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 

u
n
d
e
rp
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

 f
u
tu
re
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 L
A
A
. 
 T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
  

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 

Page 245



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 4
: 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 c
le
a
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 4
: 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 c
le
a
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

g
ro
u
p
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
-A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

 
1
. 
P
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lic
is
e
 a
 s
e
t 
o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ly
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 a
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
  

 

A
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
n
lin
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
le
n
d
a
r.
 A
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 f
o
llo
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
o
lk
it
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 C
h
e
c
k
lis
t.
 

 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

g
ro
u
p
 

P
u
b
lic
is
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
s
 l
a
id
 i
n
 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

2
. 
P
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 T
ra
in
in
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
k
ill
s
. 
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 (
a
n
d
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
) 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

3
. 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
re
 o
u
r 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 u
s
in
g
 C
A
A
 

k
e
y
 l
in
e
s
 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 (
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
) 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
s
im
ila
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
’s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r;
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
, 
A
u
d
it
 

4
. 
E
x
te
rn
a
lly
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
r 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
m
e
a
n
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
A
A
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
/ 
ID
e
A
 p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 /
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
e
e
r 
R
e
v
ie
w
 /
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
U
s
e
 o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r;
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
, 
A
u
d
it
 

 

Page 246



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 5
: 
E
n
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o
p
e
n
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
. 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 5
: 
E
n
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o
p
e
n
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
a
k
e
 i
te
m
 t
o
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 P
a
n
e
l 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
. 
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

1
. 
C
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

C
ir
c
u
la
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
rt
e
r 
to
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t.
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
  

 
J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

S
e
t 
u
p
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 P
a
n
e
l 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
ra
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 

fa
it
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
o
ld
e
r,
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
ile
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il-
w
id
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 

(C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 C
a
le
n
d
a
r)
 

 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
le
a
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

F
e
a
tu
re
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
rt
ic
le
s
 i
n
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
L
in
k
 m

a
g
a
z
in
e
. 

 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
‘k
n
o
w
in
g
 y
o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 ‘
 e
v
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 e
v
e
n
t.
 

3
. 
P
ro
m
o
te
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 

h
a
rd
-t
o
-r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 w
it
h
 h
a
rd
-t
o
-r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 

4
. 
H
e
lp
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
u
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
le
a
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 

le
a
d
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
h
o
 

w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 g
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 
 

 

M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 

Page 247



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 5
: 
E
n
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o
p
e
n
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
m
a
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
ts
  

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 p
o
lic
y
 i
s
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
 

Page 248



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 6
: 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 6
: 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
re
p
a
re
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 p
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ro
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
e
x
p
la
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
. 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 f
o
r 
fe
e
d
in
g
 b
a
c
k
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
in
d
in
g
s
. 

 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

P
u
b
lis
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
 

p
a
g
e
s
. 
 

 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
, 
c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 

 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

 

1
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

fe
e
d
in
g
 b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
a
rt
. 

H
o
s
t 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

A
n
n
u
a
lly
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

D
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o
 C
D
C
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
; 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
. 
 

A
p
ri
l 
–
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

2
. 
U
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm

 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
  

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
re
 f
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll.
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
. 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

to
 i
n
fo
rm

 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
  

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
H
ig
h
lig
h
t 
h
o
w
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 e
n
d
 A
u
g
u
s
t 

e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r.
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

4
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 t
e
m
p
la
te
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 d
ri
v
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
id
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
g
ro
w
th
. 
(P
la
n
n
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
) 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l,
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

Page 249



C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 6
: 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 G
o
a
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

5
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
. 

R
e
fe
r 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 k
e
y
 m

e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm

 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
s
 n
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
re
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

 

Page 250



THE DUTY TO INVOLVE 
A BRIEFING NOTE  

 
 

This note provides an overview of the statutory requirement for local authorities to engage, involve 
and consult with its citizens. It is drawn from the guidance that accompanies the Act. 
 

Legislative Requirements  
 
The Local Government Act 1999 places a duty of Best Value (BV) on councils to continuously 
improve and requires that, in making arrangements to secure continuous improvement, we 
consult with people who are who are likely to use services or have an interest in the area.  
 
The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Bill 2007 (pt 7 section 138) 
develops this requirement and places a ‘Duty to Involve’ upon all BV authorities from April 2009. 
 
 

What is the ‘Duty to Involve’? 
 
The duty requires authorities to take steps they consider appropriate to involve 'representatives of 
local persons' in the exercise of any of their functions, where they consider that it is appropriate to 
do so. It specifies three ways of involving that need to be covered in this consideration:  
 

• providing information about the exercise of the particular function 

• consulting about the exercise of the particular function; and/or 

• involving in another way… 

 
Within the context of the duty the term 'representatives of local persons' refers to those likely to be 
affected by, or interested in, a particular authority function. The term 'local persons' is not simply a 
reference to local residents, formally elected or nominated members of the community, such as 
councillors. It also covers those who work or study in the area (including those who work for the 
authority); visitors; service users; local third sector groups; businesses; bodies such as parish 
councils; and anyone else likely to be affected by, or interested in, the function.  
 
 

What is the duty trying to achieve? 
 
The activities we undertake to meet the duty will depend upon our circumstances. Appropriate 
engagement should become standard practice throughout authorities, central to service delivery, 
policy and decision-making. Authorities should be able to demonstrate, that they: 
 

• understand the interests and requirements of the local community 

• use their understanding to ensure information, consultation and involvement opportunities are 
provided on the right issues, targeted at the right people, and accessible  

• have an appropriate corporate approach to providing information, consulting and involving in 
other ways that flows throughout their organisation – from strategic policies into individual 
service delivery – and that they work with partners where appropriate 

• local people will feel that the authority provides relevant and accessible engagement 
opportunities and will know how to get involved, either directly or through their elected 
representative 

• local people will recognise that the authority’s policies reflect this involvement and services 
are tailored to local needs, even though difficult choices in service provision need to be made. 

 
 

Page 251



What we already do 
 
CDC already undertakes consultation and engagement with stakeholders and local residents. At 
the corporate level examples include the annual satisfaction survey, annual budget consultation, 
and the BVPI (now ‘place’) survey.  Consultation and community engagement activities are 
ongoing across the council. For example, our work with the voluntary sector, customer research 
and the Govmetric system, consultation with service users when we draft new polices and 
strategies, our work with parish councils and consulting on the local development framework.  
 
This duty is not a new policy direction rather a requirement to consolidate and improve the way 
we currently do things.  

 
 
Implications for CDC 
 
Our ability and track record for consultation and engagement will be measured as part of the new 
CAA (comprehensive area assessment) inspection regime. This will include how effectively we 
work with partners to consult, share results and take action to address issues that emerge. 
 
Whilst we already do a lot of good quality consultation and engagement work what we do across 
the whole council (and in partnership) hasn’t always been co-ordinated and the results shared. 
So, while we meet the basic requirements of the act, there are several areas we need to develop. 
 
 

Areas for Improvement 
 
We need to ensure: 
 

• our consultation and engagement is effectively planned, co-ordinated and meets the strategic 
needs of the organisation 

• we use appropriate techniques to consult with people 

• our consultation and engagement is timely, undertaken at a point where it can have a genuine 
impact of the decision or development 

• we share consultation results with partners to help improve planning 

• we routinely engage with service users to help plan service developments 

• we understand the needs of our community and groups that may be harder to reach within our 
community  

• we make changes to our services as a result of consultation 

• we feedback the results of our consultation to those who participated, including what has 
changed as a result 

• we work with councillors to involve them in consultation and engagement activities  
 
 

Applying the duty 
 
The duty to involve applies to all services, functions and important decisions. The authority must 
take steps to fulfil this duty and decide who it would be appropriate to inform, consult or involve. In 
considering how to fulfil the duty, we should aim to involve ‘representatives of local people’ as 
much as possible. We should not shy away from involving people in difficult issues, but will need 
to be clear in such circumstances about how much influence over decisions is being offered, 
people need to understand what role and influence they have in any consultation process.  
 
 
In meeting this duty, authorities should consider: 

Page 252



 

• Privacy: ‘representatives of local persons’ should not be involved in individuals’ personal 
matters e.g. individual cases. However, it might be appropriate to inform, consult and/or 
involve in the policy development around these issues. 

• Previous engagement or involvement (either by the authority or others), this should be 
used to inform the next stage of involvement with the public so as to avoid duplication and to 
help move any engagement forward. 

• Possible benefits and costs authorities should consider the predicted benefits of informing, 
consulting and/or involving against the costs of that involvement. 

 
Roles and responsibilities  
 
Corporate responsibilities – the community and corporate planning team will be responsible for 
providing support to managers and staff in relation to consultation and engagement, they will 
prepare a strategy, action plan and guidance and will undertake corporate consultation for 
example satisfaction surveys and budget consultation. They will also work with the LSP to help 
develop a partnership approach to consultation and engagement.  
 
Managerial responsibilities – service managers will need to ensure that they continue to 
undertake appropriate consultation and engagement activities as part of their general service 
development work including; service planning, major projects, equality impact assessments, value 
for money reviews, changes to service, service strategies etc.  
 

Contacts  

Claire Taylor, Community and Corporate Planning Manager, Telephone: 01295 221563 
 
  

 

Page 253



 

   

Executive  
 

Draft Budget 2009 – 2010  
 

2 February 2009  
 

Report of Strategic Director Customer Service and Resources 
and the Chief Accountant 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 

The Council is required to produce a balanced budget for 2009/10 as the basis for 
calculating its level of Council Tax.  It has to base that budget on its plans for service 
delivery during the year, recognising any changes in service demand that may arise 
in future years.  The first draft was reported to the December 1st 2008 Executive 
meeting and a second draft to the January 12 2009 Executive meeting.  The 
information has now been updated to reflect changes since then and, subject to any 
further changes Members may wish to include tonight, this final draft will be 
presented to full Council on 23 February 2009.   
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
**Please note the appendices to this report are to follow** 

 

Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 

1) to approve the changes to the draft budget since 12 January 2009 and 
consider the draft revenue budget (detailed in Appendix 1) in the context 
of the Council’s service objectives and strategic priorities;  

2) to agree the approach to the overall capital programme and 09/10 
expenditure profile (detailed in Appendix 2); 

3) to note the latest MTFS financial forecast (detailed in Appendix 3); 

4) request officers to produce the formal 09/10 budget booklet on the basis 
of Appendices 1-3: 

5) recommend ,subject to any further changes Members may wish to include 
tonight, the updated draft budget for adoption by the Council on 23 
February 2009 (as a key decision); 

6) recommend that the draft service plans be endorsed;  

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The budget will form the financial expression of the Council’s service delivery plans 

for 2009/10; the allocation of resources against agreed service priorities is 
necessary in order to achieve its strategic priorities. 

 
1.2 There is a statutory requirement for the Council to set a balanced budget by 11 

March 2009 and this draft budget is the penultimate part of that process. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 254



 

   

 
1.3 The current economic climate presents unprecedented challenges in meeting 

spending priorities without placing undue burden on local taxpayers. The Council’s 
successful approach to improving value for money and securing efficiencies on an 
ongoing basis provides the foundation for further significant cost reductions in the 
coming year, over and above contributions secured to date in excess of £2.8million. 

1.4 As a result the draft budget presented illustrates further progress in securing further 
efficiency savings to reduce the funding gap identified in the previous draft from 
£43k to a balanced budget. 

1.5 The level of council tax being proposed is analysed in Appendix 1. 
 
 

 
Background Information 

 
2.1 

 
Service Plans 

 
 

 

Copies of the Service Plans for 2009/10 are available on the Council’s intranet site  

http://intranet/improvement/draftserviceplans.cfm. 

 
2.2 

 
Process 

 
The delivery of a balanced budget representing value for money to local residents is the 
fundamental objective of the service and financial planning process.  This centres on the 
preparation of service plans, which are developed not only to deliver the Council’s corporate 
objectives and priorities, but also to demonstrate how the published service targets, 
representing the Council’s commitment for delivery in priority areas, are to be achieved.  
The budget is the financial expression of these plans, within the context of the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 
The programme involves elected Members, the Council’s senior managers and, in many 
service teams, operational staff.  The views of the public, our community partners, the 
voluntary sector and the local business community are all actively sought through structured 
channels during the programme, and these views are reflected in the process of service 
prioritisation and resource allocation. 

 
The draft budget is based on the latest forecast  out-turn position, rather than the current 
year budget, and managers have had to justify their service and budget proposals through a 
robust challenge process from senior managers and elected Members. 

 
The entire capital programme has been subject to review and re-profiling and has emerged 
with a clearer focus on service priority; although it is still felt that there is further work to be 
undertaken in this area. 

 
2.3 

 
Changes in the Revenue Budget Since 12 January 2009 

 
The draft budget presented in December 2008 presented a funding gap of £0.7million. As a 
result of internal efficiencies this gap was reduced to £43k. The budget presented in this 
report benefits from further efficiencies and is balance. All changes since 12 January 2009 
are analysed in Appendix 1. 

 
2.4 

 
2009/10 Capital Programme  

 
The capital programme is analysed in Appendix 2 and includes a reconciliation of the 
movements since December 1st 2008. 

 
2.5 

 
The Future 

Page 255



 

   

 
The Council has successfully managed the budget challenges, previously forecast for 
2009/10. It can be seen from the Medium Term Financial forecast in Appendix 3 that the 
coming years present even further challenges which in the main relate to the rapid decline 
in investment income due to interest rates. The Council’s commitment to reducing its future 
dependency on investment income has already secured cost reductions in excess of £2.8m 
over the past 2 years. This strengthens its position to meet the forecast challenges of future 
years. 

 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 This report presents a final analysis of the Council’s draft 2009/10 Revenue 

and Capital Budget. The details in Appendix 1-3 will form the basis of the 
budget booklet to be presented to Council on 23rd February to support the 
setting of Council Tax. 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One To review draft revenue and capital budget to date and 

consider actions arising. 
 

Option Two To approve or reject the recommendations above or 
request that Officers provide additional information. 

 
Consultations 

 
Executive 12/01/09 
Corporate Management Team 07/01/09, 14/01/09 and 21/01/09 
 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: Financial Effects – the significant financial effects of the 
budget are identified in Appendix 1. Any decisions made 
in relation to ongoing expenditure or income in the budget 
for 2009/10 will have repercussions in future years when 
current forecasts indicate the financial environment is 
likely to become increasingly difficult.  The Council has a 
statutory duty to set a balanced budget and could incur 
the intervention of the Secretary of State if it failed to do 
so.   
 
Consideration of this item will fall within the provisions of 
Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
and Members affected by those provisions should declare 
accordingly and refrain from voting on the matter. 
 
Efficiency Savings – Our Medium Term Financial Strategy 
requires efficiency savings and we have a NI target of 
3.1% in 2009/2010. The draft budget presented includes a 
significant level of qualifying efficiencies which will enable 
the Council to meet its target.  

Page 256



 

   

 Comments checked by Julie Evans, Strategic Director for 
Customer Service and Resources , 01295 221595. 

Legal: There is a statutory requirement for the Council to set a 
balanced budget by 11 March 2009 and the draft budget 
is part of that process. 

 Comments checked by Julie Evans, Strategic Director for 
Customer Service and Resources, 01295 221595. 

Risk Management: The significant risks and assumptions associated with the 
draft budget are outlined in Appendix 1 and a risk 
provision has been considered.  On a broader front, if due 
consideration is not given to matching scarce financial 
resources carefully against properly assessed service 
priorities, the Council may fail in achieving its strategic 
priorities and in its duty to demonstrate value for money. 

 Comments checked by Julie Evans, Strategic Director for 
Customer Service and Resources, 01295 221595. 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

An Accessible and Value for Money Council 
 
 
Executive Portfolio 

Councillor James Macnamara   
Portfolio Holder for Resources 
 
 
Document Information – Appendix 1-3 to follow separately 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 
 

Draft Revenue 2009/10 Budget and Analysis 3 
Draft 2009/10 Capital Programme 
Draft Medium Term Financial Forecast 2009/10 to 2013/14 
 

Background Papers 

2008/09 Budget Booklet 
2008/09 Capital Programme 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Budget Guidelines 
2009/10 Budget Booklet – to be presented at Council 23 February 2009 
 

Report Author Karen Curtin, Chief Accountant 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221551 

karen.curtin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 257



 

   

Revenue 2009/10 Budget Proposal and Analysis  
 

 
The Status of the Budget 

 
1.1 This third draft of the budget presented to the Executive has been subject to 

further validation of revenue, capital bids and efficiency savings. 
  
1.2 The final allocation of central Government Grant has been confirmed and has 

remained as per the three year settlement. The amount available for 
distribution from the Collection Fund was prepared by the statutory deadline 
of 15th January 2009 has been confirmed that our share of the surplus 
equates to £108,318. 

 
1.3 Since the last report on January 12th 2009 the Bank of England’s has 

continued to cut interest rates in a bid to stimulate consumer spending. The 
current base rate was reduced by a further 0.5% on 8th January 2009 to 1.5%. 

  
1.4 Consumer Prices Index (CPI) annual inflation – the Government's target 

measure was 3.1 per cent in December, down from 4.1 per cent in November. 
Overall the reduction in the rate of VAT made the largest contribution to the 
1.0 percentage point change in the CPI annual rate. There were also effects 
from a fall in the prices of petrol and diesel and from greater discounting in 
sales than last year. RPI inflation slowed to 0.9 per cent in December, down 
from 3.0 per cent in November. This is the biggest monthly reduction since 
1980. The main factors affecting the CPI also affected the RPI along with 
large downward contributions from mortgage interest payments and house 
depreciation. 

 
1.5 The draft budget has taken the RPI as at November 2008 of 3%. In line with 

budget guidelines has provided for inflation on salaries at 3% and all other 
expenditure and income at 1% below this RPI rate at 2% unless other 
contractual arrangements are in place. 

 
Economic Climate 

 
1.6 Butlers, the Council’s Treasury Management Advisors, are currently of the 

view that the Bank Rate may decrease by a further 0.5% to 1% by the end of 
the current financial year. They have forecasted the following average rates 
for the next 3 years : 2010/11 – 2%, 2011/12 – 2.8%, 2012/2013 – 4% and 
2013/14 – 4% 

 
1.7 The planned reduction in interest rates along with the expenditure of the 

capital programme has resulted in significant reduction in investment income 
for 2009/10 amounting to £2.2m.  

 
1.8 This downturn in the economy has given rise to a number of unanticipated 

budget pressures. This has seen a reduction in the current year of planning 
and land charge income. In addition we face significantly increased fuel costs 
on expiry of the current contracted rates. There is also rising pressure on a 
number of Council services, notably benefits and a rise in homelessness will 
be expected. These assumptions have been continued into the draft budget 
and a risk provision has been created to mitigate the impact of these 
unknown factors. 

Appendix 1 

Page 258



 

   

General Fund Revenue Budget 
 

1.9 The General Fund Revenue budget is shown in Table 1.   
 

SERVICE 
EXPENDITURE 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Budget    
2008-09 

Projection    
2008-09 

Budget     
2009-10 
Draft 1 

Budget     
2009-10 
Draft 2 

Budget     
2009-10 
Proposal 

Services Sub-Total 26,143,031 22,325,765 22,893,373 22,453,581 22,494,476 22,404,002 

Capital Charges 
Reversed (2,504,576) (1,228,310) (1,228,310) (1,274,986) (2,446,965) (2,446,965) 

Net Expenditure 
Services 23,638,455 21,097,455 21,665,063 21,178,595 20,047,511 19,957,037 

Decrease on 07/08      -16% 

Decrease on 08/09      -6% 

Reserves and 
Provisions 111,543 82,428 (160,572) (251,943) (320,344) (220,473) 

  23,749,998 21,179,883 21,504,491 20,926,652 20,926,652 19,736,564 

Investment Income (6,892,106) (5,030,455) (4,939,455) (3,155,973) (2,774,248) (2,825,631) 

Government Grant (9,947,783) (10,310,045) (10,310,045) (10,610,610) 
(10,637,13

0) (10,637,130) 

Collection Fund (195,652) (101,591) (101,591) (101,591) (101,591) (108,313) 

Council Tax (5,807,252) (5,961,360) (5,961,360) (6,323,811) (6,170,483) (6,165,491) 

  (22,842,793) (21,403,451) (21,312,451) (20,191,985) 
(20,600,47

9) (19,736,565) 

Potential 
(Surplus)/Shortfall 907,205 (223,568) 192,040 734,667 43,715 0 

COUNCIL TAX       

Relevant Tax Base 49,214 49,678 49,678 50,672 49,923 49,923 

Council Tax Rate for 
Band "D" £118.00 £120.00 £120.00 £124.80 £123.60 £123.50 

Council Tax 
Collection 5,807,252 5,961,360 5,961,360 6,323,811 6,170,483 6,165,491 

 
1.10 In order to balance the budget a further reduction in costs or increase in 

income of £43,715 was required.  
 

Exec Draft 2 Deficit 43,715 

Lower Priority Saving Increase - £365,000 from £293,000 (72,000) 

EAC Review (62,878) 

PHE Review 27,000 

CSR Review  18,529 

Review of Executive Matters 40,641 

Council Tax - inflation cut by 0.1% to 2.9% - £123.50 Band D 4,993 

Final Draft Balanced 

 
1.11 The following actions have been identified for the Executive to approve in 

relation to achieving the £365,000 savings in 1.10 above.  
 

17% target reduction in Voluntary Sector Grants -£104,000 

Planned 7% reduction in net costs of Health & Recreation -£136,000 

Accommodation / Asset Management -£100,000 

Design & Print Expenditure Efficiencies -£25,000 

  -£365,000 

Page 259



 

   

1.12 The value of planned efficiency savings included in this budget now totals 
£2,046,791.  

 
Council Tax 

 
1.13 The level of council tax being proposed is £123.50pa at Band D.  In line with 

Council commitment this reflects a below inflation increase equivalent to 
£3.50 for the 12 month period or 7p per household per week.  

 
1.14 This inflationary increase, of 2.9%, is below both the prevailing CPI of 4.1% 

and the forecast average increase across UK councils expected to be circa 
3.5%. 
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2009/10 – 2013/14 

 
1.15 The Medium Term Financial Strategy presented on 12th January 2009 has 

been updated in light of the latest 2009/10 revenue budget. All significant 
expenditure and efficiency savings to date have been included as well as the 
impact of the capital programme included in Appendix 2. The draft forecast at 
present shows an improvement in the shortfall from £1.8m to £1.4m of which 
£1.7m can be wholly attributed to the reduction of investment income from 
2009/10 to 2010/11. 

 
1.16 The Council’s systematic approach to reducing the dependency on 

investment income has been successful to date. This has been achieved 
alongside the delivery of an ambitious capital programme and the successful 
delivery of the council’s priorities. The result of these actions to date has 
secured considerable protection from the full force of the interest rate 
deterioration. In the coming year we must continue our focus and give 
consideration to “fast–tracking” our planned strategy in order to secure a 
sustainable financial future and continue to have the available resources to 
meet the priorities of our community.  

 

  

Draft 
Budget     
2009-10 

FC    2010-
11 

FC    2011-
12 

FC    2012-
13 

FC    2013-
14 

Service Expenditure 22,404,002 22,808,388 23,264,555 23,753,111 24,251,926 

Capital Charges Reversed (2,446,965) (2,491,010) (2,540,831) (2,594,188) (2,648,666) 

Net Expenditure Services 19,957,037 20,317,377 20,723,725 21,158,923 21,603,261 
Investment Income (2,825,631) (1.172,611) (1,393,439) (1,846,820) (1,666,820) 

Potential (Surplus)/Shortfall 0 1,440,347 1,397,640 825,982 1,033,525 

Govt Efficiency Target 
(3.1%):  

included 
above (629,839) (642,435) (655,927) (669,701) 

 
Use of Reserves 

 
0 

to be 
agreed 

to be 
agreed 

to be 
agreed 

to be 
agreed 

Projected Shortfall 0 810,508 755,205 170,055 363,824 

 
Summary 

 
1.17 This budget will be presented to the Executive on February 2nd 2009 with a 

recommendation to produce the 2009/10 budget book on the basis of 
Appendices 1-3 and a recommendation to Council on 23 February 2009 to 

Page 260



 

   

adopts the 2009/10 budget (as a key decision) and set council tax 
accordingly. 

 
Further Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 3 
 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 

Page 261



 

   

Proposed Capital Programme 2009/10  
 

 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND FINANCING STATEMENT-SUMMARY 

  

 
Scheme 

Cost 
 £ 

  
Approved Programme-Schemes approved prior to 
2009/2010** £16,774,499 
  
Proposed Programme for 2009/2010 delivery £17,898,000 

  

Total Capital Programme £32,672,499 

  
Main Projects - approved prior to 2009/2010**  
Bicester Town Centre £10,000,000 
  

  

Total Capital Programme for 2009/10 Budget Approval £44,672,499 

  
Financed by:  
Capital Receipts £38,581,166 
Capital Grants and Contributions £1,108,000 
Government Grants £2,250,000 
Direct Revenue Financing/Use of Reserves £2,733,333 

 £44,672,499 

 
1.1 The total capital programme amounts to £44,672,499 of which £22,872,399 

will be delivered in 2009/10. This can be seen in further detail in Appendix 2a.  
 

Sum of 2009/10 Scheme Cost (£) by Directorate

£748,000

£14,065,599

£8,058,800

Customer Service & Resources

Environment & Community

Planning Housing & Economy

 

Appendix 2 

Page 262



 

   

1.2 The total programme has increased since December 1st 2008 draft by 
£518,300 but the planned delivery in 2009/10 has reduced by £11,074,800. 
The main driver for this reduction is the change in profile of the Bicester Town 
Centre project from 09/10 to 10/11.  

 
1.3 The new capital proposals to date for 2009/10 are shown in Appendix 2b - 

these bids total £17,898,000 of which £6,445,000 will be delivered in 2009/10. 
 
1.4 Each scheme is supported by an appraisal and these have been scored 

according to priority. 

Sum of 2009/10 Scheme Cost (£) by Strategic Priority

£613,000
£1,248,000

£1,269,000

£15,593,399

£4,149,000

Accessible, VFM

Cleaner and Greener

Corporate Capital Strategy and Asset Management
Plan

District of Opportunity

Safe and Healthy

 
 

Sum of 2009/10 Capital 

Scheme Cost (£) by Scored Ranking

£2,175,000

£1,975,000

£45,000

£16,427,399

£2,250,000

1

2

3

5

Prior Year

 

Page 263



 

   

1.5 The bids approved in prior years and recommended for inclusion in the 
programme are shown in Appendix 2c. 

 

Prior Year Approved Capital Schemes

£575,600

3%

£2,000,000

12%

£50,000

0%

£2,031,300

12%

£666,000

4%

£10,248,599

62%

£1,203,000

7%

PHE Other

Woodgreen

Flood Alleviation

CSR Other

Banbury Pedestrianisation

EAC Other

Sports Centre Modernisation 

 
1.6 A total of £417,000 schemes approved prior to 2009/10 budget process have 

now been deleted from the programme and these are listed in Appendix 2d 
together with £1,200,000 of new bids that have been deferred or deleted from 
the programme as a result of scoring and priority assessment and will not 
require any further consideration in this budget cycle.  

 
1.7 Each £1million spent on capital has a capital opportunity cost of lost 

investment income – so at current base rates this equates to £20,000 pa. 
 
1.8 The impact of the capital programme and associated revenue impacts have 

been built into the 2009/10 revenue budget and cashflow forecasts.  
 
 
 
Further Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 2a 
Appendix 2b 
Appendix 2c 
Appendix 2d 

Capital Programme Summary 
New Capital Bid Summary  
Prior Year Approvals 
Capital Schemes Deleted from Programme 
 

 
 

Page 264



S
c
h
e
m
e
 C
o
s
t

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0

2
0
1
0
/2
0
1
1

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

-S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 2
0

0
9

/2
0

1
0

*
£

1
6

,7
7

4
,4

9
9

£
1

6
,4

2
7

,3
9

9
£

3
4

7
,1

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/2

0
1

0
 

£
1

7
,8

9
8

,0
0

0
£

6
,4

4
5

,0
0

0
£

3
,5

7
3

,0
0

0
£

2
,0

0
8

,0
0

0
£

2
,1

9
3

,0
0

0
£

2
,2

8
9

,0
0

0
£

1
,3

9
0

,0
0

0

T
o
ta
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 E
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
je
c
t

£
3

4
,6

7
2

,4
9

9
£

2
2

,8
7

2
,3

9
9

£
3

,9
2

0
,1

0
0

£
2

,0
0

8
,0

0
0

£
2

,1
9

3
,0

0
0

£
2

,2
8

9
,0

0
0

£
1

,3
9

0
,0

0
0

M
a
in
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 -
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0

S
p

o
rt

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 M
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
  

(*
P

a
rt

 o
f 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
b

o
v
e

)
£

0
£

0
£

0
£

0
£

0
£

0
£

0

B
ic

e
s
te

r 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
ro

je
c
t

£
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
£

0
£

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
£

0
£

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

T
o
ta
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

£
4
4
,6
7
2
,4
9
9

£
2
2
,8
7
2
,3
9
9

£
1
3
,9
2
0
,1
0
0

£
2
,0
0
8
,0
0
0

£
2
,1
9
3
,0
0
0

£
2
,2
8
9
,0
0
0

£
1
,3
9
0
,0
0
0

F
in
a
n
c
e
d
 b
y
:

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

£
3
8
,5
8
1
,1
6
6

£
1
8
,9
8
9
,3
9
9

£
1
3
,3
1
1
,7
6
7

£
1
,5
3
3
,0
0
0

£
1
,8
1
8
,0
0
0

£
1
,9
1
4
,0
0
0

£
1
,0
1
5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 M
o
d
e
rn
is
a
ti
o
n

£
1

,1
0

8
,0

0
0

£
1

,1
0

8
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

£
1
,1
0
8
,0
0
0

£
1
,1
0
8
,0
0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

 £
3

7
5

k
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 
G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 M

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 G

ra
n

ts
£

2
,2

5
0

,0
0

0
£

3
7

5
,0

0
0

£
3

7
5

,0
0

0
£

3
7

5
,0

0
0

£
3

7
5

,0
0

0
£

3
7

5
,0

0
0

£
3

7
5

,0
0

0

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
G
ra
n
ts

£
2
,2
5
0
,0
0
0

£
3
7
5
,0
0
0

£
3
7
5
,0
0
0

£
3
7
5
,0
0
0

£
3
7
5
,0
0
0

£
3
7
5
,0
0
0

£
3
7
5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
 W
h
e
e
le
d
 B
in
s

£
3

0
0

,0
0

0
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

£
1

0
0

,0
0

0
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

  
  
  
 V
e
h
ic
le
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

£
4

3
3

,3
3

3
£

3
0

0
,0

0
0

£
1

3
3

,3
3

3
£

0
£

0
£

0
£

0

  
  
  
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 F
lo
o
d
 A
lle
v
ia
ti
o
n

£
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

£
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

D
ir
e
c
t 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 F
in
a
n
c
in
g
/U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

£
2
,7
3
3
,3
3
3

£
2
,4
0
0
,0
0
0

£
2
3
3
,3
3
3

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
4
4
,6
7
2
,4
9
9

£
2
2
,8
7
2
,3
9
9

£
1
3
,9
2
0
,1
0
0

£
2
,0
0
8
,0
0
0

£
2
,1
9
3
,0
0
0

£
2
,2
8
9
,0
0
0

£
1
,3
9
0
,0
0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

F
in
a
n
c
in
g

C
a

p
it
a

l 
G

ra
n

ts
£

3
7

5
,0

0
0

£
3

7
5

,0
0

0
£

3
7

5
,0

0
0

£
3

7
5

,0
0

0
£

3
7

5
,0

0
0

£
3

7
5

,0
0

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s

£
1

,1
0

8
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

£
1

8
,9

8
9

,3
9

9
£

1
3

,3
1

1
,7

6
7

£
1

,5
3

3
,0

0
0

£
1

,8
1

8
,0

0
0

£
1

,9
1

4
,0

0
0

£
1

,0
1

5
,0

0
0

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
£

2
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
£

2
3

3
,3

3
3

£
1

0
0

,0
0

0
£

0
£

0
£

0

£
2
2
,8
7
2
,3
9
9

£
1
3
,9
2
0
,1
0
0

£
2
,0
0
8
,0
0
0

£
2
,1
9
3
,0
0
0

£
2
,2
8
9
,0
0
0

£
1
,3
9
0
,0
0
0

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 A
N
D
 F
IN
A
N
C
IN
G
 S
T
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
-S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 (
E
X
C
L
U
D
IN
G
 D
E
L
E
T
E
D
 S
C
H
E
M
E
S
 A
T
T
A
C
H
E
D
)

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
A

Page 265



S
e
rv
ic
e
 H
e
a
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

S
c
o
re

S
u
m
 o
f 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 C
o
s
t

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0

2
0
1
0
/2
0
1
1

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3

2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4

2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5

T
in

a
 P

o
k
e

C
2

£
1
5
,0
0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
in

a
 P

o
k
e

C
2

£
7
0
,0
0
0

7
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
1
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
1

£
1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

£
1
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
1
5
,0
0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
1

£
2
0
,0
0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
2
0
,0
0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

£
3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

£
3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

£
3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

£
4
5
,0
0
0

4
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

£
3
5
,0
0
0

3
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
1

£
3
8
,0
0
0

3
8
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
1

£
4
0
,0
0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
4
5
,0
0
0

4
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
1

£
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
5
5
,0
0
0

5
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

£
7
0
,0
0
0

7
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
3

£
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
1

£
5
6
,0
0
0

5
6
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
1

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

6
5
,0

0
0

3
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
1

£
2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
1

£
3
,3
0
4
,0
0
0

6
3
7
,0

0
0

6
2
2
,0

0
0

4
7
3
,0

0
0

7
2
8
,0

0
0

8
4
4
,0

0
0

0

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
A

3
£
4
5
,0
0
0

4
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
A

2
£
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
B

2
£
6
0
,0
0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
B

2
£
1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
B

2
£
1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
A

2
£
1
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

1
7
0
,0

0
0

1
,3

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
ra

h
a
m

e
 H

e
lm

B
2

£
1
9
0
,0
0
0

1
9
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

A
3

£
3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

D
a
v
id

 M
a
rr

io
tt

A
2

£
3
5
,0
0
0

3
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

D
a
v
id

 M
a
rr

io
tt

A
3

£
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

D
a
v
id

 M
a
rr

io
tt

A
2

£
1
2
0
,0
0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0

D
a
v
id

 M
a
rr

io
tt

E
1

£
1
,1
6
0
,0
0
0

1
,1

3
4
,0

0
0

2
6
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
ill

ia
n
 G

re
a
v
e
s

A
3

£
3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

G
ill

ia
n
 G

re
a
v
e
s

A
3

£
2
,6
4
0
,0
0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

G
ill

ia
n
 G

re
a
v
e
s

A
2

£
5
,7
0
0
,0
0
0

9
5
0
,0

0
0

9
5
0
,0

0
0

9
5
0
,0

0
0

9
5
0
,0

0
0

9
5
0
,0

0
0

9
5
0
,0

0
0

G
ill

ia
n
 G

re
a
v
e
s

A
3

£
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
3

£
1
5
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

A
5

£
3
0
0
,0
0
0

4
5
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

7
5
,0

0
0

7
5
,0

0
0

5
5
,0

0
0

0

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

D
3

£
3
0
,0
0
0

0
3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

£
1
7
,8
9
8
,0
0
0

£
6
,4
4
5
,0
0
0

£
3
,5
7
3
,0
0
0

£
2
,0
0
8
,0
0
0

£
2
,1
9
3
,0
0
0

£
2
,2
8
9
,0
0
0

£
1
,3
9
0
,0
0
0

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
B

Page 266



S
e
rv
ic
e
 H
e
a
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

S
c
o
re

S
u
m
 o
f 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 

C
o
s
t

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0

2
0
1
0
/2
0
1
1

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3

2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4

2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5

D
a

v
id

 M
a

rr
io

tt
D

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
P

H
E

£
2
2
,1
0
0

0
2

2
,1

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a

u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n

-W
e

s
to

n
C

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
3
0
,0
0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
h

ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e

ll
E

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
4
5
,0
0
0

4
5

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

K
a

re
n

 C
u

rt
in

E
P

ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
C

S
R

£
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
d

 P
o

tt
e

r
C

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
5
0
,0
0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
h

ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e

ll
E

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
7
0
,0
0
0

4
0

,0
0

0
3

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
d

 P
o

tt
e

r
C

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
7
5
,0
0
0

7
5

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a

u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n

-W
e

s
to

n
A

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
8
0
,0
0
0

8
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a

u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n

-W
e

s
to

n
B

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
9
0
,0
0
0

2
0

,0
0

0
7

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
a

v
id

 M
a

rr
io

tt
A

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
P

H
E

£
2
2
5
,0
0
0

0
2

2
5

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0

G
ra

h
a

m
e

 H
e

lm
B

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
E

A
C

£
2
2
6
,0
0
0

2
2

6
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

D
a

v
id

 M
a

rr
io

tt
A

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
O

th
e

r 
P

H
E

£
3
2
8
,5
0
0

3
2

8
,5

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
a

u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n

-W
e

s
to

n
B

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
W

o
o

d
g

re
e

n
£
1
,2
0
3
,0
0
0

1
,2

0
3

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
h

ili
p

 C
la

rk
e

B
P

ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
B

a
n

b
u

ry
 F

lo
o

d
 A

lle
v
ia

ti
o

n
£
2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
a

v
id

 M
a

rr
io

tt
A

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
B

a
n

b
u

ry
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

is
a

ti
o

n
£
2
,0
3
1
,3
0
0

2
,0

3
1

,3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a

u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n

-W
e

s
to

n
A

P
ri
o

r 
Y

e
a

r
S

p
o

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 M
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
 

£
1
0
,2
4
8
,5
9
9

1
0

,2
4

8
,5

9
9

0
0

0
0

0

£
1
6
,7
7
4
,4
9
9

£
1
6
,4
2
7
,3
9
9

£
3
4
7
,1
0
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

£
0

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
C

Page 267



S
c
h
e
m
e

S
e
rv
ic
e
 H
e
a
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

S
c
o
re

S
c
h
e
m
e
 C
o
s
t

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0

2
0
1
0
/2
0
1
1

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2

2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5

A
u
to

m
a
te

d
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
la

te
 R

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 (

a
s
s
is

t 
C

ri
m

e
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
)

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
1

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

K
it
c
h
e
n
 W

a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

ilo
t

E
d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
1

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

p
a
n
e
l 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

D
is

a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 I
C

T
P

a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
h
a
n
n
e
l 
M

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 A

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
P

a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

D
2

4
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 W

o
o
d
la

n
d
 P

ro
je

c
t

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

C
2

5
0
,0

0
0

3
5
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

0
0

0

S
h
a
re

p
o
in

t 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
P

a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
o
c
k
e
t 
P

a
rk

s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
2

6
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

0
2
0
,0

0
0

0
2
0
,0

0
0

0

E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
R

e
c
o
rd

s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

H
R

 o
n
ly

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
)

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
2

6
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

L
a
p
to

p
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
s
/r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
o
b
ile

 d
e
v
ic

e
s

P
a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
3

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

K
id

lin
g
to

n
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
is

a
ti
o
n

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

A
4

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 V

is
it
o
r 

S
ig

n
a
g
e
 -

 B
a
n
b
u
ry

 a
n
d
 B

ic
e
s
te

r
P

a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
A

4
2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

M
a
rk

e
ts

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

A
4

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o
ile

t 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
ts

 P
h
a
s
e
 4

 -
 B

o
d
ic

o
te

 H
o
u
s
e

T
in

a
 P

o
k
e

C
4

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
ti
n
g
 B

o
ile

rs
 -

 O
ld

 B
o
d
ic

o
te

 H
o
u
s
e

T
in

a
 P

o
k
e

C
4

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
o
v
e
re

d
 V

e
h
ic

le
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 (

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
)

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
5

2
5
,0

0
0

2
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

K
ir
tl
in

g
to

n
 Q

u
a
rr

y
 R

o
a
d
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
5

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0

O
ff
 R

o
a
d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
/E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
5

6
0
0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

a
ili

ff
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
  
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
/9

 b
u
t 
n
o
w

 d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
S

te
v
e
 N

e
w

m
a
n

D
P

ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

3
5
,0

0
0

0
3
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a
lm

in
g
 i
n
 V

ill
a
g
e
s

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
P

ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

4
2
,0

0
0

0
1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

1
2
,0

0
0

R
e
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

e
rs

 &
 V

ir
tu

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
P

a
t 
S

im
p
s
o
n

D
P

ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
n
im

a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

IT
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
E

P
ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

la
re

m
o
n
t 
T

o
ile

ts
E

d
 P

o
tt
e
r

C
P

ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

7
5
,0

0
0

7
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

R
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

n
im

a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
ti
o
n

P
a
u
l 
M

a
rs

to
n
-W

e
s
to

n
B

P
ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

7
5
,0

0
0

7
5
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 R

e
ta

in
e
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s

C
h
ri
s
 R

o
th

w
e
ll

B
P

ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r

9
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0

1
,6
1
7
,0
0
0

7
9
5
,0
0
0

2
5
5
,0
0
0

2
3
5
,0
0
0

1
6
2
,0
0
0

1
7
0
,0
0
0

0

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
D

Page 268



O
u

tt
u

rn
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
 2

0
0

8
-

0
9

P
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
  

  

2
0

0
8

-0
9

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  

2
0

0
9

-

1
0

F
C

  
  

2
0

1
0

-1
1

F
C

  
  

2
0

1
1

-1
2

F
C

  
  

2
0

1
2

-1
3

F
C

  
  

2
0

1
3

-1
4

R
e

c

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l
2

6
,1

4
3

,0
3

1
2

2
,3

2
5

,7
6

5
2

2
,8

9
3

,3
7

3
2

2
,7

7
0

,0
9

6
2

2
,8

0
8

,3
8

8
2

3
,2

6
4

,5
5

5
2

3
,7

5
3

,1
1

1
2

4
,2

5
1

,9
2

6
3

8
,2

9
2 0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
C
h
a
rg
e
s
 R
e
v
e
rs
e
d

(2
,5
0
4
,5
7
6
)

(1
,2
2
8
,3
1
0
)

(1
,2
2
8
,3
1
0
)

(2
,4
4
6
,9
6
5
)

(2
,4
9
1
,0
1
0
)

(2
,5
4
0
,8
3
1
)

(2
,5
9
4
,1
8
8
)

(2
,6
4
8
,6
6
6
)

(4
4
,0
4
5
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
3

,6
3

8
,4

5
5

2
1

,0
9

7
,4

5
5

2
1

,6
6

5
,0

6
3

2
0

,3
2

3
,1

3
1

2
0

,3
1

7
,3

7
7

2
0

,7
2

3
,7

2
5

2
1

,1
5

8
,9

2
3

2
1

,6
0

3
,2

6
1

(5
,7

5
4

)

O
th

e
r 

Is
s

u
e

s

F
u
ll 
Y
e
a
r 
E
ff
e
c
ts
 2
0
0
9
/1
0

(3
5
,0
0
0
)

(3
5
,7
0
0
)

(3
6
,4
1
4
)

(3
7
,1
4
2
)

(3
5
,0
0
0
)

A
d
m
in
 R
e
v
ie
w

(8
5
,0
0
0
)

(8
6
,7
0
0
)

(8
8
,4
3
4
)

(9
0
,2
0
3
)

(8
5
,0
0
0
)

V
F
M
  
R
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 0
9
/1
0

(5
5
0
,0
0
0
)

(5
6
1
,0
0
0
)

(5
7
2
,2
2
0
)

(5
8
3
,6
6
4
)

(5
5
0
,0
0
0
)

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
e
n
d
 o
f 
3
 y
r 
fi
x
e
d
 p
o
s
t

(1
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(1
0
2
,0
0
0
)

(1
0
4
,1
4
2
)

(1
0
6
,3
2
9
)

(1
0
0
,0
0
0
)

J
o
b
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
t 
U
p
 C
o
s
ts
 -
 o
n
ly
 i
n
 0
8
/0
9
 &
 0
9
/1
0

(1
5
0
,0
0
0
)

(1
5
3
,0
0
0
)

(1
5
6
,0
6
0
)

(1
5
9
,1
8
1
)

(1
5
0
,0
0
0
)

1
7
%
 t
a
rg
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 
G
ra
n
ts

(1
0
4
,0
0
0
)

(1
0
4
,0
0
0
)

P
la
n
n
e
d
 7
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
e
t 
c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n

(1
3
6
,0
0
0
)

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

(1
0
0
,0
0
0
)

D
e
s
ig
n
 &
 P
ri
n
t 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

(2
5
,0
0
0
)

N
e

w
 F

e
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

R
e
c
e
s
s
io
n
 e
n
d
 -
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 /
 L
a
n
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
 F
e
e
s

(2
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(2
0
4
,0
0
0
)

0

P
e
n
s
io
n
 R
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n

0
2
0
0
,0
0
0

1
3
8
,0
0
0

1
3
8
,0
0
0

1
4
0
,4
8
4

1
4
3
,2
9
4

1
4
6
,3
0
3

1
4
9
,3
7
5

2
,4
8
4

P
e
n
s
io
n
 C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

0
2
5
3
,9
2
8

2
5
3
,9
2
8

2
5
3
,9
2
8

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0
4
,0
0
0

2
0
8
,2
8
4

2
1
2
,6
5
8

(5
3
,9
2
8
)

C
a
p
it
a
l 
C
o
s
t 
o
f 
P
e
n
s
io
n
s

0
3
4
2
,5
1
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

J
o
b
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
1
0
,0
0
0

5
2
0
,7
1
0

5
3
1
,6
4
5

5
0
0
,0
0
0

V
A
T
 S
h
e
lt
e
r

0
(4
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(4
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(4
5
0
,0
0
0
)

(3
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(1
5
0
,0
0
0
)

(1
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(1
0
0
,0
0
0
)

1
5
0
,0
0
0

P
la
n
n
e
d
 T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 B
a
la
n
c
e
 S
h
e
e
t

4
,9
0
8
,6
0
5

1
,0
7
9
,2
3
6

1
,0
6
0
,2
3
6

6
4
7
,7
0
0

6
5
9
,3
5
9

6
7
2
,5
4
6

6
8
6
,6
6
9

7
0
1
,0
8
9

1
1
,6
5
9

O
th
e
r 
A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts

2
,9
7
4
,0
1
9

(4
5
1
,6
8
9
)

(4
5
1
,6
8
9
)

9
0
,4
3
4

9
2
,0
6
2

9
3
,9
0
3

9
5
,8
7
5

9
7
,8
8
8

1
,6
2
8

7
,8

8
2

,6
2

4
1

,0
2

3
,9

9
1

6
0

0
,4

7
5

3
1

5
,0

6
2

3
7

1
,9

0
4

5
3

5
,3

4
3

4
0

0
,5

7
1

4
1

2
,1

3
6

5
6

,8
4

2

3
1

,5
2

1
,0

7
9

2
2

,1
2

1
,4

4
6

2
2

,2
6

5
,5

3
8

2
0

,6
3

8
,1

9
3

2
0

,6
8

9
,2

8
2

2
1

,2
5

9
,0

6
7

2
1

,5
5

9
,4

9
4

2
2

,0
1

5
,3

9
7

5
1

,0
8

9

P
la
n
n
e
d
 T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
F
ro
m
 B
a
la
n
c
e
 S
h
e
e
t

(7
,7
7
1
,0
8
1
)

(9
4
1
,5
6
3
)

(7
8
0
,0
4
7
)

(9
0
1
,6
2
8
)

(7
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(7
1
4
,0
0
0
)

(7
2
8
,9
9
4
)

(7
4
4
,3
0
3
)

2
0
1
,6
2
8

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
In
c
o
m
e

(6
,8
9
2
,1
0
6
)

(5
,0
3
0
,4
5
5
)

(4
,9
3
9
,4
5
5
)

(2
,8
2
5
,6
3
1
)

(1
,1
7
2
,6
1
1
)

(1
,3
9
3
,4
3
9
)

(1
,8
4
6
,8
2
0
)

(1
,6
6
6
,8
2
0
)

1
,6
5
3
,0
2
0

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
G
ra
n
t

(9
,9
4
7
,7
8
3
)

(1
0
,3
1
0
,0
4
5
)

(1
0
,3
1
0
,0
4
5
)

(1
0
,6
3
7
,1
3
0
)

(1
0
,9
6
6
,8
8
1
)

(1
1
,1
8
6
,2
1
9
)

(1
1
,4
2
1
,1
2
9
)

(1
1
,6
6
0
,9
7
3
)

(3
2
9
,7
5
1
)

C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d

(1
9
5
,6
5
2
)

(1
0
1
,5
9
1
)

(1
0
1
,5
9
1
)

(1
0
8
,3
1
3
)

(1
0
1
,5
9
1
)

(1
0
1
,5
9
1
)

(1
0
1
,5
9
1
)

(1
0
1
,5
9
1
)

6
,7
2
2

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x

(5
,8
0
7
,2
5
2
)

(5
,9
6
1
,3
6
0
)

(5
,9
6
1
,3
6
0
)

(6
,1
6
5
,4
9
1
)

(6
,3
0
7
,8
5
2
)

(6
,4
6
6
,1
7
9
)

(6
,6
3
4
,9
7
8
)

(6
,8
0
8
,1
8
4
)

(1
4
2
,3
6
1
)

(3
0

,6
1

3
,8

7
4

)
(2

2
,3

4
5

,0
1

4
)

(2
2

,0
9

2
,4

9
8

)
(2

0
,6

3
8

,1
9

3
)

(1
9

,2
4

8
,9

3
5

)
(1

9
,8

6
1

,4
2

7
)

(2
0

,7
3

3
,5

1
3

)
(2

0
,9

8
1

,8
7

1
)

1
,3

8
9

,2
5

8

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
(S

u
rp

lu
s

)/
S

h
o

rt
fa

ll
9

0
7

,2
0

5
(2

2
3

,5
6

8
)

1
7

3
,0

4
0

0
1

,4
4

0
,3

4
7

1
,3

9
7

,6
4

0
8

2
5

,9
8

2
1

,0
3

3
,5

2
5

1
,4

4
0

,3
4

7

G
o
v
t 
E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 T
a
rg
e
t 
(3
.1
%
) 
:
 t

o
 b

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e

(6
2
9
,8
3
9
)

(6
4
2
,4
3
5
)

(6
5
5
,9
2
7
)

(6
6
9
,7
0
1
)

(6
2
9
,8
3
9
)

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 O
v

e
rs

p
e

n
d

/(
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

)
9

0
7

,2
0

5
(2

2
3

,5
6

8
)

1
7

3
,0

4
0

0
8

1
0

,5
0

8
7

5
5

,2
0

5
1

7
0

,0
5

5
3

6
3

,8
2

4
8

1
0

,5
0

8

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a

x

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
a
x
 B
a
s
e

4
9
,2
1
4

4
9
,6
7
8

4
9
,6
7
8

4
9
,9
2
3

5
0
,1
7
3

5
0
,4
2
3

5
0
,6
7
6

5
0
,9
2
9

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 R
a
te
 f
o
r 
B
a
n
d
 "
D
"

£
1
1
8
.0
0

£
1
2
0
.0
0

£
1
2
0
.0
0

£
1
2
3
.5
0

£
1
2
5
.7
2

£
1
2
8
.2
4

£
1
3
0
.9
3

£
1
3
3
.6
8

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a

x
 C

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
5

,8
0

7
,2

5
2

5
,9

6
1

,3
6

0
5

,9
6

1
,3

6
0

6
,1

6
5

,4
9

1
6

,3
0

7
,8

5
2

6
,4

6
6

,1
7

9
6

,6
3

4
,9

7
8

6
,8

0
8

,1
8

4

O
p
e
n
in
g
 C
a
s
h
 B
a
la
n
c
e

1
1
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

8
3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
4
,3
4
0
,6
0
1

5
2
,9
2
0
,5
0
1

4
8
,4
2
0
,5
0
1

4
3
,9
2
0
,5
0
1

C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 -
 a
s
 p
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

(2
7
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(2
2
,9
1
2
,3
9
9
)

(1
3
,9
2
0
,1
0
0
)

(5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
)

(5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
)

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
in
a
n
c
in
g

3
,2
5
3
,0
0
0

2
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
0
,0
0
0

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 -
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d

(1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
)

C
a
s
h
fl
o
w
 -
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

C
lo
s
in
g
 C
a
s
h
 B
a
la
n
c
e

8
3
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
4
,3
4
0
,6
0
1

5
2
,9
2
0
,5
0
1

4
8
,4
2
0
,5
0
1

4
3
,9
2
0
,5
0
1

3
9
,4
2
0
,5
0
1

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 B
a

la
n

c
e

7
3

,6
7

0
,3

0
1

5
8

,6
3

0
,5

5
1

5
0

,6
7

0
,5

0
1

4
6

,1
7

0
,5

0
1

4
1

,6
7

0
,5

0
1

In
te

re
s

t 
R

a
te

 A
s

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

 -
 B

u
tl

e
rs

 2
2

1
2

0
8

a
s

 p
e

r 

in
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

d
e

a
ls

2
.0

%
2

.8
%

4
.0

%
4

.0
%

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 R
a

te
 A

s
s

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s
 C

P
I 

- 
B

u
tl

e
rs

 
1

.8
%

2
.0

%
2

.1
%

2
.1

%

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 R
a

te
 A

s
s

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s
 S

a
la

ri
e

s
3

.0
0

%
1

.2
5

%
1

.5
0

%
1

.7
5

%
2

.0
0

%A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

D
R

A
F

T
 M

E
D

IU
M

 T
E

R
M

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 F

O
R

E
C

A
S

T

Page 269



 

Executive  
 
 

Performance Management Framework 
2008/2009 – 3rd Quarter Progress Report 

 
2 February 2009 

 
Report of the Chief Executive and Head of Improvement  

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To report the Council’s performance against the Performance Management 
Framework for the period October – December 2008. 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
1) To note the progress made on delivering against the Corporate Scorecard and 

the other performance frameworks appended to this report. 
 
2) To note the responses to the issues raised in the 2nd quarter report and to seek 

further information in the next quarterly Performance Management Framework 
report if required. 

 
3) To agree that in the next quarterly report there will be an update on the impact of 

the economic downturn on: 
 

a) The Council’s ability to deliver the 2008/09 corporate targets of 400 new 
homes and the creation of 200 gross new jobs and the impact on our targets 
in these areas for 2009/10. 
 

b) The income received through building control, planning applications and land 
charges during 2008/09, the projections for 2009/10 and the proposals for 
responding to a sustained drop in income as embodied in the 2009/10 
budget. . 
 

c) The progress of key development projects such as Banbury Canalside, 
Bicester Town Centre and South West Bicester. 

 
4) To agree that in the next quarterly report there will be an update on the following:   
 

a) The target for reducing acquisitive crime by 5% is unlikely to be met and 
current projections suggest a 2% reduction will be achieved.  (Note:  The 
Performance Scrutiny Working Group has identified this as an area of 

Agenda Item 12

Page 270



concern and are proposing it should be subject to review through the scrutiny 
process.  The progress of this work will be reported as part of this update).   

 
b)  The increase in recorded violent crime (although involving a small number of 

incidents this has risen by 25% over the last quarter).  
 

c) The amount of waste sent to landfill.  This is expected to be reduced by a 
minimum of 1400 tonnes but with the real possibility of further improvement to 
achieve the annual target of 1500 tonnes. 
 

d) The worsening performance on flytipping and prosecutions. 
 

e) The time taken to process minor and other planning applications.   These met 
59% and 71% of the respective performance targets and are rated Red and 
there has been a slight deterioration in the performance of both since the last 
quarter.  (Note:  The Performance Scrutiny Working Group has identified this 
as an area of concern and are proposing it should be subject to review 
through the scrutiny process.  The progress of this will be reported as part of 
this update).   

 
f) The delay in introducing the Food Waste Recycling Service.  .  It is now likely 

to be Autumn 2009 before the delayed local food waste processing facility is 
built by the County Council. 
 

g) The increase in the number of days lost through sickness from 3.58 per full 
time employee a year to 6.31. 

 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 This is a report of the Council’s performance as measured by the Corporate 
Scorecard for the period October - December 2008.  The Corporate 
Scorecard is made up of the Council’s priority performance targets and 
covers seven areas of performance.  These are performance against the 
Community Plan, the Corporate Plan promises, National Indicators, Best 
Value Performance Indicators, finance targets, human resource targets, and 
customer satisfaction targets.  We also report the latest results of inspections 
of the Council for information.  More detailed supporting information is 
attached showing the performance on delivering all the Corporate Plan, the 
performance against each of the National Indicators and Best Value 
Performance Indicators, and the delivery of the Corporate Improvement Plan, 
the strategic service projects and the revenue growth bids agreed for 
2008/09. 

 
1.3 It should be noted that although this is primarily a report of corporate 

performance the Performance Management Framework also includes 
monitoring at service level against service plans. The majority of performance 
issues are dealt with at service and directorate level. However significant 
service successes and issues are reported upwards and where appropriate 
included in the successes and exceptions reported in appendix two.  

 

Page 271



Proposals 

1.5 We ask the Executive to note the significant progress made in delivering our 
objectives.  In particular: 
• Under the national Use of Resources inspection regime we have 

improved our score (the scale is one to four) for Financial Reporting from 
two to three and for Value for Money from two to three.  At the same time 
the Audit Commission recognised our combined annual report of finance 
and performance as an example of notable practice. 

• The Audit Commission has released the national comparative figures for 
performance against Best Value Performance indicators for 2007/08.  This 
shows we achieved 74% of BVPIs in the top half of performance 
nationally compared with 68% in 2006/07. 

• The Council is making effective use of the Disabilities Facilities Grant to 
provide housing for vulnerable people and 140 completions are projected 
for the year. 

• In the last quarter the number of families living in temporary 
accommodation, 92, fell to under 100 for the first time.  This has now been 
reduced to 77 families.   

• The investment in additional waste bins will be complete with the 
installation of the final batch in January.  Also the new street cleansing 
vehicles arrived in November and these make emptying bins easier.   

• The Street Cleansing Service is now operating to additional hours in 
urban areas.   

• The improved performance on processing major planning applications.  In 
this quarter the service met its target of processing 85% of applications 
within the Government target of 13 weeks.   

• The Council is now on track to meet its target of reducing CO2 emissions 
by 4% from the 2006/07 baseline. 

• An ‘on-street’ survey shows 89.6% public satisfaction with green spaces 
and public areas against the target of 71% set at the start of the year. 

• The new one stop shop was opened in Banbury to schedule in October. 
• The refurbishment of Bodicote House is proceeding to plan and budget.  

We are exploring options to increase income by letting Old Bodicote 
House and the Town Centre Offices in Banbury. 

• Since the last quarter overall satisfaction with customer service when 
contacting the Council has increased from 90% to 95%.  This includes 
100% satisfaction with telephone contact and 92% for face to face 
contact. 

• With our partners we agreed a new three-year Community Safety Strategy 
agreed. 

• The effective management of our revenue and capital budgets and the 
saving of £170,000 to date this financial year through improved 
procurement. 

 
1.6 There are a number of issues identified in this report that are recommended 

for priority action or further monitoring of performance.  These are: 
• The ongoing impact of the economic recession on our ability to meet 

targets for the provision of new homes and jobs and the reduced income 
for Building Control, Development Control, and Land Charges. 

• The target for reducing acquisitive crime by 5% is unlikely to be met and 
current projections suggest a 2% reduction will be achieved.  (The 
Scrutiny Performance Management Working Group are proposing 
Overview and Scrutiny consider this issue in more detail). 

Page 272



• The worsening performance on flytipping and prosecutions. 
• The amount of waste sent to landfill.  This is expected to be reduced by a 

minimum of 1400 tonnes but with the real possibility of further 
improvement to achieve the annual target of 1500 tonnes. 

• The increase in recorded violent crime. 
• The delay in introducing the Food Waste Recycling Service.  It is likely to 

be Autumn 2009 before the delayed local food waste processing facility is 
built by the County Council. 

• The time taken to process new benefits claims and changes in 
circumstances (see progress report in section 2.1).   

• The processing of minor and other planning applications are still rated red, 
meeting 59% and 71% of the respective performance targets, and there 
has been a slight deterioration in the performance of both since the last 
quarter.   

• There has been an increase in the number of days lost through staff 
sickness from 3.58 to 6.31 (though seasonal illnesses will have made a 
significant contribution to this increase). 

 
1.7 The Performance Scrutiny Working Group has reviewed the Quarter Two 

Performance Report and will consider this report on 9 February 2009.  It will 
be making proposals to the Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board on 
the 17 February that the following issues should be considered in more detail.  
These are: 
• The increase in acquisitive crime. 
• The processing of minor and other planning applications and the potential 

loss of income because of the economic downturn. 
• The amount of waste sent to landfill. 
• The progress on delivering service standards for all front line services. 
• The progress on delivering the Equalities Action Plan. 

 
Conclusion 

 
1.8 This report shows the Council is continuing to deliver against the majority of 

its priorities and has in fact improved overall performance since the last 
quarterly report.  The report identifies a number of areas where performance 
is not at the level required.  Where there is significant and is likely to continue 
into the future then this is reflected in the recommendations of the report. 

 
 

Page 273



Background Information 
 
2.1 Issues Raised in 2nd Quarter Performance Report 

Executive 17November 2008 agreed that further information be provided on a 
number of issues as set out below: 
 
1. The impact of the economic down-turn on delivering: 

 
a.  The 2008/09 corporate targets of 400 new homes, including a 
minimum of 100 units of social housing, and the creation of 200 new 
jobs.     
 

 New Homes.  The ability to deliver 400 new homes during 2008/09 has been 
affected by the slowdown in the housing market and the consequent 
reluctance of house builders to continue building.  This trend is being seen 
across the country as a direct consequence of the credit crunch.  Within 
Cherwell it should be noted that in the nine months to December 2008, a total 
of 320 completions had been recorded.  This figure includes 48 completions 
which have been identified as a result of the recent comprehensive 
monitoring checks undertaken to produce the Council’s statutory Local 
Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).  The survey 
covered very small sites which have not recently been visited.  It is therefore 
possible that the target of 400 will be achieved by the end of the year.  This 
issue was considered in detail by Executive on 1 December 2008.  The 
impact of current economic conditions on housing delivery will become more 
pronounced in coming months and needs to be carefully monitored.  
Comprehensive monitoring information will not be available again until the 
next full survey for the AMR (it is not cost effective to undertake this major 
survey frequently).  However it will be possible to update on trends by 
checking progress with major sites.  These sites contribute the majority of 
completions. 
 
Within the 320 completions are 57 units of affordable housing.  This is out of a 
total of 64 new affordable houses provided in the year to date, the remainder 
of which have been provided by other means (primarily acquisitions of 
existing private sector housing for social rented use under the council’s 
initiative with registered social landlords.  A number of other new affordable 
housing schemes are due to be completed in the period up to March and it is 
expected that the target of 100 new affordable homes will be achieved this 
year.  Executive on 12th January considered a detailed report on the delivery 
of affordable housing in the current economic climate and members are 
directed to this report for more information on this matter.  Currently the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is considering how to bring forward the 
supply of affordable housing in rural areas. 
 
New Jobs.  652 new jobs are believed to have been created in the district in 
the year to 31December 2008.  These are spread across many companies, 
and are mostly as a result of new businesses or relocations, with relatively 
few due to expansion.  There are no major new employers.  672 jobs are 
believed to have been lost, again through numerous small closures or 
contractions.  There were no major individual losses or closures in the period.  
The situation is likely to worsen next quarter with closures such as 
Woolworths, and others outside the district which may have a knock-on effect, 
such as Aston Martin. 

 

Page 274



b.  The income received through building control, planning applications 
and land charges and the budget implications of rising costs (fuel for 
example). 
 

 Building Control.  For the first three quarters of 2008/09 the cumulative and 
actual Building Control income has been as follows: 

 
Period Budget Actual + % over budget 

April to June 08 104,678 122,971 +17.4% 
 

April to Sept 08 205,708 242,246 +17.8% 
 

April to Dec 08 337,008 315,335 -6.4% 
 

 
The downturn in the economy, and in the building industry in particular, has 
clearly had an affect over the past few months.  The market is very volatile 
and the best projection at present is that the outturn will be some £45,000 (or 
9%) below budget.  This includes the revised fees and charges that were 
introduced from 1 November 2008.  It should however be noted that the 
budget is managed on a business basis and to date it has been possible to 
reduce costs to match reduced income.  Budget issues for 2009/10 have 
been taken into account in the current budget recommendations. 

 
Planning Applications.  As at 31 December 2008 the planning fee income 
was 21% below budgeted levels with an expected shortfall over the year of 
£277,000.  Comparing year on year March to December (2007/08 & 2008/09) 
actual fee income is up 2% from £571,000 to £586,000.  However this 
comparison is needs to be seen in the context of budget expectations of 
higher levels of income arising from a significant national fee increase in the 
year.  It is unlikely, based on discussions with developers, that the situation 
will improve greatly in the final quarter with no significant planning 
applications expected. Budget issues for 2009/10 have been taken into 
account in current budget recommendations. 

 
Land Charges.  The income projected in the budget for 2008/09 was 
£317,000.  Given the impact of the economic downturn this was revised down 
to £160,000 in September 2008.  There has been a significant increase in the 
use of personal searches which has impacted on income because cost 
recovery is not permitted.  Searches generally have declined in line with the 
property market.  This includes personal searches which have declined 
sharply more recently. The cumulative income at 31st December 2008 was 
£125,000.  With income remaining at about £11,000 to £12,000 a month the 
income target set in September should be achieved. 

 
Fuel.  The current estimate for the year end overspend on fuel is £40,000. 
The unit price of fuel has fallen to 80p/litre against a budget price of 85p a 
litre. The overspend on fuel may reduce further if oil prices fall below $40 a 
barrel.  However conflict in the Middle East has caused oil to rise back 
towards $50 a barrel and this will obviously impact on retail prices. 
 
c.  The progress of key development projects such as Banbury 
Canalside, Bicester Town Centre, and South West Bicester. 
 

Page 275



Banbury Canalside.  The site allocation has been included as one of the 
reasonable alternatives in the Local Development Framework.  The next 
stage is to produce detailed planning guidance.  The preparation of this is in 
hand and will continue for some months.  Whilst dialogue with the principal 
landowners continues there is little that can be done prior to the confirmation 
of the flood alleviation scheme. 
 
Bicester Town Centre.  The Executive 12 January received an update 
report.  This showed very encouraging progress is being made on the delivery 
of the scheme, despite the difficult economic conditions.  Sainsbury have 
agreed to acquire the town centre retail development from Stockdale and the 
Council agreed to allow Sainsbury exclusivity on the scheme until December 
2009. 
 
South West Bicester.  Planning permission has been in place for some time.  
Discussions on detailed implementation are underway, but indications are 
that economic conditions will prevent an early start on the development.  This 
is the site, approximately 1500 dwellings, that has the most significant impact 
on housing delivery over the next few years. 
 

 2.  An update on: 
 

a.  The time taken to process minor and other planning applications. 
 
The reasons for the fall off in performance in this area of work were explained 
in some detail in the 17 November PMF Executive report.  Those reasons are 
still the cause of current performance.  The recent decline in workload is a 
factor that assists, but decisions have been made to freeze vacant posts to 
reduce costs and this clearly cancels out that gain.  There is also a continuing 
exceptional workload related to the RAF Upper Heyford case (completion of 
the Inquiry has been significantly delayed).  Progress is being made to 
improve speed of processing, but recovery cannot be achieved quickly as the 
Council has to work within resource constraints.  Nevertheless the backlog of 
minor/other planning applications has now largely been cleared.  This in effect 
suppressed improved performance in the October - December quarter (455 
applications cleared in total).  We have reduced the applications currently in 
hand by over 25%. This will allow performance to improve in the final quarter 
of 2008/9.  It should be noted that the Performance Scrutiny Working Group is 
proposing this performance be subject to review through the scrutiny process.   
 
b.  Increasing the visitor numbers to Banbury Museum. 
 
Banbury Museum is the third most visited museum in the South East outside 
London (Source: Contribution of Museums, Libraries and Archives to the 
Visitor Economy, MLA July 2008). 
 
The One Stop Shop installation within the Museum Shop and Tourist 
Information Centre, that took place in September and October, adversely 
affected the visitor figures for a two month period. Firstly the automatic 
counter was damaged during September and substantially under-recorded 
the number of visitors. Secondly, the unsightly and noisy works deterred 
visitors from entering the Museum. 
 
New figures from November and December have been very encouraging, the 
museum receiving over 43,394 visitors over this two month period. These 

Page 276



figures do not include One Stop Shop users and exceed the same period in 
2006/07 by 1,367. 
 
c.  Addressing the 2.1% rise in crime overall and not meeting the target 
for reducing acquisitive crime and the timetable for producing the Anti-
Social Behaviour Strategy.  

 
Whilst performance has improved in the third quarter, the Police do not 
expect to achieve the year-end target for reducing serious acquisitive crime 
by 5%. This issue has been referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and the chairman is considering asking a Task & Finish Panel to review this 
on completion of their work around antisocial behaviour. The timetable and 
process for producing an Antisocial Behaviour Strategy will also be influenced 
by the findings of the Task & Finish Panel together with the planned value for 
money review of Community Safety and Anti-Social Behaviour. 
 
d.  Improving the average time to process new benefits claims. 
 
We are currently in negotiations with an outsourcing company to provide extra 
resources to deal with the increasing number of claims for benefits. We hope 
to have that resource in place in the next couple of weeks.  The service has 
also employed additional temporary staff to help with the extra work in the 
short term. They will stay until the new contract is up and running. 
 
e.  Reducing the amount of waste going to landfill.   
 
The current estimate is that landfill tonnages will be around 29,500 tonnes for 
2008/09. This is around 1600 tonnes less than 2007/08.  An apparent effect 
of the recession is reducing, by a small amount, the tonnage in the green 
bins. 
 
f.  The progress on delivering Nightsafe Bicester. 
 
Nightsafe Bicester was formally launched on 10 December 2008.  A "Spikies" 
campaign was run in the three urban centres, including Bicester, to raise 
awareness amongst the licensed trade and general public about the risks of 
spiking drinks.  Spikies are plastic toppers that fit into the necks of bottles to 
prevent anything being dropped into them.  Feedback from local licensees 
was very positive. 
 
g.  The financial impact of the Government’s free swimming programme 
for over 60s and under 16s. 
 
Following further information received regarding the Government's free 
swimming initiative the Executive decided not to participate as the costs to the 
Council would be substantial and unaffordable. 
 

2.2 Overview of Performance 
The performance against the Corporate Scorecard is shown in appendix one.  
 
The successes, exceptions and issues reported by officers, including those 
from individual service plans, are shown in appendix two.   
 
The performance against all the targets in the Corporate Plan is shown in 
appendix three.   

Page 277



 
 The performance of each of the National Indicators is shown in appendix four.  
 
 The performance of each of the retained Best Value Performance Indicators 

is shown in appendix five. Full details are in appendix eight.    
 
In addition to the Corporate Scorecard we also monitor our performance in 
delivering key corporate and service developments.   
 
The progress made on delivering the Corporate Improvement Plan is shown 
in appendix six. 
 
The progress made on delivering the Strategic Service Projects is shown in 
appendix seven.   
 
The progress made on delivering the proposed outcomes of the 2008/09 
Revenue Growth Bids is shown in appendix eight.  
 

2.3 Corporate Scorecard – Community Plan 
Progress in delivering the Community Plan is measured against 29 targets.  
These include a ‘top ten’ list of priority actions that Cherwell Community 
Planning Partnership has agreed for the year.  They include targets for the 
Cherwell area and not just those that the district council is responsible for 
delivering.  Information was only available for 18 of these, of which 17 were 
Green and 1 Amber.  The remainder are largely dependent on information 
from surveys which have been completed but not yet reported. 
 
Successes 

• Consultants working on the review of the Sustainable Community Strategy 
are working on a review of all information and are on track to produce 
theme papers by the end of January.   

• We are continuing to develop the links between the Community Plan and 
the Local Development Framework (LDF).   

 
Issues 

• Although there have been some initial delays with a cardiovascular 
disease project in the most deprived wards in Banbury Health Trainers are 
now working with clients.  

 
2.4 Corporate Scorecard – Corporate Plan and Corporate Plan Promises 

There are 55 targets in the Corporate Plan, 16 of which were highlighted as 
our service promises for 2008/09 in the council tax leaflet which was sent to 
every household in Cherwell.  Of these 42 are Green, 9 Amber and 2 Red.  
Performance against two targets, which are also Corporate Plan Promises, 
will be measured by customer satisfaction surveys.  Full details are in 
appendix three.   
 
Successes 

• Under the national Use of Resources inspection regime we have 
improved our score (the scale is one to four) for Financial Reporting from 
two to three and for Value for Money from two to three.  At the same time 
the Audit Commission recognised our combined annual report of finance 
and performance as an example of notable practice. 

Page 278



• In the last quarter the number of families, 92, living in temporary 
accommodation fell to under 100 for the first time.  This has now been 
reduced to 77 families. 

• The Council is making effective use of the Disabilities Facilities Grant to 
provide housing for vulnerable people and 140 completions are projected 
for the year. 

• Nightsafe Bicester launched on 10 December. 
• New three year Community Safety Strategy agreed. 
• All six Neighbourhood Action Groups established with community 

representation. 
• Grants allocated to improve 17 village halls. 
• An ‘on-street’ survey shows 89.6% public satisfaction with green spaces 

and public areas against the target of 71% set at the start of the year. 
 
Issues 

• The impact of the recession on achieving targets for delivering new 
homes, including affordable housing and new jobs (see details above). 

• The introduction of sub regional Choice Based Lettings has been delayed 
from March till June due to delays in installing new software and 
partnership negotiations. 

• The target for reducing acquisitive crime by 5% is unlikely to be met and 
current projections suggest a 2% reduction will be achieved.   

• The amount of waste sent to landfill.  This is expected to be reduced by a 
minimum of 1400 tonnes but with the real possibility of further 
improvement to achieve the annual target of 1500 tonnes. 

 
2.5 Corporate Scorecard - National Indicators 

National Indicators have replaced Best Value Performance Indicators as the 
statutory requirement for reporting the Council’s performance. We are 
required to report performance against 32 National indicators, 10 of which will 
be measured by an annual survey.    10 indicators are Green, 4 Amber and 6 
Red (data is not available for 2).  Full details are in appendix four. 
 
Successes 

• The improved performance on processing major planning applications.  In 
this quarter the service met its target of processing 85% of applications 
within the Government target of 13 weeks.   

 
Issues 

• The worsening performance on flytipping and prosecutions. 
• The processing of minor and other planning applications are still rated red 

and there has been a slight deterioration in performance since the last 
quarter (see details above) .   

• The time taken to process new benefits claims and changes in 
circumstances (see also Best Value Performance Indicators where the 
measure of performance is more specific). 

• The increase in recorded violent crime 
 
2.6 Corporate Scorecard - Best Value Performance Indicators 

We have retained selected Best Value Performance Indicators as they 
provide a useful means of comparing delivery with other councils and against 
our own historical performance levels.  There are 39 retained Best Value 
Performance Indicators.  This is three less than in the previous two quarters 
as we have removed three Development Control Best Value Performance 

Page 279



Indicators.  This follows clarification nationally that means these are identical 
to the National Indicators for this service.  22 indicators are Green, 10 Amber 
and 6 Red (with no data available for 1 due to technical reasons).  Full details 
are in appendix five.   
 
Successes 

• The performance on removing graffiti has improved significantly and has 
moved from Red to Green status. 

• An increase in the overall number of visitors to Banbury Museum. 
• The improved performance in recovering Housing Benefits overpayment 

and reducing the amount outstanding. 
 

Issues 

• Conservation Area Appraisals are still at Red status because this was 
identified as a major project requiring concerted attention and moving to 
green will take at least another year.  Excellent progress is being made 
but there is still a large backlog.  Progress has slowed recently due to the 
increased complexity of the assessment process on a number of more 
controversial conservation area designations and appraisals. 

• There has been a slight drop in the number of pupils visiting Banbury 
Museum. 

• The time taken to process new benefits claims and changes in 
circumstances, current performance is rated Red for both. 
 

2.7 Corporate Scorecard - Financial Performance 
There are four finance targets.  All are rated Green.  This is a significant 
improvement on Quarter Two when 2 were Green and 2 Amber.   
 
It should be noted we have met our Corporate Plan Promises to keep the 
Council Tax increase below inflation.  
 
Successes 

• The end of year budget outturn is forecast to be within agreed budget 
tolerances. 

• The performance on spending the sports centre modernisation budget has 
improved dramatically.  The performance for the rest of the capital budget 
has changed from Red to Green with 70% of the budget to date delivered. 

• £174,000 of procurement savings identified to date against a full year 
target of £260,000. 

 
2.8 Corporate Scorecard – Human Resources  

Three Human Resources indicators are monitored: staff turnover; days lost 
through sickness; and workforce capacity.  2 are Green and 1 has moved 
from Green to Amber. 
 
Issues 

• There has been an increase in the number of days lost through sickness 
from 3.58 days lost per full time equivalent in the second quarter to 6.31 
days in the third quarter.  This has been influenced by seasonal sickness 
(cold and flu) which usually affects the 3rd Quarter return.  Human 
Resources are focussed on improving the management of sickness 
absence.  This includes training on the application of the new sickness 
policy which comes into effect on 1April 2009. 

 

Page 280



2.9 Corporate Scorecard – Customer Feedback  
There are three customer satisfaction targets included in the Corporate 
Scorecard covering: satisfaction with customer service; feeling safe; and 
feeling well informed.  The first of these is monitored continually through the 
Customer Contact Centre.  The other two will be established through annual 
surveys. 
 
Successes 

• Since the last quarter overall satisfaction with customer service when 
contacting the Council has increased from 90% to 95%.  This includes 
100% satisfaction with telephone contact and 92% for face to face 
contact. 

 
2.10 Corporate Improvement Plan 

Executive 7 July 2008 agreed the 2008/09 Corporate Improvement Plan.  The 
priorities of the Plan are: embedding the culture of performance management; 
delivering value for money throughout the organisation; understanding and 
responding to the diverse needs of the communities that make up the District; 
developing partnership working; and engaging all our staff in the process of 
continuous improvement.    There are 44 items in the Corporate Improvement 
Plan, 34 are Green, 9 Amber and 1 Red.  Full details are in appendix six. 
 
Successes 

• Under the national Use of Resources inspection regime we have 
improved our score for Financial Reporting from two to three (the 
maximum is four) and for Value for Money from two to three. 

• The Audit Commission has released the national comparative figures for 
performance against Best Value Performance indicators for 2007/08.  This 
shows we achieved 74% of Best Value Performance Indicators in the top 
half of performance nationally compared with 68% in 2006/07. 

 
Issues 

• The improvement targets for a basket of retained Best Value Performance 
Indicators is scored Red overall.  This is the result of a minor deterioration 
in the collection of National Non-Domestic Rates; the increase in the 
number of days of staff sickness; and a drop in the number of pupils 
visiting Banbury Museum.  Both the latter issues are picked up elsewhere 
in this report.   

 
2.11 Strategic Service Projects 

These are 11 projects underway that although service-based are of corporate 
significance because of the resources involved, their impact on the Council’s 
reputation or their contribution to delivering the Council’s corporate priorities. 
8 of the projects are Green and 3 Amber.  Full details are in appendix seven.   
 
Successes 

• The Bodicote House refurbishment is on time and budget.  The 
refurbishment of the Town Centre Offices will be completed by the end of 
March. 

• The joint County and Cherwell Banbury Cultural Quarter Working Group 
held its first meeting.  

• The technical group advising the Department of Communities and Local 
Government on the eco-town process has been wound up following the 
completion of major pieces of joint technical work.  The outputs are now 

Page 281



being reported and are assisting in the Council’s campaign against the 
Weston Otmoor proposal 

 
Issues 

• The progress on the Banbury Flood Alleviation Scheme has been delayed 
as we await the date for the compulsory purchase order inquiry.  The 
delay is procedural and is not expected to affect the overall progress of 
the scheme. 

 
2.12 2008/09 Revenue Growth Items  

Councillors agreed 21 revenue growth items for 2008/09.  The delivery of the 
outcomes promised for these extra resources are monitored.  Of the 21 items 
18 are Green, 2 Amber and 1 Red.  Full details are in appendix eight.   
 
Successes 

• The Planning Enforcement Team is fully utilising Uniform to manage the 
enforcement process and has achieved much improved management of 
cases – including customer feedback and speedier responses where 
actions are required.  Planning Committee has received detailed reports 
on this aspect of the Planning Services Improvement Plan 

• An additional £60,000 of grant funding given to support advice centres 
and seniors clubs. 

• The investment in additional waste bins will be complete with the 
installation of the final batch in January.  Also the new street cleansing 
vehicles arrived in November and these make emptying bins easier.   

• The Street Cleansing Service is operating to additional hours in urban 
areas.   

 
Issues 

• The delay in introducing the Food Waste Recycling Service.  It is likely to 
be autumn 2009 before the delayed local food waste processing facility is 
built by the County Council. 

 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The purpose of the report is to show the Council’s performance against the 

performance measures in the Performance Management Framework.  From 
this information the Executive can make an overall judgement about the 
progress the Council is making in meeting its objectives and identify the 
achievements it wishes to celebrate and the areas where action is required to 
improve performance.   

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the 
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward 

 
Option One To review current performance levels and consider any 

actions arising. 
 

Option Two To approve or reject the recommendations above. 
 
Consultations  Not Applicable 

 
Implications 

 

Page 282



Financial: Financial Effects – The resources required to operate the 
Performance Management Framework is contained within 
existing budgets. However the information presented may 
lead to decisions that have financial implications. These 
will be viewed in the context of the Medium Term Plan & 
Financial Strategy and the annual Service & Financial 
Planning process. 

Efficiency Savings – There are none arising directly from 
this report. The Performance Management Framework is 
designed to improve financial management, including the 
avoidance of overspending and underspend, and the 
achievement of efficiencies. We monitor the progress 
against the Council’s targets for annual efficiency savings 
and report performance through the Performance 
Management Framework.   

 Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Chief Accountant, 
01295 221551 

 

Legal: Maintaining National Indicators is a legal requirement. 

 Comments checked by Liz Howlett, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services,  01295 221686 

 

Risk Management: The Performance Management Framework is designed to 
assist the Council in managing and monitoring delivery of 
its strategic objectives and improving customer 
satisfaction. Services are required to maintain their 
sections of the risk register, and update their risks no less 
frequently than quarterly. The service manager should 
address the risks associated with performance issues. 
The framework may show that performance is not 
achieving desired levels. Managers can address this by 
re-assessing the level of performance required, the 
priority it should attract, and the level of resource 
available.  A failure to identify and improve key drivers of 
customer satisfaction through an effective Performance 
Management Framework is one of the Council’s strategic 
risks. 

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management & Insurance Officer,  01295 221566 

 

Data Quality Data for performance against all indicators has been 
collected and calculated using agreed methodologies and 
in accordance with Performance Indicator Definition 
Records (PIDRs) drawn up by accountable officers. The 
council’s performance management software has been 
used to gather and report performance data in line with 
performance reporting procedures. 
 

Data quality issues with individual indicators are set out 
within the combined exceptions/successes report 
(appendix 2) giving Executive additional information on 

Page 283



the reliability or accuracy of the data. This combines 
actions taken by individual accountable officers in 
services and also the improvement team as part of their 
data quality overview. 

 Comments checked by Neil Lawrence, lead officer on 
data quality, 01295 221801 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Corporate Plan 
Themes 
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor Debbie Pickford - Portfolio Holder for Organisational Development 
and Improvement 
 
Document Information 

 
Appendix Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 
Appendix 4 
Appendix 5 
Appendix 6 
Appendix 7 
Appendix 8 
 

Corporate Scorecard 2008/2009 
Successes, Exceptions and Emerging Issues 
Corporate Plan 
National Indicators 
Best Value Performance Indicators 
Corporate Improvement Plan 
Strategic Service Projects 
2008/09 Revenue Growth Items 

 
 
Background Papers 

 

Report Author Mike Carroll, Head of Improvement 

 

Contact 
Information 

01295 227959 

mike.carroll@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 284



Appendix 1 

16 18

7 6

4 3

2 2

Measure Definition Responsible Service
Reporting 

Frequency

Comment on 

Performance to date

Quarter

Two

Quarter 

Three

Working in Partnership

Cherwell Community Plan Community & Corporate Planning Quarterly Only data for 18 out of 29 

indicators available, 17 of 

which were Green and 1 

Amber.

A A

Corporate Plan Promises

Create 200 new jobs in the District 

(gross)

Economic Development & Estates Monthly Total new jobs created in the 

district now amount to 652 

since 1 April. However, in that 

period 672 are known to have 

been lost.

G G

Bring to market 400 net new 

homes

Planning & Affordable Housing Annual 

(informed by 

provisional 

quarterly 

monitoring)

Running total now 368.  Good 

performance in Q3 (204) 

assisted by progress on some 

housing allocations.  Improved 

monitoring resources have 

also enabled some previously 

unrecorded completions on 

very small sites to be 

identified.  Target of 400 

should now be be met.

R A

Complete 100 new affordable 

homes

Housing Services Quarterly 64 affordable homes 

completed against a target of 

58.

G G

Enhance Kidlington village centre 

by replacing the street furniture

Urban & Rural Services Quarterly Succesful consultation process 

undertaken and support 

identified for materials to be 

used for street furniture. Press 

release to be made once we 

have progressed and are more 

certain with procurement. 

Portfolio Holder report to sign 

off equipment selection due 

January 2009.

G G

Reduce acquisitive crime in the 

District by 5%

Safer Communities & Community 

Development

(Thames Valley Police)

Quarterly Thames Valley Police unlikely 

to achieve this target - latest 

projections suggest a 2% 

reduction.

A R

Progress against the Sports Centre 

Modernisation Programme

Recreation & Health Monthly Progressing in accordance with 

agreed timescales. G G

Support new and improved 

healthcare services in Bicester and 

surrounding area

Recreation & Health Quarterly PCT procurement process 

delayed. OJEU advert to be 

placed in mid January.
G G

Support provision of the best 

possible services at the Horton 

Hospital

Recreation & Health Quarterly Better Health Care Programme 

pursuing four workstreams 

involving Board and Forum 

members. Health needs 

assessment complete. Interim 

service arrangements largely 

in place.

G G

Ensure 90% of streets and parks 

are clean

Environmental Services Four monthly On track - litter score very 

good, detritus score lagging 

but will improve in the next 

quarter.

G G

Achieve a recycling rate of 49% Environmental Services Quarterly Recycling rate on track for 

49.5% - 50%. G G

AMBER

NO DATA (N/A)

RED

Total GREEN

Corporate Scorecard

April - December 2008       

A district of opportunity

A safe and healthy Cherwell

A cleaner, greener Cherwell

Page 1 of 3Page 285



Appendix 1 

Measure Definition Responsible Service
Reporting 

Frequency

Comment on 

Performance to date

Quarter

Two

Quarter 

Three

Reduce waste going to landfill by 

1,500 tonnes

Environmental Services Quarterly Reduction in landfill tonnage 

will be in excess of 1400 

tonnes, may hit 1500 tonnes.
R A

Reduce the council's CO2 

emissions by 4% from the 

2006/2007 baseline

Environmental Services Quarterly Reduction appears to be on 

track.

A G

Provide 10 new service access 

points in rural locations

Customer Service & Information 

Systems

Quarterly Three kiosks and four 

PayPoints are being 

implemented currently.
G G

Keep our Council Tax increase 

below inflation

Finance Annually

(at beginning of 

year)

G G

Delivery against the Equalities 

Action Plan

Safer Communities & Community 

Development

Monthly Remains on track for target 

achievement by year end. A A

National Indicators

Performance against the National 

Indicator Suite (CAA)

Improvement Team Monthly 10 of 20 NIs (50%) where data 

available have scored Green.
R R

Performance against the former 

Best Value Performance Indicator 

Suite

Improvement Team Monthly 22 of 38 BVPIs (58%) where 

data available have scored 

Green.
R R

Financial Performance

Percentage variance on revenue 

budget expenditure against profile 

(+2% / -5%)

Finance Monthly We are forecasting an 

overspend of £200k against 

budget - within budget 

tolerances.

G G

Percentage variance on capital 

budget expenditure against profile 

(+2% / -5%).                                                                         

Capitala: Sports Centre 

Modernisation

SCM programme catching up - 

95% of periodic budget 

delivered. A G

Capitalb: Other Capital Projects 97% of budget to date 

delivered.  Service Heads to 

be encouraged to deliver.
A G

£ in efficiency savings against a 

target of £260,000

Finance Monthly £174k of procurements 

savings YTD identified 

contributing to £260k target for 

full year.

G G

Combined measure of growth bid 

outcomes achieved

Improvement Team Quarterly 20 of 21 (95%) Growth Bids 

have achieved Green or 

Amber.
A A

Human Resources

Staff turnover Human Resources Quarterly Quarter 3 = 2.4%.

G G

Finance Monthly

An accessible, value for money Council

Page 2 of 3Page 286



Appendix 1 

Measure Definition Responsible Service
Reporting 

Frequency

Comment on 

Performance to date

Quarter

Two

Quarter 

Three

Number of days lost through 

sickness

Human Resources Quarterly See BV12. Q3 Outturn was 

6.31 days against target of 

6.00. Increase due to seasonal 

sickness absence - flu, colds 

etc.

Increased focus on 

management of SA, training in 

the application of new SA 

Policy effective 1 April 2009 is 

now underway.

G A

Workforce capacity Human Resources Quarterly Quarter 3 = 90.8%.

G G

Customer Feedback

Ensure that at least 90% of our 

customers when asked are 

satisfied with our customer service 

when contacting the Council

Customer Service & Information 

Systems

Monthly 95% satisfaction overall. 100% 

over the phone, 92% face to 

face. G G

Ensure that at least 78% of 

residents when asked say they feel 

safe at home and in the community

Safer Communities & Community 

Development

To be 

determined

No data available until 

completion of Place Survey 

and/or Oxfordshire Citizens 

Panel.

N/A N/A

Ensure that 70% of our customers 

when asked feel well informed 

about the Council

Communications Annual Annual customer satisfaction 

survey.

N/A N/A

Measure Definition Responsible Service
Reporting 

Frequency
Customer Satisfaction Survey (for 

information purposes only)

Community & Corporate Planning Annual

Service Satisfaction Surveys (for 

information purposes only)

All Services To be 

determined

Measure Definition Responsible Service
Reporting 

Frequency

Comment on 

Performance

Previous 

rating

Current 

rating

CPA / CAA Improvement Team;

Community & Corporate Planning

Annual Re-categorisation inspection in 

November 2008. Good Good

Use of Resources Finance Annual
3 3

Direction of Travel Improvement Team;

Community & Corporate Planning

Annual Details to follow.

Average Average

Data Quality Improvement Team;

Community & Corporate Planning

Annual Latest assessment March 

2008. 2 2

Equalities Impact Assessment Safer Communities & Community 

Development

Annual We are working towards 

increasing our performance 

against the Equality 

Framework for Local 

Government, aiming to achieve 

a category 3 rating by end of 

08/09.

N/A N/A

Investors in People Human Resources Annual Retained accreditation meeting 

8/10 indicators. 
Awarded Retained

Inspection Scores

Comment on Performance

Collected for information only (no RAG score):

Other Surveys

Satisfaction survey completed.  General trend of improvement.  

Overall satisfaction:

2006 = 60%

2007 = 65%

2008 = 67%.

Some areas of weakness around Anti-Social Behaviour, CCTV, 

communications and contact.

No information at present

Page 3 of 3Page 287



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
1
3
  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 E
m

e
rg

in
g

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

- 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

 
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 –

 2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
S

u
c
c

e
s
s
 

•
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
u
ra
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

•
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 i
n
te
rn
a
lly
 w
it
h
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
ta
k
in
g
 a
 l
e
a
d
 r
o
le
. 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
o

f 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

S
p
e
n
d
 £
3
0
0
,0
0
0
 o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 b
e
tt
e
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

fo
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 G
ra
n
ts
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
th
re
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
e
lp
 o
f 

£
2
5
0
k
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
&
 £
6
0
k
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
T
h
a
t 
e
q
u
a
ls
 1
0
4
 j
o
b
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

a
t 
a
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
£
7
4
0
k
. 
 T
h
is
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 f
ro
m
 0
7
/0
8
 w
ill
 g
iv
e
 a
 

p
ro
je
c
te
d
 s
p
e
n
d
 f
o
r 
0
8
/0
9
 o
f 
£
9
3
8
k
 e
q
u
a
lli
n
g
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
4
0
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
o

f 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 1
0
1
 

u
n
it
s
 

•
 

7
7
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

 

•
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 N
ig
h
tS
a
fe
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 i
n
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 

 
•
 

N
ig
h
tS
a
fe
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o
n
 1
0
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

 

•
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 n
e
w
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 

N
e
w
 3
-y
e
a
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
C
P
P
 a
n
d
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

 

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t-
w
id
e
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
N
M
 

R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

•
 

A
ll 
s
ix
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 N
A
G
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
lo
c
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

•
 

A
ll 
N
A
G
s
 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 t
o
p
 t
h
re
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
. 

 

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

h
e

rw
e
ll
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 1
7
 v
ill
a
g
e
 h
a
lls
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 g
ra
n
t 
a
id
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

•
 

G
ra
n
ts
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
c
la
im
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
w
o
rk
/p
ro
je
c
ts
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

 

Page 288



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
S

u
c
c

e
s
s
 

•
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 1
0
 c
o
u
n
ty
 w
ild
lif
e
 s
it
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

•
 

S
it
e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 o
n
 b
y
 B
B
O
W
T
. 

 

A
 C

le
a
n

e
r,

 G
re

e
n

e
r 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll
 

•
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
7
1
%
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 g
re
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 a
re
a
s
 

 

•
 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
8
9
.6
%
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

 

•
 

R
e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

K
id
lin
g
to
n
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 a
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 o
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
6
 

2
0
0
8
 (
th
e
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
e
d
 K
id
lin
g
to
n
 o
ff
ic
e
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
).
 

 

•
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 s
in
g
le
, 
c
e
n
tr
a
lis
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
w
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 o
n
lin
e
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 

n
e
w
 l
e
a
fl
e
t.
  
S
o
m
e
 t
e
e
th
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
s
 w
e
 t
ry
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 

d
o
u
b
le
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
. 

 

A
n

 A
c

c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

•
 

P
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 

   

•
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 r
u
ra
l 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 w
a
y
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

•
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 s
c
o
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U
s
e
 o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 

e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
"n
o
ta
b
le
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
" 
b
y
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
. 

 

•
 

H
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 P
a
y
P
o
in
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
; 
m
e
t 

w
it
h
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 s
it
e
s
 w
it
h
 O
R
C
C
 a
n
d
 

V
ill
a
g
e
 S
h
o
p
s
 w
o
rk
e
r.
 N
o
w
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 g
o
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
it
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
h
o
p
 o
w
n
e
rs
. 

 

  S
u

c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 -

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

s
 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 

•
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 n
e
w
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 m

o
d
e
rn
.g
o
v
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

 

•
 

E
x
it
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
s
: 
4
9
5
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
. 
D
ra
ft
 

re
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 

 

•
 

In
 t
w
e
lv
e
 m

o
n
th
s
 s
in
c
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 p
o
w
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
e
r 
ro
o
m
 h
a
s
 f
a
lle
n
 f
ro
m
 1
3
8
 k
w
/m

o
n
th
 t
o
 8
7
 

k
w
/m

o
n
th
. 

 

Page 289



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
 

L
e
g

a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 p
ro
c
u
re
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
d
e
m
o
c
ra
c
y
 w
e
e
k
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 5
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
5
0
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 t
ri
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
e
s
 o
f 
P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
t 
to
 m

e
e
t 
T
o
n
y
 B
a
ld
ry
 M

P
 a
n
d
 p
u
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

h
im
. 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
&

 E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

•
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 h
ig
h
 a
t 
9
1
%
 a
n
d
 9
2
%
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 J
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

re
m
a
in
 l
o
w
, 
1
0
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
lt
o
g
e
th
e
r,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 7
 c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
ts
. 

 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
&

 M
a
jo

r 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

•
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
. 

1
. 
D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 -
 N
o
w
 r
e
fi
n
e
d
 m

o
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 f
it
 w
it
h
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 P
IN
S
 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
fa
s
t-
tr
a
c
k
 

a
p
p
e
a
ls
. 

2
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
fi
n
e
d
 -
 N
e
w
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
rm

a
t 
- 
R
e
v
is
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 U
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 n
o
w
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
. 

3
. 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 s
ig
n
 o
ff
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 n
o
w
 a
lt
e
re
d
 t
o
 m

a
rr
y
 d
is
p
a
tc
h
 d
a
te
 t
o
 d
a
te
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 n
o
w
 s
a
v
in
g
 3
/5
 d
a
y
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
tr
a
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 s
h
e
e
ts
. 

 

•
 

A
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
ra
ft
e
d
 i
n
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 L
e
g
a
l 
&
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 p
u
b
lic
 s
p
e
a
k
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 m

u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r.
  
T
h
is
 a
llo
w
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t.
 

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

  
•
 

T
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 &
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 G
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 

a
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
s
 a
n
 "
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 &
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
" 
w
h
o
 c
h
a
ir
s
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 &
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
d
v
is
o
ry
 p
a
n
e
l 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
la
n
 a
im
 o
f 
"g
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
 h
o
m
e
 i
f 
y
o
u
 a
re
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
o
n
e
",
 a
 H
o
m
e
b
u
y
 

e
v
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
H
o
m
e
b
u
y
 p
ro
d
u
c
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
ta
ff
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
e
ld
 a
 "
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
ta
ll"
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
ro
d
u
c
ts
. 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 P
ri
v
a
te
 S
e
c
to
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 p
ro
s
e
c
u
te
d
 a
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
la
n
d
lo
rd
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
rc
ro
w
d
in
g
. 

 

•
 

A
 r
o
u
n
d
 t
a
b
le
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 C
a
re
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
d
e
a
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
u
r 
s
tr
o
n
g
 w
o
rk
in
g
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 m

u
tu
a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

Page 290



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c
u

ti
v

e
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 
•
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
V
fM

 R
e
v
ie
w
s
 f
o
r 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

 

•
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 V
fM

 R
e
v
ie
w
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
le
a
d
in
g
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ilo
t 
g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
tr
ia
lli
n
g
 a
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

•
 

7
4
%
 o
f 
o
u
r 
B
V
P
Is
 w
e
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 4
5
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
2
/0
3
. 

 

•
 

C
A
A
 A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
Im

p
ro
v
in
g
 D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

 

•
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 s
c
o
re
 o
f 
3
 f
o
r 
K
L
o
E
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
. 

 

  S
u

c
c

e
s
s

e
s
 –

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
&

 M
a
jo

r 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 
•
 

N
I 
1
5
7
a
 %

 M
a
jo
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 i
n
 1
3
 w
e
e
k
s
: 

T
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 h
a
s
 e
n
s
u
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 m

a
jo
r 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 U
p
p
e
r 
H
e
y
fo
rd
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
it
 h
a
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

m
a
jo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 t
e
a
m
. 

 

  S
u

c
c

e
s
s

e
s
 –

 B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e
r 

 
•
 

B
V
 7
9
b
(i
i)
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
R
e
c
o
v
e
re
d
: 
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
: 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 g
re
e
n
. 
T
h
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 f
ig
u
re
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 e
n
te
re
d
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
. 

 

Page 291



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
u

c
c

e
s
s

e
s
 –

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t:
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 f
ro
m
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 1
&
2
 h
a
s
 

e
n
a
b
le
d
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 c
lo
s
e
r 
lia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r.
  
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 O
ff
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
le
a
re
d
 o
f 
d
e
b
ri
s
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 y
e
a
r 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
. 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
li

c
y
 

•
 

T
h
e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 C
L
G
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
 t
o
w
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
o
u
n
d
 u
p
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 m

a
jo
r 
p
ie
c
e
s
 o
f 
jo
in
t 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
w
o
rk
 (
C
D
C
/O
C
C
/P
a
rk
ri
d
g
e
/C
L
G
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
).
 

 

   Page 292



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 
1
3
  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

 
E

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 

 E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 –

 2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

•
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
 4
0
0
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 m

in
im
u
m
 o
f 
1
0
0
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 

 

•
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
re
d
it
 c
ru
n
c
h
. 
A
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
tw
o
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
re
d
it
 c
ru
n
c
h
 i
s
 

h
a
v
in
g
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
e
b
u
ild
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 p
re
-e
x
is
ti
n
g
 d
e
la
y
 o
n
 s
it
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 

a
n
d
 f
o
rm

e
r 
R
A
F
 U
p
p
e
r 
H
e
y
fo
rd
. 
T
h
e
 2
0
0
8
 A
M
R
 w
ill
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 o
n
w
a
rd
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

2
0
0
7
 A
M
R
's
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m

a
d
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 c
re
d
it
 

c
ru
n
c
h
 b
e
g
a
n
 t
o
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 a
ff
e
c
t 
h
o
u
s
e
b
u
ild
in
g
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
) 
th
is
 i
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 l
e
s
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
h
a
n
 

o
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
m
a
rk
e
t 
h
o
m
e
s
. 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
o

f 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 l
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
it
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

•
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
la
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 L
D
F
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 

p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 (
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 o
w
in
g
 t
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
e
c
o
 t
o
w
n
 

w
o
rk
) 
h
a
v
e
 m

e
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 s
lip
p
in
g
. 
It
 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
d
e
la
y
 C
o
re
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
. 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
o

f 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 B
ic
e
s
te
r.
 

 

•
 

IT
L
U
S
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 w
e
ll,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
o
m
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
w
in
g
 t
o
 H
a
lc
ro
w
 (
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
) 
b
e
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 w
o
rk
 (
fo
r 

C
D
C
) 
o
n
 e
c
o
 t
o
w
n
s
. 
A
ls
o
, 
s
o
m
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
B
a
n
b
u
ry
. 

 

     

 
 

Page 293



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 7
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
o

f 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

E
x
p
a
n
d
 C
h
o
ic
e
 B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 c
o
u
n
ty
w
id
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 C
h
o
ic
e
 B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 n
e
a
ri
n
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

n
e
w
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
s
lip
p
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

M
a
rc
h
 u
n
ti
l 
J
u
n
e
 0
9
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

s
u
p
p
lie
r 
A
b
ri
ta
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
 

re
g
io
n
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
u
n
ti
l 
J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

h
e

rw
e
ll
 

•
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle
y
 P
o
lic
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ft
 f
ro
m
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
, 
ro
b
b
e
ry
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 b
u
rg
la
ry
 b
y
 5
%
 

•
 

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle
y
 P
o
lic
e
 p
ro
je
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 5
%
 c
ri
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 L
a
te
s
t 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
) 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
a
 2
%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 

 

C
le

a
n

e
r,

 G
re

e
n

e
r 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 s
e
n
t 
to
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 
b
y
 1
5
0
0
 

to
n
n
e
s
 b
y
 3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 

•
 

1
4
0
0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 m

in
im
u
m
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
a
l 
p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t.
 

 

   E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 -

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

s
 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

F
u
e
l 
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
t 
b
u
t 
u
n
it
 p
ri
c
e
 n
o
w
 8
8
p
/l
it
re
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ri
c
e
 o
f 
8
5
p
/l
it
re
. 
O
il 
p
ri
c
e
s
 s
ti
ll 

fa
lli
n
g
 s
o
 t
h
is
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 a
re
a
 m

a
y
 f
a
ll 
to
 a
ro
u
n
d
 £
5
0
k
 

 

  

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
•
 

C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 C
C
T
V
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 c
o
lla
p
s
e
d
 

•
 
C
D
C
 w
ill
 n
o
w
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

 

    

 
 

Page 294



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 8
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
•
 

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle
y
 P
o
lic
e
 p
ro
je
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 5
%
 c
ri
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
B
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r,
 

a
ll 
c
ri
m
e
 h
a
d
 r
is
e
n
 b
y
 j
u
s
t 
0
.2
%
 b
u
t 
m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
s
 c
ri
m
e
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 h
a
d
 f
a
lle
n
 f
ro
m
 5
8
.0
8
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
 t
o
 

5
6
.8
3
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
 

  

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 

U
rb

a
n

 &
 R

u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

N
e
a
r 
m
is
s
 i
n
c
id
e
n
t 
in
 B
u
s
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
 A
c
c
id
e
n
t 
in
 S
p
ic
e
b
a
ll 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 

to
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 c
la
im
a
n
t.
  
R
is
k
 r
e
v
ie
w
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 d
e
fe
n
d
 o
u
r 
p
o
s
it
io
n
. 

 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
&

 E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

•
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 £
4
0
k
 

b
e
lo
w
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m

it
ig
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 n
o
n
-f
ill
in
g
 

o
f 
a
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts
. 
 

T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 q
u
it
e
 v
o
la
ti
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

in
 a
 m

a
rg
in
a
l 
d
e
fi
c
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 B
C
 t
ra
d
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
is
 y
e
a
r.
 

 

•
 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

B
C
E
S
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 £
2
0
k
 s
u
rp
lu
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

  E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 –

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

R
E

D
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

N
I 
1
9
6
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
 –
 

fl
y
 t
ip
p
in
g
: 

 

•
 

T
h
is
 N
I 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 b
o
th
 f
ly
 t
ip
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
F
ly
 t
ip
s
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 u
p
 4
3
7
 v
 4
2
7
 (
in
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
).
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 

N
I.
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 g
o
o
d
 b
u
t 
le
s
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
s
t.
  
H
e
n
c
e
 a
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
3
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
 1
. 

 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
•
 

N
I 
1
5
: 
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

 
•
 

A
c
tu
a
l 
c
ri
m
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 3
3
.3
%
 (
7
0
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
, 
5
1
 

in
 2
0
0
7
, 
3
4
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
).
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
t 
w
it
h
 T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle
y
 P
o
lic
e
. 

Page 295



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
•
 

N
I 
1
6
 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
  

 
•
 

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle
y
 P
o
lic
e
 a
re
 p
ro
je
c
ti
n
g
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
t 
2
 -
 3
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 

5
%
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
&

 M
a
jo

r 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

•
 

N
I 
1
5
7
b
 %

 M
in
o
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 i
n
 8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 

      

•
 

N
I 
1
5
7
c
 %

 O
th
e
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 i
n
 8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 p
u
rg
e
 o
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 o
u
t 

o
f 
ti
m
e
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
is
 b
o
th
 

b
e
lo
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 

th
e
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 3
0
%
 m

e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
in
a
l 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
2
0
0
8
/9
. 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 b
a
c
k
lo
g
 o
f 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
th
a
t 
is
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 m

in
o
r 

a
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 i
n
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
t 
a
 l
e
v
e
l 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 f
a
r 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 c
le
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 o
u
t 

o
f 
d
a
te
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
li

c
y
 

•
 

N
I 
1
5
4
 N
e
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
m
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

•
 

C
o
m
p
a
ra
to
r 
o
f 
6
8
1
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
(1
7
0
/1
7
1
 p
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r)
 

is
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
u
p
p
ly
 f
ro
m
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
a
b
le
 s
it
e
s
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 (
re
v
is
e
d
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
8
 

A
M
R
).
 T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 f
ig
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 f
a
r 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
re
d
it
 c
ru
n
c
h
 i
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 o
n
 

h
o
u
s
e
b
u
ild
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 d
e
la
y
 

o
n
 s
it
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm

e
r 
R
A
F
 U
p
p
e
r 

H
e
y
fo
rd
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 3
rd
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
n
e
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
ly
 h
ig
h
 a
t 
2
0
4
 (
p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 

o
n
ly
 a
s
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 O
C
C
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
).
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 f
ro
m
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
n
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tw
o
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
1
6
 u
n
it
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
A
rn
c
o
tt
 

a
n
d
 2
2
 a
t 
M
ilt
o
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
B
lo
x
h
a
m
),
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
8
 h
o
m
e
s
 

a
t 
H
a
n
w
e
ll 
F
ie
ld
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
 o
n
 a
 s
it
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 U
rb
a
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

S
tu
d
y
 2
0
0
5
 (
th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
S
u
n
lig
h
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 L
a
u
n
d
ry
 a
t 

Page 296



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1
0
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

B
ic
e
s
te
r)
. 
Im

p
ro
v
e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
d
 4
8
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
o
ld
e
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
s
 (
i.
e
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
s
it
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 

n
o
t 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 v
is
it
e
d
).
 

 

  E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 –

 B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 (

R
E

D
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e
r 

•
 

B
V
 7
8
a
 A
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 c
la
im
s
 

•
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 d
a
y
s
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 c
la
im
s
 h
a
v
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 

e
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 

 W
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
a
lk
s
 w
it
h
 a
n
 o
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 c
re
a
te
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la
im
s
. 
 W

e
 h
o
p
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

th
a
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e
r 

•
 

B
V
7
9
b
(i
ii)
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
O
v
e
rp
a
y
m
e
n
t:
 W

ri
tt
e
n
 O
ff
 

•
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
ri
te
 o
ff
s
 a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
fe
w
 w
e
e
k
s
. 

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

B
V
 2
1
6
b
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
 l
a
n
d
 (
%
 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 o
f 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
) 

 

•
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 h
a
v
e
 

s
h
o
w
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
ig
u
re
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
 s
it
e
s
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
w
a
s
 

in
c
o
rr
e
c
t.
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
 r
e
-

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
te
re
d
 

re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 o
n
to
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
 W

e
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

R
e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

•
 

B
V
 1
7
0
a
 V
is
it
s
 t
o
/u
s
a
g
e
 o
f 
m
u
s
e
u
m
s
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
  

 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
, 
u
n
a
v
o
id
a
b
le
, 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

M
u
s
e
u
m
 a
n
d
 T
IC
 v
is
it
o
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 

th
e
 T
IC
/O
S
S
. 

 

Page 297



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1
1
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
li

c
y
 

•
 

B
V
 2
1
9
c
 %

 o
f 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
s
 

 

•
 

F
ig
u
re
 i
s
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 (
h
is
to
ri
c
a
lly
) 

in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
. 
T
h
e
re
 

is
 n
o
w
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
a
 4
 y
e
a
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
(N
B
: 
E
a
rl
ie
r 
C
A
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 d
id
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 (
w
h
ic
h
 

is
 w
h
y
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 P
I 
a
n
d
 

B
V
2
1
9
a
.0
5
).
 

 

  Page 298



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1
2
 o
f 
1
3
  

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

E
m

e
rg

in
g

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 

 

E
m

e
rg

in
g

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 –

 2
0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
S

u
c
c

e
s
s
 

•
 

L
a
u
n
c
h
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 n
e
w
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
R
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
lo
s
e
d
. 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 C
C
P
P
. 

P
a
ri
s
h
 L
ia
is
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 1
2
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 1
7
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
fi
n
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

•
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
K
id
lin
g
to
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
fu
rn
it
u
re
. 

 

•
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
tr
e
e
t 

fu
rn
it
u
re
. 
 P
re
s
s
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 o
n
c
e
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
re
 m

o
re
 c
e
rt
a
in
 w
it
h
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 H
o
ld
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 s
ig
n
 o
ff
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
O

f 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
£
2
0
0
,0
0
0
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
 s
1
0
6
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
B
ic
e
s
te
r 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
it
h
 S
a
in
s
b
u
ry
's
 l
e
g
a
l 
te
a
m
 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
l 

ra
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 W

h
e
n
 t
h
is
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

te
m
p
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
lim

a
te
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
 s
it
e
 s
ta
rt
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 t
ri
g
g
e
r 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 
 S
m
a
lle
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
le
a
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
1
0
6
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
a
g
a
in
 

th
e
s
e
 a
re
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 o
n
 

s
it
e
. 

 

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

h
e

rw
e
ll
 

•
 

In
v
e
s
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
C
C
T
V
) 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

c
ri
m
e
 d
e
te
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
te
r 
c
ri
m
e
 

 

•
 

T
V
P
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 m

a
jo
r 
re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 a
t 
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 

P
o
lic
e
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 d
e
la
y
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

to
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 C
C
T
V
 s
u
it
e
. 

 

    

 
 

Page 299



 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1
3
 o
f 
1
3
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
S

u
c
c

e
s
s
 

A
n

 A
c

c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
to
ta
l 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
te
ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 o
n
lin
e
 t
o
 1
4
%
 

•
 

W
e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
o
n
lin
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

in
te
ra
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
-b
a
s
e
lin
e
d
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 w
e
 w
ill
 e
n
d
 

w
it
h
 t
w
o
 f
ig
u
re
s
 -
 o
n
e
 a
s
 w
e
 w
ill
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 g
o
in
g
 

fo
rw
a
rd
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
e
 a
s
 c
lo
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
s
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 0
6
/0
7
 a
s
 w
e
 c
a
n
. 

 

  E
m

e
rg

in
g

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 -

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

s
 

 
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

 
E

m
e
rg

in
g

 I
s
s
u

e
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 U

p
d

a
te

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

•
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
la
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
T
IC
/O
O
S
 b
u
t 
s
a
le
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 

 

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
&

 M
a
jo

r 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

•
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
o
w
n
tu
rn
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
ro
p
 i
n
 m

a
jo
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
is
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 s
u
c
h
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

 

•
 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
e
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tl
o
o
k
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 

is
 b
le
a
k
. 
 A
s
 s
u
c
h
, 
s
te
p
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
e
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
. 
 T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 3
 t
o
 1
, 
w
it
h
 a
n
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
la
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 o
n
 s
u
c
h
 s
ta
ff
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
. 

 

 

 Page 300



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re

e
C
o
m

m
e
n
t

D
C
P
0
1
.1

.1
 P

re
s
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 c

h
o
ic
e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
m

a
jo

r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr
ic
t

G
G

P
u
b
li
c
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 "
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
g
ro

w
th

" 
n
o
w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
.

C
M
T
 E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
is
s
io

n
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 L

D
F
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 (
p
a
rt
ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

w
in

g
 t
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
c
o
 t
o
w
n
 w

o
rk

) 
h
a
v
e
 

m
e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is
 s

li
p
p
in

g
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w
o
rk

 c
a
n
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 
n
o
t 
d
e
la

y
 C

o
re

 S
tr
a
te

g
y
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

.

D
C
P
0
1
.3

.1
 C

o
n
tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
0
 n

e
w
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

D
is
tr
ic
t

G
G

T
o
ta

l 
n
e
w
 j
o
b
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr
ic
t 
n
o
w
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
to

 6
5
2
 s

in
c
e
 1

 A
p
ri
l.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
n
 

th
a
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 6

7
2
 a

re
 k

n
o
w
n
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t.

C
M
T
 E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

IT
L
U
S
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
o
m

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

w
in

g
 t
o
 H

a
lc
ro

w
 

(t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

) 
b
e
in

g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 w

o
rk

 (
fo

r 
C
D
C
) 
o
n
 e

c
o
 t
o
w
n
s
. 

A
ls
o
, 
s
o
m

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

o
d
e
ll
in

g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
B
a
n
b
u
ry

.

C
M
T
 E

m
e
r
g
in

g
 I
s
s
u
e

T
h
e
 s

1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
B
ic
e
s
te

r 
T
o
w
n
 C

e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
 S

a
in

s
b
u
ry

's
 l
e
g
a
l 
te

a
m

 

fo
r 
fi
n
a
l 
ra

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
W

h
e
n
 t
h
is
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th

is
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 t
e
m

p
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

li
m

a
te

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a

 s
it
e
 s

ta
rt
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld

 t
ri
g
g
e
r 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 
S
m

a
ll
e
r 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
le

a
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

1
0
6
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r,
 a

g
a
in

 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 s

ta
rt
in

g
 o

n
 s

it
e
.

C
M
T
 E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

re
d
it
 

c
ru

n
c
h
. 
C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
is
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

th
a
n
 o

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
m

a
rk

e
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
.

C
M
T
 E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 C

h
o
ic
e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is
 n

e
a
ri
n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 h

o
w
e
v
e
r 
d
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w
 s

o
ft
w
a
re

 w
il
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
s
li
p
p
in

g
 f
ro

m
 M

a
rc

h
 u

n
ti
l 
Ju

n
e
 

0
9
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
ft
w
a
re

 s
u
p
p
li
e
r 
A
b
ri
ta

s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 
u
n
ti
l 
Ju

n
e
 0

9
.

D
C
P
0
1
.6

.2
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

G
G

T
h
e
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
li
s
h
e
d
.

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

7
7
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
.

A

D
C
P
0
1
.6

.3
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 

1
0
1
 u

n
it
s

G
GA A

D
C
P
0
1
.6

.1
 E

x
p
a
n
d
 C

h
o
ic
e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 c
o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e

A

D
C
P
0
1
.5

.1
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 4

0
0
 n

e
w
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

1
0
0
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s

R

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te

 P
la

n

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
p
r
il
 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 2

0
0
8

C
h
e
r
w

e
ll
: 
A
 D

is
tr
ic
t 
o
f 
O
p
p
o
r
tu

n
it
y

D
C
P
0
1
.4

.2
 D

e
li
v
e
r 
£
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
s

G

D
C
P
0
1
.2

.1
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 l
a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
F
ra

m
e
w
o
rk

A

AR

D
C
P
0
1
.4

.1
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 n

e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
B
a
n
b
u
ry

 a
n
d
 B

ic
e
s
te

r
A

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
5

Page 301



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re

e
C
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te

 P
la

n

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
p
r
il
 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 2

0
0
8

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

T
h
e
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 G

ra
n
ts

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
th

re
e
 q

u
a
rt
e
rs

 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 
£
2
5
0
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
&
 £

6
0
k
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T

h
a
t 
e
q
u
a
ls
 1

0
4
 j
o
b
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

t 
a
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
7
4
0
k
. 
T
h
is
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
ro

m
 0

7
/0

8
 w

il
l 
g
iv

e
 a

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 f
o
r 
0
8
/0

9
 o

f 

£
9
3
8
k
 e

q
u
a
ll
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

4
0
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
.

D
C
P
0
1
.8

.1
 L

a
u
n
c
h
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 n

e
w
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll
 R

u
ra

l 

S
tr
a
te

g
y

A
A

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
.

D
C
P
0
1
.8

.2
 D

e
li
v
e
r 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
u
ra

l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
A

G

P
a
ri
s
h
 L

ia
is
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.
 W

e
b
p
a
g
e
 d

e
d
ic
a
te

d
 t
o
 p

a
ri
s
h
 N

e
w
s
/B

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 w

e
b
c
a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
s
h
 L

ia
is
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 
C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 d

is
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
/i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

D
C
P
0
1
.9

.1
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 
P
a
rs

o
n
's
 S

tr
e
e
t 
B
a
n
b
u
ry

G
G

D
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 v

ir
tu

a
ll
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 
a
n
d
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r
e
a
d
y
 o

n
 t
im

e
.

D
C
P
0
1
.9

.2
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

il
la

g
e
 c

e
n
tr
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

K
id

li
n
g
to

n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
fu

rn
it
u
re

G
G

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
tr
e
e
t 
fu

rn
it
u
re

. 
P
re

s
s
 r
e
le

a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
c
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

m
o
re

 c
e
rt
a
in

 w
it
h
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t.
 P

o
rt
fo

li
o
 H

o
ld

e
r 
re

p
o
rt
 t
o
 s

ig
n
 o

ff
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 

d
u
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
9
.

D
C
P
0
2
.1

.1
 E

n
s
u
re

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
y
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 

a
t 
h
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

N
o
 D

a
ta

N
o
 D

a
ta

N
o
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
P
la

c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
/o

r 
C
it
iz
e
n
s
 P

a
n
e
l.

C
M
T
 E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
ll
e
y
 P

o
li
c
e
 u

n
li
k
e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 
la

te
s
t 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
a
 2

%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
M
T
 E

m
e
r
g
in

g
 I
s
s
u
e

T
V
P
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 
w
o
rk

s
 a

t 
B
a
n
b
u
ry

 P
o
li
c
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic
h
 c

o
u
ld

 d
e
la

y
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 C

C
T
V
 s

u
it
e
.

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

N
ig

h
ts

a
fe

 B
ic
e
s
te

r 
la

u
n
c
h
e
d
 o

n
 1

0
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
.

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

N
e
w
 3

-y
e
a
r 
s
tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

C
P
P
 a

n
d
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
a
n
d
 p

u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 o

n
 w

e
b
s
it
e

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

A
ll
 s

ix
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

A
ll
 N

A
G
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 t
o
p
 t
h
re

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
s

D
C
P
0
2
.1

.5
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 n

e
w
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y

G
G

A

D
C
P
0
2
.1

.3
 I
n
v
e
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 (
C
C
T
V
) 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

c
ri
m

e
 d

e
te

c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
te

r 
c
ri
m

e
A

R

G

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 C

h
e
r
w

e
ll

G

D
C
P
0
2
.2

.2
 L

o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 N

A
G
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
G

G

D
C
P
0
2
.2

.1
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr
ic
t-

w
id

e
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
N
M

 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
G

G

D
C
P
0
2
.1

.2
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 T

V
P
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ft
 f
ro

m
 v

e
h
ic
le

s
, 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 b
u
rg

la
ry

 b
y
 5

%

D
C
P
0
1
.7

.1
 S

p
e
n
d
 £

3
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 b

e
tt
e
r 
q
u
a
li
ty

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

G A

D
C
P
0
2
.1

.4
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 N

ig
h
ts

a
fe

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 B

ic
e
s
te

r
A

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
5

Page 302



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re

e
C
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te

 P
la

n

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
p
r
il
 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 2

0
0
8

D
C
P
0
2
.3

.1
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
t 
th

e
 H

o
rt
o
n
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l

G
G

B
e
tt
e
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

u
rs

u
in

g
 f
o
u
r 
w
o
rk

s
tr
e
a
m

s
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 F

o
ru

m
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
H
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
In

te
ri
m

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
.

D
C
P
0
2
.3

.2
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
 n

e
w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

B
ic
e
s
te

r 
a
n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
s

G
G

P
C
T
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
. 
O
JE

U
 a

d
v
e
rt
 t
o
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 m

id
 J
a
n
u
a
ry

.

D
C
P
0
2
.3

.3
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 n

e
w
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll
 P

u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

G
G

H
e
a
lt
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

d
o
p
te

d
.

D
C
P
0
2
.4

.1
 H

e
lp

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt
ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

b
y
 1

%
G

G
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt
ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 L

a
te

s
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
 f
ro

m
 S

p
o
rt
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 s

h
o
w
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt
ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll
.

D
C
P
0
2
.4

.2
 P

re
p
a
re

 a
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 
a
 B

ic
e
s
te

r 

m
u
lt
i-
s
p
o
rt
s
 v

il
la

g
e

G
G

P
ro

je
c
t 
p
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 b

u
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 s

lo
w
 d

o
w
n
 i
n
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
ts

/s
a
le

s
.

D
C
P
0
2
.5

.1
 I
n
v
e
s
t 
£
1
5
m

 i
n
 r
e
b
u
il
d
in

g
 o

r 
re

fu
rb

is
h
in

g
 o

u
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s

G
G

P
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

D
C
P
0
2
.6

.1
(a

) 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 1

2
 e

x
is
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
/o

rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 g

ra
n
t 
a
id

 f
u
n
d
in

g
G

G
P
ro

v
is
io

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic
e
.

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

G
ra

n
ts

 a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
c
la

im
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
w
o
rk

/p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
C
P
0
2
.6

.2
 P

ro
v
id

e
 8

2
0
 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

G
G

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
. 
O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t.

D
C
P
0
2
.6

.3
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 p
a
rt
ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

in
 g

ro
u
p
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

y
 3

%
G

G
T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w
 1

0
,7

4
9
 p

a
rt
ic
ip

a
n
ts

 i
n
 g

ro
u
p
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

D
C
P
0
3
.1

.1
 E

n
s
u
re

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
9
0
%

 o
f 
o
u
r 
s
tr
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 p

a
rk

s
 a

re
 

c
le

a
n
 a

t 
a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t
im

e
G

G
O
n
 t
ra

c
k
 -
 l
it
te

r 
s
c
o
re

 v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
, 
d
e
tr
it
u
s
 s

c
o
re

 l
a
g
g
in

g
 b

u
t 
w
il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

q
u
a
rt
e
r.

D
C
P
0
3
.1

.2
 E

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
a
ll
 u

rb
a
n
 c

e
n
tr
e
s

G
G

C
le

a
n
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 u

rb
a
n
 c

e
n
tr
e
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 e

v
e
n
in

g
.

D
C
P
0
3
.2

.1
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

u
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 r
a
te

 t
o
 4

9
%

 b
y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9

G
G

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 r
a
te

 o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 f
o
r 
4
9
.5

%
 -
 5

0
%

.

D
C
P
0
3
.2

.2
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
to

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll
 b

y
 1

5
0
0
 

to
n
n
e
s
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

R
A

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
1
4
0
0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
, 
m

a
y
 h

it
 1

5
0
0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
.

D
C
P
0
3
.4

.1
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's
 c

a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

m
is
s
io

n
s

b
y
 4

%
A

G
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
.

D
C
P
0
3
.5

.1
 I
n
fo

rm
 a

ll
 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

c
a
n
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is
s
io

n
s

G
G

L
e
a
fl
e
t 
w
id

e
ly

 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
,0

0
0
 p

ro
p
e
rt
ie

s
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 l
a
s
t 
m

o
n
th

.

G
G

D
C
P
0
2
.6

.1
(b

) 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 1

7
 v

il
la

g
e
 h

a
ll
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

g
ra

n
t 
a
id

 f
u
n
d
in

g

A
 C

le
a
n
e
r
, 
G
r
e
e
n
e
r
 C

h
e
r
w

e
ll

D
C
P
0
3
.3

.1
 U

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 1

0
 c

o
u
n
ty

 w
il
d
li
fe

 s
it
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s

G
G

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
5

Page 303



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re

e
C
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te

 P
la

n

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
p
r
il
 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 2

0
0
8

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
8
9
.6

%

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

T
h
is
 i
s
 n

o
w
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 o

n
li
n
e
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 n

e
w
 l
e
a
fl
e
t.
 S

o
m

e
 t
e
e
th

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
s
 w

e
 t
ry

 t
o
 a

v
o
id

 d
o
u
b
le

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

1
.2

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
9
0
%

 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
re

 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 
s
e
rv

ic
e

G
G

9
5
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll
. 
1
0
0
%

 o
v
e
r 
th

e
 p

h
o
n
e
, 
9
2
%

 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

1
.3

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll
 L

in
k
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 
e
d
it
io

n
s
 p

e
r 
y
e
a
r

G
G

F
o
u
rt
h
 e

d
it
io

n
 d

is
tr
ib

u
te

d
. 
2
0
0
9
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 f
o
u
r 
is
s
u
e
s
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

2
.1

 S
e
c
u
re

 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
w
a
rd

s
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 s

ta
tu

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ty

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

A
A

W
o
rk

 p
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 
e
n
d

D
C
P
0
4
.0

3
.1

 B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 o

u
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

G
G

N
o
t 
c
e
rt
a
in

 a
ll
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

u
t 
fo

r 

th
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
, 
la

s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 1

0
0
%

.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

4
.1

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
c
o
re

 o
f 
3
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 K

L
o
E
 f
o
r 
V
fM

 i
n
 

th
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

G
G

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

4
.2

 D
e
li
v
e
r 
a
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
, 
re

v
e
n
u
e
-b

a
s
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 

c
a
ll
in

g
 o

n
 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s

A
G

T
h
e
 p

ro
m

p
t 
a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
s
t 
c
o
n
ta

in
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 
h
a
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
te

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
e
a
rl
ie

r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

4
.3

 S
e
c
u
re

 £
2
1
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 e

ff
ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
w
h
ic
h
 

£
1
6
0
,0

0
0
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s

G
G

£
1
7
4
k
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 Y

T
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 £

2
6
0
k
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
fu

ll
 

y
e
a
r.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

5
.1

 K
e
e
p
 o

u
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 r
is
e
 t
o
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 r
a
te

 o
f 

in
fl
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
G

G

C
M
T
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 s

c
o
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
"n

o
ta

b
le

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
" 
b
y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is
s
io

n
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

7
.1

 R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
 p

il
o
t 
a
t 

B
o
d
ic
o
te

 H
o
u
s
e

G
G

E
x
it
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
s
 a

ll
 o

u
r 
lo

c
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 w
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
w
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
is
 l
ik

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
. 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 c

a
rd

s
 h

a
s
 o

r 
is
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
te

d
 o

n
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

7
.3

 P
ro

v
id

e
 r
u
ra

l 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 w
a
y
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

o
u
r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
A

D
is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
in

te
re

s
te

d
 s

h
o
p
s
/o

u
tl
e
ts

. 
T
h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

lo
tt
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s

h
o
w
 g

o
o
d
 s

p
re

a
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr
ic
t.
 L

ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 i
s
 3

/4
 b

e
in

g
 u

p
 a

n
d
 r
u
n
n
in

g
 t
h
is
 

y
e
a
r.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

8
.1

 R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 6

 m
o
n
th

 W
e
b
c
a
s
ti
n
g
 p

il
o
t 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
G

G
A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

D
C
P
0
4
.0

9
.1

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
7
0
%

 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
h
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 f
e
e
l 

w
e
ll
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

N
o
 D

a
ta

N
o
 D

a
ta

D
C
P
0
4
.0

6
.1

 P
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt
 o

f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
e

G

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

G

D
C
P
0
4
.0

7
.2

 R
e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
 t
o
w
n
 c

e
n
tr
e
 o

ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 B

a
n
b
u
ry

 a
n
d
 

K
id

li
n
g
to

n
G

G

C
h
e
r
w

e
ll
: 
A
n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
, 
V
a
lu

e
 f
o
r
 M

o
n
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

G

G

D
C
P
0
3
.6

.1
 M

a
in

ta
in

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
1
%

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

re
a
s

D
C
P
0
4
.0

1
.1

 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a

 s
in

g
le

, 
c
e
n
tr
a
li
s
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s

G
G

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
5

Page 304



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re

e
C
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te

 P
la

n

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
p
r
il
 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 2

0
0
8

C
M
T
 E

m
e
r
g
in

g
 I
s
s
u
e

W
e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
o
n
li
n
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
. 
T
h
is
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
-b

a
s
e
li
n
e
d
 t
h
is
 y

e
a
r 
s
o
 w

e
 w

il
l 
e
n
d
 w

it
h
 t
w
o
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 -
 o

n
e
 a

s
 w

e
 w

il
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 g
o
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 o

n
e
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 0

6
/0

7
 a

s
 w

e
 c

a
n
.

N
u
m

b
e
r 
G
re

e
n
 a

n
d
 A

m
b
e
r

5
0

5
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
6
.1

5
%

9
2
.7

3
%

O
v
e
r
a
ll
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 S

ta
tu

s
A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

D
C
P
0
4
.1

0
.1

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 h
a
n
d
le

d
 o

n
li
n
e
 t
o
 1

4
%

G
G

P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
5

Page 305



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 &
 I
C
T

 

A
c
tu
a
l

2
9
.3
5
%

G
1
3
.7
3
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

3
5
.0
0
%

3
5
.0
0
%

A
c
tu
a
l

7
6
.9
2
%

A
8
5
.0
0
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

8
0
.0
0
%

8
0
.0
0
%

A
c
tu
a
l

6
0
.4
7
%

R
5
9
.0
1
%

R

T
a
rg
e
t

8
5
.0
0
%

8
5
.0
0
%

A
c
tu
a
l

7
2
.0
2
%

R
7
1
.0
1
%

R

T
a
rg
e
t

9
2
.0
0
%

9
2
.0
0
%

C
M
T
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 b
a
c
k
lo
g
 o
f 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
th
a
t 
is
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 m

in
o
r 

a
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 i
n
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
t 
a
 l
e
v
e
l 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 f
a
r 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 c
le
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 o
u
t 
o
f 
d
a
te
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 2
0
0
8
/2
0
0
9

A
p
ri
l 
- 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8

C
M
T
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s

T
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 h
a
s
 e
n
s
u
re
d
 

th
a
t 
a
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 w

it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 m

a
jo
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

U
p
p
e
r 
H
e
y
fo
rd
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
it
 h
a
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 t
e
a
m
.

C
M
T
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 p
u
rg
e
 o
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re
 o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
is
 b
o
th
 b
e
lo
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
th
e
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 3
0
%
 m

e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
in
a
l 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 

2
0
0
8
/9
.

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

N
I 
1
4
: 
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t:
 

M
in
im

is
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
th
a
t 
is
 o
f 
lo
w
 o
r 
n
o
 v
a
lu
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r

N
I 
1
5
7
: 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

fo
r 
"o
th
e
r"
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 t
y
p
e
s

N
I 
1
5
7
: 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

fo
r 
"m

a
jo
r"
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 t
y
p
e
s

N
I 
1
5
7
: 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

fo
r 
"m

in
o
r"
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 t
y
p
e
s

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 M
a
jo
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
s
e
tt
le
d
 i
n
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
- 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 m

is
s
e
d
 b
in
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 -
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 v
a
lu
e
 r
a
th
e
r 

th
a
n
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t.
  
S
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 w
ill
 r
e
c
ti
fy
 

th
is
 b
u
t 
th
e
 f
ig
u
re
 i
s
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 1
3
.7
3
%
. P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
7

Page 306



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

5
0

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

2
0
0
8
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

2
0
0
8
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

A
c
tu
a
l

S
C
O
R
E
 =
 0

G
S
C
O
R
E
 =
 0

G

T
a
rg
e
t

S
C
O
R
E
 =
 0

S
C
O
R
E
 =
 0

A
c
tu
a
l

2
6
0
.5
5
 k
g
/h
'h
o
ld

A
3
8
6
.6
3
 k
g
/h
'h
o
ld

A

T
a
rg
e
t

2
5
6
.4
6
 k
g
/h
'h
o
ld

3
8
4
.6
9
 k
g
/h
'h
o
ld

A
c
tu
a
l

5
3
.4
3
%

G
5
1
.2
2
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

4
9
.0
0
%

4
9
.0
0
%

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 i
n
 2
0
0
8

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 i
n
 2
0
0
8

A
c
tu
a
l

4
%

G
4
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

6
%

6
%

A
c
tu
a
l

9
%

G
1
0
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

1
1
%

1
1
%

N
I 
1
8
8
: 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 a
d
a
p
t 
to
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e

N
I 
1
9
1
: 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 p
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

N
I 
1
9
4
: 
L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
a
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

N
O
x
 a
n
d
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 P
M
1
0
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
's
 e
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

N
I 
1
9
2
: 
H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w

a
s
te
 s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

N
I 
1
9
5
(a
):
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -
 L
it
te
r

Y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

4
9
.5
%
 -
 5
0
%
.

N
I 
1
8
5
: 
C
O
2
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 p
ro
fi
le
d
. 
 A
n
 e
n
d
 o
f 
y
e
a
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
ro
u
n
d
 5
1
0
k
g
/h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
.

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 a
 s
c
o
re

 o
f 
 0
-4
 (
4
 =
 h
ig
h
e
s
t)
. 
 A
 s
c
o
re
 o
f 
1
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
.

4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 l
o
o
k
s
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r 

d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 
is
 b
a
s
e
 d
a
ta
.

N
I 
1
9
5
(b
):
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -
 D
e
tr
it
u
s

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
7

Page 307



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
c
tu
a
l

1
%

G
0
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

1
%

1
%

A
c
tu
a
l

0
%

G
0
%

G

T
a
rg
e
t

1
%

1
%

A
c
tu
a
l

ti
p
p
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 &
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
u
p

G
3

R

T
a
rg
e
t

1
1

E
x
c
h
e
q
u
e
r

A
c
tu
a
l

2
1
7
2

G
4
1
9
5

A

T
a
rg
e
t

2
1
0
0

4
2
0
0

A
c
tu
a
l

1
2
.8
 d
a
y
s

G
1
3
.4
8
 d
a
y
s

A

T
a
rg
e
t

1
2
.8
6
 d
a
y
s

1
2
.8
6
 d
a
y
s

F
in
a
n
c
e

A
c
tu
a
l

R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r

G
N
o
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

P
e
ri
o
d

T
a
rg
e
t

£
2
6
0
k
 (
fu
ll 
y
e
a
r)

£
2
6
0
k
 (
fu
ll 
y
e
a
r)

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
c
tu
a
l

4
0

G
6
4

G

T
a
rg
e
t

4
0

5
8

N
I 
1
9
5
(c
):
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -
 G

ra
ff
it
i

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 n
e
w
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
t.
 T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
s
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 u
p
 t
o
 

d
a
te
. 
T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
c
o
u
ld
 a
lt
e
r 
a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
rs
 d
a
ta
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 g
iv
e
 u
s
 

a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r

N
I 
1
8
0
: 
T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic
h
 a
ff
e
c
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
' 

H
B
/C

T
B
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 n
e
w
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
t.
 T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
s
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 u
p
 t
o
 

d
a
te
. 
T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
c
o
u
ld
 a
lt
e
r 
a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
rs
 d
a
ta
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 g
iv
e
 u
s
 

a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r

N
I 
1
7
9
: 
V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 -
 t
o
ta
l 
n
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
 

o
f 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 c
a
s
h
-r
e
le
a
s
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 g
a
in
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
0
8
-0
9
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r

N
I 
1
9
6
: 
Im

p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -
 f
ly
 t
ip
p
in
g

T
h
is
 N
I 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 b
o
th
 f
ly
 t
ip
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 F
ly
 t
ip
s
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 

u
p
 4
3
7
 v
 4
2
7
 (
in
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
).
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 

u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 N
I.
  
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 g
o
o
d
 

b
u
t 
le
s
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 
th
a
n
 

la
s
t.
  
H
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
3
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 1
.

N
I 
1
9
5
(d
):
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -
 F
ly
 P
o
s
ti
n
g

N
I 
1
5
5
: 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d

N
I 
1
8
1
: 
T
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
/ 
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
n
e
w
 c
la
im

s
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
v
e
n
ts

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
7

Page 308



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
c
tu
a
l

1
0
4

G
7
7

G

T
a
rg
e
t

1
1
0

1
0
2

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

1
6
4

R
3
6
8

R

T
a
rg
e
t

3
4
1

5
1
1

T
h
e
 U
n
it
e
d
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 E
n
e
rg
y
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
ta
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
fu
e
l 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
. 
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
re
a
s
o
n
s
. 
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 1
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
.

C
o
m
p
a
ra
to
r 
o
f 
6
8
1
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
(1
7
0
/1
7
1
 p
e
r 

q
u
a
rt
e
r)
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
u
p
p
ly
 f
ro
m
 

d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
a
b
le
 s
it
e
s
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 (
re
v
is
e
d
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
8
 A
M
R
).
 T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 

fi
g
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 f
a
r 
re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 

th
e
 c
re
d
it
 c
ru
n
c
h
 i
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
e
b
u
ild
in
g
 

ra
te
s
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 d
e
la
y
 o
n
 s
it
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm

e
r 
R
A
F
 U

p
p
e
r 

H
e
y
fo
rd
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 3
rd
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
n
e
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
ly
 h
ig
h
 a
t 
2
0
4
 

(p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
o
n
ly
 a
s
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 O

C
C
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
).
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
n
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tw
o
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
1
6
 

u
n
it
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
A
rn
c
o
tt
 a
n
d
 2
2
 a
t 
M
ilt
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
, 
B
lo
x
h
a
m
),
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
8
 h
o
m
e
s
 a
t 
H
a
n
w
e
ll 

F
ie
ld
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
 o
n
 a
 s
it
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 U
rb
a
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
S
tu
d
y
 2
0
0
5
 (
th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
S
u
n
lig
h
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 L
a
u
n
d
ry
 a
t 
B
ic
e
s
te
r)
. 
Im

p
ro
v
e
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 4
8
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
o
ld
e
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
s
 (
i.
e
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
s
it
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 v
is
it
e
d
).

N
I 
1
5
4
: 
N
e
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
m
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d

N
I 
1
5
6
: 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 

te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

N
I 
1
8
7
: 
T
a
c
k
lin

g
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt
y
  
- 
p
e
o
p
le
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 

h
o
m
e
s
 w

it
h
 a
 l
o
w
 e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 r
a
ti
n
g

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
o
li
c
y

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
7

Page 309



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

ro
lli
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
%

ro
lli
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
%

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

L
o
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 %

 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 2
0
0
6

L
o
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 %

 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 2
0
0
6

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

1
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n

1
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
ti
ll 
to
 

b
e
 s
e
t 
b
y
 P
C
T

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
ti
ll 
to
 

b
e
 s
e
t 
b
y
 P
C
T

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
ti
ll 
to
 

b
e
 s
e
t 
b
y
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
ti
ll 
to
 

b
e
 s
e
t 
b
y
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

W
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 -
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
tu
rn

N
o
t 
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 o
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 P
o
s
s
ib
le
 n
e
a
r-

te
rm

 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 a
lt
e
r 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
.

N
I 
1
1
0
: 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

N
I 
1
7
0
: 
P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
o
r 
d
e
re
lic
t 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 

5
 y
e
a
rs

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 C
D
C
 i
s
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
m
b
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 C
D
C
 

P
la
y
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
.

D
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
n
d
 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
P
C
T
. 
 T
o
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
t 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
. 
C
D
C
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
w
o
rk
s
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
 

in
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t.

T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 b
y
 S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 v
ia
 a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
e
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 O

c
t/
 N
o
v
 w
it
h
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 J
a
n
/ 
F
e
b
. 
 D
e
liv
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 C
D
C
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
p
o
rt
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
p
o
rt
s
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
fa
c
ili
ty
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
.

N
I 
8
: 
A
d
u
lt
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n

N
I 
5
6
: 
O
b
e
s
it
y
 a
m
o
n
g
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r 
6

N
I 
1
5
9
: 
S
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
re
a
d
y
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
it
e
s

P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
7

Page 310



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
c
tu
a
l

0
.2

R
0
.2
5

R

T
a
rg
e
t

0
.1
2

0
.1
8

A
c
tu
a
l

4
.3
7

R
6
.3
4

R

T
a
rg
e
t

2
.0
4

3
.0
6

A
c
tu
a
l

3
.2
9

A
4
.7
4

A

T
a
rg
e
t

3
.0
7

4
.6

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

T
a
rg
e
t

U
rb
a
n
 a
n
d
 R
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l)

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
le
te
d

N
/A

T
a
rg
e
t

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
le
te
d
.

R
e
v
is
e
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

s
ta
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
"D

e
fr
a
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 S
p
a
ti
a
l 

L
e
v
e
l 
is
 S
in
g
le
 t
ie
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
ty
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
" 

th
e
re
fo
re
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
c
o
u
n
c
ils
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 E
D
C
.

N
o
 d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 u
n
ti
l 
Q
4
. 
T
e
s
t 
re
p
o
rt
s
 b
e
in
g
 

ru
n
 o
n
 U
n
i-
fo
rm

 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
.

N
e
w
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 g
ro
u
p
 n
o
w
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'
s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io
n
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
.

N
I 
1
6
: 
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

N
I 
1
9
7
: 
Im

p
ro
v
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 -
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
s
it
e
s

N
I 
3
5
: 
B
u
ild

in
g
 r
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 v
io
le
n
t 

e
x
tr
e
m
is
m

N
I 
1
8
4
: 
F
o
o
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 b
ro
a
d
ly
 c
o
m
p
lia

n
t 
w
it
h
 f
o
o
d
 

h
y
g
ie
n
e
 l
a
w

N
I 
1
5
: 
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

N
I 
2
0
: 
A
s
s
a
u
lt
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju
ry
 

c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 1
3
%
 

w
h
ils
t 
n
o
n
-d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 1
4
.6
%
. 

T
h
is
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
.

C
M
T
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle

y
 P
o
lic
e
 a
re
 p
ro
je
c
ti
n
g
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
t 
2
 -
 3
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
ta
rg
e
t 

o
f 
5
%
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 O

v
e
rv
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

C
M
T
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

A
c
tu
a
l 
c
ri
m
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 3
3
.3
%
 (
7
0
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
, 

5
1
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
, 
3
4
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
).
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
w
it
h
 T
h
a
m
e
s
 V
a
lle
y
 P
o
lic
e
.

P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 
7

Page 311



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

C
ro
s
s
-S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
r

A
c
tu
a
l

N
o
 D
a
ta

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

O
n
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

G
re
e
n

8
9

1
0

3
1
.2
5
%

A
m
b
e
r

3
5

4
1
2
.5
0
%

R
e
d

0
3

6
1
8
.7
5
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

4
3

1
3
.1
3
%

N
o
 D

a
ta
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
 p
la
n
n
e
d
)

1
3

1
1

1
0

3
1
.2
5
%

N
o
 T
a
rg
e
t

0
0

0
0
.0
0
%

N
o
 R

e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
P
e
ri
o
d

0
1

1
3
.1
3
%

T
o
ta
l 
T
h
is
 P
e
ri
o
d

2
8

3
2

3
2

O
v
e
ra
ll
 N
I 
S
ta
tu
s

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
h
re
e

N
I 
1
8
2
: 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
a
g
e
 7
 o
f 
7

Page 312



Appendix 5

Quarter 

Two
Performance

Quarter 

Three
Performance

Actual 2 G 2 G

Target 2 2

Actual 98.22 A 98.25 A

Target 100 100

Actual 58.75 G 87.14 G

Target 58.5 87

Actual 60.18 G 86.38 A

Target 58.5 86.75

Actual 3.58 G 6.31 A

Target 4 6

Actual No Data 31.56 R

Target 22 22

Actual No Data 10.4 R

Target 7 7

Actual No Data No Data

Target 99 99

Actual 76.34 A 79 G

Target 77.5 77.5

Actual 11.65 R 27.52 G

Target 18 27

Actual 0.85 R 1.73 R

Target 2.5 3.75

Actual 22.9 A 24.18 A

Target 24.35 24.35

Actual 7426.77 G 11030.56 G

Target 7225 10837.5

Actual 30.63 G 27.38 G

Target 22.33 22.33

Actual 9883.63 G 12490.29 G

Target 6625 9937.5

Actual 100 G 100 G

Target 100 100

Actual 50.45 G 59.73 G

Target 50 50

Actual 100 G 100 G

Target 66.7 66.7

Actual 100 G 100 G

Target 100 100

Actual 898.03 R 1402.56 R

Target 1201.82 1813.72

Actual 776.34 R 1213.27 A

Target 889.47 1314.91

Actual 1141 G 2014 A

Target 850 2100

Actual 100 G 100 G

Target 100 100

Actual 11.36 A 11.23 A

Target 11 11

Actual 0.95 R 0.47 G

Target 0.65 0.65

Actual 0 G 0 G

Target 0.4 0.4

Actual 59.35 G 50.77 G

Target 86 86

BV012 Days / shifts lost to sickness

BV079a % Benefit calculations correct

BV106 % New homes built on 'brownfield'

Best Value Performance Indicators 2008/2009

April - December 2008

BV008 % Invoices paid within 30 days

BV009 % Council Tax collected

BV002a.02 Equality Standard Level

BV010 % NNDR collected

BV078a Average time for new claims

BV078b Average time for changes

BV079bi.05 % HB Recovered:

Overpayment

BV079bii.05 % HB Recovered:

Outstanding

BV079biii.05 % HB O'Pay: Written Off

BV091b % of households with two 

 recyclables collected

BV082ai.05 % H'hold Waste Recycled

BV082aii.05 Tonnes H'hold Waste Recycled

BV082bi.05 % H'hold Waste Compost

BV082bii.05 Tonnes H'hold Waste Compost

BV170a Visits to/usage of museums 

per 1000 pop.

BV170b Visits to museums in person per 1000 

pop.

BV156 % LA public buildings - disabled

BV166a % score on Environmental Health 

checklist

BV170c Pupils visiting museums and galleries

BV179 % standard searches in 10 days

BV199a.05 Env. Cleanliness - Litter

BV199b.05 Env. Cleanliness - Graffiti

BV199c.05 Env. Cleanliness - Fly-Posting

BV203 % Change families in temporary

accommodation

Page 313



Appendix 5

Quarter 

Two
Performance

Quarter 

Three
Performance

Actual 21.05 R 18.18 A

Target 18 18

Actual 100 G 100 G

Target 100 100

Actual 2.25 G 3.15 G

Target 1.96 2.93

Actual 0 G 0 G

Target 5 5

Actual 1.96 R 2.93 R

Target 25 25

Actual 100 G 100 G

Target 100 100

Actual 97.64 G 97.04 G

Target 95 95

Actual 79.55 A 82.76 A

Target 85 85

Actual 54 A 55 G

Target 55 55

Actual 27.78 G 32.73 G

Target 20 20

Actual 66.67 A 63.64 R

Target 73 73

Actual 81.82 A 81.82 A

Target 82 82

Quarter

One

Quarter

Two

Green 24 20 22 56.41%

Amber 5 8 10 25.64%

Red 5 7 6 15.38%

No Data 4 4 1 2.56%

No Target 1 0 0

Total This Period 39 39 39

Overall BVPI Status Red Red Red

BV204 % Planning appeals allowed

BV205 Quality of Service checklist

BV213 Housing advice: No. case work 

intervention

BV214.05 % Repeat homelessness

BV216b.05 Info. on contaminated land

(% of sites of potential concern)

BV217.05 % Pollution control improvements

Quarter Three

BV219c % Conserv. Areas with published 

Management Plans

BV218a.05 % Abandoned vehicles-investigate

BV218b.05 % Abandoned vehicles-removal

BV219a.05 Conservation areas - number

BV219b % Conserv. Areas with up to date 

Character Appraisals

 BV225 % score on DV actions checklist

Page 314



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re

e
C
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
IP
0
1
.1
.1
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y

G
G

C
IP
0
1
.1
.2
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y

A
G

S
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
W
e
ig
h
te
d
 d
a
ta
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
/M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
.

C
IP
0
1
.2
.1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
C
P
A
 R
a
ti
n
g

A
A

C
M
T
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s

L
a
te
s
t 
U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
n
d
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 t
o
 3
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
.

C
IP
0
2
.1
.1
 E
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 A
v
a
il
a
b
le
 o
n
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 

C
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

G
G

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 0
7
/0
8
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 V
fM
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
0
8
/0
9
. 
T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 V
fM
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
, 
S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 
A
ll
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 m

a
d
e
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

C
IP
0
2
.2
.1
 D
e
li
v
e
r 
A
p
ri
l-
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

G
G

C
IP
0
3
.1
.1
 M
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs

G
G

C
M
T
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s

T
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 h
a
s
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 0
7
/0
8
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
B
V
P
Is
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 i
t'
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
B
V
P
Is
 a
n
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
7
4
%
 B
V
P
Is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
7
5
%
.

C
IP
0
3
.1
.3
 M
e
e
t 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
8
 R
e
ta
in
e
d
 

B
V
P
I'
s

R
R

C
IP
0
3
.2
.1
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 U
n
it
 C
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g

A
A

C
IP
0
3
.2
.2
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
G

B
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
to
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
V
fM
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 &
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

C
IP
0
3
.3
.1
 R
e
ta
in
 I
n
v
e
s
to
rs
 i
n
 P
e
o
p
le
 A
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n

G
G

C
IP
0
3
.3
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 

R
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n

G
G

C
IP
0
3
.1
.2
 M
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 4
2
 B
e
s
t 
V
a
lu
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

G
G

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

B
e
 R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
A
u
th
o
r
it
y

D
e
li
v
e
r
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r
 M
o
n
e
y

A
 C
u
lt
u
r
e
 o
f 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 A
c
r
o
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il

C
IP
0
1
.2
.2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 S
c
o
re
 o
f 
3
 f
o
r 
V
fM
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g

A
G

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
4

Page 315



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

C
IP
0
4
.1
.1
 D
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
s

A
A

F
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 P
la
n
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
g
u
n
 a
n
d
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 G
re
e
n
 i
n
 

Ja
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

C
IP
0
4
.1
.2
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
&
F
P
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 N
e
w
 

o
r 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s

A
A

C
IP
0
4
.2
.1
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
&
F
P
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 M
o
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s

A
A

C
IP
0
4
.3
.1
 E
x
p
lo
re
 S
h
a
re
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 f
o
r 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it

G
G

F
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 a
 V
fM
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 o
u
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 p
u
rs
u
e
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 O
x
fo
rd
 

C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
a
s
h
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 

C
IP
0
4
.3
.2
 E
x
p
lo
re
 S
h
a
re
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 f
o
r 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

A
G

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

C
IP
0
4
.3
.3
 C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
S
h
a
re
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
&
F
P
 a
n
d
 

V
fM
 R
e
v
ie
w
s

A
A

W
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 A
s
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

C
IP
0
5
.1
.1
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 T
re
n
d
s

G
G

C
IP
0
5
.1
.2
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 f
o
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

G
G

C
IP
0
5
.1
.3
 H
a
v
e
 R
e
g
u
la
r 
P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 D
a
ta
 U
p
d
a
te
s

G
G

C
IP
0
5
.1
.4
 U
s
e
 3
 Y
e
a
r 
E
IA
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
s

A
A

A
ll
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
im

p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b
o
th
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
la
te
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

C
IP
0
5
.2
.1
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 O
u
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 P
o
in
ts

G
G

C
IP
0
5
.2
.2
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 N
e
w
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
1
0
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
A

C
IP
0
5
.3
.1
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 T
ra
d
it
io
n
a
ll
y
 H
a
rd
 t
o
 

R
e
a
c
h
 G
ro
u
p
s

A
A

W
o
r
k
in
g
 i
n
 P
a
r
tn
e
r
s
h
ip

R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 D
iv
e
r
s
e
 N
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
4

Page 316



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

C
IP
0
6
.1
.1
 R
o
ll
-o
u
t 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P
lu
s

G
G

C
IP
0
6
.1
.2
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 N
e
w
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
c
o
re
c
a
rd

G
G

C
IP
0
6
.1
.3
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 n
e
w
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs

G
G

C
IP
0
6
.2
.1
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y

G
G

C
IP
0
6
.2
.2
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
ro
s
s
 O
x
o
n
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y

G
G

C
IP
0
6
.2
.3
 D
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 K
n
o
w
in
g
 O
u
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 p
ro
je
c
t

G
G

S
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
e
th
n
ic
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
. 
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 t
o
 c
ro
s
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 i
n
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 n
e
e
d
s
.

C
IP
0
6
.3
.1
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

G
G

C
IP
0
6
.3
.2
 E
n
s
u
re
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 C
IP
F
A
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 i
s
 F
u
ll
y
 U
ti
li
s
e
d

A
G

C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 V
fM
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
0
8
/0
9
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
d
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
ly
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 V
fM
 R
e
v
ie
w
s
.

C
IP
0
6
.3
.3
 U
s
e
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 

In
fo
rm

 S
&
F
P
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

A
G

C
IP
0
7
.1
.1
 M
o
n
it
o
r,
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
o
rt
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
M
F

G
G

C
IP
0
7
.2
.1
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 N
e
w
 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

G
G

C
IP
0
8
.1
.1
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
 S
ta
ff
 a
t 
a
ll
 L
e
v
e
ls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
&
F
P
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

G
G

C
IP
0
8
.2
.1
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 A
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
ta
ff
 

S
u
rv
e
y

G
G

C
IP
0
8
.2
.2
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 S
ta
ff
 C
a
s
c
a
d
e

G
G

C
IP
0
8
.2
.3
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 C
E
X
 S
ta
ff
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s

G
G

C
IP
0
8
.2
.4
 D
o
u
b
le
 t
h
e
 S
iz
e
 o
f 
In
s
id
e
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll

G
G

R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 o
u
r
 S
ta
ff
 a
r
e
 o
u
r
 G
r
e
a
te
s
t 
A
s
s
e
t

E
n
s
u
r
e
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
in
g
 i
s
 B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 H
ig
h
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D
e
m
o
g
r
a
p
h
ic
 I
n
fo
r
m
a
ti
o
n

D
e
li
v
e
r
 o
u
r
 s
e
r
v
ic
e
 p
r
o
m
is
e
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 w
e
 d
o
 t
h
is

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
4

Page 317



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

C
IP
0
8
.3
.1
 D
e
li
v
e
r 
a
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 W

h
o
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
M
T

G
G

C
IP
0
8
.3
.2
 A
li
g
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
it
h
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

G
G

N
u
m
b
e
r 
G
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 A
m
b
e
r

4
4

4
3

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

1
0
0
.0
0
%

9
7
.7
3
%

O
v
e
r
a
ll
 C
o
r
p
o
r
a
te
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s

G
r
e
e
n

A
m
b
e
r

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
4

Page 318



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 7

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
e
r
v
ic
e
 P
r
o
je
c
ts

P
0
3

P
0
3

C
M
T
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s

O
v
e
ra
ll
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 f
ro
m
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 1
&
2
 h
a
v
e
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 

c
lo
s
e
r 
li
a
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r.
 T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 O
ff
ic
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
le
a
re
d
 o
f 
d
e
b
ri
s
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 y
e
a
r 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
.

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
A

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 s
ti
ll
 a
 

s
tr
o
n
g
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
1
0
6
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 C
a
n
a
ls
id
e

G
G

W
o
rk
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
D
F
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 l
it
tl
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 u
n
ti
l 
th
e
 L
D
F
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
.

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r

A
G

F
ir
s
t 
Jo
in
t 
C
D
C
/O
C
C
 W

o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
. 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
. 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
il
l/
L
ib
ra
ry
 c
o
n
c
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 P
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
is
a
ti
o
n

G
G

P
u
b
li
c
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to
r'
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
w
a
it
e
d
. 
D
e
s
ig
n
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
te
n
d
e
rs
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 w
e
 a
re
 r
e
a
d
y
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
. 
T
im
e
ta
b
le
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
y
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
, 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

in
s
p
e
c
to
r'
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 
C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 m

a
rk
e
t 
a
n
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
a
d
e
rs
, 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
.

B
ic
e
s
te
r 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
A

T
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
re
a
c
h
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 S
a
in
s
b
u
ry
's
 a
n
d
 S
to
c
k
d
a
le
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 R
e
ta
il
, 
(t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r)
 a
re
 h
e
lp
fu
l,
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 o
f 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
re
m
a
in
s
 a
m
b
e
r 
u
n
ti
l 
re
v
is
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
.

F
lo
o
d
 A
ll
e
v
ia
ti
o
n

G
A

D
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 O
rd
e
r 
in
q
u
ir
y
 h
a
s
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
.

In
v
e
s
to
rs
 i
n
 P
e
o
p
le

G
G

Ii
P
 A
s
s
e
s
s
o
r 
d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 i
n
 M
id
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

R
A
F
 U
p
p
e
r 
H
e
y
fo
rd

G
G

In
q
u
ir
y
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
lo
s
in
g
 n
o
w
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
d
 f
o
r 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
.

S
W
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

G
G

In
it
ia
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
re
s
e
rv
e
d
 m

a
tt
e
rs
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
9
0
 d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
. 
In
it
ia
l 
s
k
e
tc
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m

a
n
y
 d
e
s
ig
n
 m

a
tt
e
rs
 a
re
 u
n
re
s
o
lv
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
.

C
M
T
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s

T
h
e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 C
L
G
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
 t
o
w
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
o
u
n
d
 u
p
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m

a
jo
r 
p
ie
c
e
s
 o
f 
jo
in
t 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
w
o
rk
 

(C
D
C
/O
C
C
/P
a
rk
ri
d
g
e
/C
L
G
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
).

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
e
r
v
ic
e
 P
r
o
je
c
ts
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t

G
G

W
e
s
to
n
 O
tm

o
o
r 
E
c
o
 T
o
w
n

G
G

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
1

Page 319



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 8

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

D
C
M
D
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 (
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t)
 =
 

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

G
G

T
h
e
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 i
s
 n
o
w
 f
u
ll
y
 u
ti
li
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 U
n
if
o
rm

 C
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
m
a
tt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

th
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 s
h
e
lv
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
.

D
C
M
D
 E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 D
a
ta
 C
a
p
tu
re
 =
 £
1
5
,0
0
0

G
G

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
n
g
o
in
g

H
S
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 (
D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
) 
=
 £
2
6
,0
0
0

G
G

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
H
IA
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
in
 h
o
u
s
e
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
H
IA
 

a
n
d
 D
F
G
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/9
.

H
S
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 (
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
) 
=
 £
1
0
0
,0
0
0

G
G

T
h
is
 g
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 C
L
G
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 "
n
o
 p
la
c
e
 l
ik
e
 h
o
m
e
",
 j
o
in
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 m

o
n
e
y
 a
d
v
ic
e
 w
it
h
 C
A
B
 -
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
.

H
S
 C
h
o
ic
e
 B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 =
 £
1
8
,0
0
0

G
G

A
b
ri
ta
s
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
u
ll
y
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
. 
S
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
B
L
 d
u
e
 t
o
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 S
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
.

H
S
 F
o
y
e
r 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 =
 £
2
3
,0
0
0

G
G

T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
 s
a
fe
ty
 n
e
t 
to
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 o
r 
a
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
ri
s
is
.

H
S
 S
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 S
a
v
e
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 =
 £
0

G
G

N
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
.

E
S
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 B
in
s
 =
 £
1
2
,5
0
0

G
G

N
e
w
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
rr
iv
e
d
 i
n
 l
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
s
e
 m

a
k
e
 e
m
p
ty
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
in
s
 

e
a
s
ie
r.
 R
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 b
in
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
s
ta
ll
e
d
 i
n
 m

id
-l
a
te
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

E
S
 F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te
 P
il
o
t 
C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 =
 £
3
0
,0
0
0

R
R

S
ti
ll
 n
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
fo
o
d
 w
a
s
te
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
. 
N
o
w
 l
o
o
k
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
9
 b
e
fo
re
 

fa
c
il
it
ie
s
 a
re
 b
u
il
t.

E
S
 P
e
s
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
=
 £
1
0
,0
0
0

G
G

S
D
K
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 w
e
ll
. 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k

E
S
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 =
 £
3
5
,0
0
0

G
G

C
o
v
e
r 
in
 u
rb
a
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 h
o
u
rs

G
r
o
w
th
 B
id
s
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 E
c
o
n
o
m
y

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

S
C
C
D
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
N
ig
h
tS
a
fe
 a
c
ro
s
s
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
=
 £
1
5
,0
0
0

A
G

N
ig
h
ts
a
fe
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
to
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
N
ig
h
ts
a
fe
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

N
ig
h
ts
a
fe
 K
id
li
n
g
to
n

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
2

Page 320



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 8

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

T
w
o

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

T
h
re
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

G
r
o
w
th
 B
id
s
 2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

A
p
r
il
 -
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
0
8

C
M
T
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
£
6
0
,0
0
0
 g
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
d
v
ic
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
rs
 c
lu
b
s

U
R
S
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
S
ta
ff
in
g
: 
In
-h
o
u
s
e
 e
c
o
lo
g
is
t 
=
 £
1
8
,0
0
0

G
G

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 a
 c
h
e
c
k
 o
n
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 l
a
rg
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 E
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
in
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 t
a
k
e
 p
re
c
e
d
e
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 '
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
s
 u
s
u
a
l'
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 t
h
e
 

fo
c
u
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
s
t.

U
R
S
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 =
 £
4
0
,0
0
0

G
G

U
n
it
 i
s
 n
o
w
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
li
c
e
n
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 m

u
c
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
; 
g
re
a
te
r 

p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 f
e
lt
 b
y
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 m

o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
; 
p
u
rs
u
it
 o
f 

p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
li
c
e
n
s
e
 h
o
ld
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
.

U
R
S
 S
tr
e
e
t 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 =
 £
1
5
,0
0
0

A
A

S
ti
ll
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
.

E
X
C
H
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
B
a
il
if
fs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 =
 £
7
5
,0
0
0

A
G

T
h
e
 m

a
in
 d
ri
v
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 b
a
il
if
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 p
o
s
tp
o
n
e
d
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 w
e
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
a
t 
th
e
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
. 
W
e
 w
il
l 
e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
is
 o
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
 a
t 
a
 l
a
te
r 
d
a
te
.

L
D
S
 V
ir
tu
a
l 
C
le
rk
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 =
 £
1
0
,0
0
0

A
A

P
ro
p
o
s
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
ri
s
h
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 

M
o
d
e
rn
.g
o
v
 a
n
d
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
in
 L
e
g
a
l 
&
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 t
o
 p
u
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 a
 b
id
 f
o
r 
IT
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
a
ri
s
h
e
s
.

C
O
M
 A
p
p
o
in
t 
a
 F
u
ll
ti
m
e
 D
e
s
ig
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 R
e
v
ie
w
 P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 =
 £
6
0
,0
0
0

G
G

S
a
v
in
g
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
ti
m
e
. 
B
e
tt
e
r 
id
e
a
 o
f 
to
ta
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 k
n
o
w
n
 i
f 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
.

C
O
M
P
 F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
R
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
la
n
 =
 

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

A
G

S
p
e
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 b
o
th
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
.

N
u
m
b
e
r 
G
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 A
m
b
e
r

2
0

2
0

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

9
5
.2
4
%

9
5
.2
4
%

O
v
e
r
a
ll
 G
r
o
w
th
 B
id
 S
ta
tu
s

A
m
b
e
r

A
m
b
e
r

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's
 S
e
r
v
ic
e
s

C
u
s
to
m
e
r
 S
e
r
v
ic
e
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s

S
C
C
D
 P
u
b
li
c
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 =
 £
3
6
,0
0
0

G

P
u
b
li
c
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 n
o
w
 f
u
ll
y
 s
ta
ff
e
d

G

S
C
C
D
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 
=
 £
6
0
,0
0
0

G
G

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
2

Page 321



 

   

Executive  
 
 

Authorisation of Staff – Safer Communities and Community 
Development 

 
2 February 2009 

 
Report of Head of Safer Communities and Community 

Development 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update the authorisation of a newly-qualified member of staff.  
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 

(1) Authorise Rachel Anne Mason for the purposes of the following 
legislation:- 

 
Building Act 1984 
Caravan Sites Act 1968 
Clean Air Act 1956, 1968 and 1993 
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 
Control of Pollution Act 1974 
Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 
Factories Act 1961 
Litter Act 1983 
Offices, Shops and Railway Premises Act 1963 
Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 
Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 
Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 
Sunday Trading Act 1994 
Water Acts 1973 and 1989 
Water Industry Act 1991 
 

(2) Invite the Council to authorise Rachel Anne Mason for the purposes of the 
following legislation:- 

 
Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 
Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 
Breeding and Sale of Dogs (Welfare) Act 1999 

Agenda Item 13

Page 322



 

   

Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 
Dangerous Wild Animals act 1976 
Food Hygiene (England) Regulations 2006 
Food Safety Act 1990 
Health Act 2007 
Health and Safety at Work, etc Act 1974 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Acts 1976 and 1982 
Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993 
Official Feed and Food Controls (England) Regulations 2007 
Pet Animals Act 1951 
Public Health Acts 1936 and 1961 
Riding Establishments Acts 1964 and 1970 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 
Zoo Licensing Act 1981 

 
 
 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 Officers performing regulatory duties must be authorised in writing by the 
Council to act on its behalf 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to update the authorisation for Rachel Mason 

who has recently obtained the Advanced Certificate in Food Premises 
Inspection 

 
Proposals 

1.3 Update the authorisation for the newly-qualified officer to undertake her 
regulatory duties 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
1.5 This will ensure that the Council undertakes its regulatory duties in 

compliance with the law.  

Page 323



 

   

 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: There are no financial implications arising from the report.  

 Comments checked by Karen Muir, Service Accountant, 
01295 221545 

Legal: This report covers all the legislation which may from time 
to time be enforced by the respective officer. It is critical 
that valid authorisations are in place to defend challenges. 

 Comments checked by Liz Howlett, Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services, 01295 221686 

Risk Management: Without formal written authorisations, staff would not have 
the right to enter into premises or onto land for routine 
inspection and any evidence gathered as a result would 
be open to challenge. The Council could also be 
considered as acting negligently if it failed to authorise its 
officers appropriately. 

 Comments checked by Rosemary Watts, Risk 
Management & Insurance Officer, 01295 221566 

  

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
Theme 1: Improve community safety and reduce the drugs problem 
Theme 2: Improve health 
Theme 6: Protect and enhance the local environment  
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor George Reynolds   
Portfolio Holder for Community, Health and Environment 
 
Document Information 

 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Grahame Helm, Head of Safer Communities & Community 
Development 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221615 

Grahame.helm@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 324



Agenda Item 16

Page 325

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 17

Page 331

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Restricted Minutes Supplemement , 01/12/2008 Executive
	Minutes , 12/01/2009 Executive

	6 Forward Plan
	$$Plan

	7 Shenington and Alkerton Conservation Area  Appraisal
	Shenington conservation area Fig 1
	Shenington conservation area Appendix A leaflet
	Shenington conservation area AppendixB Questionnaire
	Shenington conservation area Appendix C consultation responses
	Shenington Appendix D

	8 Cherwell Rural Strategy
	Draft Rural Strategy & Delivery Plan 220109

	9 Oxfordshire 2030 - A Sustainable Community Strategy for Oxfordshire
	2030 report - D8 (single)
	Appendix 2 - SCS delivery plan
	Appendix 3 - Oxon 2030 - Executive Comments 3

	10 Consultation and Engagement Strategy and the Duty to Involve
	Appendix 1 Consultation Strategy
	Appendix 2 Action Plan
	Appendix 3 Duty to Involve

	11 Draft Budget 2009/10
	Appendix 1 Revenue Budget Proposal
	Appendix 2 Capital Budget Proposal
	Appendices 2a - 2d
	Appendix 3 - MTFS

	12 Performance Management Framework Quarter 3 Report
	Appendix 1 Q3 Corporate Scorecard
	Appendix 2 Q3 Combined Exception Successes
	Appendix 3 Q3 Corporate Plan
	Appendix 4 Q3 National Indicators
	Appendix 5 Q3 BVPI
	Appendix 6 Q3 Corporate Improvement Plan
	Appendix 7 Q3 Strategic Service Projects
	Appendix 8 Q3 Growth Bids

	13 Authorisation of Staff - Safer Communities and Community Development
	16 Bicester Hospital
	17 Internal Audit Procurement

